CREDIT AGRICOLE CORPORATE AND INVESTMENT BANK

Issue of USD 54,000,000 Callable Fixed Rate Notes due 16 June 2021

(CACIB USD 54,000,000 Callable Fixed Rate Notes due June 2021, or the ""Notes™)

under
the €50,000,000,000
Structured Debt Instruments Issuance Programme
Issue Price: 100 per cent.
Issue Date: 16 June 2016

This information package includes (i) the Base Prospectus pertaining to the €50,000,000,000
Structured Debt Instruments Issuance Programme as supplemented by the Base Prospectus dated 11
May 2016 (the Base Prospectus) and (ii) the final terms dated 16 June 2016 in respect of the Notes
(the Final Terms). The Final Terms together with the Base Prospectus, are hereinafter referred to as
the "Information Package".

The Notes will be issued by Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank (the Issuer).

Application will be made by the Issuer for the Notes to be listed on the Taipei Exchange in the
Republic of China (the ROC).

The Notes will be traded on the Taipei Exchange pursuant to the applicable rules of the Taipei
Exchange. Effective date of listing and trading of the Notes is on or about 16 June 2016.

The Taipei Exchange is not responsible for the content of the Information Package and no
representation is made by the Taipei Exchange to the accuracy or completeness of the Information
Package. The Taipei Exchange expressly disclaims any and all liability for any losses arising from, or
as a result of the reliance on, all or part of the contents of this Information Package. Admission to the
listing and trading of the Notes on the Taipei Exchange shall not be taken as an indication of the
merits of the Issuer or the Notes.

The Notes have not been, and shall not be, offered, sold or re-sold, directly or indirectly, in the ROC,
to investors other than "professional investors" as defined under Article 2-1 of the Taipei Exchange
Rules Governing Management of Foreign Currency Denominated International Bonds.

ROC TAXATION

The following is a general description of the principal ROC tax consequences for investors receiving
interest in respect of, or disposing of, the Notes and is of a general nature based on the Issuers’
understanding of current law and practice. It does not purport to be comprehensive and does not
constitute legal or tax advice.

This general description is based upon the law as in effect on the date hereof and that the Notes will
be issued, offered, sold and re-sold to professional investors as defined under the Taipei Exchange
Rules Governing Management of Foreign Currency Denominated International Bonds only. This
description is subject to change potentially with retroactive effect. Investors should appreciate that, as
a result of changing law or practice, the tax consequences may be otherwise than as stated below.

Investors should consult their professional advisers on the possible tax consequences of subscribing
for, purchasing, holding or selling the Notes.



Interest on the Notes

As the Issuer of the Notes is not an ROC statutory tax withholder, there is no ROC withholding tax on
the interest to be paid on the Notes.

Payments of interest under the Notes to an ROC individual holder are not subject to ROC income tax
as such payments received by him/her are not considered to be ROC-sourced income. However,
such holder must include the interest in calculating his/her basic income for the purpose of calculating
his/her alternative minimum tax (AMT), unless the sum of the interest and other non- ROC-sourced
income received by such holder and the person(s) who is(are) required to jointly file the tax return in a
calendar year is below NTD1 million. If the amount of the AMT exceeds the ordinary income tax
calculated pursuant to the AMT Act, the excess becomes such holder’s AMT payable.

ROC corporate holders must include the interest receivable under the Notes as part of their taxable
income and pay income tax at a flat rate of 17% (unless the total taxable income for a fiscal year is
under NTD120,000), as they are subject to income tax on their worldwide income on an accrual basis.
The AMT is not applicable.

Sale of the Notes

In general, the sale of corporate bonds or financial bonds is subject to 0.1% Notes transaction tax
(STT) on the transaction price. However, Article 2-1 of the Notes Transaction Tax Act prescribes that
STT will cease to be levied on the sale of corporate bonds and financial bonds for seven years from 1
January 2010 to 31 December 2016. Therefore, the sale of the Notes will be exempt from STT if the
sale is conducted on or before 31 December 2016. Starting from 1 January 2017, any sale of the Notes
will be subject to STT at 0.1% of the transaction price, unless otherwise provided by the tax laws that
may be in force at that time.

Capital gains generated from the sale of bonds are exempt from income tax. Accordingly, ROC
individual and corporate holders are not subject to income tax on any capital gains generated from the
sale of the Notes. In addition, ROC individual holders are not subject to AMT on any capital gains
generated from the sale of the Notes. However, ROC corporate holders should include the capital
gains in calculating their basic income for the purpose of calculating their AMT. If the amount of the
AMT exceeds the ordinary income tax calculated pursuant to the AMT Act, the excess becomes the
ROC corporate holders' AMT payable. Capital losses, if any, incurred by such holders could be carried
over 5 years to offset against capital gains of same category of income for the purposes of calculating
their AMT.

Lead Underwriter
Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank, Taipei Branch
Underwriters

KGI Securities Co., Ltd.
Capital Securities Corporation
Cathay United Bank
Masterlink Securities Co., Ltd.
16 June 2016



16 June 2016

FINAL TERMS

Issue of USD 54,000,000 Callable Fixed Rate Notes due June 2021
under the €50,000,000,000
Structured Debt Instruments Issuance Programme

by

CREDIT AGRICOLE CORPORATE AND INVESTMENT BANK

PART A — CONTRACTUAL TERMS

This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Securities described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the
Directive 2003/7I/EC (and amendments thereto, including the Directive 2010/73/EU, to the extent implemented in
the Relevant Member State), including any relevant implementing measure in the Relevant Member State (the
Prospectus Directive) and must be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus dated 11 May 2016. Full
information on the Issuer and the offer of the Securities is only available on the basis of the combination of these
Final Terms and the Base Prospectus. The Base Prospectus is available for viewing on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange website (www.bourse.lu) during normal business hours at the registered office of Crédit Agricole CIB
(www.ca-cib.com) and the specified office of the Principal Paying Agent.

1 (a)
(b)
(c)

Series Number:
Type of Securities:

Tranche Number:

Date on which the Securities become fungible:

2 Specified Currency:

3 Aggregate Nominal Amount;
(a) Series:
(b) Tranche:
4 Issue Price:
5 (a) Specified Denominations:
(b) Minimum Trading Size:
(c) Calculation Amount:
6 (a) Issue Date:
(b} Trade Date(s):
(a) Interest Commencement Date:

7 Redemption Date:

(a)
(b)

Renouncement Notice Cut-off Time:

Expiry Date (Data di Scadenza):

3786

Notes

1

Not Applicable

United States Dollar (*USD"™)

USD 54,000,000

USD 54,000,000

100 per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount
USD 1,000,000

Not Applicable

USD 1,000,000

16 June 2016

19 May 2016

Issue Date

16 June 2021, subject to any early redemption
Not Applicable
Not Applicable



10
11

12

(c) Interest Record Date(s):
Type of Notes:

(a) Interest:

(b) Redemption:

Date Board approval for issuance of Securities
obtained:

Method of distribution:
Asset Conditions:

Alternative Currency Conditions:

Not Applicable

Fixed Rate Security

(Further particulars specified below in
"PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST
(IF ANY) PAYABLE™)

Relevant Redemption Method(s):

For the purpose of determining the Early
Redemption Amount: Standard Redemption

For the purpose of determining the Final Redemption
Amount: Standard Redemption

(Further particulars specified below in
"PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION")

Authorisation given by the Board of Directors of
Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank
dated 30 July 2015

Non-syndicated
Not Applicable
Not Applicable

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

13

Fixed Rate Security:
(a) Applicable to:
(b) Rate(s) of Interest:

(c) Interest Payment Date(s):

(d) Interest Period Dates:

(e) Fixed Coupon Amount(s):

() Broken Amount(s):
g) Day Count Fraction;
(h) Interest Accrual Periods:

(i) Business Day Convention for the purposes
of adjustment of "Interest Accrual Periods" in
accordance with paragraph (h) above:

(j) Additional Business Centre(s):

(k) Determination Date(s):

Applicable
All Interest Accrual Periods
2.60 per cent. per annum payable quarterly in arrears

Quarterly on 16 March, 16 June, 16 September and
16 December in each year from and including 16
September 2016 up to and including the Redemption
Date

Not Applicable

In the case of Securities in definitive form, as
determined by the Calculation Agent in accordance
with General Condition 4.7 (Interest on Fixed Rate
Securities)

Not Applicable
30/360
Interest Accrual Periods will be unadjusted

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable



14
15

16

Floating Rate Security:

Linked Interest Security:

Zero Coupon Security:

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable

PAYOFF FEATURES (IF ANY) RELATING TO INTEREST

17

18

19

Payoff Features:
PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

Redemption Determination Date(s):

Redemption Method:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Early Redemption Amount for the

purposes of General Condition 6.2 (Early

Redemption Trigger Events) determined
in accordance with:

- Redemption Payoff:
- Redemption Unwind Costs:
- Reference Price:

Final Redemption Amount for the
purposes of General Condition 6.1
(Redemption by Instalments and Final
Redemption) determined in accordance
with:

- Redemption Payoff:

- Redemption Unwind Costs:

- Payoff Feature Unwind Costs:
- Reference Price:

Fair Market Value Redemption Amount:

Not Applicable

For the purposes of determining the Final Redemption
Amount, the Redemption Date

For the purposes of determining an Early Redemption
Amount, the relevant Early Redemption Date

Standard Redemption in accordance with Annex 9,
Paragraph 2

(see also paragraph 24(a) below for the Issuer Call Early

Redemption Trigger)

The Early Redemption Amount applicable will be equal to:

Reference Price x Nominal Amount - Redemption
Unwind Costs

as determined by the Calculation Agent on the Redemption
Determination Date.

Investors should note that General Condition 6.8 applies
for the purposes of any early redemption amount
calculated in connection with the conditions referred to in
General Condition 6.8

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
100 per cent.

Standard Redemption in accordance with Annex 9,
paragraph 2

The Final Redemption Amount will be equal to:

Reference Price x Nominal Amount - Redemption
Unwind Costs

as determined by the Calculation Agent on the Redemption
Determination Date.

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
100 per cent.

Applicable



(d) Instalment Redemption Amount determined  Not Applicable
in accordance with:

(e) Clean-up Call Option (General Condition Not Applicable
6.7 (Clean-up Call Option)):

20 Instalment Securities: Not Applicable
21 Credit Linked Securities: Not Applicable
22 Bond Linked Securities: Not Applicable
23 Linked Redemption Security: Not Applicable]
24 Early Redemption Trigger Event(s): Applicable
(a) Issuer Call Early Redemption Trigger: Applicable in accordance with Annex 8, Chapter 1
- Maximum Call Nominal Amount: Not Applicable
—  Early Redemption Date(s): Each Interest Payment Date from and including 16
September 2016 up to and including 16 March 2021
—  Maximum Call Notice Period: Not Applicable
—  Minimum Call Nominal Amount: Nominal Amount
- Minimum Call Notice Period: Five (5) London and New York City Business Days prior to
the relevant Early Redemption Date
(b) Investor Put Early Redemption Trigger: Not Applicable
(c) Knock-out Early Redemption Trigger: Not Applicable
(d) Callable Knock-out Early Redemption Not Applicable
Trigger:
(e¢) Puttable Knock-out Early Redemption Not Applicable
Trigger:
(f) Target Early Redemption Trigger: Not Applicable
(g) Knock-out Multi Underlying Early Not Applicable

Redemption Trigger:
PAYOFF FEATURES (IF ANY) RELATING TO REDEMPTION
25 Payoff Features: Not Applicable
PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO SECURED SECURITIES
26 Secured Security Provisions: Not Applicable
GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE SECURITIES

27 (a) Form: Bearer Form:

Temporary Bearer Global Security exchangeable for
a Permanent Bearer Global Security which is
exchangeable for Definitive Bearer Securities only
upon an Exchange Event

(b) New Global Note (NGN) or New Global NGN
Certificate (NGC):

(c) Transfer of interest in Regulation S Global Transfers of Securities to 1Als:
Securities: Not Applicable



28

36

38

"Business Day Convention for the purposes of
"Payment Business Day" election in accordance
with General Condition 5.6 (Pavinent Business
Day):

Additional Financial Centre(s):
Additional Business Centre(s):

Talons for future Coupons or Receipts to be
attached to Definitive Bearer Securities and dates
on which such Talons mature:

Redenomination (for the purposes of General
Condition 3.1):

(a) Redemption for tax reasons (General
Condition 6.3 (Redemption for tax reasons))

(b) Special Tax Redemption (General Condition
6.4 (Special Tax Redemption))

(c) Regulatory Redemption or Compulsory
Resales (General Condition 6.6 (Regulatory
Redemption or Compulsory Resales))

(d) Events of Default (General Condition 10
(Events of Default))

(e) Illegality and Force Majeure (General
Condition 19 ({llegality and Force Majeure)):

Gross Up (General Condition 8.2 (Gross Up)):
(a) Issuer Gross Up:

(b) Guarantor Gross Up:

Calculation Agent:

Delivery Agent (Credit Linked Securities, Bond
Linked Securities, ETF Linked Securities subject to
physical delivery or Share Linked Securities subject
to physical delivery):

Business Day Convention (Credit Linked
Conditions and Bond Linked Conditions):

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION

Branch of Account for the purposes of General
Condition 3.5 (General provisions applicable to
payients):

Modified Following Payment Business Day

London and New York City

Not Applicable

No

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Applicable

Applicable

Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable



Signed on behalf of the Issuer:
By: Mexandre Varenne

Duly authorised . .
Y Managing Director

Global Markets Division
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L)

PART B - OTHER INFORMATION

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO
TRADING

(i)  Listing and admission to trading;

(i)  Estimate of total expenses related to
admission to trading:

RATINGS

Ratings:

Application has been made by the relevant Issuer (or
on its behalf) for the Securities (i) to be admitted to
trading on Luxembourg Stock Exchange’s regulated
market and to be listed on the Official List of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange and (ii) to be admitted
to listing and trading on Taipei Exchange of the
Republic of China (the Taipei Exchange), with
effect from the [ssue Date.

No assurance can be given that such application will
be approved or that the Taipei Exchange listing will
be maintained.

The Taipei Exchange is not responsible for the
content of these Final Terms and the Base Prospectus
and any supplement or amendment thereto and no
representation is made by the Taipei Exchange to the
accuracy or completeness of these Final Terms and
the Base Prospectus and any supplement or
amendment thereto. The Taipei Exchange expressly
disclaims any and all liability for any losses arising
from, or as a result of the reliance on, all or part of
the contents of these Final Terms and the Base
Prospectus and any supplement or amendment
thereto. Admission to the listing and trading of the
Notes on the Taipei Exchange shall not be taken as
an indication of the merits of the Issuer or the
Securities.

USD 357 + Euro 3,220

The Securties to be issued have not been rated

INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE ISSUE

Save for any fees payable to the Dealer and the underwriters, so far as the Issuer is aware, no person
involved in the issue of the Securities has an interest material to the offer.

REASONS FOR THE OFFER, ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS AND TOTAL EXPENSES

Not Applicable

YIELD (Fixed Rate Securities and Zero
Coupon Securities Only)

Indication of yield:

Applicable

2.60% which is the internal rate of return for the
series of cash flows defined by the initial investment
at the issue price and the stated redemption amount



HISTORIC INTEREST RATES (Floating Rate Securities Only)

Not Applicable

PERFORMANCE OF UNDERLYING AND OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING THE
UNDERLYING (Commodity Linked Securities, Credit Linked Securities, Bond Linked Securities,
Index Linked Securities, Inflation Linked Securities, Rate Linked Securities, ETF Linked Securities,
Share Linked Securities and Multi-Asset Basket Linked Securities)

Not Applicable

Post-issuance information

The Issuer does not intend to publish post-issuance information in relation to any underlying element to

which the Securities are linked.

PERFORMANCE OF RATE|S] OF EXCHANGE AND OTHER INFORMATION
CONCERNING THE UNDERLYING (FX Linked Securities only)

Not Applciable
DISTRIBUTION

(i) Method of distribution:
(ii) If syndicated:;

(iii) If non-syndicated, name and address of
Dealer

(iv) Indication of the overall amount of the
underwriting commission and of the
placing commission:

(v) U.S. Selling Restrictions

(Categories of potential investors to
which the Securities are offered):

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION
(i) ISIN Code:

Non-syndicated
Not Applicable

The following Dealer is procuring subscribers for the
Securities:

Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank
9, quai du Président Paul Doumer

92920 Paris la Défense cedex

FRANCE

For the avoidance of doubt, the Dealer is not a
licensed underwriter in the Republic of China
(“ROC™), and the Dealer has not offered, sold or
resold, or will not offer, sell or re-sell, any Notes as a
part of the offering of the Notes in the ROC.
Accordingly, the Dealer has procured Crédit
Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank, Taipei
Branch, KGI Securities Co., Ltd., Capital Securities
Corporation, Cathay United Bank and Masterlink
Securities Co., Ltd. to be appointed by the [ssuer as
the underwriters for the purposes of distribution of
the Notes to the "professional investors" (as defined
under Article 2-1 of the Taipei Exchange Rules
Governing Management of Foreign Currency
Denominated [nternational Bonds) in the ROC.

Not Applicable

Reg. S Compliance Category 2
Securities in Bearer Form — TEFRA D

XS§1367225650
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(ii) Temporary ISIN:
(iii) Common Code:
(iv) VALOREN Code;:

(v) Other applicable security identification
number:

(vi) Relevant clearing system(s) other than
Euroclear Bank S.AMNLV, and
Clearstream Banking, société anonyme
and the relevant identification number(s):

(vii) Delivery:

(viii)Names and addresses of additional Paying
Agent(s) (if any):

(ix) Securities intended to be held in a manner
which  would allow  Eurosystem
eligibility:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE OFFER
Not Applicable

Not Applicable
136722565

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Delivery against payment

Not Applicable

No

Whilst the designation is specified as "no" at the
date of these Final Terms, should the Eurosystem
eligibility criteria be amended in the future such that
the Securities are capable of meeting them, the
Securities may then be deposited with one of the
[CSDs as common safekeeper. Note that this does
not necessarily mean that the Securities will then be
recognised as eligible collateral for Eurosystem
monetary policy and intraday credit operations by
the Eurosystem at any time during their life. Such
recognition will depend upon the ECB being
satisfied that Eurosystem eligibility criteria have
been met.



Base Prospectus dated 11 May 2016

CREDIT AGRICOLE CORPORATE AND INVESTMENT BANK
(incorporated in France)
and
CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

(incorporated in Guernsey)
and
CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS

(incorporated in France)

€50,000,000,000
Structured Debt Instruments I ssuance Programme
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by

CREDIT AGRICOLE CORPORATE AND INVESTMENT BANK
Natur e of this document

This document (the Base Prospectus) is a base prospectus for the purposes of Article 5.4 of Directive 2003/71/EC
(as amended) (the Prospectus Directive) and relates to a €50,000,000,000 Structured Debt Instruments | ssuance
Programme (the Programme) under which securities of the type described below may be issued from time to time.

Application has been made to the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (the CSSF) as competent
authority under the Prospectus Directive and the Luxembourg Act dated 10 July 2005 on prospectuses for securities
(loi relative aux prospectus pour valeurs mobiliéres) (the Prospectus Act) for approval of this Base Prospectus
where it constitutes (i) a base prospectus in compliance with Part 1l of the Prospectus Act and (ii) a simplified
prospectus in compliance with Chapter 1 of Part 111 of the Prospectus Act in connection with offers of securities to
the public which are money markets instruments having a maturity of less than twelve months.

The CSSF assumes no responsibility for the economic and financial soundness of the securities transactions
contemplated by this Base Prospectus or the quality or solvency of the Issuers (as defined below) in accordance
with Article 7(7) of the Prospectus Act.

This Base Prospectus is valid for one year and may be supplemented from time to time to reflect any significant
new factor, material mistake or inaccuracy relating to the information included in it.

Defined terms

Capitalised terms used in this Base Prospectus are defined in Condition 23 (Definitions) at the end of the Terms and
Conditions of the Securities section of this Base Prospectus or in the particular section where the capitalised terms
are first used herein. Definitions are designated by the capitalised term being in bold text.

I ssuers and the Guar antor

Securities (as defined below) issued under the Programme may be issued by any of Crédit Agricole Corporate and
Investment Bank (Crédit Agricole CIB), Crédit Agricole CIB Finance (Guernsey) Limited (Crédit Agricole CIB
FG) and Crédit Agricole CIB Financial Solutions (Crédit Agricole CIB FS) (each, an Issuer and together, the
Issuers). The payment of all amounts due in respect of Securities issued by an Issuer other than Crédit Agricole
CIB will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by Crédit Agricole CIB (in such capacity, the Guarantor).

This Base Prospectus contains information describing (i) the business activities of, (ii) certain financial information
relating to and (iii) material risks faced by the Issuers and the Guarantor.



The Securities

This Base Prospectus relates to the issuance of various types of notes (Notes) or certificates (Certificates and,
together with Notes, referred to generally as Securities) including Securities that bear interest at a fixed rate,
floating rate or rate linked to an underlying asset class or bear no interest. Securities may be redeemed at a fixed
amount, including at par value, or at an amount linked to an underlying asset class, which may in some cases be
zero. Securities may be redeemed on the scheduled redemption date, in instalments over the term of the Securities
or on an early redemption date. The underlying asset classes (each an Underlying Asset Class) to which interest
and/or redemption amounts of Securities may be linked are:

+  commodities;

. benchmark rates;

. FX rates,

. exchange traded funds;
. shares;

. indices,

. proprietary indices,

. inflation indices; or

. a formula or formulae (which may, in turn, be determined by reference to other types of assets,
benchmarks or factors),

or abasket and/or combination of the above.

Specific provisions apply to Italian Certificates and Italian Listed Certificates (both as defined below), when
specified in this Base Prospectus.

Securities may be denominated in any currency.

The amount payable (if any) as interest and/or on redemption in respect of a Series of Securities may be dependent
upon whether certain events in respect of one or more reference entities or one or more reference obligations in
respect of any such reference entities, as the case may be, occur (a Credit Linked Security).

The amount payable (if any) as interest and/or on redemption in respect of a Series of Securities may be dependent
upon whether certain events in respect of one or more issuers of bonds, or one or more bonds issued by such
entities occur (aBond Linked Security).

Securities may also be secured by the relevant Issuer, or one of its affiliates, in favour of holders of the Securities
by a segregated pool of collateral assets, which will be identified in the applicable Final Terms (Secured
Securities).

Subject to restrictions arising as a matter of law, there is no restriction on the category of potential investors to
which Securities may be offered under this Programme. Depending on the terms of a particular Series of Securities,
Securities may be offered to retail and/or institutional investors.

Listing and admission to trading

An application has been made to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange for Securities issued under the Programme to be
eligible for admission to trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's regulated market and to be eligible for
listing on the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The Luxembourg Stock Exchange's regulated
market is a regulated market for the purposes of Directive 2004/39/EC (the Markets in Financial Instruments
Directive).

An application has also be made to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange as competent authority under article 47 of the
Prospectus Act for approval of asimplified prospectus prepared in connection with the admission to trading on the



Luxembourg Stock Exchange's regulated market of money market instruments which have a maturity of less than
twelve months.

The Issuers may make an application for certain certificates issued under the Programme in registered,
uncertificated and dematerialised book-entry form in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Italian law,
regulations and operating procedures applicable to and/or issued by the relevant Italian central securities depository
(the Italian Certificates) to be listed on Borsa Italiana S.p.A. and to be admitted to trading on the Electronic
Securitised Derivatives Market of Borsa Italiana S.p.A. (the SeDeX Market) which is regulated market for the
purposes of the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (the Italian Listed Certificates). The Issuers may also
not make any application for certain Italian Certificates to be neither listed, nor traded. In each case, the applicable
Final Terms will specify whether or not Italian Certificates are to be listed and admitted to trading on the SeDeX
Market. If specified in the Final Terms, the Issuers may also issue Italian Certificates which are being offered
pursuant to an exemption from the Prospectus Directive or which will be issued outside the European Economic
Area.

Reading this Base Prospectus

This Base Prospectus, including the documents listed in the section of this Base Prospectus entitled " Documents
incorporated by reference” (which are documents that are deemed to be incorporated by reference into this Base
Prospectus but which are separately available upon request), is intended to provide prospective investors with
information necessary to enable them to make an informed investment decision before purchasing any Securities.
Copies of documents incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus can be obtained from the registered office
of Crédit Agricole CIB and the specified office of the Principal Paying Agent for the time being. This Base
Prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference will aso be published on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange website (www.bourse.lu).

This Base Prospectus includes the terms and conditions that may apply to the Securities, which will be completed
for each Series of Securities by a set of Final Terms (the Terms and Conditions). Further detail on Final Termsis
set out below. As not al of the terms and conditions contained in this Base Prospectus may be relevant to a
particular Series of Securities, this Base Prospectus contains a User's Guide at page 144 which is intended to help
investors to navigate the terms and conditions which apply to a particular Series of Securities.

In addition to the Terms and Conditions of the Securities, this Base Prospectus includes other information such as
information related to the Issuers, information about the material risks related to any investment in the Securities
and information on selling and transfer restrictions. Investors should read this information in full before making
any decision to invest in Securities.

What information isincluded in the Final Terms?

While the Base Prospectus includes general information about all Securities, the Final Termsis the document that
sets out the specific applicable commercial details of each particular Series of Securities.

In relation to a Series of Securities, the Final Terms will set out, for example and among other things:

*  theissuedate;

e the scheduled redemption date;

e theinterest payment date(s) (if any);

»  the basis on which interest (if any) and the amount payable on redemption will be determined and/or
calculated;

»  whether or not the Securities may be redeemed early at the option of the Issuer or the investor;

. information relating to any relevant Underlying Asset Class; and

. any other information needed to complete the terms and conditions of the Securities of this Base
Prospectus (identified by the words "as specified in the applicable Final Terms' or other equivalent
wording).

Wherever the Terms and Conditions contain optiona provisions, the Final Terms will specify which of those
provisions apply to a specific Series of Securities.



Taxes

The Securities will not have the benefit of a gross up provision in respect of withholding tax unless "Gross Up" is

specifically provided as applicable in the applicable Final Terms. Where a gross up does not apply, investors will
take the risk of any applicable withholding tax.

Save in the circumstances described above, none of the Issuers, nor the Guarantor nor any other person will be

liable for, or otherwise obliged to pay, any tax, duty or other payment which may arise as aresult of the ownership,
transfer, exercise, redemption or enforcement of any Securities by any person.

Arranger
Crédit AgricoleCIB

Dealers
Creédit Agricole CIB

Crédit Agricole SecuritiesAsia B.V., Tokyo Branch



OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION

This base prospectus comprises three base prospectuses for the purposes of Article 5.4 of Directive 2003/71/EC of
the European Parliament and of the Council of 4 November 2003 (the Prospectus Directive) as amended (which
includes the amendments made by Directive 2010/73/EU (the 2010 PD Amending Directive) to the extent that
such amendments have been implemented in a relevant Member State of the European Economic Area): (i) the
base prospectus for Crédit Agricole CIB in respect of non-equity securities within the meaning of article 22.6(4) of
Regulation (EC) No. 809/2004 of 29 April 2004 (Non-Equity Securities), (ii) the base prospectus for Crédit
Agricole CIB FG in respect of Non-Equity Securities and (iii) the base prospectus for Crédit Agricole CIB FSin
respect of Non-Equity Securities (together, the Base Prospectus).

Securities (i) involving an offer to the public outside the European Economic Area or of atype listed in article 3.2
of the Prospectus Directive and (ii) which are not admitted to trading on a regulated market under article 3.3 of the
Prospectus Directive are referred to herein as Private Placement Securities. This document does not congtitute
and has not been approved by the CSSF as a prospectus for the purposes of Private Placement Securities issued
under the Programme.

The Issuers and the Guarantor accept responsibility for the information contained in this Base Prospectus. To the
best of the knowledge of the Issuers and the Guarantor (each having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is
the case) the information contained in this Base Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit
anything likely to affect itsimport.

This Base Prospectus s to be read in conjunction with any supplement hereto and all documents which are deemed
to be incorporated herein by reference (see "Documents Incorporated by Reference” below). This Base Prospectus
shall be read and construed on the basis that such documents are incorporated and form part of this Base
Prospectus. This Base Prospectus may only be used for the purposes for which it has been published.

Securities may be issued on a continuing basis to one or more of the Dealers specified under " Subscription and
Sale” below and any additional dealer appointed under the Programme from time to time by the Issuers (each a
Dealer and together the Dealers), which appointment may be for a specific issue or on an ongoing basis.
References in this Base Prospectus to the "relevant Dealer" shall, in the case of an issue of Securities being (or
intended to be) subscribed or purchased by more than one Dealer, be to all Deaers agreeing to subscribe or
purchase such Securities.

No Dealer has independently verified the information contained herein. Accordingly, no representation, warranty or
undertaking, express or implied, is made and no responsibility or liability is accepted by any Dealer as to the
accuracy or completeness of the information contained or incorporated in this Base Prospectus or any other
information provided by the relevant Issuer in connection with the Programme. No Dealer accepts any liability in
relation to the information contained or incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus or any other information
provided by the Issuers or the Guarantor in connection with the Programme.

No person is or has been authorised by the Issuers or the Guarantor to give any information or to make any
representation not contained in or not consistent with this Base Prospectus and, if given or made, such information
or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the I ssuers, the Guarantor or any Dealer.

Neither this Base Prospectus nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or any
Securities (i) is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation or (ii) should be considered as a
recommendation by the Issuers, the Guarantor or any Dealer that any recipient of this Base Prospectus or any other
information supplied in connection with the Programme or any Securities should purchase any Securities. Each
investor contemplating purchasing any Securities should make its own independent investigation of the financial
condition and affairs, and its own appraisal of the creditworthiness, of the Issuers and the Guarantor and of the
terms of such Securities.



Neither this Base Prospectus nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or the issue of
any Securities constitutes an offer or invitation by or on behalf of the Issuers, the Guarantor or any Dealer to any
person to subscribe for or to purchase any Securities. Persons into whose possession offering material comes must
inform themselves about and observe any such restrictions. This Base Prospectus does not constitute, and may not
be used for or in connection with, an offer to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or a
solicitation by anyone not authorised so to act.

Neither the delivery of this Base Prospectus nor the offering, sale or delivery of any Securities shall in any
circumstances imply that the information contained herein concerning the Issuers and the Guarantor is correct at
any time subsequent to the date hereof or that any other information supplied in connection with the Programme is
correct as of any time subseguent to the date indicated in the document containing the same. The Dealers expressly
do not undertake to review the financial conditions or affairs of the Issuers and the Guarantor during the life of the
Programme or to advise any investor in the Securities of any information coming to their attention.

This Base Prospectus has not been submitted to the clearance procedures of the Autorité des marchés financiers.

This Base Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any Securities in any
jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make the offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction. The
distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offer or sale of Securities may be restricted by law in certain
jurisdictions. The Issuers, the Guarantor and the Dealers do not represent that this Base Prospectus may be lawfully
distributed, or that any Securities may be lawfully offered, in compliance with any applicable registration or other
requirements in any such jurisdiction, or pursuant to an exemption available thereunder, or assume any
responsibility for facilitating any such distribution or offering. In particular, unless specifically indicated to the
contrary in the applicable Final Terms, no action has been taken by the Issuers, the Guarantor or any Dealer, which
is intended to permit a public offering of any Securities or distribution of this document in any jurisdiction where
action for that purpose is required. Accordingly, no Securities may be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and
neither this Base Prospectus nor any advertisement or other offering material may be distributed or published in
any jurisdiction, except under circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable laws and
regulations. Persons into whose possession this Base Prospectus or any Securities may come must inform
themselves about, and observe, any such restrictions on the distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offering
and sale of Securities. In particular, there are restrictions on the distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offer or
sale of Securitiesin the United States and the European Economic Area (including Luxembourg, Belgium, France,
Germany, Italy, Portugal, Spain and the United Kingdom) (see " Subscription and Sale").

Any person (an Investor) purchasing the Securities under the Programme is solely responsible for ensuring that
any offer or resale of the Securities it purchased under the Programme occurs in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations.

This Base Prospectus has been prepared on the basis that, except to the extent sub-paragraph (ii) below may apply,
any offer of Securities in any Member State of the European Economic Area which has implemented the
Prospectus Directive (each, a Relevant Member State) will be made pursuant to an exemption under the
Prospectus Directive, as implemented in that Relevant Member State, from the requirement to publish a prospectus
for offers of Securities. Accordingly any person making or intending to make an offer in that Relevant Member
State of Securities which are the subject of an offering contemplated in this Base Prospectus as completed by final
terms in relation to the offer of those Securities may only do so (i) in circumstances in which no obligation arises
for the relevant Issuer or any Dealer to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive or
supplement a prospectus pursuant to Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive, in each case, in relation to such offer,
or (ii) if a prospectus for such offer has been approved by the competent authority in that Relevant Member State
or, where appropriate, approved in another Relevant Member State and notified to the competent authority in that
Relevant Member State and (in either case) published, al in accordance with the Prospectus Directive, provided
that any such prospectus has subsequently been completed by final terms which specify that offers may be made



other than pursuant to Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive in that Relevant Member State, such offer is made in
the period beginning and ending on the dates specified for such purpose in such prospectus or fina terms, as
applicable and the relevant Issuer has consented in writing to its use for the purpose of such offer. Except to the
extent sub-paragraph (ii) above may apply, neither the relevant Issuer nor any Dealer have authorised, nor do they
authorise, the making of any offer of Securities in circumstances in which an obligation arises for the relevant
Issuer or any Dealer to publish or supplement a prospectus for such offer.

All references in this document to "euro” and "€" refer to the lawful currency introduced at the third stage of
European economic and monetary union pursuant to the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union, as
amended, references to "U.S. dollars’, "U.S$", "USD" and "$" refer to the currency of the United States of
America, references to "Serling", "GBP" and "£" refer to the currency of the United Kingdom, references to
"Swedish Kronor" and "SEK" refer to the currency of Sweden, references to "Norwegian Kroner" and "NOK" refer
to the currency of Norway, references to "Japanese Yen", "JPY" and "¥" refer to the currency of Japan, references
to "Hong Kong dollars’ and "HK$" refer to the lawful currency for the time being of Hong Kong and references to
"RMB", "CNY" or "Renminbi" refer to the lawful currency of the Peopl€e's Republic of China, which for the purpose
of this document, excludes the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People's Republic of China (the PRC).



U.S. INFORMATION

This Base Prospectus is being submitted on a confidential basis in the United States to a limited number of QIBs
and 1Als (each as defined under "Form of the Securities") for informational use solely in connection with the
consideration of the purchase of the Securities being offered hereby. Its use for any other purpose in the United
States is not authorised. It may not be copied or reproduced in whole or in part nor may it be distributed or any of
its contents disclosed to anyone other than the prospective investors to whom it is originally submitted. For the
avoidance of doubt, references herein to the Securities include the Guarantee, where applicable.

The Securities in bearer form are subject to U.S. tax law requirements. Subject to certain exceptions, Securitiesin
bearer form may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or its possessions or to, or for the
account or benefit of, U.S. persons, except in certain transactions permitted by U.S. tax regulations. Terms used in
this paragraph have the meanings given to them by the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and the
regulations promul gated thereunder.

THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED WITH, OR
APPROVED BY, THE U.S. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY SECURITIES
REGULATORY AUTHORITY OF ANY STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION OF THE UNITED STATES.
FURTHERMORE, THE FOREGOING AUTHORITIES HAVE NOT PASSED UPON OR ENDORSED THE
MERITS OF THIS OFFERING OR THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS BASE PROSPECTUS. ANY
REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY ISA CRIMINAL OFFENCE IN THE UNITED STATES.

Registered Securities issued by Crédit Agricole CIB may be offered or sold within the United States only to QIBs
or to IAlsin transactions exempt from registration under the Securities Act. Registered Securities issued by Crédit
Agricole CIB FG and Crédit Agricole CIB FS may be offered or sold within the United States only to QIBs who
are, in each case, also QPs (as defined under "Form of the Securities") in transactions exempt from registration
under the Securities Act that will not cause the relevant issuer to become required to register as an "investment
company" under the Investment Company Act. Each U.S. purchaser of Registered Securities is hereby notified that
the offer and sale of any Registered Securities to it may be made in reliance upon the exemption from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act provided by Rule 144A under the Securities Act (Rule 144A).

Each purchaser or holder of Securities represented by a Rule 144A Global Securities, a Definitive Registered
Securities (as defined under "Form of the Securities") or any Securities issued in registered form in exchange or
substitution for a Rule 144A Global Securities (together L egended Securities) will be deemed, by its acceptance or
purchase of any such Legended Securities, to have made certain representations and agreements intended to restrict
the resale or other transfer of such Securities as set out in "Subscription and Sal€e". Unless otherwise stated, terms
used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them in "Form of the Securities'.

IMPORTANT NOTICE

No offer of Securities will be made to the public in the Kingdom of Bahrain and this Base Prospectus must be read
by the addressee only and must not be issued, passed to, or made available to the public generally.

In relation to investors in the Kingdom of Bahrain, the Securities issued in connection with this Base Prospectus
and related offering documents may only be offered in registered form to existing account holders and accredited
investors as defined by the Central Bank of Bahrain (CBB) in the Kingdom of Bahrain where such investors make
aminimum investment of at least U.S.$ 100,000.

This offer does not constitute an offer of securities in the Kingdom of Bahrain in terms of Article(81) of the Central
Bank of Bahrain and Financial Ingtitutions Law 2006 (Decree Law No. 64 of 2006). This Base Prospectus and
related offering documents have not been and will not be registered as a prospectus with the CBB.



Accordingly, no Securities may be offered, sold or made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase
nor will this Base Prospectus or any other related document or material be used in connection with any offer, sale
or invitation to subscribe or purchase Securities, whether directly or indirectly, to persons in the Kingdom of
Bahrain.

The CBB has not reviewed or approved this Base Prospectus or related offering documents and it has not in any
way considered the merits of the Securities to be offered for investment, whether in or outside the Kingdom of
Bahrain. Therefore, the CBB assumes no responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of the statements and
information contained in this document and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this document.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

To permit compliance with Rule 144A in connection with any resales or other transfers of Securities and any
Guarantee thereof that are "restricted securities® within the meaning of the Securities Act, each Issuer has
undertaken in a deed poll dated 11 May 2016 (the Deed Poll) to furnish, upon the request of a holder of such
Securities or any beneficial interest therein, to such holder or to a prospective purchaser designated by him, the
information required to be delivered under Rule 144A(d)(4) under the Securities Act if, at the time of the request,
the relevant Issuer is neither subject to and in compliance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the U.S. Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act) nor exempt from reporting pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) thereunder.

A copy of the information so furnished will be available free of charge from the specified office of the Principal
Paying Agent and, for Securities admitted to trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's regulated market, from
the specified office in Luxembourg of the Luxembourg Listing Agent (as defined below).

CIRCULAR 230 DISCLOSURE

THIS DESCRIPTION ISLIMITED TO THE U.S. FEDERAL TAX ISSUES DESCRIBED HEREIN OR IN ANY
SUPPLEMENT TO THIS BASE PROSPECTUS. IT ISPOSSIBLE THAT ADDITIONAL ISSUES MAY EXIST
THAT COULD AFFECT THE U.S. FEDERAL TAX TREATMENT OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE
SECURITIES, OR THE MATTER THAT IS THE SUBJECT OF THE DESCRIPTION NOTED HEREIN OR IN
ANY SUPPLEMENT TO THIS BASE PROSPECTUS, AND THIS DESCRIPTION DOES NOT CONSIDER OR
PROVIDE ANY CONCLUSIONS WITH RESPECT TO ANY SUCH ADDITIONAL ISSUES. TAXPAYERS
SHOULD SEEK ADVICE BASED ON THE TAXPAYER'S PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES FROM AN
INDEPENDENT TAX ADVISOR.

NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING IN THIS BASE PROSPECTUS OR IN ANY SUPPLEMENT TO THIS
BASE PROSPECTUS TO THE CONTRARY, EACH PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR (AND EACH EMPLOYEE,
REPRESENTATIVE OR OTHER AGENT OF EACH PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR) MAY DISCLOSE TO ANY
AND ALL PERSONS, WITHOUT LIMITATION OF ANY KIND, THE TAX TREATMENT AND TAX
STRUCTURE OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE SECURITIES AND ALL MATERIALS OF ANY KIND
(INCLUDING OPINIONS OR OTHER TAX ANALYSES) THAT ARE PROVIDED TO THE PROSPECTIVE
INVESTOR RELATING TO SUCH TAX TREATMENT AND TAX STRUCTURE, EXCEPT TO THE
EXTENT THAT SUCH DISCLOSURE IS SUBJECT TO RESTRICTIONS REASONABLY NECESSARY TO
COMPLY WITH SECURITIES LAWS. FOR THESE PURPOSES, THE TAX TREATMENT OF AN
INVESTMENT IN THE SECURITIES MEANS THE PURPORTED OR CLAIMED U.S. FEDERAL, STATE
AND LOCAL INCOME TAX TREATMENT OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE SECURITIES. MOREOVER,
THE TAX STRUCTURE OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE SECURITIES INCLUDES ANY FACT THAT MAY
BE RELEVANT TO UNDERSTANDING THE PURPORTED OR CLAIMED U.S. FEDERAL, STATE, AND
LOCAL INCOME TAX TREATMENT OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE SECURITIES.



SERVICE OF PROCESSAND ENFORCEMENT OF CIVIL LIABILITIES

Crédit Agricole CIB and Crédit Agricole CIB FSare corporations or ganised under the laws of
France. Crédit Agricole CIB FG isa corporation organised under the laws of Guernsey. All of the
officersand directors named herein reside outside the United States and all or a substantial
portion of the assets of the | ssuers and the Guarantor and of such officersand directorsare
located outside the United States. Asaresult, it may not be possiblefor investorsto effect service
of process outside France or Guernsey, asthe case may be, upon the Issuers, the Guarantor or
such persons, or to enforce judgments against them obtained in courts outside France or
Guernsey, asthe case may be, predicated upon civil liabilities of the Issuers, the Guarantor or such
directorsand officersunder laws other than the laws of France or Guer nsey, asthe case may be,
including any judgment predicated upon United Statesfederal securitieslaws.

In an original action brought in France predicated solely upon the U.S. federal securities laws, French courts may
not have the requisite jurisdiction to adjudicate such action. Actions for enforcement of judgments of U.S. courts
rendered against the French persons referred to in the preceding paragraph would require such French persons to
waive their right under Article 15 of the French Code Civil to be sued in France only. Crédit Agricole CIB believes

that no such French persons have waived such right with respect to actions predicated solely upon U.S. federal
securities laws.

STABILISATION

In connection with the issue of any Tranche of Securities, the Dealer or Dealers (if any) named as the Stabilising
Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of any Stabilising Manager(s)) in the applicable Final Terms may over-
allot Securities or effect transactions with a view to supporting the market price of the Securities at a level higher
than that which might otherwise prevail. However, there is no assurance that the Stabilising Manager(s) (or persons
acting on behalf of a Stabilising Manager) will undertake stabilisation action. Any stabilisation action may begin on
or after the date on which adequate public disclosure of the terms of the offer of the relevant Tranche of Securities
is made and, if begun, may be ended at any time, but it must end no later than the earlier of 30 days after the issue
date of the relevant Tranche of Securities and 60 days after the date of the allotment of the relevant Tranche of
Securities. Any stabilisation action or over-allotment must be conducted by the relevant Stabilising Manager(s) (or
persons acting on behalf of any Stabilising Manager(s)) in accordance with all applicable laws and rules.

10



Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
SUMMARY .ottt h bt £ bbb bbb st £ £ e £ e bbb bbb bRt E e e bbb 14
This section provides aform of summary, which will be used for issues of Securities. ..........cccccevereeene
RISK FACTORS ...ttt ettt bbb bbb e bbb bbbt e bbb bbbt 71

This section sets out the principal risksinherent in investing in Securities issued under the Programme.

USER'S GUIDE ...ttt sttt a e h et h e s s et b e s bRt e bt e ae e h e e e e b e e e eR e eb e e bt eb e e e e e e e e nn e b e 144
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE.........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee et 166
This section incorporates selected publicly available information that should be read in conjunction
With thiS BASE PrOSPECLUS. .....c.vecviieeeeieeesie e siesteseeseeeesaes e seestesaesseesee e eseeseestesaesaesseeneensessessessessessesseenennenns
CROSS-REFERENCE LIST ...ttt ettt e b ettt eae e saeesb e e sbe e b e s e e sanesaeenneenns 168
This section provides a cross reference of where information may be found in other documents. ...........
GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME ...ttt e 176
This section provides a general description of the Programme...........ccccccvveveceeceevene s seeeeee e
FORM OF THE SECURITIES ... .ottt ettt ettt she e s sb e se e e s ae s saeesaeenne s 177
This section provides information on the form of the SeCUrities. ...
FORM OF THE FINAL TERMS ... .ottt ettt b e e ne e e e e s sae e sae e s e 183
This section sets out a pro formafor the Final TEIMS. ..o
FORM OF PRICING SUPPLEMENT ....ocutitiiiiertise sttt st sn e snesne s n e nnennenne e 445
TERMSAND CONDITIONS OF THE SECURITIES.......cccoiieiieri e 446
This section provides an introduction to the terms and conditions of the Securities...........c.ccoceeeiiienaene
GENERAL CONDITIONS. ...ttt sr st st ss b sae s st sseese e s e seseeabesbesresbe s e ennessenrenresrens 447
ANNEX 1 —ASSET CONDITIONS.... ..ottt st sr st e e e bbbt b e e e s e rennesrennes 514
These chapters of this annex each set out additional terms and conditions for Securities linked to one
or more particular asset classes as specified inthe Final TermS.........coove e
ANNEX 2 — CREDIT LINKED CONDITIONS.......ootitiieierierie sttt ne e nnesre e 612

This annex sets out additional terms and conditions for Securities that are Credit Linked Securities. It
isonly applicable to Securities, which are specified to be Credit Linked Securities in the applicable
T I = 00 0TSRRI

ANNEX 3 —BOND LINKED CONDITIONS.......cocitiiiereeee s sreesre e see e sne e sneseenesrenens 682

This annex sets out additional terms and conditions for Securities that are Bond Linked Securities. It is
only applicable to Securities, which are specified to be Bond Linked Securitiesin the applicable Final

11



Table of Contents

ANNEX 4 —ALTERNATIVE CURRENCY CONDITIONS......cccotiietristee sttt ne 704

This annex sets out additional terms and conditions for Securities that are Alternative Currency

S o U 1= SRS
ANNEX 5— STANDARD PAY OFF CONDITIONS........cooieitieteerietce st tes s s s s snenas 707

The chapters of this annex each set out additional terms and conditions that may apply to the interest

and/or redemption in resPect Of the SECUNTIES. .......ccviiiireie e
ANNEX 6 — COMBINATION PAY OFF CONDITIONS ..ottt 1000

The chapters of this annex each set out additional terms and conditions that may apply to the interest

and/or redemption in reSPect Of the SECUNTIES. .......covii i
ANNEX 7 — PAY OFF FEATURE CONDITIONS........coceiiiitetitstetestsie ettt s 1110

The chapters of this annex each set out additional terms and conditions for Securities, which apply one
or more features (if any) to the interest and/or redemption mechanics as specified in the applicable

L= =1 0 ST RTTT
ANNEX 8 — EARLY REDEMPTION TRIGGER CONDITIONS .......cccoioiiii ettt 1177

The chapters of this annex each set out additional terms and conditions that may apply to the early

redemption in reSPeCt Of the SECUNTIES. .......vceeeeere e e neenes
ANNEX 9 — REDEMPTION METHOD CONDITIONS........ooiiiiieiie ettt see 1198

This annex sets out additional terms and conditions (the Redemption M ethod Conditions) relating to
the redemption paymentsin respect of a Series of Securities other than a redemption pursuant to
General Condition 6.8 (Fair Market Value Redemption AMOUNES). ......ccvvvieeeereereneseseseseeeeeeeeeseeeas

ANNEX 10 — SECURED SECURITY CONDITIONS.......ooiiiiieiieierie ettt 1202
This annex sets out additional terms and conditions for Secured SECUMtIES. ........ooveerrrevneneenreeennns

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPRIETARY INDICES.......cco oottt 1229
This section sets out adescription of the proprietary iNAiCES. ........cccvvvveiirierieneeerere e

USE OF PROCEEDS........ociiiiiii it st se e s r et n e n e n e srens 1259

This section sets out the final Form of the Guarantee given by Crédit Agricole Corporate and
Investment Bank in favour of the Securityholders. ...

DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUERS .......cciiiiiiiii e st 1264

This section sets out recent devel opments with respect t0 the ISSUEKS. .......c.everereerene i

12



Table of Contents

BOOK-ENTRY CLEARANCE SYSTEMS........oiiiieiiitettnene sttt 1274
This section sets out the procedures relating to the clearing of certain Securities. .........ccoovvveveeceereienens
TAXATION L.ttt ettt bbb b e s e e £ se 124 e 452 e b e b e b e b e R e R e R e A e e e £ eE e £ bbb e b e b e b e R e Re et et e s s s et ebebebebatan 1279
This section sets out a summary of certain taxation considerations relating to the Securities..................
ERISA CONSIDERATIONS ......ocuitititeieieentresesesesesiste e tesesesee st sesesss bbb bebssesase st st sesesessebebebesebasasanesassssessssnes 1311
SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE ...ttt bbbttt bbbttt 1312
This section sets out a summary of certain restrictions regarding who can purchase the Securitiesin
(oc e T WO TR o [t 1o g LSOO
GENERAL INFORMATION .....cuttitiiriririteteieitetitestse ettt st st sb bbbt ss bbb bbb 1335
This section provides certain additional information relating to all the Securities. ...........ccocevrieiiienene

13



Summary

SUMMARY

This section provides a form of summary, which will be used for issues of Securities.

Summaries are made up of disclosure requirements known as "Elements'. These Elements are numbered in
SectionsA—E (A.1-E.7).

This summary contains all the Elements required to be included in a summary for these types of securities and
issuers. Some Elements are not required to be addressed and accordingly there may be gaps in the numbering
seguence of the elements.

Even though an Element may be required to be inserted in the summary because of the type of securities and
issuers, it is possible that no relevant information can be given regarding the Element. In this case a short
description of the Element isincluded in the summary with the mention of "Not Applicable".

Section A — Introduction and War nings

Al

Introduction
and warnings

This summary should be read as an introduction to the Base Prospectus. Any decision to
invest in Securities should be based on consideration of the Base Prospectus as a whole
by the investor.

Where a claim relating to the information contained in the Base Prospectus is brought
before a court, the plaintiff investor might, under the national legidation of the Member
States, have to bear the costs of trandating the Base Prospectus before the lega
proceedings are initiated.

Civil liability attaches only to those persons who have tabled the summary, including
any trandation thereof, but only if the summary is misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent
when read together with the other parts of the Base Prospectus or it does not provide,
when read together with the other parts of the Base Prospectus, key information in order
to aid investors when considering whether to invest in the Securities.

A.2

Consent for use
of Base
Prospectusin
subsequent
resaleor final
placement,
indication of
offer period and
conditionsto
consent for
subsequent
resaleor final
placement and
warning

[In the context of the offer of the Securities from time to time in [Luxembourg][the

United Kingdom][Belgium][France][ Germany][Italy][Portugal][and][ Spain] (the Public

Offer Jurisdiction[q]), the Issuer consents to the use of the Base Prospectus as so

supplemented where the offer is made in circumstances where there is no exemption

from the obligation under Directive 2003/71/EC (and amendments thereto, including

the Directive 2010/73/EU, to the extent implemented in the relevant Member State) to

publish a prospectus (a Non-exempt Offer) during the period from [e] until [e] (the

Offer Period) and in the Public Offer Jurisdiction[(s)]) by:

(D)

(@ [any financial intermediary], subject to [the relevant conditions]; and

(b) any financial intermediary appointed after [date] and whose name is published on
the  website  http://www.ca-cib.com/our-offergrates-credit-and-cross-assets-
derivatives.ntm and identified as an Authorised Offeror in respect of the Non-
exempt Offer;]

[(2) any financial intermediary which shall, for the duration of the Offer Period, publish

on its website that it is using the Base Prospectus for such Non-exempt Offer in

accordance with the consent of the Issuer and that it accepts the Authorised Offeror

Terms relating to the use of the consent and the other conditions.
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[in each case] for so long as they are authorised to make such offers under the Directive
2004/39/EC (as amended) (the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive) ([in each
case any such financial intermediary being an][the] Authorised Offeror).

[Authorised Offeror Terms are [®].]

[The Issuer may also give consent to additional financial intermediary(ies) so long as
they are authorised to make such offers under the Markets in Financial Instruments
Directive (each, also an Authorised Offeror) after [date] and, if it does so, it will
publish any new information in relation to such Authorised Offerors at [e] (specify
relevant website).]

[If any Authorised Offeror is permitted to use the Base Prospectus during the
Offer Period, any such Authorised Offeror is required, for the duration of the
Offer Period, to publish on its website that it is using the Base Prospectus for the
relevant Non-exempt Offer with the consent of the Issuer and in accordance with
certain conditions.]

An investor intending to acquire or acquiring any Securities from an Authorised Offeror
will do so, and offers and sales of the Securities to an investor by an Authorised Offeror
will be made, in accordance with any terms and other arrangements in place between
such Authorised Offeror and such investor including as to price allocations and
settlement arrangements (the Terms and Conditions of the Non-exempt Offer). The
Issuer will not be a party to any such arrangements with investors (other than dealers) in
connection with the offer or sale of the Securities and, accordingly, the Base Prospectus
and any applicable final terms will not contain such information. The Terms and
Conditions of the Non-exempt Offer shall be provided to investors by that
Authorised Offeror at the time of the Non-exempt Offer. Neither the Issuer|, the
Guarantor] nor any of the dealers or other Authorised Offerors have any responsibility
or liability for such information.]

[Not applicable. [No financial intermediary is involved in the offers and sales of the
Securities.]/[ The Securities are not subject to a Public Offer in the European Economic
Areal]]

Section B — Issuer [and Guarantor]

B.1 Legal and [Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank — Crédit Agricole CIB — CACIB
commercial (Crédit Agricole CIB [or the I ssuer])]
name of the [Crédit Agricole CIB Finance (Guernsey) Limited (Crédit Agricole CIB FG or the
| ssuer I ssuer)]
[Crédit Agricole CIB Financial Solutions (Crédit Agricole CIB FSor the Issuer)]
B.2 Domicileand [Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank is a French Société Anonyme (joint

legal form of the
| ssuer,
legidation

under which the
Issuer operates
and country of
incor por ation of
| ssuer

stock company) with a Board of Directors governed by ordinary company law, in
particular the Second Book of the French Commercia Code (Code de commerce). Its
registered office islocated at 9 quai du Président Paul Doumer, 92920 Paris La Défense
Cedex, France.

Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank is a credit institution approved in
France and authorised to conduct all banking operations and provide all investment and
related services referred to in the French Monetary and Financial Code (Code monétaire
et financier). In this respect, Crédit Agricole CIB is subject to oversight of the European
and French responsible supervisory authorities, particularly the European Central Bank
and the French Prudential and Resolution Supervisory Authority (ACPR). In its capacity
as a credit ingtitution authorised to provide investment services, Crédit Agricole
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Corporate and Investment Bank is subject to the French Monetary and Financial Code
(Code monétaire et financier), particularly the provisions relating to the activity and
control of credit institutions and investment service providers.]

[Crédit Agricole CIB FGisalimited liability non-cellular company. Its registered office
islocated at Sarnia House Le Truchot, Saint Peter Port, Guernsey. Crédit Agricole CIB
FG is operating under Guernsey law.]

[Crédit Agricole CIB FS is a limited liability company incorporated in France as a
"société anonyme" and whose registered office is located at 9 quai du Président Paul
Doumer, 92920 Paris La Défense Cedex, France. As a French corporation having
limited liability, Crédit Agricole CIB FS is subject to articles L.225-1 and following of
Book 2 of the Code de commerce of France. As a financial institution, Crédit Agricole
CIB FSis subject to articles L.511-1 and following and L.531-1 and following of the
Code monétaire et financier of France.]

B.4b

Known trends
affecting | ssuer
and Issuer's
industries

Known trends affecting the Issuer and the companies of the Crédit Agricole CIB Group
(the Group), as well as the sectors in which the Group and the I ssuer operate, include:

- the continuing evolution of the global economic environment (Brexit, European
migrant crisis, instability in the Middle East and elections in key countries);

- the reform of the solvency ratios under Basel 3 (CRR / CRD4), with the minimum
requirement of CET1 set at 4.5% in 2015 and for the following years;

- the ongoing international debate on the harmonization of accounting standards;

- the implementation of resolution mechanism both at the national and European levels;
and

- changes in the regulatory framework imposing an ever more prudent treatment of the
balance sheet, including the management of indicators based on the total balance sheet
size, e.g. the leverage ratio (required to be above 3%), the Minimum Required Eligible
Liabilities (MREL) from the European Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive
(BRRD), based on the total liabilities and aimed at ensuring a minimum level of eligible
debt for a bail-in, Total Loss Absorption Capacity (TLAC), as well as contributions to
the Single Resolution Fund or the Bank Levy.

B.5

Description of
group and

| ssuer'sposition
within the
group

Please refer to Elements B.14 and B.16.

[Crédit Agricole CIB is directly owned by Crédit Agricole SA., the listed entity of the
Crédit Agricole S.A. group (the Crédit Agricole Group). Crédit Agricole CIB is the
parent company of the Group]. The Group is the corporate and investment banking arm
of the Crédit Agricole Group.]

[The Group includes Crédit Agricole CIB FG, which is a consolidated subsidiary of
Crédit Agricole CIB. Credit Agricole CIB FG has no subsidiaries]

[The Group includes Crédit Agricole CIB FS, which is a consolidated subsidiary of
Crédit Agricole CIB. Credit Agricole CIB FS has no subsidiaries.]

B.9

Profit forecast
or estimate

[Not Applicable. Crédit Agricole CIB does not make profit forecasts or estimates.]
[Not Applicable. Crédit Agricole CIB FG does not make profit forecasts or estimates.]
[Not Applicable. Crédit Agricole CIB FS does not make profit forecasts or estimates.]

B.10

Quialifications
in audit report
on historical
financial

infor mation

[Not Applicable. There were no qualifications in the audit report on historical financial
information for Crédit Agricole CIB.]

[Not Applicable. There were no qualifications in the audit report on historical financial
information for Crédit Agricole CIB FG.]

[Not Applicable. There were no qualifications in the audit report on historical financial
information for Crédit Agricole CIB FS.]
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B.12

Selected key
financial
information and
no material
adverse change
and no
significant
change
statements

[The following table shows Crédit Agricole CIB's selected key financia information as
at and for the period ending 31 December 2015:

Income statement

Revenues 5,205 4,352
Gross operating income 2,138 1,574
Net income 1,491 1,456
Net income (group share) 958 1,050
(consolidated data in billions 31/12/2015 31/12/2014*
of euros) (audited) (audited)
Total liabilities and 549.3 644.1
shareholders' equity

Loans and advances to banks 164.4 165.4
and customers

Due to banks and customers 170.3 168.4
Equity, Group Share 17.4 16.0
Total shareholders equity 175 16.1

"The 2014 data has been restated
following the application of IFRIC 21,
presented in Note 11 of the
Registration Document.

31/12/2015 (Basdl 3) 31/12/2014 (Basdl 3)

Ratios of Crédit Agricole CIB (unaudited) (unaudited)
CoreTier 1 solvency ratio 10.4% 10.6%
Tier 1 solvency ratio 13.8% 13.5%
Total solvency ratio 15.2% 13.8%

There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of Crédit
Agricole CIB and no material adverse change in its prospects since 31 December 2015.]

[The following table shows Crédit Agricole CIB FG's selected key financia information
as at and for the period ending 31 December 2015:

Euros Thousands 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Total Balance Sheet 2,961,461 4,438,504
Share capital 15 15
Result carried forward 16 15
Net result 1 0

]

There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of Crédit
Agricole CIB FG and no material adverse change in its prospects since 31 December
2015.]
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[The following table shows Crédit Agricole CIB FS's selected key financial information
as at and for the period ending 31 December 2015:

Euros 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Total Balance Sheet 2,716,516,893 1,880,367,029
Share capital 225,000 225,000
Result carried forward (24,039) (24,665)
Net result 2570 626

]

There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of Crédit
Agricole CIB FS and no material adverse change in its prospects since 31 December
2015]

B.13

Recent events
materially
relevant to
evaluation of
Issuer's
solvency

1/ Office of Foreign Asset Control (OFAC)
Following discussions with the US authorities, on 20 October 2015, Crédit Agricole

S.A., the Crédit Agricole Group and Corporate Investment Bank (Crédit Agricole CIB)
reached agreements with the US federal authorities and the State of New York in
connection with the investigation of a series of dollar-denominated transactions with
countries under US economic sanctions and subject to certain laws of the State of New
York. The events covered by this agreement took place between 2003 and 2008. Crédit
Agricole CIB and Crédit Agricole S.A., which cooperated with the US federa
authorities and the State of New Y ork during the investigation, agreed to pay a fine of
US $787 million. The payment of this fine was charged against existing provisions.
Crédit Agricole S.A. and Crédit Agricole CIB aso reached agreements with the Board
of Governors of the US Federal Reserve and the Department of Financial Services of
the State of New York. Crédit Agricole CIB reached an agreement with the Office of
Foreign Assets Control of the US Department of the Treasury. It aso signed three-year
suspended prosecution agreements with the US Attorney’s Office of the District of
Columbia (USAQ) and the District Attorney of New York (DANY). The USAO and
DANY agreed to drop the charges resulting from the investigation against Crédit
Agricole CIB, Crédit Agricole SA. and Crédit Agricole CIB’s subsidiaries and
affiliates, provided that Crédit Agricole CIB complies with the obligations imposed
upon it under the agreements. Crédit Agricole S.A. Group agreed to tighten its internal
procedures and policies on regulatory compliance with international sanctions. It will
continue to cooperate fully with the US federal authorities and the State of New York in
connection with the case, and with the European Central Bank, the French Regulatory
and Resolution Supervisory Authority (ACPR) and regulators throughout its global
network.

2/ Switzerland/US programme
As part of the agreement signed between Switzerland and the USA in August 2013 to

enable the US authorities to examine the business conduct of Swiss banks with respect
to US taxpayers, Crédit Agricole Suisse, which had voluntarily accepted to participate
in the US tax programme in December 2013, signed a Non-Prosecution Agreement with
the US Department of Justice on 15 December 2015. Under the terms of this agreement,
Crédit Agricole Suisse paid a fine, fully provisioned, of US $99 million. Crédit
Agricole Suisse also committed to complying with various obligations assigned to it
and to cooperate with the US authorities. Full impairment of CACIB’s stake in UBAF
CACIB holds a 47.01% stake in UBAF, valued at €156 million at 31December 2014. In
2015, this holding was fully impaired to take account of UBAF's negative financial
outlook due to recurring difficulties (geopolitical crises and oil prices).
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3/ Full impairment of CACIB’s stakein UBAF

CACIB holds a47.01% stake in UBAF, valued at €156 million at 31 December 2014. In
2015, this holding was fully impaired to take account of UBAF's negative financial
outlook due to recurring difficulties (geopolitical crises and oil prices) affecting its main
areas of operation (Middle East and North Africa).

4/ Proposed sale of CA Securities Taiwan
On 31 July 2013, Crédit Agricole CIB withdrew from the brokerage business, with

notably the disposal of the CLSA BV Group to CITICS. Since Taiwanese law prohibits
ownership of more than 30% of a Taiwanese company by Chinese (PRC) interests,
CLSA's operations in Taiwan were hived off and sold to Crédit Agricole Securities
AsiaBV. In the CLSA BV sale contract, Crédit Agricole Securities Asia BV agreed to
maintain brokerage operations in Taiwan for two years. An agreement for the sale of the
securities was signed with a new counterparty in the second quarter of 2015. The
structure was amended in the third quarter of 2015 in keeping with the recommendation
of the Taiwanese regulator. This sale is currently being validated by the local
authorities. As IFRS 5 criteria have been met, the entity has been recognised in
discontinued operations. The disposal will take place at the net carrying amount of the
asset. There is thus no accounting impact on the 2015 financial statements.

5/ Implementation of IFRIC 21
The clarifications on the accounting of taxes and other government levies given in

IFRIC Interpretation 21 are described in Note 1 “Group accounting policies and
principles, assessments and estimates’. This interpretation of IAS 37 “Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets’ mainly concerns the obligating event, and
thus the date of recognition of a liability in respect of a tax (excluding income tax as
defined in 1AS 12 “Income Taxes’). As IFRIC 21 is applicable retrospectively, the data
published at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2014 was restated accordingly; the main
impacts of these adjustments are presented in Note 11.

6/ Single Resolution Fund
The Single Resolution Fund (SRF) was established by Regulation (EU) no. 806/2014 as

a single funding mechanism for all Member States participating in the single
supervisory mechanism (SSM) established by Council Regulation (EU) no. 1024/2013
and in the Single Resolution Mechanism (SRM). The SRF is financed by the banking
sector. The target level of the Fund is 1% of the amount of deposits covered by the
Deposit Guarantee Fund and must be reached by 31 December 2023. 70% of the
contribution to the resolution fund is payable in cash, in the form of an annual
contribution. The remaining 30% is the subject of an irrevocable payment commitment,
collateralised through a cash security deposit held by the Fund. The deposit will be held
for the duration of the commitment. It is repayable at maturity. Thus, for the year 2015,
Crédit Agricole CIB Group paid €77 million in respect of the annual contribution,
recognised in the income statement in taxes other than on income or payroll-related.

7/ 1ssue of undated deeply subordinated bonds by Crédit Agricole CIB
On 16 November 2015, as part of the process designed to strengthen the Group's

regulatory capital, Crédit Agricole CIB launched three floating-rate perpetual
subordinated Additional Tier 1 bonds for atotal of €1.8 billion (i.e. three issues of €0.6
billion each). These perpetual deeply subordinated bonds, which include discretionary
clauses concerning the payment of interest, are classed as equity instruments under
IFRS and recognised in Share capital and reserves at 31 December 2015 (see Changein
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shareholders equity). The interest paid and the issue premiums are deducted from
equity. Pursuant to IAS 12, the tax saving resulting from the payment of interest is
recognised in net income for the period so long as this tax is not withheld at source and
the interest paid is deducted from Crédit Agricole CIB’s retained earnings. In
accordance with the European CRD 4/CRR regulation, these bonds are included in the
calculation of Additional Tier 1 capital of Crédit Agricole CIB Group.

[Not Applicable. There have been no recent events that are materialy relevant to the
evaluation of the solvency of Crédit Agricole CIB FG.]
[Not Applicable. There have been no recent events that are materialy relevant to the
evaluation of the solvency of Crédit Agricole CIB FS.]

B.14 Dependency of Please refer to Elements B.5 and B.16.
I'ssuer on other [Crédit Agricole CIB is dependent on the performance of its subsidiaries and
entitieswithin | ffiliates][[Crédit Agricole CIB FG][Crédit Agricole CIB FS] is dependent on Crédit
the group Agricole CIB.]
B.15 Description of [The principal activities of Crédit Agricole CIB are mainly:
Issuer’s Financing: The financing business combines structured financing and commercial
principal banking in France and abroad. Banking syndication is involved in both of these
activities activities.
Capital markets and investment banking: This business includes capital markets
and brokerage, as well as investment banking.
Wealth Management: The Wealth Management offers a tailored approach allowing
each individual customer to manage, protect and transfer their assets in a manner
which best fits their aspirations. Our teams offer expert and first class services for
the management of both private and business assets.
[[Crédit Agricole CIB FG][Crédit Agricole CIB FS] carries on business as a finance
company, issuing warrants, securities and other financial instruments.]
B.16 Description of [Crédit Agricole S.A. is the immediate parent company of Crédit Agricole CIB with a

whether the
Issuer isdirectly

or indirectly
owned or
controlled and
by whom and
nature of such
control

97.33 per cent. stake.]

[Crédit Agricole CIB is the immediate parent company of Crédit Agricole CIB FG with
a99.9 per cent. stake and therefore controls Crédit Agricole CIB FG.]

[Crédit Agricole CIB is the immediate parent company of Crédit Agricole CIB FSwith
a99.52 per cent. stake and therefore controls Crédit Agricole CIB FSJ]
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[B.17 | Credit ratings (Delete this Element B.17 if the Securities are derivative securities for the purpose of
assigned tothe | the Directive Prospectusi.e. the redemption amount of the Securities may be lower than
issuer or itsdebt | par and/or islinked to an underlying asset)
securitiesat the | [The current ratings for Crédit Agricole CIB are as follows:
request or W!th Rating Agency Short Term Debt  Senior Long Term
the cooperation
of theissuer in Debt »
therating Fitch Ratings Limited F1 A positive outlook
process (Fitch)

Moody's Investors Prime-1 A2 positive outlook

Service Ltd (M oody's)

Standard & Poor'sRating A-1 A stable outlook]

Services, adivision of

Standard & Poor's Credit

Market Service Europe

Limited (S& P)
[Not applicable [Crédit Agricole CIB FG][Crédit Agricole CIB FS] does not have
ratings.]]
[The credit ratings will be treated for the purposes of Regulation (EC) No 1060/2009 on
credit rating agencies (as amended) (the CRA Regulation) as having been issued by
S&P, Moody's and Fitch upon registration pursuant to the CRA Regulation. S&P,
Moody's and Fitch are established in the European Union and have registered under the
CRA Regulation.]
[Not applicabl€e][ The Securities have [not] been rated [[e] by [Fitch][Moody's][S& P .]]

[B.18 | Adescription of | (Deletethis Element B.18 f the Securities are not guaranteed)
the nature and The payment of al amounts due in relation to Securities are irrevocably and
scope of the unconditionally guaranteed by Crédit Agricole CIB pursuant to a guarantee dated 11
guarantee May 2016 (the Guar antee).]

[B.19 | SectionB (Delete this Element B.19 and the relating sub-sections below if the Securities are not
infor mation guaranteed)
about guarantor | Please see the Elements below regarding Crédit Agricole CIB, as Guarantor.]
asif it were
issuer of the
same type of
security that is
the subject of
the guarantee.

Therefore
provide such
information as
required for a
summary for
therelevant
annex.

[B1Y/ Legal and Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank — Crédit Agricole CIB — CACIB

B.1 commercial (Crédit Agricole CIB or the Guarantor])]
name of the
guarantor
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[B.19/ | Domicileand Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank is a French Société Anonyme (joint

B.2 legal form of the | stock company) with a Board of Directors governed by ordinary company law, in
guar antor, particular the Second Book of the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce).
legisiation Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank's registered office is located at 9 quai
under which the | du Président Paul Doumer, 92920 Paris La Défense Cedex, France.
guarantor Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank is a credit institution approved in
operates and France and authorised to conduct all banking operations and provide all investment and
country of related services referred to in the French Monetary and Financial Code (Code monétaire
incorporation of | g financier). In this respect, Crédit Agricole CIB is subject to oversight of the European
guarantor and French responsible supervisory authorities, particularly the European Central Bank

and the French Prudential and Resolution Supervisory Authority (ACPR). In its
capacity as a credit ingtitution authorised to provide investment services, Crédit
Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank is subject to the French Monetary and
Financial Code (Code monétaire et financier), particularly the provisions relating to the
activity and control of credit institutions and investment service providers.]

[B.19/ | Known trends Known trends affecting the Guarantor and the companies of the Crédit Agricole CIB

B.4b affecting Group (the Group), as well as the sectors in which the Group and the Guarantor
guarantor and operate, include:
guarantor's - the continuing evolution of the global economic environment (Brexit, European
industries migrant crisis, instability in the Middle East and elections in key countries);

- the reform of the solvency ratios under Basel 3 (CRR / CRD4), with the minimum
requirement of CET1 set at 4.5% in 2015 and for the following years;

- the ongoing international debate on the harmonization of accounting standards;

- the implementation of resolution mechanism both at the national and European levels;
and

- changes in the regulatory framework imposing an ever more prudent treatment of the
balance sheet, including the management of indicators based on the total balance sheet
size, e.g. the leverage ratio (required to be above 3%), the Minimum Required Eligible
Liabilities (MREL) from the European Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive
(BRRD), based on the total liabilities and aimed at ensuring a minimum level of eligible
debt for a bail-in, Total Loss Absorption Capacity (TLAC), as well as contributions to
the Single Resolution Fund or the Bank Levy.

[B1Y/ Description of Please refer to Elements B.19/B.14 and B.19/B.16.

B.5 group and Crédit Agricole CIB is directly owned by Crédit Agricole S.A., the listed entity of the
guarantor's Crédit Agricole S.A. group (the Crédit Agricole Group). Crédit Agricole CIB is the
position within | parent company of the [Group Crédit Agricole CIB (the Group)]. The Group is the
the group corporate and investment banking arm of the Crédit Agricole S.A. group.]

[B.19/ | Profit forecast Not Applicable. Crédit Agricole CIB does not make profit forecasts or estimates.]

B.9 or estimate

[B.19/ | Qualifications Not Applicable. There were no qualifications in the audit report on historical financial

B.10 in audit report information for Crédit Agricole CIB.]

on historical
financial
infor mation
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[B.19/ | Selected key [The following table shows Crédit Agricole CIB's selected key financia information as

B.12 financial at and for the period ending 31 December 2015:
information and (consolidated data in millions ~ 01/01/2015-31/12/2015  01/01/2014-31/12/2014*
no material of euros) (audited) (audited)
adverse change
and no Income statement
significant Revenues 5,205 4,352
change Gross operating income 2,138 1,574
statements Net income 1,491 1,456

Net income (group share) 958 1,050
(consolidated data in billions 31/12/2015 31/12/2014*
of euros) (audited) (audited)
Total liabilities and 549.3 644.1
shareholders' equity
L oans and advances to banks 164.4 165.4
and customers
Due to banks and customers 170.3 168.4
Equity, Group Share 17.4 16.0
Total shareholders equity 175 16.1
"The 2014 data has been restated
following the application of IFRIC 21,
presented in Note 11 of the
Registration Document.
31/12/2015 (Basdl 3) 31/12/2014 (Basdl 3)
Ratios of Crédit Agricole CIB (unaudited) (unaudited)
CoreTier 1 solvency ratio 10.4% 10.6%
Tier 1 solvency ratio 13.8% 13.5%
Total solvency ratio 15.2% 13.8%
There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of Crédit
Agricole CIB and no material adverse change in its prospects since 31 December 2015.]

[B.19/ | Recent events 1/ Office of Foreign Asset Control (OFAC)

B.13 materially Following discussions with the US authorities, on 20 October 2015, Crédit Agricole
relevant to S.A., the Crédit Agricole Group and Corporate Investment Bank (Crédit Agricole CIB)
evaluation of reached agreements with the US federal authorities and the State of New York in
guarantor's connection with the investigation of a series of dollar-denominated transactions with
solvency countries under US economic sanctions and subject to certain laws of the State of New

York. The events covered by this agreement took place between 2003 and 2008. Crédit
Agricole CIB and Crédit Agricole S.A., which cooperated with the US federa
authorities and the State of New Y ork during the investigation, agreed to pay a fine of
US $787 million. The payment of this fine was charged against existing provisions.
Crédit Agricole S.A. and Crédit Agricole CIB aso reached agreements with the Board
of Governors of the US Federal Reserve and the Department of Financial Services of
the State of New York. Crédit Agricole CIB reached an agreement with the Office of
Foreign Assets Control of the US Department of the Treasury. It aso signed three-year
suspended prosecution agreements with the US Attorney’s Office of the District of
Columbia (USAQ) and the District Attorney of New York (DANY). The USAO and
DANY agreed to drop the charges resulting from the investigation against Crédit
Agricole CIB, Crédit Agricole SA. and Crédit Agricole CIB’s subsidiaries and
affiliates, provided that Crédit Agricole CIB complies with the obligations imposed
upon it under the agreements. Crédit Agricole S.A. Group agreed to tighten its internal
procedures and policies on regulatory compliance with international sanctions. It will
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continue to cooperate fully with the US federal authorities and the State of New York in
connection with the case, and with the European Central Bank, the French Regulatory
and Resolution Supervisory Authority (ACPR) and regulators throughout its global
network.

2/ Switzerland/US programme

As part of the agreement signed between Switzerland and the USA in August 2013 to
enable the US authorities to examine the business conduct of Swiss banks with respect
to US taxpayers, Crédit Agricole Suisse, which had voluntarily accepted to participate
in the US tax programme in December 2013, signed a Non-Prosecution Agreement with
the US Department of Justice on 15 December 2015. Under the terms of this agreement,
Crédit Agricole Suisse paid a fine, fully provisioned, of US $99 million. Crédit
Agricole Suisse also committed to complying with various obligations assigned to it
and to cooperate with the US authorities. Full impairment of CACIB’s stake in UBAF
CACIB holds a 47.01% stake in UBAF, valued at €156 million at 31 December 2014.
In 2015, this holding was fully impaired to take account of UBAF's negative financial
outlook due to recurring difficulties (geopolitical crisesand oil prices).

3/ Full impairment of CACIB’s stakein UBAF

CACIB holds a47.01% stake in UBAF, valued at €156 million at 31 December 2014. In
2015, this holding was fully impaired to take account of UBAF's negative financial
outlook due to recurring difficulties (geopolitical crises and oil prices) affecting its main
areas of operation (Middle East and North Africa).

4/ Proposed sale of CA Securities Taiwan

On 31 July 2013, Crédit Agricole CIB withdrew from the brokerage business, with
notably the disposal of the CLSA BV Group to CITICS. Since Taiwanese law prohibits
ownership of more than 30% of a Taiwanese company by Chinese (PRC) interests,
CLSA’s operations in Taiwan were hived off and sold to Crédit Agricole Securities
AsiaBV. In the CLSA BV sdle contract, Crédit Agricole Securities Asia BV agreed to
maintain brokerage operations in Taiwan for two years. An agreement for the sale of the
securities was signed with a new counterparty in the second quarter of 2015. The
structure was amended in the third quarter of 2015 in keeping with the recommendation
of the Taiwanese regulator. This sale is currently being validated by the loca
authorities. As IFRS 5 criteria have been met, the entity has been recognised in
discontinued operations. The disposal will take place at the net carrying amount of the
asset. There is thus no accounting impact on the 2015 financial statements.

5/ Implementation of IFRIC 21

The clarifications on the accounting of taxes and other government levies given in
IFRIC Interpretation 21 are described in Note 1 “Group accounting policies and
principles, assessments and estimates’. This interpretation of |AS 37 “Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets’ mainly concerns the obligating event, and
thus the date of recognition of a liability in respect of a tax (excluding income tax as
defined in IAS 12 “Income Taxes”). As IFRIC 21 is applicable retrospectively, the data
published at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2014 was restated accordingly; the main
impacts of these adjustments are presented in Note 11.

6/ Single Resolution Fund
The Single Resolution Fund (SRF) was established by Regulation (EU) no. 806/2014 as
a single funding mechanism for all Member States participating in the single
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supervisory mechanism (SSM) established by Council Regulation (EU) no. 1024/2013
and in the Single Resolution Mechanism (SRM). The SRF is financed by the banking
sector. The target level of the Fund is 1% of the amount of deposits covered by the
Deposit Guarantee Fund and must be reached by 31 December 2023. 70% of the
contribution to the resolution fund is payable in cash, in the form of an annual
contribution. The remaining 30% is the subject of an irrevocable payment commitment,
collateralised through a cash security deposit held by the Fund. The deposit will be held
for the duration of the commitment. It is repayable at maturity. Thus, for the year 2015,
Creédit Agricole CIB Group paid €77 million in respect of the annual contribution,
recognised in the income statement in taxes other than on income or payroll-related.

7/ Issue of undated deeply subordinated bonds by Crédit Agricole CIB

On 16 November 2015, as part of the process designed to strengthen the Group's
regulatory capital, Crédit Agricole CIB launched three floating-rate perpetual
subordinated Additional Tier 1 bonds for atotal of €1.8 billion (i.e. three issues of €0.6
billion each). These perpetual deeply subordinated bonds, which include discretionary
clauses concerning the payment of interest, are classed as equity instruments under
IFRS and recognised in Share capital and reserves at 31 December 2015 (see Changein
shareholders equity). The interest paid and the issue premiums are deducted from
equity. Pursuant to IAS 12, the tax saving resulting from the payment of interest is
recognised in net income for the period so long as this tax is not withheld at source and
the interest paid is deducted from Crédit Agricole CIB’s retained earnings. In
accordance with the European CRD 4/CRR regulation, these bonds are included in the
calculation of Additional Tier 1 capital of Crédit Agricole CIB Group.

[B.19/ | Dependency of Please refer to Elements B.19/B.5 and B.19/B.16.

B.14 guarantor on Crédit Agricole CIB is dependent on the performance of its subsidiaries and affiliates.]
other entities
within the
group

[B.19/ | Description of [The principa activities of Crédit Agricole CIB are mainly:

B.15 guarantor’s Financing: The financing business combines structured financing and commercial
principal banking in France and abroad. Banking syndication is involved in both of these
activities activities.

Capital markets and investment banking: This business includes capital markets and
brokerage, as well as investment banking.

Wealth Management: The Wealth Management offers a tailored approach allowing
each individual customer to manage, protect and transfer their assets in a manner
which best fits their aspirations. Our teams offer expert and first class services for the
management of both private and business assets.

[B.19/ | Description of Crédit Agricole S.A. is the immediate parent company of Crédit Agricole CIB with a

B.16 whether the 97.33 per cent. stake.]
guarantor is
directly
or indirectly
owned or

controlled and
by whom and

nature of such
control

25




Summary

[B.19/ | Credit ratings The current ratings for Crédit Agricole CIB are asfollows:
B.17 assigned to the
issuer or itsdebt ] ]
securities at the Rating Agency Short Term Debt  Senior Long Term
request or with Debt
the cooper ation Fitch Ratings Limited F1 A positive outlook
of theissuer in (Fitch)
therating Moody's Investors Prime-1 A2 positive outlook
process Service Ltd (M oody's)
Standard & Poor'sRating  A-1 A stable outlook
Services, adivision of
Standard & Poor's Credit
Market Service Europe
Limited (S& P)
The credit ratings will be treated for the purposes of Regulation (EC) No 1060/2009 on
credit rating agencies (as amended) (the CRA Regulation) as having been issued by
S&P, Moody's and Fitch upon registration pursuant to the CRA Regulation. S&P,
Moody's and Fitch are established in the European Union and have registered under the
CRA Regulation.]
[Not applicabl€e][ The Securities have [not] been rated [[e] by [Fitch][Moody's][S& P .]]
Section C — Securities
C1 Typeand class | Type:

of Securities
being offered

The securities (Securities) are [notes (Notes)][certificates (Certificates)] and are issued
by the Issuer with [no interest payable (Zero Coupon Securities)][the amount (if any)
payable as interest being [fixed (Fixed Rate Securities)][a floating rate (Floating Rate
Securities)][linked to [a combination of][a commodity/commodities/basket of
commodities][a benchmark rate/benchmark rates/basket of benchmark rates][an FX
rate/FX rates/a basket of FX rates|[an index/indices/a basket of indices][a proprietary
index/proprietary indices/a basket of proprietary indices|[an inflation index/inflation
indices/a basket of inflation indices][an exchange traded fund/exchange traded funds/a
basket of exchange traded funds][a share/shares/a basket of shares] (Linked Interest
Securities)] [and] [the amount payable on redemption being [linked to [a combination
of][a commodity/commodities/basket of commodities][a benchmark rate/benchmark
rates/basket of benchmark rates|[an FX rate/FX rates/a basket of FX rates][an
index/indices/a basket of indices]|[a proprietary index/proprietary indicesa basket of
proprietary indices]|[an inflation index/inflation indices/a basket of inflation indices|[an
exchange traded fund/exchange traded funds/a basket of exchange traded funds][a
share/shares/a basket of shares| (Linked Redemption Securities)][and] [paid in
instalments (Instalment Securities)]. [The Securities may aso be referred to as
[Commodity Linked Securities if linked to a commodity/commodities/basket of
commodities][Index Linked Securities if linked to an index/indices/a basket of indices
or a proprietary index/proprietary indices/a basket of proprietary indices|[Inflation
Linked Securities if linked to an inflation index/inflation indices/a basket of inflation
indices][FX Linked Securities if linked to an FX rate/lFX ratesa basket of FX
rates][Rate Linked Securities if linked to a benchmark rate/benchmark rates/basket of
benchmark rates][ETF Linked Securitiesif linked to an exchange traded fund/exchange
traded funds/a basket of exchange traded funds][Share Linked Securities if linked to a
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share/shares/a basket of shares|[Multi Asset Basket Linked Securities if linked to a
combination of any of the above underlyings].]

[The amount payable (if any) [as interest] [and][or] [on redemption] is dependent upon
whether any credit event(s) (Credit Events) in respect of one or more reference entities
(Reference Entities) or one or more reference obligations (Reference Obligations) in
respect of any such reference entities, as the case may be, have occurred (a Credit
Linked Security).]

[The amount payable (if any) [as interest][and][or][on redemption] is dependent upon
whether certain events (Bond Events) in respect of one or more bonds or the issuers of
such bonds has occurred (aBond Linked Security).]

[Alternative currency conditions apply to the Securities (each, an Alternative Currency
Security): theilliquidity, non-transferability or inconvertibility of the scheduled payment
currency of the Securities may lead to postponement of payments under the Securities,
payment in an alternative currency or early redemption of the Securities.]

I dentification Code:

The Securities will be uniquely identified by the [the temporary ISIN Code [e] and
thereafter by] [ISIN Code [®] and the Common Code [®]] [Insert other codg].

c.2

Currency

Subject to compliance with all applicable laws, regulations and directives, Securities
may be issued in any currency agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant dealer
at the time of issue.

The Securities will be denominated in [e] (the Specified Currency)[, interest amounts
(if any) will be payable in [®]] [and] [any amount payable on redemption will be in [e]].

C5

Description of
restrictionson
free
transferability
of the
Securities

The free transfer of the Securities is subject to the selling restrictions of the United States
and the European Economic Area (including Luxembourg, Belgium, France, Germany,
Italy, Portugal, Spain and the United Kingdom), Chile, Japan, Hong Kong, Singapore,
South Korea, Taiwan and the Philippines.

[Securities offered and sold outside the United States to non-U.S. persons in reliance on
Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended must comply with
selling restrictions.] [Securities in registered form sold within the United States to
"Qualified Ingtitutional Buyers' or institutional "accredited investors' must comply with
transfer restrictions.] [Securities in bearer form are subject to U.S. tax law requirements
and must comply with selling restrictions.]

[Securities held in a clearing system must be transferred in accordance with the rules,
procedures and regulations of that clearing system.]

C38

Description of
therights
attachingtothe
Securities
including
ranking and
including any
limitationsto
thoserights

The Securities are issued in a series (a Series) having terms and conditions relating to,
amongst other matters, the following.
Ranking (status):

The Securities constitute direct, unsubordinated [and unsecured] obligations of the
| ssuer.

Guarantee

The [Securities are not guaranteed by any guarantor][payment of nominal and interest in
respect of the Securities is unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the Guarantor
pursuant to the Guarantee].
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Secured Securities:

[Not applicable. The Securities are not secured.]

[The Securities are Secured Securities, in respect of which security has been created by
the [Issuer][[specify] (the Third Party Chargor)] over the Collateral Assets (as defined
below) in favour of Citicorp Trustee Company Limited as the Security Trustee to hold
on behalf of the holders of the Securities (each, a Securityholder). Securityholders and
certain other Secured Parties. The Collatera Assets will be held in a segregated
Collateral Account with Citibank Europe plc (formerly, Citibank International Limited
(Luxembourg branch)) as Custodian or, potentially, in an account with a subcustodian or
other third party selected by the Custodian.

The Collateral Assets are [specify].

(Please insert only for Secured Securities to which Collateral Monitoring is applicable)
[The Collateral Assets other than cash will comply with the following criteria:

[- the obligor in respect of the relevant Collateral Asset operates in any of
[(specify relevant industry sectors)];]

[- the obligor in respect of that Collateral Asset is incorporated in any of
[(specify relevant jurisdictions)];]

[- the obligor in respect of the relevant Collateral Asset has, at [(specify date)],
the following credit ratings: [(specify relevant ratings)];]

[- the aggregate amount outstanding in respect of the asset comprising the
Collateral Asset is an amount not less than [(specify minimum amount)] and an amount
not greater than [(specify maximum amount)];]

[- the relevant Collateral Asset is denominated in [(specify relevant currency)];]
[- the relevant Collateral Asset is eligible collateral for Eurosystem monetary
policy and intra-day credit operations by the Eurosystem ;]

[- the relevant Collateral Asset has the following ranking(s) relevant to the debt

obligations of the obligor in respect of the relevant Collateral Asset: [(specify relevant
ranking)];]

[- the relevant Collateral Asset is listed on one of the following exchanges:
[(specify relevant exchanges)];]

[- the Collateral Asset islisted on any exchange;]

[- the time remaining to maturity of the relevant Collateral Asset is, at the

relevant date, not less than [(specify minimum time to maturity)] [and]/[or] not greater
than [(specify maximum time to maturity)];]

[- when taken together with the other Collateral Assets in the applicable
collateral pool, the relevant Collateral Asset would not breach the following
concentration limit(s) [(specify relevant concentration limits)]].

(Please insert for Secured Securities in respect of which Only Initial Collateral Assets
are Eligible" is applicable) [The only Collateral Assets that will be deemed to meet the
eligibility criteria will be those, which are of the same type as the Collateral Assets
delivered to the Custodian on the Issue Date.]

[The Securities are subject to Collateral Monitoring, which means that following a
Collateral Test Date (being [specify relevant Collateral Test Dates)), the [Issuer][Third
Party Chargor] may be required to deliver, or procure delivery of, additiona or
replacement Collateral Assets to or from the Collateral Account such that after
adjustment of the Collateral Assets, the Collateral Test will be satisfied. The Collateral
Test requires that (i) the Collateral Rules are satisfied and (ii) the value of the Collateral
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Assets is greater than or equal to the Required Collateral Value (being [specify])
(taking into account any applicable haircut to be applied to the Collateral Assets). The
Collateral Rules are [specify the applicable Collateral Rules]. Crédit Agricole CIB, in
its capacity as the Collateral Manager is entitled to request from time to time and on
behalf of the [Issuer][Third Party Chargor] that Collatera Assets [in the Collateral
Account are substituted with alternative Collateral Assets and that Collateral Assets] are
withdrawn from the Collateral Account, provided [in either case] that following such
withdrawal [or substitution, as the case may be,] the Collateral Test will be satisfied.]

[The Securities are not subject to Collateral Monitoring, which means that [the]
[neither the ][Issuer][ nor the ][Third Party Chargor] is [not] obliged to deliver, or
procure delivery of, additional or replacement Collateral Assets to or from the Collateral
Account following any change to the value of the Collateral Assets.]

The security over the Collateral Assets may only be enforced in accordance with the
terms and conditions applicable to the Secured Securities (the Secured Securities
Conditions), following a Secured Securities Event of Default (as defined below) and
following service by a Securityholder of a notice specifying that the Securities [are
immediately due and repayable at their Early Redemption Amount][that such Securities
will be subject to physical settlement in accordance with the Secured Securities
Conditions] (a Secured Securities Acceleration Event). A Secured Securities Event of
Default will occur if:

1. there occurs an Event of Default ; [or]

2. [anoticeis served following a failure to comply with the provisions of the Secured
Securities Conditions relating to Collateral Monitoring ; or]

3. thereisafailure by the Issuer [or Third Party Chargor] to comply with the security
trust deed entered into by the Security Trustee and the Issuer in respect of the
Secured Securities (the Security Trust Deed) or the [pledge agreement][specify
other security document] between the [Issuer][Third Party Chargor], the Custodian
and the Security Trust Deed in respect of the Securities (the Pledge Agreement)
(subject to any applicable grace period), the Security Trust Deed or Pledge
Agreement terminates or any security granted by the Issuer [or the Third Party
Chargor] ceasesto bein full force and effect, or certain similar circumstances occur.

On enforcement of the security over the Collateral Assets, the Securities shall be

immediately due and payable at the Fair Market Value Redemption Amount and

Securityholders shall be entitled to [receive an amount equal to][delivery of Collateral

Assetsin lieu of] the Fair Market Value Redemption Amount[, provided that if:

@ the Early Redemption Event is as a result of a default of the Issuer or the

Guarantor; and

(b) the Hedge Amount (as defined below) is a positive amount,

then in the determination of the Fair Market Value Redemption Amount the Hedge

Amount shall be modified by multiplying it by a fraction equal to HA/(HA+PAR) where

HA is the Hedge Amount before the adjustment and PAR is the aggregate outstanding

nominal amount of the Securities][Only for Secured Securities in respect of which Pro

Rata Priority is specified as applicable].]

Fair Market Value Redemption Amount:

The Fair Market Value Redemption Amount in respect of a Security will be, in
summary, equal to the fair market value of the Securities as at (or about) the date of early
redemption, taking into account, without limitation, the deduction of the Hedge Amount
[((in the case of Italian Listed Certificates) except for an early redemption following the
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occurrence of an Additional Disruption Event)][and the value of the relevant Bond (in
the case of the Bond Linked Securities)] but disregarding any collateral which has been,
or is required to be, delivered in connection with the Securities and (only in case of a
payment event of default under the Securities or an insolvency of the relevant Issuer
[and/or the Guarantor]) the financial condition of the relevant Issuer [and/or the
Guarantor].

If a Fair Market Value Redemption Amount has been determined for any reason other
than the occurrence of a payment event of default under the Notes or an insolvency of
the relevant Issuer [and/or the Guarantor] (the Pre-Default FMVRA) and is unpaid on
the date on which a payment event of default under the Notes or an insolvency occurs
with respect to the relevant Issuer and/or the Guarantor (the Post-Default FMVRA
Deter mination Date), then the Pre-Default FMVRA will be deemed to be equal to the
Fair Market Value Redemption Amount determined as of the Post-Default FMVRA
Determination Date (the Post-Default FMVRA) and the Post-Default FMVRA shall
disregard the financial condition of the relevant I ssuer and/or the Guarantor.

Hedge Amounts represent the losses or costs (expressed as a positive number) to the
relevant Issuer or any affiliate thereof that are incurred or gains (expressed as a negative
number) of the relevant Issuer or any affiliate thereof that are realised in unwinding any
hedging arrangements entered into in respect of the relevant Securities (whether by the
Issuer[, the Guarantor] or indirectly through an affiliate), provided that the determination
of the Hedge Amount shall (only in case of a payment event of default with respect of
the Notes or insolvency of the relevant Issuer [and/or the Guarantor]) disregard the
financial condition of the relevant Issuer [and/or the Guarantor].

[(In the case of the Bond Linked Securities which are Secured Securities and where the
Collateral Assets consist in whole or in part of the relevant Bond) The value of the
relevant Bond shall be determined by reference to the value at which the Security
Trustee, or a disposal agent on its behaf, is able to liquidate or realise the Bond in
accordance with the terms of the Securities (after deducting any costs associated with the
relevant enforcement and liquidation and any related fees or taxes).][(In the case of
Secured Securities) In the event of a default by the Custodian, [the value of the
Bond][the Fair Market Value Redemption Amount] shall be subject to a maximum of the
value of the amounts actually recovered from the Custodian (or any agent, sub-custodian
or delegate thereof).] The Fair Market Value Redemption Amount shall not be a negative
number.

[Events of Default:

Following the occurrence of one or more of the following events (each, an Event of
Default):

1. default in the payment of any nominal or interest due on the Securities or the due date
and such default continues for a specified time after written notice is received by the
| ssuer;

2. non-performance or non-observance by the Issuer [or Guarantor] of any of their other
respective obligations and such default continues for a specified time after written notice
(except where such failure is incapable of remedy when no notice will be required) is
received by the Issuer [or Guarantor (as the case may be)]; [or]

3. if the Issuer becomes the subject of certain prescribed insolvency or administration
type proceedings; [or]

4. [the Guarantee ceases to be, or is claimed by the Guarantor not to be, in full force and
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effect,]

the Securities will become due and payable upon notice being given by the
Securityholder.]

Withholding tax:

[All payments of nominal and interest by or on behalf of the Issuer [or the Guarantor] in
respect of the Securities will be made without withholding or deduction for or on account
of any present or future taxes or duties of whatever nature imposed or levied by or on
behalf of France [or Guernsey] unless such withholding or deduction is required by law
or other laws to which the Issuer[, the Guarantor] or its agents agree to be subject and
[neither] the Issuer [nor the Guarantor] will [not] be liable for any taxes or duties of
whatever nature imposed or levied by such laws, regulations, directives or agreements.]

[The Issuer [or, asthe case may be, the Guarantor] will, to the fullest extent permitted by
French law [and (in the case of Securities issued by Crédit Agricole CIB FG) Guernsey
law], pay such additional amounts as shall be necessary in order that the net amounts
received by the Securityholders after withholding or deduction shall equal the respective
amounts of nominal and interest which would otherwise have been receivable, in the
absence of such withholding or deduction, subject to certain conditions.]

Meetings:

The terms of the Securities contain provisions for calling meetings of holders of the
Securities to consider matters affecting their interests generally. These provisions permit
defined majorities to bind all holders, including holders who did not attend and vote at
the relevant meeting and holders who voted in a manner contrary to the relevant
majority.

Governing L aw:
The Securities are governed by English law.

Limitation of rights

Prescription

The Securities will become void unless claims in respect of nominal and/or interest are
made within a period of 10 years (in the case of nominal) and five (5) years (in the case
of interest) after the date on which the relevant payment first becomes due, except that, if
the full amount of the moneys payable has not been duly received by the principal
paying agent or the registrar, as the case may be, on or prior to such due date, it means
the date on which, the full amount of such moneys having been so received, notice to
that effect is duly given to the Securityholders in accordance with General Condition

Redemption following a Scheduled Payment Currency Cessation Event:

A Scheduled Payment Currency Cessation Event means that the Specified Currency
(or, in the case of Securities to which the Dual Currency (Interest) Payoff Feature or the
Dua Currency (Redemption) Payoff Feature applies, the Interest Currency or the
Redemption Currency as the case may be) ceases to exist at any time as a lawful
currency for any reason whatsoever, as determined by the Calculation Agent in its sole
and absolute discretion.

Following the occurrence of a Scheduled Payment Currency Cessation Event, the
relevant Issuer, in its sole and absolute discretion, may redeem all, but not some only, of
the Securities early on a date to be specified by the Issuer, each Security being redeemed
at its Fair Market Value Redemption Amount denominated at any currency selected by
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the Calculation Agent or the currency then adopted in France.

[Redemption for tax reasons:

The Issuer may have the right to terminate the Securities if the Issuer [or Guarantor (if it
were required to make a payment under the Guarantee)] has or will become obliged to
pay additional amounts pursuant to a “Gross Up” as a result of any change in, or
amendment to, the laws or regulations of French law [and (in the case of Securities
issued by Crédit Agricole CIB FG), Guernsey law] or any change in the application or
official interpretation of such laws or regulations, which change or amendment becomes
effective on or after the date on which agreement is reached to issue the first tranche of
the Securities and such obligation cannot be avoided by the Issuer [or the Guarantor]
taking reasonable measures available to it. The Securities will be redeemed at the Fair
Market Value Redemption Amount.]

[Redemption for special tax redemption:

If the Issuer [or the Guarantor] would, on the next payment of nominal or interest in
respect of the Securities, be prevented by [French law][Guernsey law] from making
payment of the full amount then due and payable, notwithstanding the undertaking to pay
additional amounts contained in the terms and conditions of the Securities, then the
Issuer shall on giving notice redeem all of the Securities at the Fair Market Value
Redemption Amount.]

[Redemption for FATCA Withholding:

The Issuer may redeem any or all FATCA Affected Securities and, in circumstances
where the Issuer elects not to redeem a FATCA Affected Security, the holder of such
FATCA Affected Securities can subsequently request the Issuer to redeem such FATCA
Affected Securities.][The Issuer will redeem al FATCA Affected Securities] The
Securities will be redeemed at the Fair Market Value Redemption Amount.

A FATCA Affected Security means a Security in respect of which (i) the Issuer
[or Guarantor (if it were required to make a payment under the Guarantee)] has or will
become abliged to make any withholding or deduction pursuant to an agreement
described in Section 1471(b) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(the Code) or any withholding or deduction otherwise imposed pursuant to Sections
1471 through 1474 of Code, or any fiscal or regulatory legidation, rules or practices
adopted pursuant to any intergovernmental agreement entered into in connection with the
implementation of such sections of the Code and (ii) such obligation cannot be avoided
by the Issuer [or the Guarantor] taking reasonable measures availabletoit.]

[Regulatory Redemption or Compulsory Resales:

The Issuer shall have certain rights to redeem or require the sale of Securities at the
expense and risk of the holder of any Securities held by or on behalf of a U.S. person
who is not a qualified purchaser (as defined in Section 2(a)(51) of the U.S. Investment
Company Act of 1940 and the rules thereunder) at the time it purchases such Securities.]

[Redemption for Illegality and Force Majeure:

The Issuer has the right to terminate the Securities in the case of illegality or force
majeure.]
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[Clean-up Call Option

Clean-up Call Option is applicable. The Securities may be redeemed early in whole, but
not in part, at the option of the Issuer if the aggregate nominal amount outstanding of the
Securities is equal to 10 per cent. or less than the aggregate nominal amount of the
Securities on the Issue Date, as determined by the Calculation Agent in its sole and
absolute discretion.]

[C.9

Interest,
maturity and
redemption
provisions,
yield and
representation
of the security-
holders

(Delete this Element C.9 if the Securities are derivative securities for the purposes of the
Prospectus Directive i.e. the redemption amount of the Securities may be lower than par
and/or islinked to an underlying asset)

See Element C.8.

[Interest Accrual Periods and Rates of Interest:

The Interest Deter mination Dates for the Securities are [®].

The Interest Payment Dates for the Securities are [e].

The Interest Accrual Periods for the Securities are [e].

The Interest Period Dates for the Securitics are [®].

The Calculation Agent for the Securities is [®][Crédit Agricole CIB].]

[The interest rate payable in respect of [specify relevant Interest Accrual Periods] will be
determined in the sole discretion of the Calculation Agent through the use of straight line
linear interpolation].

Redemption:

[The Securities are scheduled to redeem on [e®] by payment of the Issuer of [®].]

[Fixed Rate Securities:

The Securities are Fixed Rate Securities. The Securities bear interest from [®] (the
Interest Commencement Date) at a rate of [®] per cent. per [specify period] payable
[annually/semi-annually/quarterly/monthly] in arrear on [e] in each year.

An indication of yield:

The yield for the Fixed Rate Securities will be [®] on [e] (the Issue Date) [and will be
calculated on the basis of [®]. [which is the internal rate of return for the series of cash
flows defined by the initial investment at the issue price and the stated redemption
amount]. Thisisnot an indication of future yield.]

[Floating Rate Securities:

[The Securities are Floating Rate Securities. The Securities will bear interest on the same
basis as the floating rate under a notional interest rate swap transaction, or by reference
to [LIBOR, EURIBOR [other]]. The Securities will bear a floating rate of interest from
[[®] (the Interest Commencement Date] of [[[e](the [ISDA Rate][Designated
Maturity][Reset Date])][[the offered quotation][the arithmetic mean of the offered
quotations] for [[e] (the Reference Rate)]] [+/-] [®] per cent.] [(subject to a
[minimum][maximum] rate of [e])] per [specify period] payable [annually/semi-
annually/quarterly/monthly] in arrear on [@] in each year.]

[Zero Coupon Securities: The Securities are Zero Coupon Securities and do not bear
interest. The accrual yield for Zero Coupon Securities will be [®] (specify any change to
the Accrual Yield over time) [and will be calculated on the basis of [@]]. [which is the
internal rate of return for the series of cash flows defined by the initial investment at the
issue price and the stated redemption amount]. Thisis not an indication of future yield.]
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[Linked Interest Securities. The Securities are Linked Interest Securities that are [Multi-
Asset Basket Linked Securities that are a combination of] [Commodity Linked
Securities][Index Linked Securitieg|[Inflation Linked Securities|[Rate Linked
Securities][FX Linked Securities][ETF Linked Securities][Share Linked Securities]. The
Linked Interest Securities will bear interest on the basis of the Linked Interest (as set out
in more detail in C.10).]

[Credit Linked Securities: The amount payable (if any) as interest on the Securities is
dependent upon whether any Credit Event(s) in respect [the reference entity][any
reference entity][a reference entity being the [first][second][third][ ®][th] reference entity
being subject to the occurrence of a Credit Event] or one or more obligations in respect
of [the reference entity][any such reference entities], as the case may be, have occurred.

Credit Event(s) means [bankruptcy] [failure to pay] [obligation acceleration] [obligation
default] [repudiation/moratorium] [restructuring] [governmental intervention]]

[Fully Principal Protected CLSs: Upon the satisfaction of the conditions to settlement
(which include the occurrence of a credit event) in respect of a Reference Entity, the
nominal amount of each Security will be reduced by the Floating Rate Payer Calculation
Amount of such Reference Entity (the Affected Amount). An amount equal to (a) the
auction final price or final price, as relevant, multiplied by (b) the Floating Rate Payer
Calculation Amount (such amount the Recovery) will be reserved and the Hedge
Amount will be determined in respect of the Affected Amount. The aggregate of al
Recoveries minus all Hedge Amounts, which aggregate may be a negative amount, will
be added to the aggregate outstanding nominal amount for the purposes of determining
the interest amounts of the Securities.

Reference Entity(ies): Floating Rate Payer Calculation Amount(s):

[e] [e]]

Payoff Features:

[Not Applicable. The Securities are not subject to any features.]

[The Securities have [several features|[a feature] which affect the [way interest is
calculated [(an Interest Payoff)][(aLinked Interest)][and the][way amounts payable on

redemption are calculated [(a Redemption Payoff)] [and] [when the Securities redeem)]
that apply, as set out below.

Payoff Features which may apply to interest amounts:

[Investor Interest Switch Payoff Feature: Investor Interest Switch Payoff Feature is
applicable. All Securityholders acting together may at their option [(describe frequency)]
during the life of the Securities) [elect][request] to switch the basis on which interest is
calculated from (i) calculation of the Linked Interest rate using Linked Interest; to (ii)
calculation of the Linked Interest rate using Linked Interest, [,subject to acceptance by
the Issuer], by sending a notice on or prior to an Investor Interest Switch Expiry Date.

Linked Interest;: Linked Interest: Investor Interest Switch Expiry Date(s):
[o] [®][as notified in the notice  [®]]

sent to the Issuer by the

Securityholders]

[Issuer Interest Switch Payoff Feature: Issuer Interest Switch Payoff Feature is
applicable. The Issuer may at its option (once during the life of the Securities) elect to
switch the basis on which interest is calculated from (i) calculation of the Linked Interest
rate using Linked Interest; to (ii) calculation of the Linked Interest rate using Linked
Interest,, by sending a notice on or prior to an Issuer Interest Switch Expiry Date.
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Linked Interest;: Linked Interest: Issuer Interest Switch Expiry Date(s):
[e] [e] [e]]

[Knock-out Interest Switch Payoff Feature: Knock-out Interest Switch Payoff Feature is
applicable. The basis on which interest is calculated will automatically switch (once only
during the life of the Securities) from (i) calculation of the Linked Interest rate using
Linked Interest; to (ii) calculation of the Linked Interest rate using Linked Interest, if,
[on any Knock-out Interest Switch Observation Date][at any time during the Knock-out
Interest Switch Observation Period], the Underlyingko Vaue is within the Range.

The Underlyingco Value is within the Range if the Underlying Value of the
Underlyingko is [greater than][greater than or equal to][lower than or equa to][lower
than] the Knock-out Lower Limit [and][or][greater than][greater than or equal to][lower
than or equal to][lower than] the Knock-out Upper Limit.

The Underlyingko Value reflects the price, level or rate of the Underlyingko (without
regard to any currency of denomination of such price, level or rate, as the case may be)
at the relevant time.

Under lyingko: Knock-out L ower Knock-out Upper Limit:
Limit:
[e] [e] [e]
Linked Linked Interest,: Knock-out Interest Switch Observation
Interest;: [Date(s)][Period(s)]:
[e] [e] [e]]

[Knock-out Basket Interest Switch Payoff Feature: Knock-out Basket Interest Switch
Payoff Feature is applicable. The basis on which interest is calculated will automatically
switch (once only during the life of the Securities) from (i) calculation of the Linked
Interest rate using Linked Interest; to (ii) calculation of the Linked Interest rate using
Linked Interest, if, [on any Knock-out Basket Interest Switch Observation Date][at any
time during the Knock-out Basket Interest Switch Observation Period], the Basketxo
Value is within the Range.

The Basketyo Value is within the Range if the Underlying Value of the Underlyingko is
[greater than][greater than or equal to][lower than or equal to][lower than] the Knock-out
Basket Lower Limit [and][or][greater than][greater than or equal to][lower than or equal
to][lower than] the Knock-out Basket Upper Limit.

Basketko Value means the sum of the individual products of Leverage and the
Underlying Vaue of each Underlying; observed on the relevant date.

The Underlying Value reflects the price, level or rate of the relevant Underlying
(without regard to any currency of denomination of such price, level or rate, as the case
may be) at the relevant time.

K nock-out Knock-out Linked Linked Knock-out Basket I nterest
Basket L ower Basket Upper Interest;: I nterest,: Switch Observation
Limit: Limit: [Dates(s)] [Period(9)]:

[e] [e] [e] [e] [e]

i Underlying;: Leverage:

1 [o] [e]]

[Target Interest Switch Payoff Feature: Target Interest Switch Payoff Feature is
applicable. The basis on which interest is calculated will automatically switch (once only
during the life of the Securities) from (i) calculation of the Linked Interest rate using

35




Summary

Section C — Securities

Linked Interest; to (ii) calculation of the Linked Interest rate using Linked Interest, if a
Target Interest Switch Event occurs. A Target Interest Switch Event occurs if the
payment of the interest amount on an interest payment date results in the aggregate of all
interest amounts (paid in respect of the aggregate outstanding nominal amount of the
Securities in the case of Securities represented by a global Securities or the product of
the Calculation Amount and the Calculation Amount Factor in respect of Securities in
definitive form) paid up to and including the interest payment date is greater than or
equal to the Aggregate Interest Amount Cap.

Linked Interest;: Linked Interest,:  Aggregate Interest Amount Cap:

[e] [e] [e®] per Calculation Amount, which shall be multiplied by (i) the
Global Securities Calculation Amount Factor (in respect of the
Securities represented by a global Securities), or (ii) the
Calculation Amount Factor (in respect of Securitiesin definitive
form).

Calculation Amount: [e]

Global Securities Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the aggregate
outstanding nominal amount of the Securities divided by the Calculation Amount.
Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the specified denomination
divided by the Calculation Amount.]

[Shout Option Performance Lock-in Interest Payoff Feature: Shout Option Performance
Lock-in Interest Payoff Feature is applicable. All Securityholders acting together may
request to fix the Underlying Value of each relevant Underlying (being [e]), for the
purposes of the determination of the Linked Interest rate applicable to the Securities for
the then current interest accrual period at the Shout Option Performance Lock-in Level
by delivering a notice on any date that falls in an interest accrual period provided such
date is [10] Business Days prior to the end of the relevant interest accrual period
(aShout Option Performance L ock-in Expiry Date). The Issuer has the discretion to
decline such request or provide the relevant Shout Option Performance Lock-in Level.
This option may be exercised once only in respect of each interest accrual period.

Each relevant Underlying Value reflects the price, level or rate of the relevant
Underlying (without regard to any currency of denomination of such price, level or rate,
as the case may be) at the relevant time.

Shout Option Performance Lock-in Level means the Underlying Value of each
relevant Underlying calculated in respect of any Shout Option Performance Lock-In
Expiry Date designated as a Shout Option Performance Lock-In Date in the relevant
notice.]

[Chooser Decay Interest Switch Option Payoff Feature: Chooser Decay Interest Switch
Option Payoff Feature is applicable. All Securityholders acting together may elect to
defer the payment and calculation of interest upon delivering a notice (a Deferral
Option Exercise Notice) on or prior to a Deferral Option Exercise Date designating a
deferral option effective date until (i) the Securityholders acting together, elect to receive
payment of interest in respect of specified Interest Determination Dates and
corresponding interest accrual periods upon delivering a notice (a Resumption Option
Exercise Notice) on or prior to a resumption option exercise date designating a
resumption option reference date and specifying Interest Determination Dates in respect
of which all Securityholders elect to receive payment of interest (a Resumption Option
Specified Effective Date) or (ii) the last Interest Determination Date. An Interest
Determination Date can be specified as a Resumption Option Specified Effective Date
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only once.

The Linked Interest rate applicable to the Securities shall be calculated (a) on each
Interest Determination Date up to (but excluding) the first deferral option effective date
and each subsequent Interest Determination Date which has not been designated as a
deferral option effective date, a resumption option reference date or specified as
aResumption Option Specified Effective Date, in accordance with the Linked Interest;
(b) on each deferral option effective date, as equal to O; (c) in respect of each resumption
option reference date, the number, if any, of previous interest accrual periods
corresponding to the Resumption Option Specified Effective Dates specified in the
Resumption Option Exercise Notice for that resumption option reference date and (d) in
respect of the last Interest Determination Date, in accordance with the Linked Interest
multiplied by an amount equal to 1 plus the number of interest accrual periods for which
no interest was paid because the corresponding Interest Determination Dates were
designated as deferral option effective dates and not subseguently designated as a
resumption option reference date or specified as a Resumption Option Specified
Effective Date.

All Securityholders acting together may elect to (i) defer payment and calculation of
interest on any Deferral Option Exercise Date during the life of the Securities and
(i) elect to receive payment of interest on any Resumption Option Exercise Date during
the life of the Securities.

Linked Interest: Deferral Option Exercise Resumption Option Exercise
Date(s): Date(s):
[e] [e] [e]

Interest Determination Date(s): [®]
Interest Accrual Period(s): [e]]

[Memory Option Interest Switch Payoff Feature: Memory Option Interest Switch Payoff
Feature is applicable. The interest amount payable on an interest payment date shall be
equal to, if the interest amount payable in respect of an interest accrual period calculated
in accordance with the Linked Interest and applicable conditions, prior to application of
the Memory Option Interest Switch Payoff Feature is (i) greater than O, then at the
amount payable in respect of the relevant interest accrual period calculated using the
Linked Interest multiplied by 1 plus the number (if any) of previous consecutive interest
accrual periods (@) for which the interest amount was equal to zero and (b) which have
not been taken into account for the calculation of interest amounts paid before such
interest payment date or (ii) less than or equal to O, then O.

Linked Interest: [®]]

[Flexi Option Interest Switch Payoff Feature: Flexi Option Interest Switch Payoff
Feature is applicable. All Securityholders acting together may elect to switch the basis on
which interest is calculated for an interest accrual period from (i) calculation of the
Linked Interest rate using Linked Interest; to (ii) calculation of the Linked Interest rate
using Linked Interest,. The Securityholders may exercise this option [@] times during the
life of the Securities and after this the Linked Interest rate will be automatically switched
to become the Flexi Interest Switch Fixed Rate.

Linked Interest;: Linked Interest: Flexi Interest Switch Fixed Rate:
[e] [e] [e]]

[Pelican Option Interest Switch Payoff Feature: Pelican Option Interest Switch Payoff
Feature is applicable. The interest amount payable on any interest payment date shall be
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subject to a maximum equal to the Cap. The amount (if any) by which that interest
amount (prior to the application of the Cap) for an interest accrual period exceeds the
Cap (the Interest Amount Excess Amount) shall be notionally allocated to the Reserve.
If the amount calculated in respect of an interest accrual period gives rise to an amount
that is less than the Cap (the I nterest Amount Shortfall Amount), then the amount paid
will be topped up by the lesser of (i) the Interest Amount Shortfall Amount and (ii) the
amount notionally credited to the Reserve (the Interest Amount Top Up Amount).

The Reserve means a notional reserve which, at any time, equals the aggregate of
each Interest Amount Excess Amount (if any) less the aggregate of each Interest Amount
Top Up Amount (if any), subject to a minimum of zero (0). The amount notionally
credited to the Reserve shall not accrue or be deemed to accrue any interest. The
Securityholders shall not be entitled to receive any amount notionally credited to the
Reserve after the payment of interest in respect of the final interest accrual period.

Cap: [e] per Calculation Amount, which shall be multiplied by (i) the Global Securities
Calculation Amount Factor (in respect of the Securities represented by a global
Securities), or (ii) the Calculation Amount Factor (in respect of Securities in definitive
form).

Calculation Amount: [e]

Global Securities Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the aggregate
outstanding nominal amount of the Securities divided by the Calculation Amount.
Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the specified denomination
divided by the Calculation Amount.]

[Dual Currency (Interest) Payoff Feature: As Dual Currency (Interest) Payoff Feature is
applicable, interest amounts (if any) will be paid in any one of the Interest Currencies.
The amount paid will be calculated by [dividing][multiplying] the interest amount
denominated in [e] by the relevant Dual Currency (Interest) Exchange Rate on the
relevant Interest Determination Date. [(Insert for Italian Certificates) This Dual
Currency (Interest) Payoff Feature permits investors to invest in the Certificates
denominated in [e] while they can only receive paymentsin [e] (e.g. if they have access
to [e] denominated securities accounts only).]

Interest Currency(ies): Dua Currency (Interest) Exchange Rate:
[e] [e]
Interest Determination Date(s): [®]]

[Credit Event Contingency Interest Snitch Payoff Feature: Credit Event Contingency
Interest Switch Payoff Feature is applicable. If the Calculation Agent determines an
event determination date has occurred with respect to the Reference Entity, interest shall
cease to accrue with effect from (and including) the [interest payment date immediately
preceding such event determination date (or, if such date occurs during the first interest
accrual period, the Interest Commencement Date)][the event determination date]. Credit
Events that may or may not happen in respect of the reference entity may affect if
interest is payable.

Reference Entity: [e]

Credit Event(9): []

Interest Commencement Date: [e]]

[Reset Option Interest Payoff Feature: Reset Option Interest Payoff Feature is applicable.
All Securityholders acting together may, with the consent of the Issuer, elect to switch
the basis on which interest is calculated (up to [e] times during the life of the Securities)
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by sending a notice on or prior to a Reset Notice Date, subject to any further exercise of
the Reset Option Interest Payoff Feature.

Reset Notice Date(s): [o]]

[Sngle Interest Payment Date Payoff Feature: As Single Interest Payment Date Payoff
Feature is applicable, notwithstanding that there are multiple interest payment dates the
sum of all interest amounts (if any) will be paid on [e] (the Single Interest Payment
Date). For the avoidance of doubt, Securityholders will not be entitled to any interest on
any interest amount determined on an interest determination date for the relevant interest
accrual period provided that it is paid on the Single Interest Payment Date.]

[Bond Switch Option Payoff Feature: Bond Switch Option Payoff Featureis applicable.

All Securityholders acting together may request to substitute a Bond by delivering a
notice on any date that falls in an interest accrual period provided such date is [10]
Business Days prior to the end of the relevant interest accrual period (aBond Switch
Option Expiry Date). Following receipt of such request, the Issuer shall provide the
relevant Bond Switch Option Pricing, which reflects the cost or gain of effecting the
switch of Bonds requested by the Securityholders, the difference between the market
value of the replaced Bond and the replacing Bond and the resulting adjusted Linked
Interest Rate applicable to the Securities. The Securityholders have the ability to request
to fix the Bond Switch Option Pricing at a particular level, although this is subject to the
Issuer's discretion to decline such request. The Qualifying Securityholders may exercise
the Bond Switch Option [(specify frequency of the exercise of the Bond Switch Option)].

Representation of Securityholders:
Thereis no trustee or any other representative of Securityholders.

[(Delete if the Securities are not secured) The Security Trustee has been appointed to
hold the security created in respect of the Collateral Assets on trust for the
Securityholders and the other Secured Parties.]]

[C.10

Derivative
component in
interest
payments

(Delete this Element C.10 if the Securities are derivative securities for the purposes of
the Prospectus Directive i.e. the redemption amount of the Securities may be lower than
par and/or islinked to an underlying asset)

See Element C.9.

Linked Interest Securities: The Securities are Linked Interest Securities, they will bear
interest on the basis of the Linked Interest Rate which is calculated in accordance with
the below and expressed as a percentage, where, the Underlying Value reflects [the
price, level or rate of [the][the relevant] Underlying (being [®]) (without regard to any
currency of denomination of such price, level or rate, as the case may be) at the relevant
time on [e]] [the[average value][minimum value][maximum value][of the
Underlying][change in value of the Underlying] observed by the Calculation Agent over
[specify relevant dates)].

An interest amount calculated in accordance with an Interest Payoff isaLinked Interest
Amount.

(Replicate relevant Linked Interest description as set out in the introductory paragraph
of the applicable interest payoff chapter of Annex 5 and/or Annex 6 to the terms and
conditions of the Securities.)

[[®] (insert name of standard or combination interest) is applicable for Interest Accrual
Period [e].]
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[Combination Capitalisation Interest]
[Combination Digital Interest]

[Combination Division Interest]
[Combination Multiplication Interest]
[Combination Ratchet Interest]

[Combination Range Interest]

[Combination Resettable Range Interest]
[Combination Showrange Interest]
[Combination Subtract Interest]
[Combination Maximum Interest]
[Combination Minimum Interest]
[Combination Digital Basket Interest]
[Combination Payoff-Linked Digital Interest]
[Combination Ladder Ratchet Interest]
[Combination Rainbow Performance Interest]
[Standard Fixed Interest]

[Sandard Floating Interest]

[Sandard Floater Interest]

[Sandard Inverse Floater Interest]

[Standard Alter native Basket Interest]
[Sandard Basket Interest]

[Standard Option Basket Interest]

[Sandard Maximum-Minimum Interest]
[Standard Participation Interest]

[Sandard Lookback Performance Basket Interest]
[Standard Maximum-Minimum Basket | nterest]
[Standard Volbond Interest]

[Sandard Participation Basket Interest]
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[Sandard Range Accrual Interest]

[Sandard Resettable Range Accrual Interest]
[Sandard 3D Range Accrual Interest]
[Sandard Fixed Digital Basket Interest]
[Standard Power Interest]

[Sandard Dual Range Accrual Interest]
[Standard Trend Participation I nterest]
[Standard Trend Participation Basket | nterest]
[Sandard Average Trend Participation Basket Interest]
[Standard Multi Fixed Digital Interest]
[Sandard Digital to Participation Interest]
[Sandard Knock-out Range Accrual Interest]
[Standard Product Basket Interest]

[Standard Multi Fixed Basket Interest]
[Sandard Fixed Range Accrual Interest]
[Standard ABF Interest]

[Standard Worst of Interest]

[Standard Annualised Performance Interest]

[Sandard Rainbow Performance Interest]]

cnu

An indication
asto whether
the securities
offered are or
will bethe
object of an
application for
admission to
trading on a
regulated

mar ket

[Application has been made by the Issuer (or on its behalf) for the Securities to be
admitted to trading on [the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's regulated market][Electronic
Securitised Derivatives Market of Borsa Italiana S.p.A. (Italian Listed Certificates)][e
(please quote any other relevant regulated market)][with effect from [e].] [The
Securities are not expected to be admitted to trading.]
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[C.15

Description of
how the value
of your
investment is
affected by the
value of the
underlying
assets

(Delete this Element C.15 if the Securities are debt securities for the purposes of the
Prospectus Directive i.e. the redemption amount of the Securities is at least equal to par
and is not linked to an underlying asset)

[Credit Linked Securities: The Securities are Credit Linked Securities.

The amount payable (if any) as interest on the Securities and the amount payable [and/or
the deliverable obligations to be delivered] on redemption of the Securities is dependent
upon whether any credit event(s) in respect [the reference entity][any reference entity][a
reference entity being the [first][second][third][e][th] reference entity being subject to
the occurrence of a Credit Event] or one or more obligations in respect of [the reference
entity][any such reference entities], as the case may be, have occurred.

Credit Event(s) means [bankruptcy] [failure to pay] [obligation acceleration] [obligation
default] [repudiation/moratorium] [restructuring] [governmental intervention]]

[Linear Basket CLSs (other than Leveraged CLSs): The conditions relating to interest (if
any) payable under the Securities and the redemption amount apply to each Securities
with respect to each Reference Entity separately and to such Securities' pro rata share of
the relevant Floating Rate Payer Calculation Amount relating to such reference entity.

Reference Entity(ies): Floating Rate Payer Calculation Amount(s):
[e] [e]]
[Linear Basket CLSs that are also Leveraged CLSs. Each Security will be redeemed

upon the first occurrence of the satisfaction of the conditions to settlement (which
include the occurrence of a credit event) with respect to any reference entity.]

Reference Entity(ies): Floating Rate Payer Calculation Amount(s):

[e] [e]]

[Partially Principal Protected CLSs: Upon the satisfaction of the conditions to settlement
(which include the occurrence of a credit event) in respect of a Reference Entity, the
nominal amount of each Security will be reduced by the Floating Rate Payer Calculation
Amount of such Reference Entity (the Affected Amount). An amount equal to (a) the
auction final price or final price, as relevant, multiplied by (b) the Floating Rate Payer
Calculation Amount (such amount the Recovery) will be reserved and the Hedge
Amount will be determined in respect of the Affected Amount. The aggregate of al
Recoveries minus all Hedge Amounts, which aggregate may be a negative amount, will
be added to the aggregate outstanding nominal amount for the purposes of determining
the final redemption amount of the Securities.

Reference Entity(ies): Floating Rate Payer Calculation Amount(s):
[e] [e]]

[Fixed Recovery CLSs: If the conditions to settlement (which include the occurrence of a
credit event) with respect to a Reference Entity are satisfied, the redemption amount will
be calculated by reference to the Fixed Recovery Percentage relating to such Reference
Entity.

Refer ence Entity(ies): Fixed Recovery Percentage(s):
[e] [e]]
[Bond Linked Securities: The Securities are Bond Linked Securities

The amount payable (if any) as interest on the Securities and the amount payable [and/or
the bonds to be delivered] on redemption of the Securities is dependent upon whether
any bond event(s) in respect of one or more of the bonds has occurred.]
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Bond(s): Bond Principal Amount(s):

[e] [e]]

[Basket BLSs: The conditions relating to interest (if any) payable under the Securities
and the redemption amount apply to each Security with respect to each bond separately
and to such Security's pro rata share of the relevant Bond Principal Amount relating to
such bond.

Bond(s): Bond Principal Amount(s):

[e] [e]]

[Linked Interest Securities: The Securities are Linked I nterest Securities, they will bear
interest on the basis of the Linked Interest Rate which is calculated in accordance with
the below and expressed as a percentage, where, the Underlying Value reflects [the
price, level or rate of [the][the relevant] Underlying (being [®]) (without regard to any
currency of denomination of such price, level or rate, as the case may be) at the relevant
time on [e]] [the [average value][minimum value][maximum value][of the
Underlying][change in value of the Underlying] observed by the Calculation Agent over
[specify relevant dated]].

An interest amount calculated in accordance with an Interest Payoff isaLinked Interest
Amount.

(Replicate formulae, relevant value(s), relevant Linked Interest description and other
related provisions from the terms and conditions of the Securities.)

[] (insert name of standard or combination interest) is applicable for Interest Accrual
Period [e].

[Combination Capitalisation Interest]
[Combination Digital Interest]
[Combination Division Interest]
[Combination Multiplication Interest]
[Combination Ratchet Interest]
[Combination Range Interest]
[Combination Resettable Range Interest]
[Combination Showrange Interest]
[Combination Subtract Interest]

[Combination Maximum Interest]
[Combination Minimum Interest]

[Combination Digital Basket Interest]
[Combination Payoff-Linked Digital Interest]
[Combination Ladder Ratchet Interest]
[Combination Rainbow Performance Interest]
[Standard Fixed Interest]

[Sandard Floating Interest]

[Standard Floater Interest]

[Sandard Inverse Floater Interest]

[Standard Alter native Basket Interest]
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[Sandard Basket Interest]

[Standard Option Basket Interest]

[Standard Maximum-Minimum Interest]
[Standard Participation Interest]

[Standard Lookback Performance Basket Interest]
[Standard Maximum-Minimum Basket I nterest].
[Standard Volbond Interest]

[Sandard Participation Basket Interest]
[Sandard Range Accrual Interest]

[Sandard Resettable Range Accrual Interest].
[Sandard 3D Range Accrual Interest]
[Sandard Fixed Digital Basket Interest]
[Standard Power Interest]

[Sandard Dual Range Accrual Interest]
[Sandard Trend Participation I nterest]
[Standard Trend Participation Basket | nterest]
[Sandard Average Trend Participation Basket Interest]
[Sandard Multi Fixed Digital Interest]
[Sandard Digital to Participation Interest]
[Sandard Knock-out Range Accrual Interest]
[Standard Product Basket Interest]

[Standard Multi Fixed Basket Interest]
[Sandard Fixed Range Accrual Interest]
[Standard ABF Interest]

[Standard Worst of Interest]

[Standard Annualised Performance Interest]
[Sandard Rainbow Performance Interest]]

[Linked Redemption Securities: The Securities are Linked Redemption Securities. [The
amount payable on early redemption following an Early Redemption Trigger will be on
the basis of the Redemption Payoff which is calculated in accordance with [(Name of
type of Redemption)] below and expressed as a percentage.] The amount payable on
redemption on [the redemption date][each date on which instalment payments are made]
will be on the basis of the Redemption Payoff which is calculated in accordance with
[(Name of type of Redemption)] and expressed as a percentage. Where the Underlying
Value reflects the price, level or rate of the relevant Underlying (without regard to any
currency of denomination of such price, level or rate, as the case may be) at the relevant
time and the Redemption Deter mination Date(s) [is][are] [®].

Underlying(s): [e]

(Replicate formulae, relevant value(s), relevant Linked Redemption description and
other related provisions from the terms and conditions of the Securities.)

[e] (insert name of standard or combination interest) is applicable for Redemption
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Determination Date [e].

[Combination Addition Redemption]

[Combination Capitalisation Redemption]
[Combination Digital Redemption]

[Combination Division Redemption]

[Combination Multiplication Redemption]
[Combination Ratchet Redemption]

[Combination Range Redemption]

[Combination Resettable Range Redemption]
[Combination Showrange Redemption]
[Combination Subtract Redemption]

[Combination Maximum Redemption]
[Combination Minimum Redemption]
[Combination Digital Basket Redemption]
[Combination Complex Digital Basket Contingency Redemption]
[Combination Payoff-Linked Digital Redemption]
[Combination Rainbow Performance Redemption]
[Standard Fixed Redemption]

[Sandard Floater Redemption]

[Sandard Inverse Floater Redemption]

[Sandard Alter native Basket Redemption]
[Standard Strangle Redemption]

[Standard Option Basket Redemption]

[Standard Maximum-Minimum Redemption]
[Standard Participation Redemption]

[Sandard Lookback Performance Basket Redemption]
[Sandard Maximum-Minimum Basket Redemption]
[Standard Volbond Redemption]

[Sandard Participation Basket Redemption]
[Sandard Range Accrual Redemption]

[Sandard Resettable Range Accrual Redemption].
[Sandard 3D Range Accrual Redemption]
[Sandard Fixed Digital Basket Redemption].
[Standard Power Redemption]

[Standard Dual Range Accrual Redemption]
[Standard Trend Participation Redemption]
[Standard Trend Participation Basket Redemption]
[Sandard Average Trend Participation Basket Redemption]
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[Standard Multi Fixed Digital Redemption]
[Sandard Digital to Participation Redemption]
[Standard Product Basket Redemption]

[Standard Multi Fixed Basket Redemption]
[Sandard Fixed Range Accrual Redemption]
[Standard ABF Redemption]

[Standard Worst of Redemption]

[Standard Knock-out Range Accrual Redemption)]
[Sandard Rainbow Performance Redemption]]

[(Insert in respect of Credit Linked Securities which may be subject to physical
settlement) The Securities may be settled by physical delivery of [specify applicable
Deliverable Obligations] (Deliverable Obligations) following the occurrence of a
Credit Event. The amount of Deliverable Obligations deliverable on redemption is
subject to adjustment in accordance with the terms and conditions applicable to the
Credit Linked Securities.]

[(Insert in respect of Bond Linked Securities which may be subject to physical settlement)
The Securities may be settled by physical delivery of [specify applicable Bond] (the
Bonds) following the occurrence of certain events, including on the occurrence of a
Bond Event. The amount of Bonds deliverable on redemption is subject to adjustment in
accordance with the terms and conditions applicable to the Bond Linked Securities.]

[(Insert in respect of ETF Linked Securities which may be subject to physical
settlement) The Securities may be settled by physical delivery of [specify applicable ETF
Units] (the ETF Units) following the occurrence of certain events. the amount of ETF
Units deliverable on redemption is subject to adjustment in accordance with the terms
and conditions applicable to the ETF Linked Securities.]

[(Insert in respect of Share Linked Securities which may be subject to physical
settlement) The Securities may be settled by physical delivery of [specify applicable
Shares] (the Shares) following the occurrence of certain events. the amount of Shares
deliverable on redemption is subject to adjustment in accordance with the terms and
conditions applicable to the Share Linked Securities.]

[Additional Disruption Events: [(this may apply to Linked Interest Securities, Linked
Redemption Securities and will apply to Credit Linked Securities, Bond Linked Securities
and Securities to which the Dual Currency (Interest) Payoff Feature, the Dual Currency
(Redemption) Payoff Feature or the Currency Performance Payoff Feature applies)]

Upon the occurrence of an additional disruption event, the Securities may be subject to
adjustment or may be early redeemed at [the Fair Market Value Redemption Amount][or
redeemed on the redemption date at an amount determined by the Calculation Agent
representing the fair market value of each Security taking into account the additional
disruption event less the cost to the Issuer and/or its affiliates of unwinding any
underlying related hedging arrangements (the Calculated Additional Disruption
Amount) plus accrued interest, at a rate determined by the Calculation Agent, from and
including the date the Calculated Additional Disruption Amount is determined by the
Calculation Agent to but excluding the redemption date of the Securities).

The occurrence of a [hedging disruption][,][or][a change of law][or][an increased cost of
hedging] affecting the Issuer[, the Guarantor] and/ or any of [its][their] respective
affiliates [(as the case may be)], as determined by the Calculation Agent or the Issuer (as
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the case may be), will congtitute an additional disruption event.

[Market Disruption Events: [(this only applies to Linked Interest Securities and Linked
Redemption Securities, except for Securities that are linked to Inflation Indices and/or
Benchmark Rates only, and will also applies to and Securities to which the Dual
Currency (Interest) Payoff Feature, the Dual Currency (Redemption) Payoff Feature or
the Currency Performance Payoff Feature applies)]

With respect to [e] (the Underlying), upon the occurrence of [a market disruption event]
[a disrupted day][a market disruption event with respect to one or more components of
the multi-asset basket (this only applies to Multi-Asset Basket Linked Securities], the
relevant observation date relating to [each affected component in the multi-asset basket]
[the Underlying] may be subject to postponement, the relevant payment date for [interest
or] redemption may be subject to postponement, the Securities may be early redeemed or
the Calculation Agent may determine [the fair market value of the relevant [affected
component] [Underlying]] [its good faith estimate of the level of the [index] [or]
[proprietary index] this only appliesto Index Linked Securities)].]

[Other events that have a material effect on the Securities : [(this only appliesto Linked
Interest Securities and Linked Redemption Securities and will also apply to and
Securities to which the Dual Currency (Interest) Payoff Feature, the Dual Currency
(Redemption) Payoff Feature or the Currency Performance Payoff Feature applies)]

If any other event, other than a [disrupted day] [market disruption event] and an
additional disruption event, occurs which the Calculation Agent determines, acting in
good faith, has a material effect on the Securities, the Securities may be subject to
adjustment or may be early redeemed at the Fair Market Value Redemption Amount.

[Early redemption of Leveraged CL Ss. (thisonly appliesto Leveraged CLSs)

[Fair Market Value Trigger: Fair Market Value Trigger is applicable. The Securities may
be redeemed in whole, but not in part, at the option of the Issuer if the Fair Market Value
Redemption Amount of a Security would be, assuming that the Securities would be
redeemed in full on such date at the Fair Market Value Redemption Amount, less than
[e] (being the Fair Market Value Trigger), as determined by the Calculation Agent in
its sole and absol ute discretion.]

[Reference Entity Spread Trigger: Reference Entity Spread Trigger is applicable. The
Securities may be redeemed in whole, but not in part, at the option of the Issuer if the
[Reference Entity Spread (in the case of a Sngle Reference Entity CLS)] [weighted
average Reference Entity Spread in respect of all the relevant Reference Entities (in the
case of an Nth-to-Default CLS or a Linear Basket CLS)] exceeds [®] (being the
Reference Entity Spread Trigger) as determined by the Calculation Agent in its sole
and absolute discretion. The Reference Entity Spread is determined in accordance with
the Terms and Conditions of the Securities and reflects the cost of a credit default swap
on the Reference Entity.

The Reference Entity(ies) [is][are] [@]]

[Reference Entity Trigger: Reference Entity Trigger is applicable. The Securities may be
redeemed in whole, but not in part, at the option of the Issuer if the number of Reference
Entities in respect of which a Credit Event has occurred exceeds [e] (being the
Reference Entity Trigger), as determined by the Calculation Agent in its sole and
absolute discretion.

Credit Event(s) means [bankruptcy] [failure to pay] [obligation acceleration] [obligation
default] [repudiation/moratorium] [restructuring] [governmental intervention]

47




Summary

Section C — Securities

The Reference Entity(ies) [is][are] [o]]
[Early redemption of BL Ss:

Fair Market Value Trigger: Fair Market Value Trigger is applicable. The Securities may
be redeemed in whole, but not in part, at the option of the Issuer if the Fair Market Value
Redemption Amount of a Security would be, assuming that the Securities would be
redeemed in full on such date at the Fair Market Value Redemption Amount, less than
[e] (being the Fair Market Value Trigger), as determined by the Calculation Agent in
its sole and absol ute discretion.]

[Redemption following a Merger Event: [(this only applies to Credit Linked Securities
in relation to which Credit Linked Condition 2.8 (Redemption following a Merger Event)
is specified to apply) and Bond Linked Securities in relation to which Bond Linked
Condition 2.4 (Redemption following a Merger Event) is specified to apply.]

If the Calculation Agent determines that a merger event has occurred, the Securities may
be early redeemed at the Fair Market Value Redemption Amount.

A merger event will occur if the Issuer [or the Guarantor] consolidates or amalgamates
with, or merges into, or transfers all or substantially all of its assets to, a reference entity,
the Issuer [or the Guarantor as applicable,] [or the Guarantor] and a reference entity or
the Issuer and a reference entity become affiliates.

Payoff Features:

[Not Applicable. The Securities are not subject to any features.]

[The Securities have [several features|[a feature] which affect[s] the [way interest is
calculated (an Interest Payoff or Linked Interest)][and the][way amounts payable on
redemption are calculated (a Redemption Payoff)] [and] [when the Securities redeem]
that apply, as set out below:

Payoff Features which may apply to both interest and redemption amounts:

[Additive Payoff Feature: Additive Payoff Feature is applicable as multiple payoff
features apply.]

[Currency Performance Payoff Feature: Currency Performance Payoff Feature is
applicable. The relevant Linked Interest rate or Redemption Payoff, or part thereof, will
be adjusted by multiplying the relevant percentage by an amount equal to 1 (one) minus
the performance of the Reference Currency ([®]) with respect to a Strike Level ([®]).]

Payoff Features which may apply to interest amounts:

[Investor Interest Switch Payoff Feature: Investor Interest Switch Payoff Feature is
applicable. All Securityholders acting together may at their option [(describe frequency)]
during the life of the Securities) [elect][request] to switch the basis on which interest is
calculated from (i) calculation of the Linked Interest rate using Linked Interest; to (ii)
calculation of the Linked Interest rate using Linked Interest, [,subject to acceptance by
the Issuer], by sending a notice on or prior to an Investor Interest Switch Expiry Date.

Linked Interest;: Linked Interest: Investor Interest Switch Expiry Date(s):
[e] [®][as notified in the notice ~ [®]]

sent to the Issuer by the

Securityholders]

[Issuer Interest Switch Payoff Feature: Issuer Interest Switch Payoff Feature is
applicable. The Issuer may at its option (once during the life of the Securities) elect to
switch the basis on which interest is calculated from (i) calculation of the Linked Interest
rate using Linked Interest; to (ii) calculation of the Linked Interest rate using Linked
Interest,, by sending a notice on or prior to an Issuer Interest Switch Expiry Date.
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Linked Interest;: Linked Interest: Issuer Interest Switch Expiry Date(s):
[e] [e] [e]]

[Knock-out Interest Switch Payoff Feature: Knock-out Interest Switch Payoff Feature is
applicable. The basis on which interest is calculated will automatically switch (once only
during the life of the Securities) from (i) calculation of the Linked Interest rate using
Linked Interest; to (ii) calculation of the Linked Interest rate using Linked Interest, if,
[on any Knock-out Interest Switch Observation Date][at any time during the Knock-out
Interest Switch Observation Period], the Underlyingko Vaue is within the Range.

The Underlyingco Value is within the Range if the Underlying Value of the
Underlyingko is [greater than][greater than or equal to][lower than or equa to][lower
than] the Knock-out Lower Limit [and][or][greater than][greater than or equal to][lower
than or equal to][lower than] the Knock-out Upper Limit.

The Underlyingko Value reflects the price, level or rate of the Underlyingko (without
regard to any currency of denomination of such price, level or rate, as the case may be)
at the relevant time.

Under lyingko: Knock-out L ower Knock-out Upper Limit:
Limit:
[e] [e] [e]
Linked Linked Interest,: Knock-out Interest Switch Observation
Interest;: [Date(s)][Period(s)]:
[e] [e] [e]]

[Knock-out Basket Interest Switch Payoff Feature: Knock-out Basket Interest Switch
Payoff Feature is applicable. The basis on which interest is calculated will automatically
switch (once only during the life of the Securities) from (i) calculation of the Linked
Interest rate using Linked Interest; to (ii) calculation of the Linked Interest rate using
Linked Interest, if, [on any Knock-out Basket Interest Switch Observation Date][at any
time during the Knock-out Basket Interest Switch Observation Period], the Basketxo
Value is within the Range.

The Basketyo Value is within the Range if the Underlying Value of the Underlyingko is
[greater than][greater than or equal to][lower than or equal to][lower than] the Knock-out
Basket Lower Limit [and][or][greater than][greater than or equal to][lower than or equal
to][lower than] the Knock-out Basket Upper Limit.

Basketko Value means the sum of the individual products of Leverage and the
Underlying Vaue of each Underlying; observed on the relevant date.

The Underlying Value reflects the price, level or rate of the relevant Underlying
(without regard to any currency of denomination of such price, level or rate, as the case
may be) at the relevant time.

K nock-out Knock-out Linked Linked Knock-out Basket I nterest
Basket L ower Basket Upper Interest;: I nterest,: Switch Observation
Limit: Limit: [Dates(s)] [Period(9)]:

[e] [e] [e] [e] [e]

i Underlying;: Leverage:

1 [o] [e]]

[Target Interest Switch Payoff Feature: Target Interest Switch Payoff Feature is
applicable. The basis on which interest is calculated will automatically switch (once only
during the life of the Securities) from (i) calculation of the Linked Interest rate using
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Linked Interest; to (ii) calculation of the Linked Interest rate using Linked Interest, if a
Target Interest Switch Event occurs. A Target Interest Switch Event occurs if the
payment of the interest amount on an interest payment date results in the aggregate of all
interest amounts (paid in respect of the aggregate outstanding nominal amount of the
Securities in the case of Securities represented by a global Securities or the product of
the Calculation Amount and the Calculation Amount Factor in respect of Securities in
definitive form) paid up to and including the interest payment date is greater than or
equal to the Aggregate Interest Amount Cap.

Linked Interest;: Linked Interest,:  Aggregate Interest Amount Cap:

[e] [e] [e®] per Calculation Amount, which shall be multiplied by (i) the
Global Securities Calculation Amount Factor (in respect of the
Securities represented by a global Securities), or (ii) the
Calculation Amount Factor (in respect of Securitiesin definitive
form).

Calculation Amount: [e]

Global Securities Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the aggregate
outstanding nominal amount of the Securities divided by the Calculation Amount.
Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the specified denomination
divided by the Calculation Amount.]

[Shout Option Performance Lock-in Interest Payoff Feature: Shout Option Performance
Lock-in Interest Payoff Feature is applicable. All Securityholders acting together may
request to fix the Underlying Value of each relevant Underlying (being [e]), for the
purposes of the determination of the Linked Interest rate applicable to the Securities for
the then current interest accrual period at the Shout Option Performance Lock-in Level
by delivering a notice on any date that falls in an interest accrual period provided such
date is [10] Business Days prior to the end of the relevant interest accrual period
(aShout Option Performance L ock-in Expiry Date). The Issuer has the discretion to
decline such request or provide the relevant Shout Option Performance Lock-in Level.
This option may be exercised once only in respect of each interest accrual period.

Each relevant Underlying Value reflects the price, level or rate of the relevant
Underlying (without regard to any currency of denomination of such price, level or rate,
as the case may be) at the relevant time.

Shout Option Performance Lock-in Level means the Underlying Value of each
relevant Underlying calculated in respect of any Shout Option Performance Lock-In
Expiry Date designated as a Shout Option Performance Lock-In Date in the relevant
notice.]

[Chooser Decay Interest Switch Option Payoff Feature: Chooser Decay Interest Switch
Option Payoff Feature is applicable. All Securityholders acting together may elect to
defer the payment and calculation of interest upon delivering a notice (a Deferral
Option Exercise Notice) on or prior to a Deferral Option Exercise Date designating a
deferral option effective date until (i) the Securityholders acting together, elect to receive
payment of interest in respect of specified Interest Determination Dates and
corresponding interest accrual periods upon delivering a notice (a Resumption Option
Exercise Notice) on or prior to a resumption option exercise date designating a
resumption option reference date and specifying Interest Determination Dates in respect
of which all Securityholders elect to receive payment of interest (a Resumption Option
Specified Effective Date) or (ii) the last Interest Determination Date. An Interest
Determination Date can be specified as a Resumption Option Specified Effective Date
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only once.

The Linked Interest rate applicable to the Securities shall be calculated (a) on each
Interest Determination Date up to (but excluding) the first deferral option effective date
and each subsequent Interest Determination Date which has not been designated as a
deferral option effective date, a resumption option reference date or specified as
aResumption Option Specified Effective Date, in accordance with the Linked Interest;
(b) on each deferral option effective date, as equal to O; (c) in respect of each resumption
option reference date, the number, if any, of previous interest accrual periods
corresponding to the Resumption Option Specified Effective Dates specified in the
Resumption Option Exercise Notice for that resumption option reference date and (d) in
respect of the last Interest Determination Date, in accordance with the Linked Interest
multiplied by an amount equal to 1 plus the number of interest accrual periods for which
no interest was paid because the corresponding Interest Determination Dates were
designated as deferral option effective dates and not subseguently designated as a
resumption option reference date or specified as a Resumption Option Specified
Effective Date.

All Securityholders acting together may elect to (i) defer payment and calculation of
interest on any Deferral Option Exercise Date during the life of the Securities and
(i) elect to receive payment of interest on any Resumption Option Exercise Date during
the life of the Securities.

Linked Interest: Deferral Option Exercise Resumption Option Exercise
Date(s): Date(s):
[e] [e] [e]

Interest Determination Date(s): [®]
Interest Accrual Period(s): [e]]

[Memory Option Interest Switch Payoff Feature: Memory Option Interest Switch Payoff
Feature is applicable. The interest amount payable on an interest payment date shall be
equal to, if the interest amount payable in respect of an interest accrual period calculated
in accordance with the Linked Interest and applicable conditions, prior to application of
the Memory Option Interest Switch Payoff Feature is (i) greater than O, then at the
amount payable in respect of the relevant interest accrual period calculated using the
Linked Interest multiplied by 1 plus the number (if any) of previous consecutive interest
accrual periods (@) for which the interest amount was equal to zero and (b) which have
not been taken into account for the calculation of interest amounts paid before such
interest payment date or (ii) less than or equal to O, then O.

Linked Interest: [®]]

[Flexi Option Interest Switch Payoff Feature: Flexi Option Interest Switch Payoff
Feature is applicable. All Securityholders acting together may elect to switch the basis on
which interest is calculated for an interest accrual period from (i) calculation of the
Linked Interest rate using Linked Interest; to (ii) calculation of the Linked Interest rate
using Linked Interest,. The Securityholders may exercise this option [@] times during the
life of the Securities and after this the Linked Interest rate will be automatically switched
to become the Flexi Interest Switch Fixed Rate.

Linked Interest;: Linked Interest: Flexi Interest Switch Fixed Rate:
[e] [e] [e]]

[Pelican Option Interest Switch Payoff Feature: Pelican Option Interest Switch Payoff
Feature is applicable. The interest amount payable on any interest payment date shall be
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subject to a maximum equal to the Cap. The amount (if any) by which that interest
amount (prior to the application of the Cap) for an interest accrual period exceeds the
Cap (the Interest Amount Excess Amount) shall be notionally allocated to the Reserve.
If the amount calculated in respect of an interest accrual period gives rise to an amount
that is less than the Cap (the I nterest Amount Shortfall Amount), then the amount paid
will be topped up by the lesser of (i) the Interest Amount Shortfall Amount and (ii) the
amount notionally credited to the Reserve (the Interest Amount Top Up Amount).

The Reserve means a notional reserve which, at any time, equals the aggregate of
each Interest Amount Excess Amount (if any) less the aggregate of each Interest Amount
Top Up Amount (if any), subject to a minimum of zero (0). The amount notionally
credited to the Reserve shall not accrue or be deemed to accrue any interest. The
Securityholders shall not be entitled to receive any amount notionally credited to the
Reserve after the payment of interest in respect of the final interest accrual period.

Cap: [e] per Calculation Amount, which shall be multiplied by (i) the Global Securities
Calculation Amount Factor (in respect of the Securities represented by a global
Securities), or (ii) the Calculation Amount Factor (in respect of Securities in definitive
form).

Calculation Amount: [e]

Global Securities Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the aggregate
outstanding nominal amount of the Securities divided by the Calculation Amount.
Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the specified denomination
divided by the Calculation Amount.]

[Dual Currency (Interest) Payoff Feature: As Dual Currency (Interest) Payoff Feature is
applicable, interest amounts (if any) will be paid in any one of the Interest Currencies.
The amount paid will be calculated by [dividing][multiplying] the interest amount
denominated in [e] by the relevant Dual Currency (Interest) Exchange Rate on the
relevant Interest Determination Date. [(Insert for Italian Certificates) This Dual
Currency (Interest) Payoff Feature permits investors to invest in the Certificates
denominated in [e] while they can only receive paymentsin [e] (e.g. if they have access
to [e] denominated securities accounts only).]

Interest Currency(ies): Dua Currency (Interest) Exchange Rate:
[e] [e]
Interest Determination Date(s): [®]]

[Credit Event Contingency Interest Snitch Payoff Feature: Credit Event Contingency
Interest Switch Payoff Feature is applicable. If the Calculation Agent determines an
event determination date has occurred with respect to the Reference Entity, interest shall
cease to accrue with effect from (and including) the [interest payment date immediately
preceding such event determination date (or, if such date occurs during the first interest
accrual period, the Interest Commencement Date)][the event determination date]. Credit
Events that may or may not happen in respect of the reference entity may affect if
interest is payable.

Reference Entity: [e]

Credit Event(9): []

Interest Commencement Date: [e]]

[Reset Option Interest Payoff Feature: Reset Option Interest Payoff Feature is applicable.
All Securityholders acting together may, with the consent of the Issuer, elect to switch
the basis on which interest is calculated (up to [e] times during the life of the Securities)
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by sending a notice on or prior to a Reset Notice Date, subject to any further exercise of
the Reset Option Interest Payoff Feature.

Reset Notice Date(s): [o]]

[Sngle Interest Payment Date Payoff Feature: As Single Interest Payment Date Payoff
Feature is applicable, notwithstanding that there are multiple interest payment dates the
sum of all interest amounts (if any) will be paid on [e] (the Single Interest Payment
Date). For the avoidance of doubt, Securityholders will not be entitled to any interest on
any interest amount determined on an interest determination date for the relevant interest
accrual period provided that it is paid on the Single Interest Payment Date.]

[Bond Switch Option Payoff Feature: Bond Switch Option Payoff Featureis applicable.

All Securityholders acting together may request to substitute a Bond by delivering a
notice on any date that falls in an interest accrual period provided such date is [10]
Business Days prior to the end of the relevant interest accrual period (aBond Switch
Option Expiry Date). Following receipt of such request, the Issuer shall provide the
relevant Bond Switch Option Pricing, which reflects the cost or gain of effecting the
switch of Bonds requested by the Securityholders, the difference between the market
value of the replaced Bond and the replacing Bond and the resulting adjusted Linked
Interest Rate applicable to the Securities. The Securityholders have the ability to request
to fix the Bond Switch Option Pricing at a particular level, although this is subject to the
Issuer's discretion to decline such request. The Qualifying Securityholders may exercise
the Bond Switch Option [(specify frequency of the exercise of the Bond Switch Option)].

Payoff Features which may apply to redemption amounts:

[Global Cap Payoff Feature: Global Cap Payoff Feature is applicable. [The amount
payable on final redemption will be reduced by the Globa Cap Amount.] [The amount
payable on each instal ment redemption will be decreased by, on the first Instalment Date,

the Global Cap Amount and on each subsequent Instaiment Date, the Global Cap
Amount minus the aggregate amount deducted on any previous I nstalment Date pursuant
to this Global Cap Payoff Feature, subject to a minimum of zero (0).]

The Global Cap Amount is the greater of (i) 0 and (ii) the Strike Price subtracted from
the sum of all amounts calculated as interest (in respect of the aggregate nominal amount
in the case of Securities represented by a global Securities or the product of the
Calculation Amount and the Calculation Amount Factor in respect of Securities in
definitive form) up to and including the relevant redemption date.

Calculation Amount: [e]

[Instalment Date(s): [o]]

Strike Price: [e] per Calculation Amount, which shall be multiplied by (i) the Global
Securities Calculation Amount Factor (in respect of the Securities represented by a
global Security), or (i) the Calculation Amount Factor (in respect of Securities in
definitive form).

Global Securities Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the aggregate
outstanding nominal amount of the Securities divided by the Cal culation Amount.

Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the specified denomination
divided by the Calculation Amount.]

[Global Floor Payoff Feature: Global Floor Payoff Feature is applicable. The amount
payable on [final redemption][the final Instalment Date] will be increased by the Global
Floor Amount.
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The Global Floor Amount is the greater of (i) 0 and (ii) the sum of all amounts
calculated as interest (in respect of the nominal aggregate amount in the case of
Securities represented by a global Security or the product of the Calculation Amount and
the Calculation Amount Factor in respect of Securities in definitive form) up to and
including the relevant redemption date subtracted from the Strike Price.

[Instalment Date(s): [o]]

Strike Price: [®] per Calculation Amount, which shall be multiplied by (i) the Global
Security Calculation Amount Factor (in respect of the Securities represented by a global
Security), or (ii) the Calculation Amount Factor (in respect of Securities in definitive
form).

Calculation Amount: [e]

Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the specified denomination
divided by the Calculation Amount

Global Security Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the aggregate
outstanding nominal amount of the Securities divided by the Calculation Amount.
Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the specified denomination divided
by the Calculation Amount.]

[Dual Currency (Redemption) Payoff Feature: As Dua Currency (Redemption) Payoff
Feature is applicable, the amount payable on redemption will be payable in any one of
the applicable Redemption Currencies. The amount paid will be calculated by
[dividing][multiplying] the relevant redemption amount denominated in [e] by the
relevant Dual Currency (Redemption) Exchange Rate on the Redemption Determination
Date. [(Insert for Italian Certificates) This Dual Currency (Redemption) Payoff Feature
permits investors to invest in the Certificates denominated in [e] while they can only
receive payments in [e] (e.g. if they have access to [e] denominated securities accounts

only).]

Redemption Dual Currency Redemption
Currenc(y)(ies): (Redemption) Deter mination Date:
Exchange Rate:
[Redemption Date][Instalment [e] [e] [e]
Date]:
[Early Redemption Date:] [e] [e] [e]]

[Investor Redemption Switch Payoff Feature: Investor Redemption Switch Payoff

Feature is applicable. All Securityholders acting together may at their option (once

during the life of the Securities) elect to switch the basis on which the amount payable on

[final redemption][each subsequent instalment redemption] is calculated from (i)

calculation of the Redemption Payoff using Linked Redemption,, to (ii) calculation of

the Redemption Payoff using Linked Redemption,, by sending a notice on or prior to an

Investor Redemption Switch Expiry Date.

Linked Redemption;: Linked Redemption,: Investor Redemption Switch
Expiry Date(s):

[e] [e] [e]]
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[Issuer Redemption Switch Payoff Feature: Issuer Redemption Switch Payoff Feature is
applicable. The Issuer may at its option (once during the life of the Securities) elect to
switch the basis on which the amount payable on [final redemption][each subsequent
instalment redemption] is calculated from (i) calculation of the Redemption Payoff using
Linked Redemption; to (ii) calculation of the Redemption Payoff using Linked
Redemption,, by sending a notice on or prior to an Issuer Redemption Switch Expiry
Date.

Linked Redemption;: Linked Redemption,: Issuer Redemption Switch Expiry
Date(s):
[e] [e] [e]]

[Knock-out Redemption Switch Payoff Feature: Knock-out Redemption Switch Payoff
Feature is applicable. The basis on which the amount payable on [final redemption][each
subsequent instalment redemption] is calculated will automatically switch (once only
during the life of the Securities) from (i) calculation of the Redemption Payoff using
Linked Redemption; to (ii) calculation of the Redemption Payoff using Linked
Redemption, if, [on any Knock-out Redemption Switch Observation Date][at any time
during the Knock-out Redemption Switch Observation Period] the Underlyingko Valueis
within the Range.

The Range is where the Underlyingxo Value is [greater than][greater than or equal
to][lower than or equal to][lower than] the Knock-out Lower Limit [and][or][greater
than][greater than or equal to][lower than or equal to][lower than] the Knock-out Upper
Limit.

The Underlyinggo Value reflects the price, level or rate of the Underlyinggo (without
regard to any currency of denomination of such price, level or rate, as the case may be)
at the relevant time.

Under lyingko: Knock-out L ower Limit: Knock-out Upper Limit:
[e] [e] [e]
Linked Redemption;: Linked Redemption,: K nock-out Redemption Switch

Observation [Date(s)][Period(s)]:
[e] [e] [e]]

[Knock-out Basket Redemption Switch Payoff Feature: Knock-out Redemption Switch
Payoff Feature is applicable. The basis on which the amount payable on [final
redemption][each subsequent instalment redemption] is calculated will automatically
switch (once only during the life of the Securities) from (i) calculation of the
Redemption Payoff using Linked Redemption; to (ii) calculation of the Redemption
Payoff using Linked Redemption, if, [on any Knock-out Basket Redemption Switch
Observation Date][at any time during the Knock-out Basket Redemption Switch
Observation Period] the Baskety o Value is within the Range.

The Basketyo Value is within the Range if the Underlying Value of the Underlyingko is
[greater than][greater than or equal to][lower than or equal to][lower than] the Knock-out
Basket Lower Limit [and][or][greater than][greater than or equal to][lower than or equal
to][lower than] the Knock-out Basket Upper Limit.

Basketko Value means the sum of the individual products of Leverage and the
Underlying Vaue of each Underlying; observed on the relevant date.

The Underlying Value reflects the price, level or rate of the relevant Underlying
(without regard to any currency of denomination of such price, level or rate, as the case
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may be) at the relevant time.

K nock-out K nock-out Linked Linked Knock-out Basket Redemption
Basket Lower  Basket Upper Redemption;: Redemption,  Switch Observation [Date(s)]
Limit: Limit: : [Period(s)]:

[e] [e] [e] [e] [e]

i Underlying;: Leverage:

[e] [e] [e]]

[Shout Option Performance Lock-in Redemption Payoff Feature: Shout Option
Performance Lock-in Redemption Payoff Feature is applicable. All Securityholders
acting together may request to fix the Underlying Value of each relevant Underlying, for
the purposes of the determination of the Redemption Payoff applicable to the Securities
in respect of the amount payable on [final redemption][the relevant instalment
redemption] for the then immediately following Redemption Determination Date at the
Shout Option Performance Lock-in Level by delivering a notice on or before any date
that is not less than [10] Business Days prior to the relevant Redemption Determination
Date (Shout Option Performance Lock-in Expiry Date). The Issuer has the discretion
to decline such request or provide the relevant Shout Option Performance Lock-in Level.
This option may be exercised once only in respect of each Redemption Determination
Date in respect of the amount payable on [final redemption][the relevant instalment
redemption].

Each relevant Underlying Value reflects the price, level or rate of the relevant
Underlying (without regard to any currency of denomination of such price, level or rate,
as the case may be) at the relevant time.

Shout Option Performance Lock-in Level means the Underlying Vaue of each
relevant Underlying calculated in respect of any business day designated in the relevant
notice which shall be on or prior to the Shout Option Performance Lock-in Expiry Date.

Redemption Deter mination Date(s): [e]
Underlying: [e]]

[Reset Option Redemption Payoff Feature: Reset Option Redemption Payoff Feature is
applicable. All Securityholders acting together may, with the consent of the Issuer, elect
to switch the basis on which the amount payable on [final redemption][each subsequent
instalment redemption] is calculated (up to [e] times during the life of the Securities) by
sending a notice on or prior to a Reset Notice Date, subject to any further exercise of the
Reset Option Redemption Payoff Feature.

Reset Notice Date(s): [o]]

Options:

[Not Applicable. There are no Securityholder options in respect of the Securities.][The
Securityholder has [a&/an][Investor Put Early Redemption Trigger][Investor Interest
Switch Payoff Feature][Investor Redemption Switch Payoff Feature][Shout Option
Performance Lock-in Interest Payoff Feature][Shout Option Performance Lock-in
Redemption Payoff Feature][Chooser Decay Interest Switch Option Payoff
Feature][Flexi Option Interest Switch Payoff Feature][Reset Option Interest Payoff
Feature][Reset Option Redemption Payoff Feature][([each] as set out in more detail
below).]
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[Not Applicable. There are no Issuer options in respect of the Securities.][ The I ssuer has
[an Issuer Interest Switch Payoff Feature][an Issuer Redemption Switch Payoff Feature]
[Issuer Call Early Redemption Trigger][([each] as set out in more detail below).]]

Early Redemption Triggers:

The Securities [may] [may not] be redeemed prior to their stated maturity upon the
occurrence of certain events and/or at the option of the Issuer or Securityholders, each an
Early Redemption Trigger [as set out below:]

[Issuer Call Early Redemption Trigger: Issuer Call Early Redemption Trigger is
applicable. The Issuer may (at its option) give notice to redeem all or some of the
Securities at the amount determined in accordance with the relevant Redemption Method
(as defined below) (the Early Redemption Amount) with accrued interest, if any, on the
relevant Early Redemption Date (being [e]).]

[Investor Put Early Redemption Trigger: Investor Put Early Redemption Trigger is
applicable. Upon expiry of an investor put notice the Issuer will redeem in whole the
Securities at the amount determined in accordance with the relevant Redemption Method
(as defined below) (the Early Redemption Amount) with accrued interest, if any, on the
relevant Early Redemption Date (being [e]).]

[Knock-out Early Redemption Trigger: Knock-out Early Redemption Trigger is
applicable. If on [any Knock-out Observation Date] [at any time during the Knock-out
Observation Period], a Knock-out Trigger occurs, the Issuer will redeem al of the
Securities at the amount determined in accordance with the relevant Redemption Method
(as defined below) (the Early Redemption Amount) with accrued interest, if any, on the
Early Redemption Date (being [e]).

A Knock-out Early Redemption Trigger occurs if the Underlying Value of the
Underlying, is[greater than][greater than or equal to][lower than or equal to][lower than]
the Lower Limit [and][or][greater than][greater than or equal to][lower than or equal
to][lower than] the Upper Limit.

Underlying Valueisthe price, level or rate of the relevant Underlying (without regard to
any currency of denomination of such price, level or rate, as the case may be) at the
relevant time.

Underlying: Knock-out Upper Limit: Lower Limit:
Observation
[Date][Period]:
[e] [e] [e] [e]]
[Callable Knock-out Early Redemption Trigger: Callable Knock-out Early Redemption
Trigger is applicable. If, on a Callable Knock-out Observation Date, a Callable Knock-
out Trigger occurs, the Issuer may (at its option) give notice to redeem al of the
Securities at the amount determined in accordance with the relevant Redemption Method
(as defined below) (the Early Redemption Amount) with accrued interest, if any, on the
corresponding Early Redemption Date (being [e]).
A Callable Knock-out Trigger occurs if the Underlying Value of the Underlying; is
[greater than][greater than or equal to][lower than or equal to][lower than] the Lower
Limit [and][or][greater than][greater than or equa to][lower than or equal to][lower
than] the Upper Limit.

Underlying Valueisthe price, level or rate of the relevant Underlying (without regard to
any currency of denomination of such price, level or rate, as the case may be) at the
relevant time.
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Underlying;: Callable Knock- Upper Limit: Lower Limit:
out Observation
Date(s):

[e] [e] [e] [e]]

[Puttable Knock-out Early Redemption Trigger: Puttable Knock-out Early Redemption
Trigger is applicable. If, on a Puttable Knock-out Observation Date, a Puttable Knock-
out Trigger occurs, a Securityholder may (at its option) give notice to the Issuer to
redeem in whole the relevant Securities at the amount determined in accordance with the
relevant Redemption Method (as defined below) (the Early Redemption Amount) with
accrued interest, if any, on the corresponding Early Redemption Date (being [e]) in
which case the Issuer will so redeem the Securities.

A Puttable Knock-out Trigger occurs if the Underlying Value of the Underlying;, is
[greater than][greater than or equal to][lower than or equal to][lower than] the Lower
Limit [and][or][greater than][greater than or equa to][lower than or equal to][lower
than] the Upper Limit.

The Underlying Value reflects the price, level or rate of the Underlying, (without regard
to any currency of denomination of such price, level or rate, as the case may be) at the
relevant time.

Underlying;: Puttable Knock- Lower Limit: Upper Limit:
out Observation
Date:
[e] [e] [e] [e]]
[Target Early Redemption Trigger: Target Early Redemption Trigger is applicable. If on
any Target Redemption Observation Date, the aggregate amount of interest paid on all
previous interest payment dates since the Issue Date is greater than or equal to the Target
Level (being a Target Early Redemption Trigger Event), the Issuer will redeem al of
the Securities at the amount determined in accordance with the relevant Redemption
Method (as defined below) (the Early Redemption Amount) on the corresponding
Early Redemption Date (being [e]).
Target Redemption Observation Date:  Target Level:

[e] [e] per Calculation Amount, which shall
be multiplied by (i) the Global Securities
Calculation Amount Factor (in respect of
the Securities represented by a global
Securities), or (ii) the Calculation Amount
Factor (in respect of Securities in
definitive form).]

Calculation Amount: [e]

Global Securities Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the aggregate
outstanding nominal amount of the Securities divided by the Calculation Amount.
Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the specified denomination
divided by the Calculation Amount.]

[Knock-out Multi Underlying Early Redemption Trigger: Knock-out Multi Underlying
Early Redemption Trigger is applicable. If on a Knock-out Observation Date, a Knock-
out Multi Underlying Trigger occurs, the Issuer will redeem all of the Securities at the
amount determined in accordance with the relevant Redemption Method (as defined
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below) (the Early Redemption Amount) with accrued interest, if any, on the Early
Redemption Date (being [e]).

A Knock-out Multi Underlying Trigger occurs if the Basket Value is [greater
than][greater than or equa to][lower than or equal to][lower than] the Lower Limit
[and][or][greater than][greater than or equal to][lower than or equal to][lower than] the
Upper Limit.

Basket Value on the relevant day is the sum of the individua results of Leverage
multiplied by the Underlying Value of each Underlying; observed on the relevant day.
Underlying Valueisthe price, level or rate of the relevant Underlying (without regard to
any currency of denomination of such price, level or rate, as the case may be) at the
relevant time.

Knock-out Lower Limit. Upper Limit.
Observation

Date(s):

[e] [e] [e]

I Underlying;. Leverage:

[e] [e] [e]]

Redemption Method:

[Unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled, each Securities will be [finally
redeemed by the Issuer, in cash, at its Final Redemption Amount on [e] (the
Redemption Date)](Delete in the case of Instalment Securities)][redeemed in
instalments (each, an Instalment Redemption Amount) on the following dates: [specify
instalment dates] (each, an Instalment Date). The Instalment Amount in respect of

each Instalment Date is [®].].][The aggregate outstanding nominal amount in respect of
the Securities is [@]][The aggregate amount of each Instalment Redemption Amount is
[e] (Insert in respect of Instalment Securities)] [The [Instalment Amount][Final
Redemption Amount] will be calculated in accordance with the [Standard
Redemption][Performance Redemption][Growth Redemption] method for determining
the amount due in respect of redemption of the Securities (the Redemption
Method).[The aggregate outstanding nominal amount in respect of early redeemed
Securities [(the Early Redemption Amount)] will be calculated in accordance with the
[Standard Redemption][Performance Redemption][ Growth Redemption] method.]

[Redemption Unwind Costs will be [[(@)][(notwithstanding that Redemption Unwind
Costs is applicable)], (i) where the [Fina Redemption Amount][Instalment Redemption
Amount] is determined after the basis on which redemption is calculated has been
switched in accordance with [(Delete if no Payoff Features are applicable in respect of
the Securities) the applicable [Interest Payoff[s]] [and] [Redemption Payoff[s]], an
amount, equal to such Securities pro rata portion of the value (determined in the
currency in which the Securities are denominated) of any losses, expenses and costs to
the Issuer and/or any of its affiliates who may have hedged the price risk of the
Securities and any loss of tax relief or other tax consequences of unwinding or adjusting
any underlying or related swap agreement or other hedging arrangements, al as
calculated by the Calculation Agent in its sole discretion or (ii) where the basis on which
redemption is calculated has not been switched in accordance with [(Delete if no Payoff
Features are applicable in respect of the Securities) the applicable [Interest Payoff[d]]
[and] [Redemption Payoff[s]], [zero (0)][,][(b)][notwithstanding (a)][(i)] [in the case of
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an Early Redemption Amount, an amount, equal to such Securities' pro rata portion of
the value (determined in the currency in which the Securities are denominated) of any
losses, expenses and costs to the Issuer and/or any of its affiliates who may have hedged
the price risk of the Securities and any loss of tax relief or other tax consequences of
unwinding or adjusting any underlying or related swap agreement or other hedging
arrangements, as calculated by the Calculation Agent in its sole discretion] [or][(ii)] in
the case of [a Fina Redemption Amount][an Instaiment Redemption Amount], zero
(0)][zero (0)] ]

[Standard Redemption means the Redemption Method corresponding to the [Early
Redemption Amount][Instal ment Redemption Amount][Final Redemption Amount]. The
[Early Redemption Amount][Instalment Redemption Amount][Final Redemption
Amount] applicable to the Securities is calculated as (i) the Redemption Unwind Costs
subtracted from (ii) the Reference Price multiplied by the Nominal Amount.

Nominal Amount means [e].

Reference Price means [e].]

[Performance Redemption means the Redemption Method corresponding to the [Early
Redemption Amount][Instal ment Redemption Amount][Final Redemption Amount]. The
[Early Redemption Amount] [Instaiment Redemption Amount] [Final Redemption
Amount] applicable to the Securities is calculated as (i) the Redemption Unwind Costs
subtracted from (ii) the result of the Reference Price added to the Redemption Payoff
calculated using [ Standard][ Combination] Redemption Payoff multiplied by the Nominal
Amount.

Nominal Amount means [e].

Reference Price means [e].

[Standar d][Combination] Redemption Payoff means [e].]

[Growth Redemption means the Redemption Method corresponding to the [Early
Redemption Amount][Instalment Redemption Amount][Final Redemption Amount] is
Growth Redemption. The [Early Redemption Amount][Instaiment Redemption
Amount][Fina Redemption Amount] applicable to the Securities is calculated as (i) the
Redemption Unwind Costs subtracted from (i) the result of the Reference Price
multiplied by the Redemption Payoff calculated using [Standard][Combination]
Redemption Payoff multiplied by the Nominal Amount.

Nominal Amount means [e].

Reference Price means [e].

[Standard][Combination] Redemption Payoff means [e].] (Delete in the case of
Instalment Securities)

[Instalment Securities:

The Securities will be redeemed in the Instaiment Redemption Amounts on each
Instalment Date. Each Instalment Redemption Amount will be calculated by reference to
the relevant Instalment Amount.]

C.16

The expiration
or maturity
date of
derivative
Securities—the
exer cise date or
final reference

(Delete this Element C.16 if the Securities are debt securities for the purposes of the
Prospectus Directive i.e. the redemption amount of the Securities is at least equal to par
and is not linked to an underlying asset)

[Subject to compliance with all relevant laws, regulations and directives, [the final
redemption date of the Securities is [®]][the final instalment date of the Securities is [®]].
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date.

c.17

Settlement
procedure

(Delete this Element C.17 if the Securities are debt securities for the purposes of the
Prospectus Directive i.e. the redemption amount of the Securities is at least equal to par
and is not linked to an underlying asset)

[The Securities will be cash settled on [e].] [Securities will be delivered on [e] [against
payment of the issue price of the Securities][free of payment of the issue price of the
Securities)].]

[The Securities are cleared through [Euroclear][Clearstream, Luxembourg][Depository
Trust Company][the Swedish central securities depository (in Swedish: central
vardepappersforvarare)]][the relevant Norwegian central securities depository (in
Norwegian: verdipapirregister)][the Finnish central securities depository][Monte Titoli
S.p.Al][other] and settlement will be in accordance with the procedures and local
practices relevant to such clearing system.]

Cc.18

Procedure on
return on
Securities

(Delete this Element C.18 if the Securities are debt securities for the purposes of the
Prospectus Directive i.e. the redemption amount of the Securitiesis at least equal to par
and is not linked to an underlying asset)

[The value of an underlying will affect [whether the Securities redeem early] [and,] [the
amount paid [or the [Deliverable Obligations][Bonds] delivered] on the redemption] as
set out in more detail in Element C.8 and C.15.]

C.19

Final reference
price of
underlying
asset

(Delete this Element C.19 if the Securities are debt securities for the purposes of the
Prospectus Directive i.e. the redemption amount of the Securitiesis at least equal to par
and is not linked to an underlying asset)

[Thefinal value of the underlying[s] is calculated by looking at [the price, level or rate of
[the][each] underlying (without regard to any currency of denomination of such price,
level or rate, as the case may be) at the relevant time on [the Redemption Determination
Date (being [e])], as calculated by the Calculation Agent.]][the [average
value][minimum value][maximum value][of the Underlying][change in value of the
Underlying] observed by the Calculation Agent over [specify relevant dates].]

C.20

Type of
underlying
asset

(Delete this Element C.20 if the Securities are debt securities for the purposes of the
Prospectus Directive i.e. the redemption amount of the Securities is at least equal to par
and is not linked to an underlying asset)

[The Securities are Credit Linked Securities: [(repeat the information below with respect
to each reference entity)]
reference entity: [@]

credit event(s): [bankruptcy] [failure to pay] [obligation accel eration] [obligation default]
[repudiation/moratorium] [restructuring] [governmental intervention]

obligations: [each obligation of [reference entity] described by the following
obligation category[y][ies]: [payment][borrowed money][reference obligations
only][bond][loan][bond or loan] and having the following obligation characteristics: [not
subordinated][specified currency][not sovereign lender][not domestic currency][not
domestic law][listed][not domestic issuance][, but excluding the following excluded
obligation[s]: [e]].

reference obligation[s]: [e]]
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[The Securities are Bond Linked Securities: [(repeat the information below with respect
to each bond)]

bond issuer: [®]

bond: [e]

cusip/isin: [@]

bond event(s): [failure to pay] [repudiation/moratorium] [restructuring] [writedown)]
[The Underlying is [an index][a proprietary index][an inflation index][a commodity][a
benchmark rate][an FX rate][an exchange traded fund][a share]. [Information relating to
it can be found at [e].]]

[There are multiple Underlyings, [they are [a combination of][all] [index/proprietary
index/inflation index/commodity/benchmark rate/ FX rate/exchange traded fund/share],
as set out below:

Underlyingy: Underlyinge: Underlyinge: Underlyinge:
[e] [e] [e] [e]]
[Information relating to each can be found, as set out below:

Underlyingy: Underlyinge: Underlyinge: Underlyinge:

[o] [o] [o] (o]

Section D — Risks

D.2

Key risk
factorsrelating
tothelssuers

The following key risk factors relating to the [Crédit Agricole CIB][Crédit Agricole CIB
FG][Crédit Agricole CIB FS] as | ssuer, its activities, the market in which it operates, and
its structure may affect the capacity of the Issuer to fulfil its obligations under the
Securities issued under the Programme:

- Creditworthiness of the I ssuer [and the Guarantor]

The Securities congtitute general and unsecured contractual obligations of the Issuer and
of no other person [and the Guarantee constitutes general and unsecured contractual
obligations of the Guarantor and of no other person], which will rank equally with all
other unsecured contractual obligations of the Issuer [and the Guarantor, respectively,]
and behind preferred liabilities, including those mandatorily preferred by law.
Securityholders rely upon the creditworthiness of the relevant Issuer [and, as the case
may be, the Guarantor] and no other person.

- Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty will be unable or unwilling to meet
a commitment that it has entered into with [Crédit Agricole CIB][Crédit Agricole CIB
FG][Crédit Agricole CIB FS].

- Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that [Crédit Agricole CIB][Crédit Agricole CIB FG][Crédit
Agricole CIB FS] will encounter difficulty in realising assets or otherwise raising funds
to meet commitments.

- Interest rate risk

Exposure to interest rate risk is the risk that arises when there is an imbalance between
rate and non-rate sensitive assets, liabilities and off balance sheet items.

- Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
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because of changesin foreign exchange rates. [Crédit Agricole CIB][Crédit Agricole CIB
FG][Crédit Agricole CIB FS] foreign exchange exposure arises from issuing debt in
currencies other than Euro.

D.3

Key risk
factorsrelating
tothe
Securities

(Delete this Element D.3 if the Securities are derivatives securities for the purposes of
the Prospectus Directive i.e. the redemption amount of the Securities may be lower than
par and/or islinked to an underlying asset)

[The Securities involve a high degree of risk. Investors should be experienced with
respect to options and option transactions, should understand the risks of transactions
involving the Securities and should reach an investment decision only after careful
consideration, with their advisers, of the suitability of such Securities in light of their
particular financial circumstances.]

[Insert where the Securities may be redeemed prior to their scheduled redemption date:
Early redemption

Certain events or circumstances may lead to the Securities being redeemed prior to their
scheduled redemption date [including following an election by [the Issuer] [or] [the
Securityholders]. In such circumstances, Securityholders may not be able to reinvest the
redemption proceeds so as to receive the return they might receive on the Securities.]
[Insert in the case of Fixed Rate Securities:

Changes to market interest rates

Changes in market interest rates may adversely affect the value of the Fixed Rate
Securities.

[Insert in the case of Floating Rate Securities:

Varying interest

Interest income on Floating Rate Securities cannot be anticipated. Due to varying interest
income, investors are not able to determine a definite yield on the Floating Rate
Securities at the time they purchase them.]

[Insert where the Securities are Zero Coupon Securities:

Futureyield and trading price

The yield associated with Zero Coupon Securities will differ according to the price at
which the Securities are purchased. The prices at which Zero Coupon Securities trade in
the secondary market tend to fluctuate more in relation to general changes in interest
rates than do prices for conventional interest-bearing securities. During the lifetime of
the Securities, the market value of these Securities may be lower than the invested
capital ]

[Insert where the Securities are not Secured Securities:

Ranking of the Securities

The Securities [and the Guarantee each] constitute general, unsecured, contractual
obligations of the Issuer [and, as the case may be, the Guarantor] and of no other person.
Any person who purchases such Securities is relying upon the creditworthiness of the
Issuer [and the Guarantor] and has no rights under the Conditions against any other
person.]

[Insertin all cases:

Conflicts of interest

Certain potential conflicts of interest exist or may arise between Securityholders and
certain other parties, which have the potential to adversely affect Securityholders.
Compounding of risks

Various risks relating to the Securities may be correlated or compounded and such
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correlation and/or compounding may result in increased volatility in the value of the
Securities and/or in increased losses for Securityholders.

Legal and tax risks

Certain risks arise as aresult of applicable law (including applicable tax law) which have
the potential to adversely affect Securityholders.

Trading Securitiesin the secondary market

Securities may have no established trading market when issued, and one may never
develop. If a market does develop, it may not be very liquid. Therefore, investors may
not be able to sell their Securities easily or at prices that will provide them with their
anticipated yield or a yield comparable to similar investments that have a developed
secondary market.

Credit ratings

Credit rating agencies may assign credit ratings to the Securities. The ratings may not
reflect the potential impact of all the risks and other factors that may affect the value of
the Securities. A reduction in the rating, if any, accorded to the Securities, or of the
outstanding debt securities of the Issuer [or the Guarantor] could result in a reduction in
the trading value of the Securities.]

[Insert in all cases except for Securities which are subject to the Dual Currency (Interest)
Pay-off Feature :

Paymentsin a specified currency

The Issuer will pay amounts due on redemption [and interest] on the Securities [and the
Guarantor will make any payments under the Guaranteg] in the Specified Currency. This
presents certain risks relating to currency conversions if an investor’s financial activities
are denominated principally in a different currency.]

[Insert for Securities which are subject to the Dual Currency (Interest) Pay-off Feature:
Paymentsin the Interest Currenc|y][ieg]

The nominal amount of the Securities is denominated in [(Insert Specified Currency)].
Investors who calculate their investment performance in [(Insert Interest Currency(ies))]
are exposed to the risk of unfavourable change in the [(Insert relevant exchange rate)]
exchange rate (due to inter alia the devaluation of the [(Insert Specified Currency)]) and
to the risk that authorities with jurisdiction over [(Insert Interest Currency(ies))] may
impose exchange controls. Therefore they may receive an Interest Amount in [(Insert
Interest Currency(ies))] which islower than an Interest Amount calculated on the basis of
anomina amount denominated in [(Insert Specified Currency)] at the Issue Date.]

[Insert where the Securities are Secured Securities:

Security

The security created in respect of the Securities is primarily a security interest over the
Collateral Account in which the Collateral Assets are held. It will not necessarily be the
case that the Collateral Assets will be sufficient to satisfy the claims of a Securityholder
in respect of the Securities following the occurrence of a Secured Security Event of
Default and in such circumstances, investors may lose all or a substantial portion of their
investment. Similarly, certain events or circumstances, such as an insolvency in respect
of any of the relevant parties, may lead to a delay in realisation of the Collateral Assets
and payment [or delivery] of any related amounts to investors.]

D.6

Risk warning

that investors

may lose value
of entire

(Delete this Element D.6 if the Securities are debt securities for the purposes of the
Prospectus Directive i.e. the redemption amount of the Securities is at least equal to par
and is not linked to an underlying asset)
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investment and
key risk factors
relating to the
Securities

[The Securities involve a high degree of risk. [Investors should recognise that their

Securities may mature worthless and should be prepared to sustain a total loss of the

purchase price of their Securities] [Delete if Securities have a minimum redemption

value] This risk reflects the nature of a Security as an asset which, other factors held
constant, tends to decline in value over time and which may become worthless when it
matures [(except to the extent of any minimum redemption value)][Include if Securities
have a minimum redemption value]. Investors should be experienced with respect to
options and option transactions, should understand the risks of transactions involving the

Securities and should reach an investment decision only after careful consideration, with

their advisers, of the suitability of such Securities in light of their particular financial

circumstances.]

[Insert where the Securities may be redeemed prior to their scheduled redemption date:

Early redemption

Certain events or circumstances may lead to the Securities being redeemed prior to their

scheduled redemption date [including following an election by [the Issuer] [or] [the

Securityholders]. In such circumstances, Securityholders may not be able to reinvest the

redemption proceeds so as to receive the return they might receive on the Securities.]

[Insert in the case of all Securities:

Potential losses arising on redemption

Investors should be aware that the [Early Redemption Amount][,][Instalment

Redemption Amount] [or] [Final Redemption Amount] may be less than the nominal

amount of the Securities. [ The Redemption Method applicable to the [Final Redemption

Amount][Instalment Redemption Amount] may be different to the Redemption Method

applicable to the Early Redemption Amount.]]

[Insert in respect of Securities where payments are linked to the performance of an

Underlying:

Payments linked to an underlying asset

The[Linked Interest Amounts] [and] [Redemption Payoff] in respect of the Securities are

linked to the value of the Underlying. Investors should therefore appreciate that they are

taking a view on the value of the Underlying asit is used for the purposes of determining
the [Linked Interest Amounts] [and] [Redemption Payoff].]

[Insert in respect of Securities where payments are linked to the performance of a basket

of Underlyings:

Payments linked to a basket of underlying assets

The Securities are linked to a basket of Underlyings and as such investors should

appreciate that they are taking a view on the value of multiple Underlyings as they are

used for the purposes of determining the [Linked Interest Amounts] [and] [Redemption

Payoff].

The value of the basket will be affected by various factors and its value as a whole may

be negative even if the performance of certain Underlyingsis positive.

[Insert in respect of Securities where payments are linked to the performance of an

Underlying or multiple Underlyings:

Investors should be aware that:

() the market price of the Securities may be volatile;

(i) movements in the Underlying(s) may adversely affect the amount of [nominal]
[and interest] to be paid on the Securities and may also affect the market value of
the Securities;

(iii)  [they may receive no interest;]
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(iv)  payment of nominal [or interest] may occur at a different time or in a different
currency than expected;

(v) the amount of nominal to be repaid may be less than the stated nominal amount
of the Securities or may even be zero;

(vi)  [the][an] Underlying may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not
correlate with changesin interest rates, currencies or other indices;

(vii) if [the][an] Underlying is applied to Securities in conjunction with a multiplier
greater than one or contains some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in
the Underlying[sjon nominal [or interest] payable likely will be magnified; and

(viii) the timing of changes in [the][an] Underlying may affect the actual yield to
investors, even if the average level is consistent with their expectations. In
general, the earlier the change in [the][an] Underlying, the greater the effect on
yield.]

[Insert in respect of Securities where payments are subject to a multiplier, leverage or
similar feature or to a cap or afloor:
Structured payments
The Securities are structured such that the amount[s] payable in respect of [interest]
[and] [nominal] [is][are] subject to the application of [multipliers or leverage or other
similar factors, or a combination of those features or other similar related features] [and
to a[cap] [and] [floor]]. The market value of the Securities may therefore be even more
volatile than those for securities that do not include those features.
[Small changes in the value of the Underlying may have disproportionate consequences
on the [Interest Amounts] [and] [Redemption Payoff] paid in respect of the Securities.]
[The effect of a[cap] [or] [floor][, or a combination thereof,] may mean that the investor
will not fully participate in any positive performance of the Underlying(s) and any
payments in respect of the Securities will be lower than they would have been without a
[cap,] [floor] [or combination thereof,] [as the case may be] .]
[Insertin all cases:
Amounts payable determined by reference to a formula
Amounts payable in respect of the Securities are determined by reference to formulae, as
described in the Elements above. The Securities therefore entail significant risks not
associated with similar investments in a conventional debt security. Investors should
fully understand the basis on which payments in respect of the Securities will be
determined in accordance with the applicable Conditions and should appreciate that
neither the current nor the historical value of the Underlying[s] should be taken as an
indication of future performance of Underlying[s].]

[Insert where the Securities are subject to interest switch provisions:

Interest rate switch

The Securities are subject to provisions, which provide for a change of the interest rate

upon certain events. Such features may negatively affect the value of the Securities or

result in aless favourable interest rate.]

[Insert in the case of Fixed Rate Securities:

Changes to market interest rates

Changes in market interest rates may adversely affect the value of the Fixed Rate

Securities.

[Insert in the case of Floating Rate Securities:

Varying interest

Interest income on Floating Rate Securities cannot be anticipated. Due to varying interest
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income, investors are not able to determine a definite yield on the Floating Rate
Securities at the time they purchase them.]

[Insert where the Securities are Fixed Rate Securities or Zero Coupon Securities:
Futureyield

The yield associated with [Fixed Rate Securities|[Zero Coupon Securities] will differ
according to the price at which the Securities are purchased.]

[Insert where the Securities are Zero Coupon Securities:

Trading price of Zero Coupon Securities

The prices a which Zero Coupon Securities trade in the secondary market tend to
fluctuate more in relation to general changes in interest rates than do prices for
conventional interest-bearing securities. During the lifetime of the Securities, the market
value of these Securities may be lower than the invested capital.]

[Insert where the Securities are not Secured Securities:

Ranking of the Securities

The Securities [and the Guarantee each] constitute general, unsecured, contractual
obligations of the Issuer [and, as the case may be, the Guarantor] and of no other person.
Any person who purchases such Securities is relying upon the creditworthiness of the
Issuer [and the Guarantor] and has no rights under the Conditions against any other
person.]

[Insertin all cases:

Conflicts of interest

Certain potential conflicts of interest exist or may arise between Securityholders and
certain other parties, which have the potential to adversely affect Securityholders.
Compounding of risks

Various risks relating to the Securities may be correlated or compounded and such
correlation and/or compounding may result in increased volatility in the value of the
Securities and/or in increased losses for Securityholders.

Legal and tax risks

Certain risks arise as a result of applicable law (including applicable tax law) which have
the potential to adversely affect Securityholders.

Trading Securitiesin the secondary market

Securities may have no established trading market when issued, and one may never
develop.

If a market does develop, it may not be very liquid. Therefore, investors may not be able
to sell their Securities easily or at prices that will provide them with their anticipated
yield or a yield comparable to similar investments that have a developed secondary
market.

Credit ratings

Credit rating agencies may assign credit ratings to the Securities. The ratings may not
reflect the potential impact of all the risks and other factors that may affect the value of
the Securities. A reduction in the rating, if any, accorded to the Securities, or of the
outstanding debt securities of the Issuer [or the Guarantor] could result in areduction in
the trading value of the Securities.]

[Insertin all cases except for Securities which are subject to the Dual Currency (Interest)
Pay-off Feature and/or Dual Currency (Redemption) Pay-off Feature:

Paymentsin a specified currency
The Issuer will pay nominal [and interest] on the Securities [and the Guarantor will make
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any payments under the Guarantee] in the Specified Currency. This presents certain risks
relating to currency conversions if an investor’s financial activities are denominated
principally in adifferent currency.]

[Insert for Securities which are subject to the Dual Currency (Interest) Pay-off Feature:
Paymentsin the Interest Currenc|y][ieg]

The nominal amount of the Securities is denominated in [(Insert Specified Currency)].
Investors who calculate their investment performance in [(Insert Interest Currency(ies))]
are exposed to the risk of unfavourable change in the [(Insert relevant exchange rate)]
exchange rate (due to inter alia the devaluation of the [(Insert Specified Currency)]) and
to the risk that authorities with jurisdiction over [(Insert Interest Currency(ies))] may
impose exchange controls. Therefore they may receive an Interest Amount in [(Insert
Interest Currency(ies))] which islower than an Interest Amount cal culated on the basis of
anominal amount denominated in [(Insert Specified Currency)] at the Issue Date.]

[Insert for Securities which are subject to the Dual Currency (Redemption) Pay-off
Feature:

Paymentsin the Redemption Currenc|y][ies]

The nominal amount of the Securities is denominated in [(Insert Specified Currency)].
Investors who calculate their investment performance in [(Insert Redemption
Currency(ies))] are exposed to the risk of unfavourable change in the [(Insert relevant
exchange rate)] exchange rate (due to inter alia the devaluation of the [(Insert Specified
Currency)]) and to the risk that authorities with jurisdiction over [(Insert Redemption
Currency(ies))] may impose exchange controls. Therefore they may receive a Final
Redemption Amount in [(Insert Redemption Currency(ies))] which is lower than the
initial nominal amount denominated in [(Insert Specified Currency)] at the Issue Date.]
[Insert where the Securities are Secured Securities:

Security

The security created in respect of the Securities is primarily a security interest over the
Collateral Account in which the Collateral Assets are held. It will not necessarily be the
case that the Collateral Assets will be sufficient to satisfy the claims of a Securityholder
in respect of the Securities following the occurrence of a Secured Security Event of
Default and in such circumstances, investors may lose all or a substantial portion of their
investment. Similarly, certain events or circumstances, such as an insolvency in respect
of any of the relevant parties, may lead to a delay in realisation of the Collateral Assets
and payment [or delivery] of any related amounts to investors.]

[Insert if the Securities are Credit Linked Securities:
Credit Linked Securities

The Securities differ from ordinary debt securities in that the amount of [interest] [and]
[nominal] payable is dependent on whether any Credit Event(s) have occurred and that
payments upon redemption (whether at the scheduled redemption date or earlier) may be
linked to the value of the Reference Obligation(s) including, if applicable, the value of
any related underlying hedging arrangements and that this may be less than the full
amount of investors' initial investment and result in investors not receiving repayment of
al or any of their initial investment in the Securities. The likelihood of a Credit Event
occurring with respect to a Reference Entity will generally fluctuate with, amongst other
things, the financial condition of the Reference Entity, the general economic conditions,
the condition of certain financial markets, political events, developments or trends in any
particular industry and changes in prevailing interest or foreign exchange rates. The
historical experience of obligors and assets comparable to a Reference Entity is not
necessarily indicative of the risk of Credit Events occurring with respect to any
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Reference Entity.]
[Insert if the Securities are Bond Linked Securities:
Bond Linked Securities

The Securities differ from ordinary debt securities in that the amount of [interest] [and]
[nominal] payable is dependent on whether any Bond Event(s) have occurred and that
payments upon redemption (whether at maturity or earlier) may be linked to the value of
the relevant Bond including, if applicable, the value of any related underlying hedging
arrangements and that this may be less than the full amount of investors initial
investment and result in investors not receiving repayment of al or any of their initial
investment in Bond Linked Securities. The likelihood of a Bond Event occurring will
generally fluctuate with, amongst other things, the financial condition of the Bond Issuer,
the general economic conditions, the condition of certain financia markets, political
events, developments or trends in any particular industry and changes in prevailing
interest or foreign exchange rates. The historical experience of other bonds comparable
to the Bond is not necessarily indicative of the risk of a Bond Event occurring with
respect to any Bond.]

[Insert where the Securities are subject to physical settlement:

Cash settlement

Payments on the Securities may be made in cash in certain circumstances, rather than by
delivery of physical assets. This may be less advantageous to Securityholders than
settlement by delivery of physical assets.]

The capital invested in the Securities is at risk. Consequently, the amount a
prospective investor may receive on redemption of its Securities may be less than
the amount invested by it and may be zero (0).

Section E — Offer

E.2b Reasons for [Not Applicable. The reasons for the offer and the net proceeds of the issue are for
offer and use of | [making profit] [and] [hedging certain risks].]
proceedswhen | [The net proceeds from the issue of the Securities will be applied by the Issuer for [e].]
different from
making profit
and/or hedging
certain risks

E.3 Termsand [The Securities are not offered to the public in the European Economic Area.]

conditions of
offer

[The Securities are being offered to the public in a Non-exempt Offer in
[Luxembourg][the United Kingdom][Belgium] [France] [Germany] [Italy] [Portugall
[and] [Spain].]

[Any investor intending to acquire or acquiring any Securities from an Authorised
Offeror will do so, and offers and sales of the Securities to an investor by an Authorised
Offeror will be made, in accordance with any terms and other arrangement in place
between such Authorised Offeror and such investor including as to price, allocation and
settlement arrangements.]

Offer Price: [Issue Price] [ specify]

[Conditions to which the offer is subject: [give details]
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Section E — Offer

Description of the application process:

Description  of  possibility to  reduce
subscriptions and manner for refunding excess
amount paid by applicants:

Details of the minimum and/or maximum
amount of application:

Details of the method and time limits for paying
up and delivering the Securities:

Manner in and date on which results of the offer
are to be made public:

Procedure for exercise of any right of pre-
emption, negotiability of subscription rights and
treatment of subscription rights not exercised:

Whether tranche(s) have been reserved for
certain countries:

Process for notification to applicants of the
amount allotted and the indication whether
dealing may begin before notification is made:

Amount of any expenses and taxes specifically
charged to the subscriber or purchaser:

[Not Applicable][give details
including the time period, and any
possible amendments, during which
the offer will be open]

[give details]

[give details]

[give details]

[give details]

[give details]

[give details]

[give details]

[give detaild]]

E.4 Interest [Not Applicable. So far as the Issuer is aware, no person (other than [e] as dealer[s] and
material to any distributor) involved in the offer of the Securities has an interest material to the offer,
issueincluding | including conflicting interests.]
conflicting [The [@] will be paid aggregate commissions equal to [@].] [Any [e] [and its affiliates]
interests may also have engaged, and may in the future engage, in [transactions or perform other

services for] [the Issuer and its affiliates] in the ordinary course of business]

E.7 Estimated [Not Applicable. There are no expenses charged to the investor by the [Issuer][offeror].]
expenses [The estimated expenses charged to the investor by the [Issuer][offeror] amount to [e].]
charged to
investor
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RISK FACTORS

This section sets out the principal risksinherent in investing in Securities issued under the Programme.

Any investment in the Securities is subject to a number of risks. Prior to investing in the Securities, prospective
investors should consider carefully the factors and risks associated with any investment in the Securities, the
Issuers, and the Guarantor's business and the industry in which it operates, together with all other information
contained in this Base Prospectus including, in particular, the risk factors described below. Prospective investors
should note that the risks relating to the Issuers and the Guarantor, their industry and the Securities summarised in
the section of this document headed " Summary" are the risks that the I ssuers and the Guarantor consider the most
essential to an assessment by a prospective investor of whether to consider an investment in the Securities.
However, as the risks which the Issuers and the Guarantor face relate to events and depend on circumstances that
may or may not occur in the future, prospective investors should consider not only the information on the key risks
summarised in the section of this document headed "Summary" but also, amongst other things, the risks and
uncertainties described below.

Each of the Issuers and the Guarantor believes that the following factors may affect its ability to fulfil its
obligations under Securities issued under the Programme. Many of these factors are contingencies, which may or
may not occur and none of the Issuers nor the Guarantor are in a position to express a view on the likelihood of
any such contingency occurring. The risks described below for the purpose of assessing the market risks associated
with Securities issued under the Programme are not exhaustive. Additional risks and uncertainties relating to the
Issuers and the Guarantor that are not currently known to the I ssuers and the Guarantor, or that it currently deems
immaterial, may individually or cumulatively also have a material adverse effect on the Issuers and the
Guarantor's business, prospects, results of operations and financial position and, if any such risk should occur, the
price of the Securities may decline and investors could lose all or part of their investment.

Each of the Issuers and the Guarantor believes that the factors described below represent the principal risks
inherent in investing in Securities issued under the Programme, but the inability of the relevant Issuer or the
Guarantor to pay interest, nominal or other amounts on or in connection with any Securities may occur for other
reasons (i) which may not be considered significant risks by the Issuers and the Guarantor based on information
currently available to them or (ii) which they may not currently be able to anticipate. Prospective investors should
also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this Base Prospectus and reach their own views prior to
making any investment decision. Prospective investors should consider carefully whether an investment in the
Securities is suitable for them in the light of the information in this Base Prospectus and their personal
circumstances.

Capitalised terms not defined in this section have the meanings given to them in the Terms and Conditions of the
Securities.

The Risk Factors are set out as follows: Page

1 Factors that may affect Crédit Agricole CIB's ability to fulfil its obligations under 73
Securities issued under the Programme or to fulfil its obligations under the
Guarantee

2. Factors that may affect the ability of Crédit Agricole CIB FG or Crédit Agricole
CIB FSto fulfil its obligations under Securitiesissued under the Programme
Creditworthiness of each Issuer and, as the case may be, the Guarantor 73
Risk management 73
Credit risk 73
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Liquidity risk
Interest rate risk
Foreign currency risk

Factors which are materia for the purpose of ng the market risks associated
with Securities issued under the Programme

The Securities may not be a suitable investment for all investors
Risksrelated to the structure of a particular issue of Securities
Risksrelated to Securities generally

Risksrelated to the market generally

Legal investment considerations may restrict certain investments

Risks related to Commodity Linked Securities, FX Linked Securities, Index
Linked Securities, Inflation Linked Securities, Rate Linked Securities, ETF Linked
Securities, Share Linked Securities and Multi-Asset Basket Linked Securities

Risks related to Index Linked Securities and Inflation Linked Securities
Risks related to FX Linked Securities
Risksrelated to Proprietary Indices

Risks related to ETF Linked Securities

Risks related to Share Linked Securities

Risks related to Credit Linked Securities

Risks related to Bond Linked Securities
Risksrelated to Disruption Events
Risksrelated to Alternative Currency Securities
Risksrelated to Payoff Features

Risksrelated to Early Redemption Triggers
Risks related to Redemption Methods

Risks related to Secured Securities
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Risk Factors

FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB'S ABILITY TO FULFIL ITS
OBLIGATIONS UNDER SECURITIES ISSUED UNDER THE PROGRAMME OR TO FULFIL ITS
OBLIGATIONSUNDER THE GUARANTEE

Such factors are set out at pages 136 to 161, 226 to 233 and 306 of the 2015 Registration Document
incorporated herein by reference (see "Documents Incorporated by Reference”).

FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB FG'S OR CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB
FSS ABILITY TO FULFIL ITS OBLIGATIONS UNDER SECURITIES ISSUED UNDER THE
PROGRAMME

The financia instruments, other than derivatives, of Crédit Agricole CIB FG and Crédit Agricole CIB FS
comprise money market assets (Ioans to the parent company) and debt securities issued.

Crédit Agricole CIB FG and Crédit Agricole CIB FS also enter into derivatives transactions (principally
swaps and options).

(@  Creditworthiness of each Issuer and, asthe case may be, the Guarantor

The Securities constitute general and (except for the Secured Securities) unsecured contractual
obligations of each Issuer and of no other person and the Guarantee constitutes general and unsecured
contractual obligations of the Guarantor and of no other person, which will rank equally with all other
unsecured contractual obligations of the relevant Issuer (except for the Secured Securities) and the
Guarantor, respectively, and behind preferred liabilities, including those mandatorily preferred by law.
The Issuers issue a large number of financial instruments, including the Securities, on a global basis
and, at any given time, the financial instruments outstanding may be substantial. Securityholders rely
upon the creditworthiness of the relevant Issuer and, as the case may be, the Guarantor and no other
person and where the Securities relate to securities, Securityholders have no rights against the
company that has issued such securities, and where the Securities relate to an index, Securityholders
have no rights against the sponsor of such index and where the Securities relate to a fund,
Securityholders have no rights against the manager of such fund. Further, an investment in the
Securities is not an investment in the underlying asset(s) and Securityholders will have no rights in
relation to voting rights or other entitlements (including any dividend or other distributions). The
Securities are not in any way sponsored, endorsed or promoted by any issuer, Sponsor, manager or
other connected person in respect of any underlying assets and such entities have no obligation to take
into account the consequences of their actions on any Securityholders.

(b)  Risk management

Crédit Agricole CIB FG and Crédit Agricole CIB FS management regard the monitoring and
controlling of risk as a fundamental part of the management process and accordingly involves its most
senior staff in developing risk policy and in monitoring its application. The evaluation of the risks
inherent in Crédit Agricole CIB FG and Crédit Agricole CIB FS activities and the development of
policies and procedures to control them is carried out by the Boards of Directors or senior
management.

(¢) Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty will be unable or unwilling to meet a
commitment that it has entered into with Crédit Agricole CIB FG or Crédit Agricole CIB FS (as the
case may be). Crédit Agricole CIB FG and Crédit Agricole CIB FS manage their credit risk through
transacting only with their parent company or other group companies.
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(d)  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that Crédit Agricole CIB FG or Crédit Agricole CIB FS (as the case may be)
will encounter difficulty in realising assets or otherwise raising funds to meet commitments. Crédit
Agricole CIB FG and Crédit Agricole CIB FS perfectly hedge the issue of debt securities through the
loansto their parent company, which match in all relevant respects the issued debt.

(e) Interestraterisk

Exposure to interest rate risk is the risk that arises when there is an imbalance between rate and non-
rate sensitive assets, liabilities and off balance sheet items. Crédit Agricole CIB FG and Crédit
Agricole CIB FS policy isto maintain the interest rate at a nil level.

()] Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. Crédit Agricole CIB FG and Crédit Agricole CIB FS foreign
exchange exposure arises from issuing debt in currencies other than Euro. Crédit Agricole CIB FG and
Crédit Agricole CIB FS policy is to hedge against foreign exchange risks by engaging in exchange rate
swaps with their parent company.

Consideration of the above risk factors should also alow for the fact that (i) Crédit Agricole CIB FG
and Crédit Agricole CIB FS systematically hedge themselves with appropriate hedging instruments or
contracts, all contracted with Crédit Agricole CIB acting as hedge counterparty, and (ii) Crédit
Agricole CIB, in accordance with the terms of the Guarantee, has agreed to irrevocably and
unconditionally guarantee the payment and delivery obligations of Crédit Agricole CIB FG and/or
Crédit Agricole CIB FS, as the case may be, under or in respect of the Securities.

3 FACTORSWHICH ARE MATERIAL FOR THE PURPOSE OF ASSESSING THE MARKET RISKS
ASSOCIATED WITH SECURITIESISSUED UNDER THE PROGRAMME

(8  The Securities may not be a suitable investment for all investors

The purchase of the Securities may involve substantial risks and is suitable only for sophisticated
investors who have the knowledge and experience in financial and business matters necessary to
enable them to evaluate the risks and the merits of an investment in the Securities. Each potential
investor in the Securities must determine the suitability of that investment in light of its own
circumstances. In particular, each potential investor should:

Q) have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the Securities,
the merits and risks of investing in the Securities and the information contained or incorporated
by reference in this Base Prospectus or any applicable supplement;

(i)  have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its
particular financial situation, an investment in the Securities and the impact the Securities will
have on its overall investment portfolio;

(iii)  have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear al of the risks of an investment in the
Securities, including Securities with nominal or interest payable in one or more currencies, or
where the currency for nominal or interest payments is different from the potential investor's
currency;
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(iv)  understand thoroughly the terms of the Securities and be familiar with the behaviour of any
relevant Underlying(s) and any other relevant indices, asset prices and rates, and with credit risk
and the financial markets generally; and

(v)  be able to evaluate (either aone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for
economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear the
applicablerisks.

Some Securities are complex financial instruments. Sophisticated institutional investors generally do
not purchase complex financia instruments as stand-alone investments. They purchase complex
financial instruments as a way to reduce risk or enhance yield with an understood, measured,
appropriate addition of risk to their overall portfolios. A potential investor should not invest in
Securities which are complex financial instruments unless it has the expertise (either alone or with a
financial adviser) to evaluate how the Securities will perform under changing conditions, the resulting
effects on the value of the Securities and the impact this investment will have on the potential
investor's overall investment portfolio.

(b) Risksrelated tothe structure of a particular issue of Securities

A wide range of Securities may be issued under the Programme. A number of these Securities may
have features, which contain particular risks for potential investors. Set out below is a description of
the most common such features:

Q) Securities subject to redemption following a scheduled payment currency cessation event

If the Specified Currency (or, in the case of Securities to which the Dual Currency (Interest)
Payoff Feature or the Dual Currency (Redemption) Payoff Feature applies, the Interest
Currency or the Redemption Currency, as the case may be) ceases to exist at any time as a
lawful currency for any reason whatsoever, the relevant Issuer, in its sole and absolute
discretion, may redeem all, but not some only, of the Securities early on a date to be specified
by the Issuer, each Security being redeemed at its Fair Market Value Redemption Amount
denominated in any currency selected by the Calculation Agent or the currency then adopted in
France.

(i)  Securities subject to optional redemption by the relevant I ssuer

An optional redemption feature of Securities is likely to limit their market value. During any
period when the relevant Issuer may elect to redeem Securities, the market value of those
Securities generally will not rise substantially above the price at which they can be redeemed.
This also may be true prior to any redemption period.

The relevant Issuer may be expected to redeem Securities when its cost of borrowing is lower
than the interest rate on the Securities. At those times, an investor generally would not be able
to reinvest the redemption proceeds at an effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the
Securities being redeemed and may only be able to do so at a significantly lower rate. Potential
investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of other investments available at that time.

(iii)  Securities subject to automatic redemption

Securities may be subject to automatic early redemption if certain conditions (as specified in the
Terms and Conditions of the Securities) are met. Such features may negatively affect the value
of the Securities and may lead to redemption at an amount or time less favourable for
Securityholders.
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Risk Factors

Securities subject to interest and/or redemption switch provisions

Securities may have features, which provide for a change of the interest rate and/or redemption
formula upon certain events. Such features may negatively affect the value of the Securities or
result in a less favourable interest rate and/or amount payable on redemption, as the case may
be.

Variable rate Securities in respect of which interest and/or redemption payments are subject to
a multiplier, dual currency provisions or other leverage or other similar factor

If Securities are structured such that the amount payable in respect of interest (if any) or
nominal is subject to the application of multipliers, dual currency provisions or other leverage
or other similar factors, or a combination of those features or other similar related features, their
market values may be even more volatile than those for securities that do not include those
features.

In respect of any such Securities, small changes in the value of the Underlying(s) or the
payment currency may have disproportionate consequences on the Interest Amounts and/or the
Redemption Payoffs paid in respect of the Securities and investors may not receive any Interest
Amounts and/or Redemption Payoffs reflecting any positive performance of the Underlying or
the payment currency and any negative performance of the Underlying(s) or the currency
relevant to the amount of such payment may be magnified.

Securitiesin respect of which interest and/or redemption payments are subject to a cap and/or a
floor

If Securities are structured such that the amount payable in respect of interest (if any) or
nominal is subject to the application of a cap or a floor, or a combination of those factors or
similar related features, their market values may be even more volatile than those for securities
that do not include those features. In particular, but without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the effect of a cap or floor, or a combination thereof, may mean that the investor will
not fully participate in any positive performance of the Underlying(s) and any payments in
respect of the Securities will be lower than they would have been without a cap, floor or
combination thereof, as the case may be.

Securities linked to the performance of an Underlying

The Interest Amounts (if any) and/or Redemption Payoffs payable in respect of any Series of
Securities may be linked to the level or price of an Underlying on a certain date or dates and/or
the change in the level of an Underlying over a specified period of time. Where Securities are
linked to the change in the level or price of an Underlying over a specified period of time,
investors should appreciate that they are taking a view on the change in the level or price of the
Underlying during the relevant period and/or on the relevant date(s), as the case may be.

Securities linked to a Basket of Underlyings

Where Securities are linked to the level or price of multiple Underlyings forming groups of
asset-baskets (each, a Basket), investors will be exposed to the value of the Baskets and will
bear risk in relation to the level or price of each of the Underlyingsin the Baskets.

Investors should be aware that, even in the case of a positive performance of one or more of the
Underlyings in the Basket, the value of the Basket as a whole may be negative if the
performance of any or all of the other Underlyingsin the Basket is negative to a greater extent.
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Investors should also be aware that the value of a Basket that includes fewer Underlyings will
generally be affected to a greater extent by changes in the level or price of any particular
Underlying included in the Basket than a Basket that includes a greater number of Underlyings.

Where the Underlyings in a Basket are subject to weighting, the performance of an Underlying
with a greater weighting in the Basket will generally have a greater effect on the performance of
the Basket than an Underlying with alesser weighting in the Basket.

Securitiesin respect of which the applicable interest rate may be subject to periodic change

Investors are subject to the risk that any periodic increases in the interest rate applicable to the
Securities do not keep pace with any increase in market interest rates, with the consequence that
the real return on the Securities (and the value of the Securities) falls. Even if market interest
rates decrease, investors are also subject to the risk that any periodic decreases in the interest
rate applicable to the Securities may be greater than the decrease in market interest rates, with
the consequence that the real return on the Securities (and the value of the Securities) falls.

Securities subject to inverse exposure

Securities may have a Linked Interest Rate and/or Redemption Payoff equal to a fixed rate
minus the value of an Underlying. The market value of those Securities typically are more
volatile than market values of other conventional debt securities based on the same Underlying
(and with otherwise comparable terms). Those types of Securities are more volatile because an
increase in the value of the Underlying not only decreases the Linked Interest Rate and/or
Redemption Payoff of the Securities, as the case may be, but may also reflect an increase in
prevailing interest rates, which further adversely affects the market value of such Securities.

Securities potentially subject to a loss on redemption

The amount repayable on redemption of a Security may be determinable by reference to a
formula, which may, when calculated and in particular circumstances, yield a negative number.
Depending on the particular terms and conditions of the Securities, this may result in the
Securities being redeemable at an amount that is less than their face value with the consequence
that Securityholders would suffer aloss of some of or all the nominal amount of the Securities.

Fixed/Floating Rate Securities

Fixed/Floating Rate Securities may bear interest at a rate that converts from a fixed rate to a
floating rate, or from a floating rate to a fixed rate. Where the relevant Issuer has the right to
effect such a conversion, this rate will affect the secondary market and the market value of the
Securities since the relevant Issuer may be expected to convert the rate when it is likely to
produce a lower overall cost of borrowing. If the relevant Issuer converts from afixed rate to a
floating rate in such circumstances, the spread on the Securities may be less favourable than
then prevailing spreads on comparable Floating Rate Securities tied to the same reference rate.
In addition, the new floating rate at any time may be lower than the rates on other Securities. If
the relevant Issuer converts from a floating rate to a fixed rate in such circumstances, the fixed
rate may be lower than then prevailing rates on its Securities.

The yield associated with Fixed Rate Securities or Zero Coupon Securities will differ according
to the price at which the Securities are purchased

The indication of yield or accrual yield stated within any Final Terms of Securities applies only
to investments made on the Issue Date and at (as opposed to above or below) the issue price of
such Securities. If an investor invests in Securities at another price and/or on a different date,
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the yield or accrua yield on that particular investor's investment in the Securities will be
different from the indication of yield or accrual yield on the Securities as set out in the Final
Terms.

Zero Coupon Securities

The prices at which Zero Coupon Securities trade in the secondary market tend to fluctuate
more in relation to general changes in interest rates than do prices for conventiona interest-
bearing securities. Generally, the longer the remaining term of the securities, the greater the
price volatility as compared to conventiona interest-bearing securities with comparable
maturities.

Structured Securities

An investment in Securities, the premium and/or the interest on or nomina of which is
determined by reference to one or more values of currencies, commodities, interest rates,
exchange traded funds, shares or other indices or formulae, either directly or inversely, may
entail significant risks not associated with similar investments in a conventional debt security,
including the risks that the resulting interest rate will be less than that payable on a conventional
debt security at the same time and/or that an investor may lose the value of its entire investment
or part of it, as the case may be. Neither the current nor the historical value of the relevant
currencies, commodities, interest rates, exchange traded funds, shares or other indices or
formulae should be taken as an indication of future performance of such currencies,
commaodities, interest rates, exchange traded funds, shares or other indices or formulae during
the term of any Securities.

Benchmark regulation

On 18 September 2013, the European Commission issued a draft proposed regulation
(2013/0314) with respect to indices and reference indices ("benchmarks') used in connection
with financial instruments and financial contracts. The European Parliament and Council
reached a political agreement in November 2015 and the proposed benchmark regulation was
adopted by the European Parliament on 28 April 2016 (the Benchmark Regulation). The
Benchmark Regulation needs to be officially approved by the Council and will then be
published in the EU Official Journal and enter into force on the day following that of its
publication.

The Benchmark Regulation seeks to (i) improve the governance and controls involved in the
process of establishing indices by regulating the activity of reference index providers
("administrators") and (ii) to improve the quality of underlying information and the methods
used by administrators by ensuring the systematic use of adequate sources, and proven
calculation methods.

The Benchmark Regulation creates three categories of benchmarks, subject to different
supervisory regimes depending on how much influence they have over the stability of financial
markets:

- “critical” benchmarks influence financial instruments and contracts with an average value
of at least €500 billion; a benchmark may also be deemed critical if it has no or very few
appropriate substitutes and if it were to cease to be provided, there would be a significant
and adverse impact on market stability;
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- “significant” benchmarks influence financia instruments or financial contracts having a
total average value of at least €50 billion;

- “non-significant” benchmarks are those that do not fulfill the conditions set for the
“significant” category.

Benchmarks could be moved from one category to another when necessary.

Under the Benchmark Regulation, all benchmark administrators will have to be authorised by a
competent authority or registered, even if they provide only non-significant benchmarks. They
will have to publish a “benchmark statement” defining precisely what their benchmark
measures, describing the methodology and procedures for calculating the benchmark and
advising user about the impact a change or cessation of the benchmark may have on financia
contracts.

Data used to set a benchmark will be subject to quality standards designed to ensure that it
accurately reflects the reality that it is meant to measure. Where the benchmark is based on
underlying information provided by entities contributing to the establishment of references
indices ("contributors"), the data must come from reliable contributors who are bound by a code
of conduct for each benchmark.

Critical benchmark administrators will have to have a clear organisational structure to prevent
conflicts of interest, and be subject to effective control procedures.

Administrators of non-significant benchmarks will be exempted from fulfilling certain
conditions but will have to immediately notify the competent authority if the benchmark
exceeds the €50 billion threshold.

Finally, investor protection will be increased to the extent that supervised entities (e.g. banks)
using such benchmarks will be obliged to carry out an evaluation with respect to whether the
reference index is appropriate to the specific requirements of the investor, particularly in the
case of retail investors.

Credit Linked Securities

Credit Linked Securities differ from ordinary debt securities in that the amount of nominal
amount outstanding and/or interest payable by the relevant Issuer is dependent on whether any
Credit Event(s) have occurred and that payments upon redemption (whether at maturity or
earlier) may be linked to the value of the Reference Obligation(s) including, if applicable, the
value of any related underlying hedging arrangements (which may include interest rate or cross-
currency swaps) and that this may be less than the full amount of investors' initial investment
and result in investors not receiving repayment of all or any of their initial investment in Credit
Linked Securities.

The likelihood of a Credit Event occurring with respect to a Reference Entity will generaly
fluctuate with, amongst other things, the financial condition of the Reference Entity, general
economic conditions, the condition of certain financial markets, political events, developments
or trends in any particular industry and changes in prevailing interest or foreign exchange rates.
The historical experience of obligors and assets comparable to a Reference Entity is not
necessarily indicative of the risk of Credit Events occurring with respect to that Reference
Entity.

Corporate actions of any Reference Entities (for example, merger or demerger) or the
repayment or transfer of indebtedness of the Reference Entities may adversely affect the value
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of the Securities. Factual situations may arise in which the views of market participants and/or
legal counsel may differ as to how the contractual terms of market standard credit default
swaps, and corresponding provisions of the Securities, should be interpreted, or in which such
contractual terms and such provisions may operate in a manner contrary to the expectations of
market participants and/or adversely to the interests of holders of the Securities.

The Calculation Agent will have discretion in determining when and whether to trigger
redemption of the Securities on the basis of a Credit Event. It will exercise such discretion as it
deems appropriate, and not in the interests of investors. Information relating to Credit Events
may be derived from private and public sources, which may or may not be accessible to al
Securityholders.

The Calculation Agent will have discretion in selecting the Deliverable Obligations or Valuation
Obligations, as the case may be, following the occurrence of a Credit Event, subject to, amongst
other things, compliance with the applicable Deliverable Obligation Category and Deliverable
Obligation Characteristics and following consultation with the relevant Issuer. In exercising
such discretion, it may select for such purpose eligible obligations having the lowest possible
market value, resulting in an increased loss for holders of the Securities.

In certain circumstances — for example where a potential Credit Event occurs and has not been
cured as at the scheduled redemption of the Securities, the redemption date of the Securities
will be extended without compensation to the investors. The period of such deferra may be
significant.

When buying Nth-to-Default CLSs or Linear Basket CL Ss, the more diversified the portfolio of
Reference Entities, the more likely that a Credit Event will occur to one of the Reference
Entities, increasing the risk to the investor (i.e. the more Reference Entities there are, and the
less they are correlated, the more the risk profile of the portfolio increases).

None of the Issuers, the Calculation Agent, any Third Party Chargor, the Guarantor, the
Arranger or any of their respective affiliates makes any representation in respect of Credit
Linked Securities as to the credit quality of any Reference Entity. Any of such persons may
have acquired, or during the term of the Securities may acquire, non-public information with
respect to a Reference Entity, its respective affiliates or any guarantors, that is or may be
material in the context of Credit Linked Securities. The issue of Credit Linked Securities will
not create any obligation on the part of any such persons to disclose to the Securityholders or
any other party such information (whether or not confidential).

See dso the risk factor entitled "Risks related to Credit Linked Securities' below.

Each of the Issuers, the Calculation Agent, any Third Party Chargor, the Guarantor, the
Arranger or their respective affiliates may deal with and engage generally in any kind of
commercial or investment banking or other business with any Reference Entity, its respective
affiliates or any guarantor or any other person or entity having obligations relating to any
Reference Entity or its respective affiliates or any guarantor in the same manner as if any Credit
Linked Securities issued under the Programme did not exist, regardless of whether any such
action might have an adverse effect on a Reference Entity, any of its respective affiliates or any
guarantor.

(xviii) Bond Linked Securities

Bond Linked Securities differ from ordinary debt securities in that the amount of nominal
amount outstanding and/or interest payable by the relevant Issuer is dependent on whether any
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Bond Event(s) have occurred and that payments upon redemption (whether at maturity or
earlier) may be linked to the value of the relevant Bond including, if applicable, the value of
any related underlying hedging arrangements (which may include interest rate or cross-currency
swaps) and that this may be less than the full amount of investors' initial investment and result
in investors not receiving repayment of all or any of their initial investment in Bond Linked
Securities.

The likelihood of a Bond Event occurring will generally fluctuate with, amongst other things,
the financial condition of the Bond Issuer, general economic conditions, the condition of certain
financial markets, political events, developments or trends in any particular industry and
changes in prevailing interest or foreign exchange rates. The historical experience of other
bonds comparable to a Bond is not necessarily indicative of the risk of a Bond Event occurring
with respect to that Bond.

Corporate actions of any Bond Issuer may adversely affect the value of the Securities. Factual
situations may arise in which the views of market participants and/or legal counsel may differ
as to whether a Bond Event has occurred and whether such contractual terms and such
provisions may operate in a manner contrary to the expectations of market participants and/or
adversely to the interests of holders of the Securities.

The Calculation Agent will have discretion in determining when and whether to trigger
redemption of the Securities on the basis of a Bond Event. It will exercise such discretion as it
deems appropriate and not in the interests of investors. Information relating to Bond Events
may be derived from private and public sources, which may or may not be accessible to al
Securityholders.

In certain circumstances where a potential Bond Event occurs and has not been cured as at the
scheduled redemption of the Securities, the maturity of the Securities will be extended without
compensation to the investors. The period of such deferral may be significant.

When buying Basket BL Ss, the more diversified the portfolio of Bonds, the more likely that a
Bond Event will occur to one of the Bonds, increasing the risk to the investor (i.e. the more
Bonds there are, and the less they are correlated, the more the risk profile of the portfolio
increases).

None of the Issuers, the Calculation Agent, any Third Party Chargor, the Guarantor, the
Arranger or any of their respective affiliates makes any representation in respect of Bond
Linked Securities as to the credit quality of any Bond or Bond Issuer. Any of such persons may
have acquired, or during the term of the Securities may acquire, non-public information with
respect to the Bond Issuer, its respective affiliates or any guarantors, that is or may be material
in the context of Bond Linked Securities. The issue of Bond Linked Securities will not create
any obligation on the part of any such persons to disclose to the Securityholders or any other
party such information (whether or not confidential).

See also therisk factor entitled "Risks related to Bond Linked Securities" below.

Each of the Issuers, the Calculation Agent, any Third Party Chargor, the Guarantor, the
Arranger or their respective affiliates may deal with and engage generally in any kind of
commercial or investment banking or other business with the Bond or any Bond Issuer, its
respective affiliates or any guarantor or any other person or entity having obligations relating to
the Bond Issuer or its respective affiliates or any guarantor in the same manner as if any Bond
Linked Securities issued under the Programme did not exist, regardless of whether any such
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action might have an adverse effect on the Bond or the Bond Issuer, any of its respective
affiliates or any guarantor.

Risksrelated to Securities generally

Set out below isabrief description of certain risks relating to the Securities generally:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

General

The Securities involve a high degree of risk, which may include, among other things, risks
relating to the funding rate of the relevant Issuer, the spot and forward levels of any Underlying,
the imposed volatility of any Underlying, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, time value and
political risks. Prospective purchasers of Securities should recognise that their Securities, other
than any Securities having a minimum redemption value, may mature worthless. Purchasers
should be prepared to sustain a total loss of the purchase price of their Securities, except, if so
indicated in the applicable Final Terms, to the extent of any minimum redemption value
attributable to such Securities. Prospective purchasers of Securities should be experienced with
respect to options and option transactions, should understand the risks of transactions involving
the relevant Securities and should reach an investment decision only after careful consideration,
with their advisers, of the suitability of such Securities in light of their particular financial
circumstances, the information set forth herein and the information regarding the relevant
Securities and the particular reference equity index (or basket of equity indices), FX rate (or
basket of FX rates), commodity (or basket of commodities), benchmark rate (or basket of
benchmark rates), inflation index (or basket of inflation indices), proprietary index (or basket of
proprietary indices), exchange traded fund (or basket of exchange traded funds) or share (or
basket of shares) or combination of any of them, as may be specified in the applicable Final
Terms.

Modification

The conditions of the Securities contain provisions for calling meetings of Securityholders to
consider matters affecting their interests generally. These provisions permit defined majorities
to bind all Securityholdersincluding Securityholders who did not attend and vote at the relevant
meeting and Securityholders who voted in a manner contrary to the relevant majority.

The Issuer may also modify the Terms and Conditions of the Securities without the consent of
the Securityholders in any manner which the relevant Issuer and/or the Calculation Agent may
deem necessary or desirable provided that such modification (i) is not materially prejudicial to
the interests of the Securityholders; and/or (ii) is of a formal, minor or technical nature or is
made to correct a manifest or proven error or omission, to cure, correct or supplement any
defective provision contained in the Terms and Conditions of the Securities, or to comply with
mandatory provisions of law or regulation or to comply with any requirement of any stock
exchange on which the Securities may be listed.

Unsecured obligations

Save in respect of Secured Securities (in respect of which, please see "Risks related to Secured
Securities' below), the Securities and the Guarantee each constitute general, unsecured,
contractual obligations of the Issuers and, as the case may be, the Guarantor and of no other
person. Any person who purchases such Securities is relying upon the creditworthiness of the
Issuers and the Guarantor and has no rights under the Terms and Conditions against any other
person. Neither the Securities nor the Guarantee will (with the exception of Secured Securities)
be secured by any property of the Issuers or the Guarantor and all Securities rank equally
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among themselves and, together with the Guarantee, with al other unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of the Issuers and, as the case may be, the Guarantor.

French insolvency law

Under French insolvency law holders of debt securities are automatically grouped into a single
assembly of holders (the Assembly) in order to defend their common interests if a preservation
(procédure de sauvegarde), an accelerated preservation procedure (procédure de sauvegarde
accélérée) (procedure applicable from 1 July 2014), an accelerated financial preservation
procedure (procédure de sauvegarde financiére accélérée) or a judicial reorganisation
procedure (procédure de redressement judiciaire) is opened in France with respect to the
relevant Issuer.

The Assembly comprises holders of all debt securities issued by the relevant Issuer (including
the Securities), whether or not under a debt issuance programme (such as a security
programme) and regardless of their governing law.

The Assembly deliberates on the proposed safeguard plan (projet de plan de sauvegarde), draft
accelerated safeguard plan (projet de plan de sauvegarde accélérée) (procedure applicable from
1 July 2014), draft accelerated financia safeguard plan (projet de plan de sauvegarde financiere
accélérée) or judicia reorganisation plan (projet de plan de redressement) applicable to the
relevant I ssuer and may further agree to:

(@ increase the liabilities (charges) of holders of debt securities (including the
Securityholders) by rescheduling due payments and/or partialy or totally writing-off
receivablesin the form of debt securities;

(b) establish an unequal treatment between holders of debt securities (including the
Securityholders) as appropriate under the circumstances; and/or

(c) decide to convert debt securities (including the Securities) into securities that give or
may give rights to share capital.

Decisions of the Assembly will be taken by a two-thirds majority (calculated as a proportion of
the debt securities held by the holders attending such Assembly or represented thereat). No
guorum is required to convene the Assembly.

For the avoidance of doubt, the provisions relating to the meetings of the Securityholders
described in the Terms and Conditions of the Securities set out in this Base Prospectus and the
Agency Agreement will not be applicable to the extent they are not in compliance with
mandatory insolvency law provisions that apply in these circumstances.

Taxation

Potential purchasers and sellers of the Securities should be aware that they may be required to
pay taxes or other documentary charges or duties (including potential taxes or other
documentary charges or duties imposed in connection with a transfer of the Securities or a
settlement thereof by way of physical delivery of certain securities) in accordance with the laws
and practices of the country where the Securities are transferred or other jurisdictions. In some
jurisdictions, no official statements of the tax authorities or court decisions may be available in
respect of financia instruments such as the Securities. Potential investors cannot rely upon the
tax summary contained in this Base Prospectus and should seek their own tax advice with
respect to the acquisition, holding, sale and redemption of the Securities. Potential investors are
also advised to ask for their own tax adviser's advice on their individual taxation when
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payments of interest and other income with respect to the Securities are made by a paying agent
(within the meaning of Council Directive 2003/48/EC) established in Austria. Where
withholding or deduction is required to be made pursuant to Council Directives 2003/48/EC
and 2015/2060/UE, neither the Issuer nor any Paying Agent nor any other person would be
obliged to pay additional amounts with respect to any Security.

Gross up

The Securities will not have the benefit of a gross up provision in respect of withholding tax
unless "Gross Up" is specifically provided as applicable in the applicable Final Terms. Where a
gross up does not apply, investors will take the risk of any applicable withholding tax.

French law and European legislation regarding the resolution of financial institutions

Directive 2014/59/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of the European Union
dated May 15, 2014 establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit
institutions and investment firms (the BRRD) entered into force on July 2, 2014.

The stated aim of the BRRD and Regulation (EU) No. 806/2014 of the European Parliament
and of the Council of the European Union of July 15, 2014 (the SRM Regulation) isto provide
for the establishment of an EU-wide framework for the recovery and resolution of credit
institutions and investment firms. The regime provided for by the BRRD is, among other
things, stated to be needed to provide the authority designated by each EU Member State (the
Resolution Authority) with a credible set of tools to intervene sufficiently early and quickly in
an unsound or failing institution so as to ensure the continuity of the institution’s critical
financial and economic functions while minimizing the impact of an institution’s failure on the
economy and financial system (including taxpayers exposure to losses). Under the SRM
Regulation a centralized power of resolution is established and entrusted to the Single
Resolution Board (the SRB) and to the national resolution authorities.

The powers provided to the Resolution Authority in the BRRD and the SRM Regulation
include write-down/conversion powers to ensure that capital instruments (including
subordinated debt instruments) and eligible liabilities (including senior debt instruments such as
the Securities if junior instruments prove insufficient to absorb all losses) absorb losses of the
issuing institution under resolution in accordance with a set order of priority (the Bail-in Tool).
The conditions for resolution under the French Code monétaire et financier implementing the
BRRD are deemed to be met when: (i) the Resolution Authority or the relevant supervisory
authority determines that the institution is failing or is likely to fail, (ii) there is no reasonable
prospect that any measure other than a resolution measure would prevent the failure within a
reasonable timeframe, and (iii) a resolution measure is necessary for the achievement of the
resolution objectives and winding up of the institution under normal insolvency proceedings
would not meet those resol ution obj ectives to the same extent.

The Resolution Authority could also, independently of a resolution measure or in combination
with a resolution measure where the conditions for resolution are met, write-down or convert
capital instruments (including subordinated debt instruments) into equity when it determines
that the ingtitution or its group will no longer be viable unless such write down or conversion
power is exercised or when the ingtitution requires extraordinary public financial support
(except when extraordinary public financial support is provided in the form defined in Article
L. 613-48 111, 3° of the French Code monétaire et financier).
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The Bail-in Tool could result in the full (i.e., to zero) or partial write-down or conversion into
ordinary shares or other instruments of ownership of the Securities or the Guarantee, or the
variation of the terms of the Securities or the Guarantee (for example, the maturity and/or
interest payable may be altered and/or a temporary suspension of payments may be ordered).
Extraordinary public financial support should only be used as a last resort after having assessed
and applied, to the maximum extent practicable, the resolutions measures, including the Bail-in
Tool. In addition, if the Issuer’s financial condition deteriorates, the existence of the Bail-in
Tool could cause the market price or value of the Securities to decline more rapidly than would
be the case in the absence of such power.

In addition to the Bail-in Tool, the BRRD provides the Resolution Authority with broader
powers to implement other resolution measures with respect to ingtitutions that meet the
conditions for resolution, which may include (without limitation) the sale of the ingtitution’s
business, the creation of a bridge institution, the separation of assets, the replacement or
substitution of the ingtitution as obligor in respect of debt instruments, modifications to the
terms of debt instruments (including altering the maturity and/or the amount of interest payable
and/or imposing a temporary suspension on payments), removing management, appointing an
interim administrator, and discontinuing the listing and admission to trading of financial
instruments.

As a Directive, the BRRD is not directly applicable in France and had to be transposed into
national legidation. The French ordonnance No. 2015-1024 of August 20, 2015 transposed the
BRRD into French law and amended the Code monétaire et financier for this purpose.

Before taking a resolution measure or exercising the power to write down or convert relevant
capital instruments, the Resolution Authority must ensure that a fair, prudent and realistic
valuation of the assets and liabilities of the ingtitution is carried out by a person independent
from any public authority.

Since January 1, 2016, French credit institutions, investment firms and financial institutions
have to meet, at al times, a minimum requirement for own funds and eligible liabilities
(MREL) pursuant to Article L. 613-44 of the French Code monétaire et financier. The MREL,
which is expressed as a percentage of the total liabilities and own funds of the intitution, aims
at avoiding institutions to structure their liabilities in a manner that impedes the effectiveness of
the Bail-in Tool. From January 2019, G-SIBs (global systemically important banks) such as the
Issuer will also have to comply with the total |oss absorbing capacity (TL AC) regquirements.

In accordance with the provisions of the SRM Regulation, when applicable, the SRB, has
replaced the national resolution authorities designated under the BRRD with respect to all
aspects relating to the decision-making process and the national resolution authorities
designated under the BRRD continue to carry out activities relating to the implementation of
resolution schemes adopted by the SRB. The provisions relating to the cooperation between the
SRB and the national resolution authorities for the preparation of the banks' resolution plans
have applied since January 1, 2015 and the SRM has been fully operational since January 1,
2016.

The application of any resolution measure under the French BRRD implementing provisions or
any suggestion of such application with respect to the Issuer or the Group could materially
adversely affect the rights of Securityholders, the price or value of an investment in the
Securities and/or the ability of the Issuer to satisfy its obligations under the Securities.
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(viii) European Market Infrastructure Regulation and Markets in Financial Instruments Directive

Regulation (EU) No 648/2012, known as the European Market Infrastructure Regulation
(EMIR) entered into force on 16 August 2012 and took direct effect in the member states of the
European Union. Under EMIR certain over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives that are traded in the
European Union by financia counterparties (FCs), such as investment firms, credit institutions
and insurance companies, and certain non-financial counterparties (NFCs) have to be cleared
(the clearing obligation) via an authorised central clearing counterparty (a CCP). In addition,
EMIR requires the reporting of OTC derivative contracts to a trade repository (the reporting
obligation) and introduces certain risk mitigation requirements in relation to OTC derivative
contracts that are not cleared by a CCP.

Under EMIR, a CCP will be used to meet the clearing obligation by interposing itself between
the counterparties to the eligible derivative contracts. CCPs will connect with derivative
counterparties through their clearing members. Each derivative counterparty which is required
to clear OTC derivatives contracts will be required to post both initial and variation margin to
the clearing member, which will in turn be required to post margin to the CCP. EMIR requires
CCPs to only accept highly liquid collateral with minimal credit and market risk. Where an
NFC enters into an OTC derivative contract, which is not "eligible” for clearing, it will have to
ensure that appropriate procedures and arrangements are in place to monitor and minimise
operational and credit risk.

Furthermore, parties subject to EMIR have to apply certain risk mitigation techniques in
relation to timely confirmation, portfolio reconciliation and compression, and dispute resolution
that are applicable to OTC derivatives contracts that are not cleared by a CCP. In addition, such
parties are required to deliver certain information about any OTC derivatives contract to a
registered or recognised trade repository. EMIR also imposes a record-keeping requirement
pursuant to which counterparties must keep records of any derivative contract they have
concluded and any modification for at least five years following the termination of the contract.

The EU regulatory framework relating to derivatives is set not only by EMIR but also by
Directive 2014/65/EU (MiFID 11) on markets in financial instruments, which repeals the
existing Markets in Financial Instruments Directive, and Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 on
markets in financial instruments (MiFIR). In particular, MiFID |1 require transactions in certain
classes of OTC derivatives to be executed on a trading venue. In this respect, it is difficult to
predict the full impact of these regulatory requirements on the Issuers.

Investors in the Securities should be aware that the regulatory changes arising from EMIR,
MiFID 1l and MiFIR may in due course significantly raise the costs of entering into OTC
derivative contracts and may adversely affect the Issuers' ability to engage in transactions in
OTC derivative contracts. As a result of such increased costs or increased regulatory
requirements, investors may receive less interest or return, as the case may be. Investors should
be aware that such risks are material and that the Issuers could be materialy and adversely
affected thereby. The full impact of EMIR, MiFID 1l and MiFIR remains to be clarified. As
such, investors should consult their own independent advisers and make their own assessment
about the potential risks posed by EMIR, MiFID Il and MiFIR and technical implementation in
making any investment decision in respect of the Securities.
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Proposed Financial Transaction Tax

On 14 February 2013, the European Commission published a proposal (the Commission’s
Proposal) for a Directive for a common FTT in Belgium, Germany, Estonia, Greece, Spain,
France, Italy, Austria, Portugal, Slovenia and Slovakia (the Participating M ember States).

The Commission’s Proposal has very broad scope and could, if introduced, apply to certain
dealings in Securities (including secondary market transactions) in certain circumstances.

Under the Commission’s Proposal the FTT could apply in certain circumstances to persons both
within and outside of the participating Member States. Generally, it would apply to certain
dealings in Securities where at least one party is afinancia institution, and at least one party is
established in a participating Member State. A financial institution may be, or be deemed to be,
"established" in a participating Member State in a broad range of circumstances, including (a)
by transacting with a person established in a participating Member State or (b) where the
financial instrument which is subject to the dealings isissued in a participating Member State.

However, the FTT proposal remains subject to negotiation between the participating Member
States and the scope of any such tax is uncertain. Additional EU Member States may decide to
participate. In ajoint statement released on 8 December 2015, ten of the participating Member
States (excluding Estonia) indicated their intention to settle the remaining open issues regarding
the FTT by the end of June 2016.

Prospective holders of Securities are advised to seek their own professional advicein relation to
the FTT.

Potential U.S. Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act Withholding

The foreign account tax compliance provisions of the Hiring Incentives to Restore Employment
Act of 2010 (FATCA) impose a withholding tax of 30% (FATCA Withholding) on certain
U.S.-source payments and proceeds from the sale of assets that give rise to U.S.-source interest
or dividends (including Dividend Equivalent Payments, as defined in (viii) Legidation Affecting
Dividend Equivalent Payments below), as well as certain payments by non-U.S. entities to
persons that fail to meet certain certification or reporting requirements. Under current law,
withholding is currently imposed in respect of certain U.S.-source payments (including interest
and dividends) and will be imposed starting (x) 1 January 2019 in respect of proceeds from the
sale of assets that give rise to U.S.-source interest or dividends and (y) 1 January 2019, at the
earliest, in respect of "foreign passthru payments' (which term is not yet defined under existing
FATCA guidance). The Issuer and other financial institutions through which payments on the
Securities are made may be required to withhold on account of FATCA if (a) an investor does
not provide information sufficient for the I ssuer or the relevant financial institution to determine
whether the investor is subject to FATCA Withholding or (b) a"foreign financial institution" (as
defined under FATCA) to or through which payment on the Securities are made (including a
foreign financial ingtitution that is a beneficial owner of the Securities) does not become a
"participating foreign financial ingtitution" by entering into an agreement with the U.S. Internal
Revenue Service to provide certain information on its account holders.

The application of FATCA to interest, nominal or other amounts paid with respect to the
Securities is not clear. In particular, Guernsey and France have entered into intergovernmental
agreements with the United States to help implement FATCA for certain entities in those
jurisdictions. The full impact of such agreement on the Issuer and its reporting and withholding
responsibilities under FATCA is unclear. As a result of Guernsey and France entering into

87



(xi)

Risk Factors

intergovernmental agreements with the United States, the Issuer may be required to report
certain information on its U.S. account holders to the governments of Guernsey and France
(asapplicable) in order (i) to obtain an exemption from FATCA Withholding on payments the
Issuer receives and/or (ii) to comply with any applicable domestic laws. It is not yet certain how
the United States, Guernsey and France will address withholding on "foreign passthru
payments’ (which may include payments on the Securities) or if such withholding will be
required at all.

If an amount in respect of U.S. withholding tax were to be deducted or withheld from interest,
nominal or other payments on the Securities, neither the relevant I ssuer nor any Agent nor any
other person would, pursuant to the conditions of the Securities, be required to pay additional
amounts as a result of the deduction or withholding of such tax. As a result, investors may
receive less interest or nominal than expected. The Securityholders should consult their own tax
advisers on how these rules may apply to payments they receive under the Securities.

FATCA is particularly complex and its application with respect to "foreign passthru payments"
is uncertain at this time. Each prospective investor should consult its own tax advisor to obtain
a more detailed explanation of FATCA and to learn how this legislation might affect the
investor in its particular circumstance. The application of FATCA to Securities that may be
affected by FATCA may be addressed in any applicable drawdown prospectus or a Supplement
to the Base Prospectus, as applicable. If an amount in respect of U.S. withholding tax were to
be deducted or withheld from interest, nhominal or other payments on the Securities, the
Securities may be, or in certain circumstances will be, redeemed early at their fair market value.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and other regulatory
changes affecting derivatives markets

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (Dodd-Frank), which
provides for substantial changes to the regulation of the futures and over-the-counter (OTC)
derivative markets, was enacted in July 2010. Dodd-Frank requires regulators, including the
Commodity Futures Trading Commission, the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC),
the Department of the Treasury, the Financia Stability Oversight Council, the Office of the
Comptroller of the Currency, and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation to adopt
regulations to implement many of the requirements of the legidlation.

Most of the regulations under Dodd-Frank have been adopted and these legidlative and
regulatory changes have increased the level of regulation of markets and market participants,
and therefore the costs of participating in the commodities, futures and OTC derivative markets.
Without limitation, these changes will require many OTC derivative transactions to be executed
on regulated exchanges or trading platforms, cleared through regulated clearing houses, and
subject to collection and posting of initial and variation margin. Swap dealers are required to be
registered, to comply with business conduct standards and to clear certain classes of interest
rate and credit default swaps through registered derivatives clearing organisations (unless an
exception to clearing applies). The various legislative and regulatory changes, and the resulting
increased costs and regulatory oversight requirements, could result in market participants being
required to, or deciding to, limit their trading activities, which could cause reductions in market
liquidity and increases in market volatility. These consequences could adversely affect the
return on and value of the Securities.

Crédit Agricole CIB and its affiliates may face additional regulatory and economic burdens on
its activities due to the implementation of Section 619 of Dodd-Frank, commonly referred to as
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the “Volcker Rule’, which prohibits proprietary trading, other than for certain risk-mitigation
activities, and limits the sponsorship of, and investment in, hedge funds and private equity
funds (referred to as “covered funds’) by banking entities if such activities have any nexus to
the U.S. Thefinal rulesimplementing the Volcker Rule have been adopted and became effective
on 21 July 2015.

Pursuant to the Volcker Rule, if an Issuer were determined to be a covered fund, then covered
banking entities and other entities subject to the Volcker Rule would be restricted from
acquiring and retaining certain ownership interests in that Issuer and Crédit Agricole CIB could
be prohibited from owning the other Issuers or guaranteeing payments on the Securities
(including previoudly issued Securities and outstanding Securities). The Volcker Rule and
interpretations thereunder are still uncertain, may restrict or discourage the acquisition of
Securities by such entities, and may adversely affect the liquidity of the Securities.

The full spectrum of risks posed to ingtitutions like Crédit Agricole CIB and its affiliates as a
result of Dodd-Frank and the rules promulgated, and to be promulgated, thereunder is not yet
known. Investors should be aware, however, that Crédit Agricole CIB and the other Issuers
could be materially and adversely affected by such risks. As such, investors should consult their
own independent advisers and make their own assessment about the potential risks posed by the
Dodd-Frank Act and the rules to be promulgated thereunder in making any investment decision
in respect of the Securities. Each investor in the Securities must make its own determination as
to whether it is subject to the Volcker Rule, whether its investment in the Securities would or
could in the future be restricted or prohibited under the Volcker Rule and the potential impact of
the Volcker Rule on its investment, any liquidity in connection therewith and on its portfolio
generally.

U.S selling restrictions

The Securities may be subject to certain selling restrictions. In particular, any Securities offered
and sold or intended to be transferred in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of,
U.S. persons, can only be sold or otherwise transferred to certain transferees as described under
the section " Offer and Sale” in this Base Prospectus. Such restrictions on transfer may limit the
liquidity of such Securities. Consequently, a purchaser must be prepared to hold such Securities
for an indefinite period of time and potentially until their redemption.

Legidation affecting Dividend Equivalent Payments

Payments on any Security that are, in whole or in part, directly or indirectly contingent upon, or
determined by reference to, the payment of a dividend from a U.S. entity (a Dividend
Equivalent Payment) may become subject to a 30 per cent. U.S. withholding tax when made
to non-U.S. persons. The imposition of this U.S. withholding tax will reduce the amounts
received by non-U.S. persons. Neither the Issuer, the Guarantor, nor the agent nor any other
person shall pay any additional amounts to the non-U.S. persons in respect of such U.S.
withholding. If a non-U.S. person becomes subject to this withholding tax, the non-U.S. person
may be able to claim benefits under an applicable double tax treaty with the United States.

Change of law

The conditions of the Securities are based on English law in effect as at the date of this Base
Prospectus. No assurance can be given as to the impact of any possible judicial decision or
change to English law or administrative practice after the date of this Base Prospectus.
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Illegality and force majeure

If the Issuers or the Guarantor determine that the performance of their obligations under any
Securities or the Guarantee has become illegal or impracticable in whole or in part for any
reason, the Issuers may cancel such Securities and, to the extent permitted by applicable law,
pay an amount to each Securityholder, as the case may be, in respect of each Security an
amount equal to the fair market value of such Security, notwithstanding such illegality or
impracticality, less the cost to the Issuers and/or its affiliates of unwinding any underlying
related hedging arrangements (if any), all as determined by the Calculation Agent in its sole and
absolute discretion or, in respect of Italian Listed Certificates, in good faith and in a reasonable
manner.

Securities where denominations involve integral multiples: Definitive Securities

In relation to any issue of Securities, which have denominations consisting of a minimum
Specified Denomination, plus one or more higher integral multiples of another smaller amount,
it is possible that such Securities may be traded in amounts that are not integral multiples of
such minimum Specified Denomination. In such a case a holder who, as a result of trading such
amounts, holds an amount which is less than the minimum Specified Denomination in his
account with the relevant clearing system at the relevant time may not receive a Definitive
Security in respect of such holding (should Definitive Securities be printed) and would need to
purchase a nominal amount of Securities such that its holding amounts to a Specified
Denomination.

If Definitive Securities are issued, holders should be aware that Definitive Securities, which
have a denomination, that is not an integral multiple of the minimum Specified Denomination
may beilliquid and difficult to trade.

Minimum Trading Size

Where the applicable Fina Terms specifies that a Minimum Trading Size is applicable in
respect of the Securities, Securityholders shall only be permitted to acquire, transfer or trade
Securities with an aggregate nominal amount equal to the minimum amount specified in the
applicable Final Terms.

(xviii) Conflicts of interest — Calculation Agent

(xix)

Where the relevant Issuer or Guarantor acts as Calculation Agent or the Calculation Agent isan
Affiliate of the relevant Issuer or Guarantor, potential conflicts of interest may exist between
the Calculation Agent and Securityholders, including with respect to certain determinations and
judgements that the Calculation Agent may make pursuant to the Conditions that may influence
the amount receivable upon settlement of the Securities.

Potential conflicts of interest

In the ordinary course of its business, including, without limitation, in connection with its
market making activities, the relevant Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates may effect transactions
for its own account or for the account of its customers and hold long or short positions in any
Underlying(s) or related derivatives. In addition, in connection with the offering of any
Securities, the relevant Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates may enter into one or more hedging
transactions with respect to any Underlying(s) or related derivatives. In connection with such
hedging or market-making activities or with respect to proprietary or other trading activities by
the relevant Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates, the relevant Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates
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may enter into transactions in any Underlying(s) or related derivatives which may affect the
market price, liquidity or value of the relevant Securities and which could be deemed to be
adverse to the interests of the relevant Securityholders.

The relevant Issuer and/or any Dealer and/or any of their Affiliates may at the date hereof or at
any time hereafter be in possession of information in relation to one or more Underlying(s) that
is or may be materia in the context of an issue of Securities and may or may not be publicly
available to Securityholders. None of the Issuers, any Dealer or any of their Affiliates will
disclose to Securityholders any such information, except as required under applicable law.

The relevant Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates may have existing or future business
relationships with any Underlying(s), any constituent thereof (in relation to Underlying(s)
which are indices) or, if applicable, any of their subsidiaries or Affiliates or any other person or
entity having obligations relating to any Underlying(s) (including, but not limited to, dealing,
lending, depositary, risk management, advisory and banking relationships), and will pursue
actions and take steps that they or it deems necessary or appropriate to protect their and/or its
interests arising therefrom without regard to the consequences for a Securityholder, regardless
of whether any such action might have an adverse effect (including, without limitation, any
action which might constitute or give rise to any breach, event of default, credit event or
termination event) on any Underlying or any investor in Securities.

Potential conflicts of interest relating to distributors

Potential conflicts of interest may arise where the manager(s) and any distributors act pursuant
to a mandate granted by the Issuers, the Guarantor (if applicable) and/or the manager(s) and
will receive commissions and/or fees on the basis of the services performed and the outcome of
the placement of the Securities.

Certain considerations relating to public offers of the Securities

If Securities are distributed by means of a public offer, whether or not in a Member State of the
European Economic Area, under certain circumstances indicated in the applicable Final Terms,
the relevant Issuer and/or the other entities indicated in the Final Terms, will have the right to
withdraw or revoke the offer, and the offer will be deemed to be null and void according to the
terms indicated in the applicable Final Terms. In such case, any amounts segregated by a
distributor as intended payment of the offer price by an investor will be released to the relevant
investor by the distributor but may or may not accrue interest depending on the agreements
between the investor and the relevant distributor or depending on the policies applied by the
distributor in this regard. In these circumstances, there may also be a time lag in the release of
any such amounts and, unless otherwise agreed with the relevant distributor no amount will be
payable as compensation and the applicant may be subject to reinvestment risk.

Unless otherwise provided in the applicable Final Terms, the relevant Issuer and/or the other
entities specified in the applicable Final Terms may terminate the offer early by immediate
suspension of the acceptance of further subscription requests and by giving notice to the public
in accordance with the applicable Final Terms. Any such termination may occur, even where the
maximum amount for subscription in relation to that offer (as specified in the applicable Final
Terms), has not been reached and, in such circumstances, the early closing of the offer may
have an impact on the aggregate number of the Securities issued and, therefore, may have an
adverse effect on the liquidity of the Securities.
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Furthermore, under certain circumstances, the relevant Issuer and/or the other entities indicated
in the applicable Final Terms will have the right to postpone the originally-designated issue
date. For the avoidance of doubt, this right applies also in the event that the relevant |ssuer
publishes a supplement to the Base Prospectus in accordance with the provisions of the
Prospectus Directive. In the event that the issue date is so delayed, no compensation or amount
in respect of interest shall be payable or otherwise accrue in relation to such Securities unless
otherwise agreed between the investor and the relevant distributor as payable by the distributor
or the policies of the distributor otherwise provide for the distributor to make any such
payments.

Distributors may acquire Securities at a price that is lower than the issue price and/or receive a
placement fee in relation to a transaction in the Securities. Investors should be aware that the
payment of the fee may create a potential conflict of interest for the distributor. For any reduced
price or fee received in connection with any transaction in the Securities, the distributor is
solely responsible for making adequate disclosure to investors as required by applicable law,
regulation, rule or best market practice.

Risks may be compounded

Various risks relating to the Securities may be correlated or compounded and such correlation
and/or compounding may result in increased volatility in the value of the Securities and/or in
increased losses for holders of the Securities.

Risksrelated to the market generally

Set out below is a brief description of the principal market risks, including liquidity risk, exchange rate
risk, interest rate risk and credit risk:

(i)

(i)

The secondary market generally

Securities may have no established trading market when issued, and one may never develop. If
a market does develop, it may not be very liquid. Therefore, investors may not be able to sell
their Securities easily or at prices that will provide them with a yield comparable to similar
investments that have a developed secondary market. Thisis particularly the case for Securities
that are especialy senditive to interest rate, currency or market risks, are designed for specific
investment objectives or strategies or have been structured to meet the investment requirements
of limited categories of investors. These types of Securities generally would have a more
limited secondary market and more price volatility than conventional debt securities. Illiquidity
may have a severely adverse effect on the market value of Securities.

Investors may not be able to sell Securities readily or at prices that will enable investors to
realise their anticipated yield. No investor should purchase Securities unless the investor
understands and is able to bear the risk that certain Securities will not be readily sellable, that
the value of Securities will fluctuate over time and that such fluctuations will be significant.

[1liquid market

It is not possible to predict the price at which Securities will trade in the secondary market or
whether such market will be liquid or illiquid. Each of the Issuers may, but is not obliged to, list
Securities on a stock exchange. If the Securities are not listed or traded on any exchange market
or trading venue (whether regulated or not), pricing information for the Securities may be more
difficult to obtain and the liquidity of the Securities may be adversely affected. If any Issuer
does list an issue of Securities on any stock or other exchange, then that Issuer shall use all
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reasonable endeavours to maintain such listing. There may aso be less liquidity in the
secondary market for Securities exclusively offered to retail investors without any offer to
institutional investors. Also, to the extent Securities of a particular issue are exercised or
redeemed, the number of Securities of such issue outstanding will decrease, resulting in a
diminished liquidity for the remaining Securities of such issue. A decrease in the liquidity of an
issue of Securities may cause, in turn, an increase in the volatility associated with the price of
such issue of Securities.

Each of the Issuers, the Guarantor and any Dealer may, but is not obliged to, at any time
purchase Securities at any price in the open market or by tender or private treaty. Any Securities
so purchased may be held or resold or surrendered for cancellation. A Dealer may, but is not
obliged to, be a market-maker for an issue of Securities. Even if a Dealer (or another entity) isa
market-maker or liquidity provider for an issue of Securities, it is not clear whether and/or to
what extent this may have an impact on the price of the Securities or the secondary market and
the secondary market for such Securities may still be limited. To the extent that an issue of
Securities becomesilliquid, an investor may have to exercise such Securities to realise value.

For information purposes, where Italian Listed Certificates are listed on the SeDeX Market, the
relevant Issuer (or an entity on behalf of the relevant Issuer) will, for so long as the rules of the
SeDeX Market so require, display continuous "bid" and "offer" prices for such Italian Listed
Certificates, in accordance with the rules of the SeDeX Market.

The Securities may also be traded on trading venues governed by applicable laws and
regulations in force from time to time, such as multilateral trading systems, bilateral systems, or
equivalent trading systems. Where trading in the Securities takes place outside such trading
systems, the manner in which the price of such Securities is determined may be less transparent
and the liquidity of such Securities may be adversely affected.

Exchange rate risks and exchange controls

The relevant Issuer will pay nominal and interest (if applicable) on the Securities and the
Guarantor will make any payments under the Guarantee in the Specified Currency. This
presents certain risks relating to currency conversions if an investor's financial activities are
denominated principally in a currency or currency unit (the Investor's Currency) other than
the Specified Currency. These include the risk that exchange rates may significantly change
(including changes due to devaluation of the Specified Currency or revaluation of the Investor's
Currency) and the risk that authorities with jurisdiction over the Investor's Currency may
impose or modify exchange controls. An appreciation in the value of the Investor's Currency
relative to the Specified Currency would decrease (1) the Investor's Currency-equivalent yield
on the Securities, (2) the Investor's Currency-equivalent value of amounts payable in respect of
the Securities and (3) the Investor's Currency-equivalent market value of the Securities.

Government and monetary authorities may impose (as some have done in the past) exchange
controls that could adversely affect an applicable exchange rate. As a result, investors may
receive less interest (if applicable) or nominal than expected, or no interest (if applicable) or
nominal.

Interest rate risks

Investment in Fixed Rate Securities involves the risk that subsequent changes in market interest
rates may adversely affect the value of the Fixed Rate Securities.
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Interest income on Floating Rate Securities and Linked Interest Rate Securities cannot be
anticipated. Due to varying interest income, investors are not able to determine a definite yield
on the Floating Rate Securities and the Linked Interest Rate Securities at the time they purchase
them, so that their return on investment cannot be compared with that of investments having
longer fixed interest periods.

Credit ratings may not reflect all risks

One or more independent credit rating agencies may assign credit ratings to the Securities. The
ratings may not reflect the potential impact of all risks related to structure, market, additional
factors discussed above, and other factors that may affect the value of the Securities. A credit
rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be revised or withdrawn
by the rating agency at any time.

In general, European regulated investors are restricted under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009
(as amended) (the CRA Regulation) from using credit ratings for regulatory purposes, unless
such ratings are issued by a credit rating agency established in the EU and registered under the
CRA Regulation (and such registration has not been withdrawn or suspended), subject to
transitional provisions that apply in certain circumstances whilst the registration application is
pending. Such genera restriction will also apply in the case of credit ratings issued by non-EU
credit rating agencies, unless the relevant credit ratings are endorsed by an EU-registered credit
rating agency or the relevant non-EU rating agency is certified in accordance with the CRA
Regulation (and such endorsement action or certification, as the case may be, has not been
withdrawn or suspended). The list of registered and certified rating agencies published by the
European Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA) on its website (www.esma.europa.eu) in
accordance with the CRA Regulation is not conclusive evidence of the status of the relevant
rating agency included in such list, as there may be delays between certain supervisory
measures being taken against a relevant rating agency and the publication of the updated ESMA
list. Certain information with respect to the credit rating agencies and ratings is set out in the
2015 Registration Document incorporated by reference into this Base Prospectus and will be
disclosed (if applicable) in the Final Terms.

Effect of a credit rating reduction

The value of the Securities is expected to be affected, in part, by investors general appraisal of
the Issuers and Guarantor's creditworthiness. Such perceptions are generally influenced by the
ratings accorded to the Issuers and Guarantor's outstanding Securities by standard statistical
rating services, such as Moody's Investors Service Limited, Standard & Poor's Ratings Services,
adivision of Standard & Poor's Credit Market Service Europe Limited, and Fitch Ratings Ltd.
A reduction in the rating, if any, accorded to outstanding debt securities of the Issuers or the
Guarantor by one of these rating agencies could result in a reduction in the trading value of the
Securities.

Market value of the Securities

The market value of the Securities will be affected by the creditworthiness of the relevant | ssuer
and a number of additional factors, including the value of the relevant Underlying(s) (which in
turn will depend on, but not be limited to, the volatility of the relevant Underlying(s), or the
dividend on the securities comprised in any Index or Proprietary Index that is an Underlying,
market interest and yield rates and the time remaining to the redemption date) and, as the case
may be, the financial condition and creditworthiness of any applicable Reference Entity or
Bond |ssuer.
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The value of the Securities and the relevant Underlying(s) or, as the case may be, the likelihood
of a Credit Event or Bond Event occurring, depends on a number of interrelated factors,
including economic, financial and political events in France, Guernsey or elsewhere, including
factors affecting capital markets generally and the stock exchanges on which the Securities, the
Underlying(s) or the securities comprised in any Index or Proprietary Index that is an
Underlying are traded. The price at which a Securityholder will be able to sell the Securities
prior to maturity may be at a discount, which could be substantial, from the issue price or the
purchase price paid by such purchaser. The historical prices or levels of the relevant
Underlying(s) should not be taken as an indication of the relevant Underlying(s)'s future
performance during the term of any Security.

Investors should note that the issue price and/or offer price of the Securities may include
subscription fees and/or placement fees and/or direction fees and/or structuring fees and/or
other additional costs or inducements. Any such fees may not be taken into account for the
purposes of determining the price of such Securities on the secondary market and could result
in a difference between the theoretical value of the Securities and the actual bid/offer price
quoted by any intermediary in the secondary market.

Any such difference may have an adverse effect on the value of the Securities, particularly
immediately following their offer and the issue date relating to such Securities, where any such
fees and/or costs may be deducted from the price at which such Securities can be sold by the
initial investor in the secondary market.

The trading price of Securities may fall in value as rapidly as it may rise and holders of
Securities may sustain atotal loss of their investment. Prospective purchasers should therefore
ensure that they understand the nature of Securities and should form their own view of the
merits of Securities and not rely on information contained in the applicable Final Terms or this
Base Prospectus.

Therisk of the loss of some or all of the purchase price of a Security upon maturity means that,
in order to recover and realise a return upon his or her investment, a purchaser of a Security
must generally be correct about the direction, timing and magnitude of an anticipated change in
the value of the relevant reference equity index (or basket of equity indices), FX rate (or basket
of FX rates), commodity (or basket of commodities), benchmark rate (or basket of benchmark
rates), inflation index (or basket of inflation indices), proprietary index (or basket of proprietary
indices), exchange traded fund (or basket of exchange traded funds) or share (or basket of
shares) or combination of any of them as may be specified in the applicable Final Terms.
Assuming all other factors are held constant, the more a Security is "out-of-the-money" and the
shorter its remaining term to maturity, the greater the risk that purchasers of such Securities will
lose al or part of their investment.

In the case of Secured Securities, the market value of the Securities will also be affected by,
amongst other things, the Collateral Assets which secure the relevant Series of Securities and
whether or not Collateral Monitoring applies.

Legal investment considerations may restrict certain investments
Independent review and advice

Each prospective purchaser of Securities must determine, based on its own independent review
and such professional advice as it deems appropriate under the circumstances, that its
acquisition of the Securities (i) is fully consistent with its (or if it is acquiring the Securitiesin a
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fiduciary capacity, the beneficiary's) financial needs, objectives and condition, (ii) complies and
is fully consistent with all investment policies, guidelines and restrictions applicable to it
(whether acquiring the Securities as principal or in afiduciary capacity) and (iii) is a fit, proper
and suitable investment for it (or if it is acquiring the Securities in a fiduciary capacity, for the
beneficiary), notwithstanding the clear and substantial risks inherent in investing in or holding
the Securities. Potential investors should consult with their own tax, legal, accounting and/or
financial advisors before considering investing in the Securities.

The investment activities of certain investors are subject to legal investment laws and
regulations, or review or regulation by certain authorities. Each potential investor should
consult its legal advisers to determine whether and to what extent (1) Securities are legal
investments for it, (2) Securities can be used as collateral for various types of borrowing and
(3) other restrictions apply to its purchase or pledge of any Securities. Financial institutions
should consult their legal advisors or the appropriate regulators to determine the appropriate
treatment of Securities under any applicable risk-based capital or similar rules.

(i)  Noreliance

A prospective purchaser may not rely on the Issuers, the Guarantor, the Arranger or any of their
respective affiliates in connection with its determination as to the legality of its acquisition of
the Securities or as to the other matters referred to above. None of the Issuers, the Guarantor,
the Arranger or any of their respective affiliates has or assumes responsibility for the lawfulness
of the acquisition of the Securities by any investor under the laws of any jurisdiction or for
compliance by that investor with any law, regulation or regulatory policy applicable to it.

An investor should be aware that any communication (written or oral) received from any
member of the Group should not be taken as an assurance or guarantee as to the expected
results or performance of the Securities. Any term sheet with respect to the Securities received
on or prior to the issue date is superseded in its entirety by the Base Prospectus, together with
the Final Terms, which solely constitute the legally binding terms and conditions of the
Securities.

(ili)  Restrictions on transfer

Notwithstanding the lawfulness of any acquisition of the Securities, sales or transfers of
Securities that would cause Crédit Agricole CIB FG or Crédit Agricole CIB FSto be required to
register as an "investment company" under the Investment Company Act will be prohibited and
treated by the relevant Issuer or, as the case may be, the Registrar as void ab initio and will not
be honoured by the relevant Issuer and the relevant Issuer will have the right at any time, at the
expense and risk of the holder of the Securities held by or on behalf of a U.S. person who is not
a qualified purchaser at the time it purchases such Securities, (i) to redeem such Securities, in
whole or in part, to permit such Issuer to avoid registration under the Investment Company Act
or (ii) to require such holder to sell such Securities to a QIB that is a QP in accordance with
Rule 144A or to a non-U.S. person outside the United States in accordance with Regulation S.
See" Subscription and Sale”.

® Risks related to Commodity Linked Securities, FX Linked Securities, Index Linked
Securities, Inflation Linked Securities, Rate Linked Securities, ETF Linked Securities,
ShareLinked Securitiesand Multi-Asset Basket Linked Securities

The relevant Issuer may issue Securities with nominal and/or interest (if applicable) determined by
reference to one or more:
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Q) Commodities;
@it)  Indices;
(ili)  Proprietary Indices;
(iv) Inflation Indices;
(v) FX Rates,
(vi) Benchmark Rates;
(vii) ETFs;
(viii) Shares;
(ix)  Multi-Asset Baskets; or
(x)  formulae; and

(xi)  Dual Currency Securities;

(each, a Relevant Factor).

Potential investors should be aware that:

(i)
(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the market price of such Securities may be volatile;

movements in the Relevant Factor may adversely affect the amount of nominal and/or interest
(if applicable) to be paid to the Securityholder and may aso affect the market value of the
Securities,

they may receive no interest;

payment of nominal and interest (if applicable) may occur at a different time or in a different
currency than expected;

the amount of nomina to be repaid may be less than the stated nominal amount of the
Securities or may even be zero;

a Relevant Factor may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes
ininterest rates, currencies or other indices;

if a Relevant Factor is applied to Securities in conjunction with a multiplier greater than one or
contains some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the Relevant Factor on nominal
and/or interest (if applicable) payable likely will be magnified; and

the timing of changes in a Relevant Factor may affect the actua yield to investors, even if the
average level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the
Relevant Factor, the greater the effect on yield.

The historical experience of a Relevant Factor should not be viewed as an indication of the future
performance of such Relevant Factor during the term of any Commodity Linked Securities, FX Linked
Securities, Index Linked Securities, Inflation Linked Securities, Rate Linked Securities, ETF Linked
Securities, Share Linked Securities or Multi-Asset Basket Linked Securities. Accordingly, each
potential investor should consult its own financial and legal advisers about the risk entailed by an
investment in any Commodity Linked Securities, FX Linked Securities, Index Linked Securities,
Inflation Linked Securities, Rate Linked Securities, ETF Linked Securities, Share Linked Securities or
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Multi-Asset Basket Linked Securities and the suitability of such Securities in the light of its particular
circumstances.

() Risksrelated toIndex Linked Securitiesand Inflation Linked Securities

Index Linked Securities and Inflation Linked Securities are not in any way sponsored, endorsed, sold
or promoted by the sponsor of the relevant Index(ices), Proprietary Index(ices) or Inflation Index(ices)
(as the case may be) (the Sponsor) and the Sponsor(s) make(s) no warranty or representation
whatsoever, express or implied, either as to the results to be obtained from the use of the Index(ices)
and/or the figure at which the Index(ices), Proprietary Index(ices) or Inflation Index(ices) (as the case
may be) stands at any particular time on any particular day or otherwise. An investor's decision to
invest in the Securities should be made without reliance on the Sponsor(s). The Sponsor(s) shall not be
liable (whether in negligence or otherwise) for any loss, damages, costs, charges, expenses or other
liabilities including, without limitation, liability for any special, punitive, indirect or consequential
damages, even if notified of the possibility of such damages to any person for any error in the
Index(ices) and the Sponsor(s) shall not be under any obligation to advise any person of an error
therein.

The risk factors set out in this paragraph and below (relating to Proprietary Indices) are not intended to
be and should not be relied upon as a substitute for reading the relevant index rules. The investor
should carefully read the index rulesin their entirety to understand the terms of the Index, Proprietary
Index or Inflation Index (as the case may be).

(h) Risksrelated to FX Linked Securities

The Issuers may issue Securities where the amount of nominal and/or interest payable are dependent
upon movements in currency exchange rates or are payable in one or more currencies which may be
different from the currency in which the Securities are denominated. Accordingly an investment in FX
Linked Securities may bear similar market risks to a direct foreign exchange investment and potential
investors should take advice accordingly.

Potential investors in any such Securities should be aware that, depending on the terms of the FX
Linked Securities (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payment of nominal
and/or interest (if applicable) may occur at a different time or in a different currency than expected and
(iii) they may lose a substantial portion of their investment. In addition, movements in currency
exchange rates may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in
interest rates or other indices and the timing of changes in the exchange rates may affect the actual
yield to investors, even if the average level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier
the change in currency exchange rates, the greater the effect on yield.

Exchange rates between currencies are determined by factors of supply and demand in the
international currency markets, which are influenced, by macro-economic factors, speculation and
central bank and government intervention (including the imposition of currency controls and
restrictions). Movements in currency exchange rates may be dependent upon economic, financial and
political events in one or more jurisdictions, including inflation rates in the countries concerned,
interest rate differences between the respective countries, economic forecasts, international political
factors, fisca and monetary policy, government debt, currency convertibility and safety of making
financial investments in the currency concerned, speculation and intervening measures taken by
governments and central banks. Such measures include, without limitation, imposition of regulatory
controls or taxes, issuance of a new currency to replace an existing currency, alteration of the exchange
rate or exchange characteristics by devaluation or revaluation of a currency or imposition of exchange
controls with respect to the exchange or transfer of a specified currency that would affect exchange
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rates as well as the availability of a specified currency. Any such measures could have a negative
impact on the value of the Securities.

Currency exchange risks can be expected to heighten in periods of financial turmoil. In periods of
financial turmoil, capital can move quickly out of regions that are perceived to be more vulnerable to
the effects of the crisis with sudden and severely adverse consequences to the currencies of those
regions as a result. In addition, governments around the world have recently made, and may be
expected to continue to make, very significant interventions in their economies, and sometimes
directly in their currencies. It is not possible to predict the effect of any future legal or regulatory
action relating to a currency. Further interventions, other government actions or suspensions of actions,
as well as other changes in government economic policy or other financial or economic events
affecting the currency markets - including the replacement of entire currencies with new currencies -
may cause FX rates to fluctuate sharply in the future, which could have a negative impact on the value
of the Security.

If the amount of nominal and/or interest (if applicable) payable for the Securities are dependent upon
movements in currency exchange rates and are determined in conjunction with a multiplier greater
than one or by reference to some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the currency exchange
rates on nominal or interest payable will be magnified.

In recent years, rates of exchange between some currencies have been volatile. This volatility may be
expected in the future. Fluctuations that have occurred in any particular exchange rate in the past are
not necessarily indicative, however, of fluctuation that may occur in the rate during the term of any
Security. Fluctuations in exchange rates will affect the value of FX Linked Securities. The market price
of such Securities may be volatile and, if the amount of nominal and/or interest (if applicable) payable
is dependent upon movements in currency exchange rates, may depend upon the time remaining to the
redemption date and the volatility of currency exchange rates.

() Risksrelated tothe Proprietary Indices
() The Proprietary Indices are rules-based indices

The Proprietary Indices follow notional rules-based proprietary trading strategies that operate
on the basis of predefined rules. Accordingly, potential investors in investment products linked
to the performance of one or more Proprietary Indices should determine whether the applicable
rules-based proprietary trading strategies are appropriate in light of their individua
circumstances and investment objectives.

No assurance can be given that any synthetic investment strategy on which a Proprietary Index
is based will be successful or that any Proprietary Index will outperform any alternative strategy
that might be employed in respect of the Underlying Congtituent(s) of the Proprietary Index.

(i)  The Proprietary Indices are constructed on "notional" Underlying Constituents

The Proprietary Indices are constructed on "notional” Underlying Constituent(s). There is no
actual portfolio of underlying constituents or assets to which any person is entitled or in which
any person has any ownership interest or which serve as collateral for the return on any
investment product, which is linked, to the performance of one or more Proprietary Indices.
Each Proprietary Index merely identifies certain Underlying Constituent(s) and a notional rules
based proprietary trading strategy, the performance of which are used as a reference point for
the purposes of calculating the level of the Proprietary Index. Consequently, investors in
investment products, which are linked to the performance of one or more Proprietary Indices,
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will not have any claim against any of the Underlying Constituents, which are comprised in the
relevant Proprietary Indices.

Historical levels of the Proprietary Indices should not be taken as an indication of the future
performance of any Proprietary Index

The Proprietary Indices are only recently established and therefore have only a limited history
to evaluate their likely performance. Any back-testing or similar analysis performed by any
person in respect of a Proprietary Index must be considered illustrative only and may be based
on estimates or assumptions not used by the Proprietary Index Calculation Agent when
determining the Proprietary Index Level.

It isimpossible to predict whether a Proprietary Index will rise or fall. The actual performance
of a Proprietary Index during any future period may bear little relation to the historical level of
such Proprietary Index and should not be considered indicative of future performance.

The Proprietary Indices are "price return” indices

The Proprietary Indices are "price return” indices which measure the returns accrued from
notionally investing in underlying futures contracts (based on the prices of such futures
contracts), which reference government bonds. The Proprietary Indices do not take account of
the interest or redemption payments that holders of the underlying government bonds would
receive and so do not reflect the return an investor might receive by investing in the underlying
government bonds themsel ves.

The Proprietary Index Level can be volatile and move dramatically over short periods of time

The levels of the Underlying Constituents and rules-based proprietary trading strategies can be
volatile and move dramatically over short periods of time. There can be no assurance that the
relevant synthetic exposures will not be subject to substantial negative returns. Positive returns
on the Proprietary Indices may therefore be reduced or eliminated entirely due to movementsin
any of these market parameters.

Each Proprietary Index is comprised of futures contracts, which reference government bonds.
Price movements in the relevant futures can be very volatile; they can change frequently and by
large amounts. Prices are influenced by a number of factors including, without limitation,
government policies and programmes, political and economic events, changes in applicable
interest rates and inflation rates and the emotions of market participants. The price of the
relevant futures contract may also be correlated to extent with the price of another futures
commaodity contract, and so price movements in one futures contract may also affect the price
of another.

The performance of a Proprietary Index is dependent on the performance of the Underlying
Constituents of that Proprietary Index

The performance of a Proprietary Index is dependent on the performance of the Underlying
Constituents of the Proprietary Index and the relevant notional rules-based proprietary trading
strategy. As a conseguence, investors in investment products linked to one or more Proprietary
Indices should appreciate that their investment is exposed to the performance of the Underlying
Constituents and such rules-based strategies.
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The construction of the Proprietary Indices is complex and is dependent on a number of
external factors

The publication of the Proprietary Index Level depends on maintenance of requisite index
licences, the continued exchange trading of the applicable futures contracts or other assets that
are notionally comprised in certain Underlying Constituents and publication of the levels of the
Underlying Constituents. Any disturbance or discontinuation of any of these actions may
adversely affect the ability of the Proprietary Index Calculation Agent to continue with the
calculation and publication of the Proprietary Index Level.

The Proprietary Index Calculation Agent has discretion in making determinations and
calculations

The rules relating to each Proprietary Index confer discretion on the Proprietary Index
Calculation Agent in making certain determinations and calculations from time to time. The
exercise of such discretion in the making of calculations and determinations may adversely
affect the performance of the Proprietary Indices. Without limitation to the generality of the
foregoing, the Proprietary Index Calculation Agent has a discretion in relation to the calculation
of the Proprietary Index Level in the event of (amongst other events) a Proprietary Index
Market Disruption Event in respect of an Underlying Constituent and certain other
extraordinary events (which include, amongst other events, Force Majeure Events, Hedging
Disruption Events, Increased Cost of Hedging Events, the elimination, conversion,
redenomination or exchange of a currency, cancellation of relevant licences and change of law).

The Proprietary Index Calculation Agent is responsible for all calculations and determinations
related to the Proprietary Indices. The Proprietary Index Calculation Agent may exercise a
certain amount of discretion in making these calculations and determinations. The exercise of
this discretion may have an adverse impact on the level of the Proprietary Indices and therefore
on the return on any investment product which is linked to the performance of one or more
Proprietary Index.

The Proprietary Index Calculation Agent is also responsible for calculating and publishing the
level of the Proprietary Indices. The level of each Proprietary Index will reflect the prices of the
commaodity futures included in such Proprietary Index. In the event that the price published by
any exchange for a particular futures contract is subsequently corrected, the Proprietary Index
Calculation Agent may, if it determinesin its discretion that it is practicable and the correction
is material, correct the level of the relevant Proprietary Index in respect of the relevant days to
reflect the price correction. A correction will only be made if the Proprietary Index Calculation
Agent determines, in its discretion, that the price correction is material and it is practicable to
make the correction to the level of the relevant Proprietary Index. The exercise of this discretion
will therefore affect the level of the relevant Proprietary Index.

The foregoing is not intended to be an exhaustive list of the discretion that the Proprietary Index
Calculation Agent may exercise in relation to the Proprietary Indices. It is only intended to
illustrate some of the areas in which the Proprietary Index Calculation Agent may exercise
discretion and provide an indication of how the exercise of such discretion may impact the level
of the Proprietary Indices and therefore the return on any investment products, which is linked
to the performance of the Proprietary Indices. Investors should refer to the Index Description to
ensure they understand when and how the Proprietary Index Calculation Agent may exercise
discretion in relation to the Proprietary Indices.
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Potential conflicts of interest may exist in the structure and operation of a Proprietary Index

Potential conflicts of interest may exist in the structure and operation of a Proprietary Index and
the course of the normal business activities of the Proprietary Index Calculation Agent and any
affiliate or subsidiary of the Proprietary Index Calculation Agent or their respective directors,
officers, employees, representatives, delegates or agents (each a Relevant Per son).

During the course of their normal business, the Proprietary Index Calculation Agent and each
Relevant Person may enter into or promote, offer or sell transactions or investments (structured
or otherwise) linked to the Proprietary Indices. In addition, the Proprietary Index Calculation
Agent and any Relevant Person may have, or may have had, interests or positions, or may buy,
sell or otherwise trade positions in or relating to the Proprietary Indices, or may invest or
engage in transactions with other persons, or on behalf of such persons relating to any of these
items. Such activity may or may not have an impact on the Proprietary Index Level of a
Proprietary Index but anyone contemplating an exposure to the Proprietary Indices should be
aware that a conflict of interest could arise where any party is acting in more than one capacity,
and such conflict may have an impact, positive or negative on the Proprietary Index Level.

Neither the Proprietary Index Calculation Agent nor any Relevant Person has any duty to
consider the circumstances of any person when participating in such transactions or to conduct
themselves in a manner that is favourable to anyone with exposure to the Proprietary Indices.

The Proprietary Indices are not actively managed

Each Proprietary Index is operated in accordance with a set methodology. There will be no
active management of the Proprietary Indices so as to enhance returns beyond those that may
result from the application of such methodology. As a result, hypothetical investors in a
Proprietary Index may be exposed to more or less risk than investors investing in the
Underlying Constituents themselves or investing in managed products.

The Proprietary Indices could be changed or become unavailable

The Proprietary Index Calculation Agent reserves the right to ater the methodology used to
calculate any Proprietary Index or the formulae underlying such Proprietary Index or to
discontinue calculation and dissemination of such Proprietary Index and an alteration may
result in a decrease in the value of the Proprietary Index. As such, many aspects of the
Proprietary Indices may change in the future, including, without limitation, the formulae,
methodology and third party data sources.

The Proprietary Index Calculation Agent relies upon third party data sources which may be
inaccessible and/or inaccurate

The Proprietary Index Calculation Agent relies upon third party external sources to obtain
certain inputs necessary to compute the Proprietary Indices. The inability of the Proprietary
Index Calculation Agent to source necessary data to carry out a Proprietary Index formula may
affect the value of the Proprietary Index. In addition, the Proprietary Index Calculation Agent
makes no warranty as to the correctness or completeness of that information and takes no
responsibility for the accuracy of such data or the impact of any inaccuracy of such data on the
value of the Proprietary Index.

The Momentum Strategy Proprietary Indices may not achieve their stated aim

The Momentum Strategy Proprietary Indices are constructed using a momentum investment
strategy. Momentum investing generally seeks to capitalise on positive and negative trends in
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the price of the assets. No assurance can be given that the investment strategy used to construct
the Momentum Strategy Proprietary Indices will be successful or that the Momentum Strategy
Proprietary Indices will outperform any alternative strategy that might be constructed from the
Underlying Constituent of the relevant Momentum Strategy Proprietary Index.

Risksrelated to ETF Linked Securities

Where the Underlying is an exchange traded fund, there is a risk that such exchange traded
fund will not accurately track its underlying share or index

Where the Securities are linked to an ETF and the investment objective of such ETF isto track
the performance of a share or an index, the investors of such Securities are exposed to the
performance of such ETF rather than the underlying share or index such ETF tracks. For certain
reasons, including to comply with certain tax and regulatory constraints, an ETF may not be
able to track or replicate the constituent securities of the underlying share or index, which could
give rise to a difference between the performance of the underlying share or index and such
ETF. Accordingly, investors who purchase Securities that are linked to an ETF may receive a
lower return than if such investors had invested in the share or the index underlying such ETF
directly.

Action or non-performance by the management company, fund administrator or sponsor of an
exchange traded fund may adversely affect the Securities

The management company, fund administrator or sponsor of an ETF will have no involvement
in the offer and sale of the Securities and will have no obligation to any purchaser of such
Securities. The management company, fund administrator or sponsor of an ETF may take any
actions in respect of such ETF without regard to the interests of the purchasers of the Securities,
and any of these actions could adversely affect the market value of the Securities. In its day-to-
day operations and its investment strategy, an ETF will rely on the fund advisor, the investment
advisor, the management company and/or on third parties providing services such as
safekeeping of assets or acting as counterparty to derivatives or other instruments used by such
ETF to employ its investment strategy. The insolvency or non-performance of services of any
such persons or ingtitutions may expose an ETF to financial loss. Failure of procedures or
systems, as well as human error or external events associated with an ETF's management and/or
administration may cause lossesto an ETF and affect the market value of the Securities.

Exchange traded funds are not actively managed

An ETF is not actively managed and may be affected by genera movements in market
segments related to the index or other asset it is tracking. An ETF invests in instruments
included in, or that are representative of, the index or other asset it is tracking regardless of their
investment merits.

Exchange traded funds may engage in securities lending

Securities lending involves the risk that the ETF may lose money because the borrower of the
ETF'sloaned securities fails to return the securitiesin atimely manner or at all.

Exchange traded funds are subject to market trading risks

An ETF faces numerous market trading risks, including but not limited to the potential lack of
an active market for its shares, losses from trading in secondary markets, periods of high
volatility, limited liquidity and disruption in the creation or redemption process of such ETF. If
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any of these risks materialises, this may lead to the ETF shares trading at a premium or discount
to the net asset value.

Investors should investigate the underlying exchange traded fund(s) asif investing directly

To the extent the underlying(s) of a series of Securities include(s) an ETF or a basket of ETFs,
investors should conduct their own diligence of the underlying exchange traded fund(s) as they
would if they were directly investing in the underlying exchange traded fund(s). The offering of
the Securities does not constitute a recommendation by Crédit Agricole CIB or any of its
affiliates with respect to an investment linked to an underlying exchange traded fund (including
in respect of funds that are managed by managers affiliated with Crédit Agricole CIB. Investors
should not conclude that the sale by the Issuers of the Securities is any form of investment
recommendation by the Issuers or any of their affiliates to invest in the underlying exchange
traded fund(s).

No ownership rights in any underlying exchange traded fund(s)

An investment in the Securities does not entitle Securityholders to any ownership interest or
rights in any underlying exchange traded fund(s), such as voting rights or rights to any
payments made to owners of the underlying exchange traded fund(s). Instead, a Security
represents a notional investment in the underlying exchange traded fund(s). The term "notional"
is used because although the value of the underlying exchange traded fund(s) will be used to
calculate payments under the Securities, an investment in the Securities may not be used to
purchase interests in the underlying exchange traded fund(s) on behalf of an investor. The
relevant Issuer, or an affiliate of such Issuer, may purchase interests in the underlying exchange
traded fund(s) in order to hedge its obligations under the Securities but it is under no obligation
to do so.

Determinations made by the Calculation Agent in respect of Potential Adjustment Events and
Extraordinary Events may have an adver se effect on the value of the Securities

Upon determining that a Potential Adjustment Event or an Extraordinary Event has occurred in
relation to an underlying exchange traded fund or in relation to a share or unit of an underlying
exchange traded fund, the Calculation Agent has discretionary authority under the terms and
conditions of the Securities to make certain determinations to account for such event including
to (i) make adjustments to the terms of the Securities and/or (ii) cause early redemption of the
Securities, any of which determinations may have an adverse effect on the value of the
Securities.

Risksrelating to physical settlement

Where the Securities provide for physical delivery, the relevant Issuer may determine that the
specified assets to be delivered are either (@) assets which for any reason (including, without
limitation, failure of the relevant clearance system or due to any law, regulation, court order or
market conditions or the non-receipt of any requisite consents with respect to the delivery of
assets which are loans) it is impossible or illegal to deliver on the specified settlement date or
(b) assets which the relevant I ssuer and/or any affiliate has not received under the terms of any
transaction entered into by the relevant I ssuer and/or such affiliate to hedge the relevant Issuer's
obligations in respect of the Securities. Any such determination may delay settlement in respect
of the Securities and/or cause the obligation to deliver such specified assets to be replaced by an
obligation to pay a cash amount which, in either case, may affect the value of the Securities
and, in the case of payment of a cash amount, will affect the timing of the valuation of such
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Securities and as a result, the amount of nominal payable on redemption. Prospective investors
should review the Conditions of the Securities and the applicable Final Terms to ascertain
whether and how such provisions should apply to the Securities.

Non-delivery of ETF Unitswill not constitute an Event of Default

Where physical settlement applies to the Securities, if the relevant Issuer and/or any of its
affiliates have not received the ETF Units and/or cash under the terms of a Hedge Transaction,
such event will not constitute an Event of Default for the purpose of the Securities. In such
circumstances settlement of the Securities, may be substantialy delayed and/or may be in cash
(in whole or in part).

Risksrelated to Share Linked Securities
No beneficial interest in the underlying shares

A holder of the Securities will not be a beneficial owner of the underlying shares and therefore
will not be entitled to receive any dividends or similar amounts paid on the underlying shares,
nor will a Securityholder be entitled to purchase the underlying shares by virtue of its
ownership of the Securities. Moreover, holders of the Securities will not be entitled to any
voting rights or other control rights that holders of the underlying shares may have with respect
to the issuer of such underlying shares. The redemption amounts payable in respect of the
Securities will not reflect the payment of any dividends on the underlying shares. Accordingly,
the return on the Securities will not reflect the return, which could be realised with the reception
of dividends if any, paid on those securities being the owner of the underlying shares.
Therefore, the yield to maturity based on the methodology for calculating the redemption
amounts payable in respect of the Securities will not be the same yield as would be produced if
the underlying shares were purchased directly and held for asimilar period.

Limited antidilution protection

The Calculation Agent may make adjustments to elements of the Securities as described in the
Share Linked Asset Conditions. The Calculation Agent is not required to make an adjustment
for every corporate event that may affect the underlying shares or depositary receipts. Those
events or other actions by the issuer of underlying shares or depositary receipts or a third party
may nevertheless adversely affect the market price of the underlying shares or depositary
receipts and, therefore, adversely affect the value of the Securities. The issuer of underlying
shares or depositary receipts or a third party could make an offering or exchange offer or the
issuer of underlying shares or depositary receipts could take another action that adversely
affects the value of the underlying shares or depositary receipts and the Securities but does not
result in an adjustment.

Risks arising from conduct of issuers of shares

The issuers of underlying shares are not involved in the offer of the Securities in any way and
have no obligation to consider the interests of the Securityholders in taking any corporate
actions that might affect the value of the Securities. The issuers of underlying shares may take
actionsthat will adversely affect the value of the Securities.

Risksrelating to physical settlement

Where the Securities provide for physical delivery, the relevant Issuer may determine that the
specified assets to be delivered are either (a) assets which for any reason (including, without
limitation, failure of the relevant clearance system or due to any law, regulation, court order or
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market conditions or the non-receipt of any requisite consents with respect to the delivery of
assets which are loans) it is impossible or illegal to deliver on the specified settlement date or
(b) assets which the relevant Issuer and/or any affiliate has not received under the terms of any
transaction entered into by the relevant Issuer and/or such affiliate to hedge the relevant Issuer's
obligations in respect of the Securities. Any such determination may delay settlement in respect
of the Securities and/or cause the obligation to deliver such specified assets to be replaced by an
obligation to pay a cash amount which, in either case, may affect the value of the Securities
and, in the case of payment of a cash amount, will affect the timing of the valuation of such
Securities and as a result, the amount of nominal payable on redemption. Prospective investors
should review the Conditions of the Securities and the applicable Final Terms to ascertain
whether and how such provisions should apply to the Securities.

(v)  Non-delivery of Shareswill not congtitute an Event of Default

Where physical settlement applies to the Securities, if the relevant Issuer and/or any of its
affiliates have not received the Shares and/or cash under the terms of a Hedge Transaction, such
event will not congtitute an Event of Default for the purpose of the Securities. In such
circumstances settlement of the Securities, may be substantialy delayed and/or may be in cash
(in whole or in part).

() Certain considerationsregar ding hedging

Prospective purchasers intending to purchase Securities to hedge against the market risk associated
with investing in any Relevant Factor (or a combination of any of them), should recognise the
complexities of utilising Securities in this manner. For example, the value of the Securities may not
exactly correlate with the value of the Relevant Factor (or a combination of any of them). Due to
fluctuating supply and demand for the Securities, there is no assurance that their value will correlate
with movements of the Relevant Factor (or a combination of any of them). For these reasons, among
others, it may not be possible to purchase or liquidate securities in a portfolio at the prices used to
calculate the value of any relevant index or basket. In addition, in certain cases, the ability of
Securityholders, as the case may be, to use Securities for hedging may be restricted by the provisions
of the SecuritiesAct.

In the ordinary course of their business, including without limitation in connection with their market-
making activities, the Issuers, the Guarantor and/or any of their affiliates may effect transactions for
their own account or for the account of their customers and hold long or short positionsin the Relevant
Factor(s). In addition, in connection with the offering of any Securities, the Issuers, the Guarantor
and/or any of their affiliates may enter into one or more hedging transactions with respect to, among
others, the Relevant Factor(s). The entry into of such hedging transactions or the conduct of such
market-making, proprietary or other trading activities by the Issuers, the Guarantor and/or any of their
affiliates, may affect the market price, liquidity or value of the Securities in a manner adverse to the
interests of the holders thereof.

(m) Risksrelated to Credit Linked Securities
() General

The Issuers may issue Securities where the amount of nominal and/or interest (if applicable)
payable are dependent upon whether certain default events (Credit Events) have occurred in
respect of one or more Reference Entities and, if so, on the value of certain specified assets of
such Reference Entity/Entities or where, if such events have occurred, on redemption the
relevant Issuer's obligation is to deliver certain specified assets.

106



(i)

Risk Factors

Prospective investors in any such Securities should be aware that depending on the terms of the
Credit Linked Securities (CLSs) (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest
(if applicable), (ii) payment of nominal or interest (if applicable) or delivery of any specified
assets may occur at a different time than expected and (iii) they may lose al or a substantial
portion of their investment.

The market price of such Securities may be volatile and will be affected by, amongst other
things, the time remaining to the redemption date and the creditworthiness of the Reference
Entity(ies) which in turn may be affected by the economic, financial and political eventsin one
or more jurisdictions.

Where the Securities provide for physical delivery, the relevant Issuer may determine that the
specified assets to be delivered are either (a) assets which for any reason (including, without
limitation, failure of the relevant clearance system or due to any law, regulation, court order or
market conditions or the non-receipt of any requisite consents with respect to the delivery of
assets which are loans) it is impossible or illegal to deliver on the specified settlement date or
(b) assets which the relevant Issuer and/or any affiliate has not received under the terms of any
transaction entered into by the relevant Issuer and/or such affiliate to hedge the relevant Issuer's
obligations in respect of the Securities. Any such determination may delay settlement in respect
of the Securities and/or cause the obligation to deliver such specified assets to be replaced by an
obligation to pay a cash amount which, in either case, may affect the value of the Securities
and, in the case of payment of a cash amount, will affect the timing of the valuation of such
Securities and as a result, the amount of nominal payable on redemption. Prospective investors
should review the Conditions of the Securities and the applicable Final Terms to ascertain
whether and how such provisions should apply to the Securities.

The relevant Issuer's obligations in respect of CLSs are irrespective of the existence or amount
of the relevant Issuer's and/or any affiliates credit exposure to a Reference Entity, and the
relevant Issuer and/or any affiliate need not suffer any loss nor provide evidence of any lossas a
result of the occurrence of a Credit Event.

Securityholders are exposed to credit risk on Reference Entities

The holders of CLSs will be exposed to the credit of one or more Reference Entities, which
exposure shall be, unless otherwise stated in the applicable Final Terms, to the full extent of
their investment in such Securities. Upon the occurrence of any specified Credit Event with
respect to any Reference Entity, the Securityholders may suffer significant losses at atime when
losses may be suffered by a direct investor in obligations of such Reference Entity. However,
the holding of a Security is unlikely to lead to outcomes, which exactly reflect the impact of
investing in an obligation of a Reference Entity, and losses could be considerably greater than
would be suffered by a direct investor in the obligations of a Reference Entity and/or could
arise for reasons unrelated to such Reference Entity. Securityholders should also note that a
Credit Event may occur even if the obligations of a Reference Entity are unenforceable or their
performance is prohibited by any applicable law or exchange controls.

Where cash settlement or auction settlement applies, the occurrence of a Credit Event in
relation to any Reference Entity from time to time may result in a redemption of the Securities
in a reduced nominal amount or at zero (0) and, (if applicable) in a reduction of the amount on
which interest is calculated. Where physical settlement applies, the occurrence of a Credit Event
may result in the redemption of the Securities based on the valuation (or by delivery) of certain
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direct or indirect obligations of the affected Reference Entity, which obligations are likely to
have a market value which is substantially less than their per amount.

Investors in the Securities are accordingly exposed, as to both nominal amount and
(if applicable) interest, to the credit risk of the Reference Entity(ies). The maximum loss to an
investor in the Securitiesis 100 per cent. of their initial investment, together with (if applicable)
any interest amounts.

A Credit Event may occur prior to the Trade Date

Securityholders may suffer a loss of some or al of the nominal amount of the Securities in
respect of one or more Credit Events that may be determined to have occurred prior to the
Trade Date or the Issue Date. Neither the Calculation Agent or the relevant Issuer nor any of
their respective affiliates has any responsbility to inform any Securityholder, or avoid or
mitigate the effects of a Credit Event that has taken place prior to the Trade Date or the Issue
Date.

Increased credit risk is associated with "Nth-to-default” CLSs

Where the Securities are Nth-to-Default CLSs, the Securities will be subject to redemption in
full as described above upon the occurrence of a Credit Event in relation to the Nth Reference
Entity.

Credit risk may be increased where Reference Entities are concentrated in a particular sector
or region

Where the Securities are Nth-to-Default CLSs or Linear Basket CLSs, the credit risk to
investors in the Securities may be increased, amongst other things, as a result of the
concentration of Reference Entities in a particular industry sector or geographic area, or the
exposure of the Reference Entities to similar financia or other risks as other Reference Entities.

Redemption amount may be subject to a fixed recovery percentage

Where the Securities are Fixed Recovery CLSs, the occurrence of a Credit Event may result in
an amount payable on the redemption of the Securities that will be calculated by reference to a
fixed recovery percentage. Such percentage could be materially lower than the price of the
relevant obligations of the relevant Reference Entity.

Redemption amount may be subject to a specific principal protection amount

Where the Securities are Partialy Principal Protected CLSs, the occurrence of a Credit Event
may result in an amount payable on the redemption of the Securities that will be calculated by
reference to a specified amount which will be different from the nominal amount outstanding of
the Securities and the Securityholders may suffer a loss of some of the nominal amount of the
Securities.

Where the Securities are Fully Principal Protected CL Ss, the occurrence of a Credit Event may
result in an interest amount payable on the Securities that will be calculated by reference to a
specified amount which will be different from the nominal amount outstanding of the Securities
and the Securityholders may suffer aloss of some of the interest amount on the Securities.

Leveraged CLSs may be redeemed early upon the occurrence of certain triggers

The Issuer may early redeem Leveraged CLSs in whole, but not in part, at the Fair Market
Value Redemption Amount if (a) 'Fair Market Value Trigger' is specified as being applicable in
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the applicable Final Terms, and the Fair Market Value Redemption Amount of a CLS of the
relevant Series would be, assuming that such Series of CLSs would be redeemed in full on such
date at the applicable Fair Market Value Redemption Amount, less than the Fair Market Value
Trigger specified in the applicable Final Terms, (b) 'Reference Entity Spread Trigger' is
specified as being applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the Reference Entity Spread (in the
case of a Single Reference Entity CLS) or weighted average Reference Entity Spread in respect
of all the relevant Reference Entities (in the case of an Nth-to-Default CLS or a Linear Basket
CLS) exceeds the Reference Entity Spread Trigger specified in the applicable Final Terms or
(c) 'Reference Entity Trigger' is specified as being applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the
number of References Entities in respect of which a Credit Event has occurred exceeds the
Reference Entity Trigger specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Calculation Agent not acting in the interests of Securityholders

The determination by the Calculation Agent of any amount or of any state of affairs,
circumstance, event or other matter, or the formation of any opinion or the exercise of any
discretion required or permitted to be determined, formed or exercised by the Calculation Agent
shall (in the absence of manifest error) be final and binding on the Securityholders. In
performing its duties pursuant to the Securities and making any determinations expressed to be
made by it, for example, as to substitute Reference Obligations or Successors, the right to
designate a Credit Event and the right to select obligations of the affected Reference Entity for
valuation or delivery, the Calculation Agent shall act in its sole and absolute discretion and is
under no obligation to act in the interests of the Securityholders, nor will the Issuer or the
Calculation Agent be liable to account for any profit or other benefit which may accrueto it asa
result of such determinations.

The exercise of such rights in such manner, for example by the selection of the eligible
obligations of the Reference Entity having the lowest possible market value for valuation or
delivery, as applicable, may result in an increased credit loss for holders of the Securities.
Unless otherwise stated, the Calculation Agent is not bound to follow, or act in accordance with,
any determination of the relevant Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee.

The Hedge Amount will be determined by the Calculation Agent and may result in significant
losses for Securityholders

The Hedge Amount may comprise costs, expenses (including loss of funding), tax, and duties
incurred by the relevant Issuer in connection with the redemption of the CLSs and/or the
termination, settlement or re-establishment of any Hedge Transaction, and may be substantial.
In particular, the Hedge Amount may reflect any increased cost of funding of the relevant | ssuer
or its Affiliates — such costs may result in a material reduction in amounts payable to investors,
in particular where the credit risk of the relevant Issuer is correlated to the credit risk of the
Reference Entity or Reference Entities.

Actions and performance of Reference Entities may affect the value of the Securities

The actions and performance of Reference Entities (for example, merger or demerger or the
repayment or transfer of indebtedness) may adversely affect the value of the Securities. The
Securityholders should be aware that the Reference Entities to which the value of the Securities
is exposed, and the terms of such exposure, may change over the term of the Securities.
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Payments on the Securities may be deferred or suspended

In certain circumstances, for example where (i) a Credit Event has occurred and the related
credit loss has not been determined as at the relevant date for payment, (ii) where a potential
Credit Event exists as at the scheduled redemption of the Securities, or (iii) pending aresolution
of a Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee, payment of the redemption amount of the
Securities and/or interest (if applicable) on the Securities may be deferred for a material period
in whole or part without compensation to the holders of the Securities.

Cessation of interest

Interest (if applicable) will cease to accrue on the earlier of (a) the period from (but excluding)
the Scheduled Redemption Date, and (b) following satisfaction of the Conditions to Settlement,
(x) the Interest Payment Date immediately preceding the Event Determination Date, (y) the
related Event Determination Date or (z) the Scheduled Redemption Date, as may be specified in
the Fina Terms. In no event shall interest accrue on any period commencing after the
Scheduled Redemption Date.

Suspension of obligations will suspend payment of nominal and interest

If the Calculation Agent determines that, under the terms of the Securities, the obligations of the
parties would be suspended pending a resolution of a Credit Derivatives Determination
Committee al of the obligations of the relevant Issuer under each CLS (including any
obligation to deliver any notices, pay any interest, nominal or settlement amount or to make any
delivery) shall, be and remain suspended until ISDA or, as the case may be, the DC Secretary
publicly announces that the relevant Credit Derivatives Determination Committee has resolved
the matter in question or not to determine such matters. The Calculation Agent will provide
notice of such suspension as soon as reasonably practicable; however, any failure or delay by
the Calculation Agent in providing such notice will not affect the validity or effect of such
suspension. No interest shall accrue on any payments, which are suspended in accordance with
the above.

Use of Auction Settlement may adversely affect returnsto Securityholders

Where the Securities are redeemed following the occurrence of a Credit Event by reference to
an auction sponsored by ISDA, the relevant Issuer or its affiliates may act as a participating
bidder in any such auction and, in such capacity, may take certain actions which may influence
the Auction Final Price including (without limitation) submitting bids, offers and physical
settlement requests with respect to the obligations of the Reference Entity. If the relevant I ssuer
or its affiliates participate in an Auction, then they will do so without regard to the interests of
Securityholders, and such participation may have a material adverse effect on the outcome of
the relevant Auction and/or on the CLSs. Securityholders will not, solely by virtue of holding
Securities, have any right to submit bids and/or offersin relation to any CLS for the purposes of
any Auction.

The Auction Final Price determined pursuant to an auction may be less than the market value
that would otherwise have been determined in respect of the specified Reference Entity or its
obligations. In particular, the Auction process may be affected by technical factors or
operational errors, which would not otherwise apply or may be the subject of actual or
attempted manipulation. Auctions may be conducted by ISDA or by a relevant third party.
Neither the Calculation Agent, the relevant Issuer nor any of their respective affiliates has any
responsibility for verifying that any auction price is reflective of current market values, for
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establishing any auction methodology or for verifying that any auction has been conducted in
accordance with its rules. The relevant Issuer will have no responsibility to dispute any
determination of an Auction Final Price or to verify that any Auction has been conducted in
accordance with itsrules.

Following a "Restructuring” Credit Event in relation to which ISDA sponsors multiple
concurrent auctions, but where there is no auction relating to credit derivative transactions with
a maturity of the Securities, if the Calculation Agent exercises the right of the buyer of credit
risk protection under the Securities to elect that the Auction Final Price is determined by
reference to an alternative Auction, the Auction Final Price so determined may be lower than
the amount which would have been determined based on quotations sought from third party
dedlers

Use of Cash Settlement may adversely affect returnsto Securityholders

If the Securities are cash settled, then, following the occurrence of a Credit Event, the
Calculation Agent will be required to seek quotations in respect of selected obligations of the
affected Reference Entity. Quotations obtained will be "bid-side" — that is, they will be
reduced to take account of a bid-offer spread charged by the relevant dealer. Such quotations
may not be available, or the level of such quotations may be substantially reduced as a result of
illiquidity in the relevant markets or as a result of factors other than the credit risk of the
affected Reference Entity (for example, liquidity constraints affecting market dealers).
Accordingly, any quotations so obtained may be significantly lower than the value of the
relevant obligation which would be determined by reference to (for example) the present value
of related cash flows. Quotations will be deemed to be zero (0) in the event that no such
guotations are available.

"Cheapest-to-Déliver Risk"

The Calculation Agent has discretion to choose the portfolio of obligations to be valued or
delivered following a Credit Event in respect of a Reference Entity where Cash Settlement or
Physical Settlement applies. In such circumstances, the Calculation Agent is not required to
consider the interests of the Securityholders and will consult with the Issuer regarding such
selection. As such, it islikely that the portfolio of obligations selected will be obligations of the
Reference Entity with the lowest anticipated market value that are permitted to be selected
pursuant to the Securities. This could result in a lower recovery value and hence greater losses
for investorsin the Securities.

(xviii) The Issuer, Guarantor and/or Calculation Agent may conduct business with, and are not

obliged to disclose information on, Reference Entities

Any member of the Group may (i) deal in any Relevant Obligation; (ii) accept deposits from,
make loans or otherwise extend credit to, and generally engage in any kind of commercial or
investment banking or other business with, any Relevant Entity, or its affiliates or any other
person or entity having obligations relating to any Relevant Entity or any Relevant Obligation;
and (iii) act with respect to such business freely and without accountability to the
Securityholder in the same manner as if the Securities did not exist, regardless of whether any
such action might have an adverse effect on any Relevant Obligation, any Relevant Entity or
the Securities or on such Securityholder or otherwise (including, without limitation, any action
that might give rise to a Credit Event).
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Any member of the Group may be, whether by virtue of the types of relationships described
above or otherwise, at any time, in possession of information in relation to any Relevant
Obligation or any Relevant Entity which is or may be material in the context of the Securities
and which is or may not be known to the general public or the Securityholder. The Securities do
not create any obligation on the part of any member of the Group to disclose to the
Securityholder any such relationship or information (whether or not confidential) and no
member of the Group shall be liable to the Securityholder by reason of such non-disclosure.

Therelevant Issuer is not obliged to suffer any loss as a result of a Credit Event

Where the Securities are Single Reference Entity CLSs, Nth-to-Default CLSs or Linear Basket
CLSs, credit losses will be calculated for the purposes of the Securities irrespective of whether
the relevant Issuer or its affiliates has suffered an actual loss in relation to the Reference Entity
or any obligations thereof. The relevant Issuer is not obliged to account for any recovery, which
it may subsequently make in relation to such Reference Entity or its obligations.

The Securities do not represent an interest in obligations of Reference Entities

The Securities do not represent or convey any interest in the Reference Obligation or in any
other Relevant Obligations or any direct or indirect obligation of any Relevant Entity to the
Securityholder. The relevant Issuer is not an agent of the Securityholder for any purpose, and
the Securityholders will not have any voting or other rights in relation to such obligation by
virtue of holding Securities. The relevant Issuer does not grant any security interest over any
such obligation (other than where the Securities are also Secured Securities and the relevant
obligations are Collateral Assets).

The value of the Securities may be adversely affected by illiquidity or cessation of indices

In determining the value of the Securities, dealers may take into account the level of a related
credit index in addition to or as an alternative to other sources of pricing data. If any relevant
index ceases to be liquid, or ceases to be published in its entirety, then the value of the
Securities may be adversely affected.

Historical performance may not predict future performance

Individual Reference Entities may not perform as indicated by the historical performance of
similar entities and no assurance can be given with respect to the future performance of any
Reference Entities. Historical default statistics may not capture events that would constitute
Credit Events for the purposes of the Securities.

(xxiii) Limited provision of information about the Reference Entities

Investors should conduct their own investigation and analysis with respect to the
creditworthiness of Reference Entities and the likelihood of the occurrence of a Succession
Event or Credit Event.

Reference Entities may not be subject to regular reporting requirements under United Kingdom
or other securities laws. The Reference Entities may report information in accordance with
different disclosure and accounting standards. Consequently, the information available for such
Reference Entities may be different from, and in some cases less than, the information available
for entities that are subject to the reporting requirements under the securities laws which
investors are familiar with. None of the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor or the Calculation Agent
or any of their respective affiliates make any representation as to the accuracy or completeness
of any information available with respect to the Reference Entities.
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None of the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor or the Calculation Agent or any of their respective
affiliates will have any obligation to keep investors informed as to any matters with respect to
the Reference Entities or any of their obligations, including whether or not circumstances exist
that give rise to the possibility of the occurrence of a Credit Event or a Succession Event with
respect to the Reference Entities.

Cash settlement (whether by reference to an auction or a dealer poll) may be less advantageous
than physical delivery of assets

Payments on the CLSs following the occurrence of an Event Determination Date may be in
cash and will reflect the value of relevant obligations of the affected Reference Entity at a given
date. Such payments may be less than the recovery which would ultimately be realised by a
holder of debt obligations of the affected Reference Entity, whether by means of enforcement of
rights following a default or receipt of distributions following an insolvency or otherwise.

Conflicts of interest — Credit Derivatives Deter minations Committees

The relevant Issuer or any of its affiliates may act as a member of a Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee. In such case, the interests of the relevant Issuer or its affiliates may
be opposed to the interests of Securityholders and they will be entitled to and will act without
regard to the interests of Securityholders.

Rights associated with Credit Derivatives Determinations Committees

The ingtitutions, which are members of each Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee,
owe no duty to the Securityholders and have the ability to make determinations that may
materially affect the Securityholders, such as the occurrence of a Credit Event or a Succession
Event. A Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee may make determinations without
action or knowledge of the Securityholders.

Securityholders may have no role in the composition of any Credit Derivatives Determinations
Committee. Separate criteria apply with respect to the selection of dealer and non-dealer
institutions to serve on a Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee and the Securityholders
may have no role in establishing such criteria. In addition, the composition of a Credit
Derivatives Determinations Committee will change from time to time in accordance with the
Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee's Rules (the DC Rules) as published by ISDA on
its website at www.isda.org (or any successor website thereto) from time to time and as
amended from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof, as the term of an institution
may expire or an institution may be required to be replaced. The Securityholders may have no
control over the process for selecting ingtitutions to participate on a Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee and, to the extent provided for in the Securities, will be subject to
the determinations made by such selected institutions in accordance with the DC Rules.

Securityholders may have no recourse against either the institutions serving on a Credit
Derivatives Determinations Committee or the external reviewers. Institutions serving on a
Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee and the external reviewers, among others,
disclaim any duty of care or liability arising in connection with the performance of duties or the
provision of advice under the DC Rules, except in the case of gross negligence, fraud or wilful
misconduct. Furthermore, the ingtitutions on the Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee
do not owe any duty to the Securityholders and the Securityholders will be prevented from
pursuing claims with respect to actions taken by such ingtitutions under the DC Rules.
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Securityholders should also be aware that ingtitutions serving on a Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee have no duty to research or verify the veracity of information on
which a specific determination is based. In addition, a Credit Derivatives Determinations
Committee is not obligated to follow previous determinations and, therefore, could reach a
conflicting determination on a similar set of facts. If the relevant Issuer or the Calculation Agent
or any of their respective affiliates serve as a member of a Credit Derivatives Determinations
Committee at any time, then they will act without regard to the interests of the Securityholders.

Securityholders are responsible for obtaining information relating to deliberations of a Credit
Derivatives Determinations Committee. Notices of questions referred to the Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee, meetings held to deliberate such questions and the results of
binding votes will be published on the ISDA website and neither the relevant Issuer, the
Guarantor, the Calculation Agent nor any of their respective affiliates shall be obliged to inform
the Securityholders of such information (other than as expressly provided in respect of the
Securities). Failure by the Securityholders to be aware of information relating to deliberations
of a Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee will have no effect under the Securities and
Securityholders are solely responsible for obtaining any such information.

Investors should read the DC Rules and reach their own views prior to making any investment
decisions. Investors should however note that the DC Rules may be amended from time to time
without the consent or input of the Securityholders and the powers of the Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee may be expanded or modified as a resullt.

(xxvii)"M(M)R Restructuring" — the Calculation Agent may elect settlement terms

In respect of a Reference Entity for which Restructuring is applicable and M(M)R
Restructuring is specified as applicable in the Final Terms, upon the occurrence of such M(M)R
Restructuring Credit Event, as the case may be, and prior to 65 Business Days following the
Final List Publication Date, the Calculation Agent will determine whether the Transaction
Auction Settlement Terms or any Parallel Auction Settlement are applicable to the Securities. In
the event that one or more of the Transaction Auction Settlement Terms and Parallel Auction
Settlement Terms is applicable to the Securities, the Calculation Agent may elect such
settlement terms as applicable by giving an Auction Settlement Amount Notice to the Issuer. In
making such determination and such selection, the relevant Issuer will act in its own discretion,
and not in the interests of the investors.

The Auction Final Price or Weighted Average Final Price may be based on one or more
obligations of the Reference Entity having a final redemption date different from that of the
Restructured Bond or Loan or any specified Reference Obligation — which may affect the
Auction Settlement Amount determined in respect of the Securities.

(xxviii) Non-delivery of Deliverable Obligations and Hedge Disruption Event will not constitute an
Event of Default

Where Physical Settlement is the applicable Settlement Method, if as a result of a Hedge
Disruption Event, the relevant Issuer and/or any of its affiliates have not received the
Deliverable Obligations and/or cash under the terms of a Hedge Transaction, such event will
not constitute an Event of Default for the purposes of the Securities. In such circumstances
settlement of the Securities may be substantially delayed and/or may be in cash (in whole or in
part).
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(xxix) Calculation Agent may modify terms of the Securities

(n)
(i)

(i)

The Calculation Agent may, following its determination that there has been a change in the
prevailing market standard terms or market trading conventions (including, but not limited to
changes that affect any CDS hedging transaction), modify the terms of the Securities. If the
Calculation Agent modifies the terms of the Securities, it will do so without regard to the
interests of the holders of the Securities and any such modification may be prejudicial to the
interests of the holder of the Securities.

Risksrelated to Bond Linked Securities
General

The Issuers may issue Securities where the amount of nominal and/or interest (if applicable)
payable are dependent upon whether certain events (Bond Events) have occurred in respect of
one or more Bonds and, if so, on the value of the relevant Bond or where, if such events have
occurred, on redemption the relevant Issuer's obligation is to deliver the Bond.

Prospective investors in any such Securities should be aware that depending on the terms of the
Bond Linked Securities (BLSs) (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest
(if applicable), (ii) payment of nominal or interest (if applicable) or delivery of any specified
assets may occur at a different time than expected and (iii) they may lose al or a substantial
portion of their investment.

The market price of such Securities may be volatile and will be affected by, amongst other
things, the time remaining to the redemption date and the creditworthiness of the issuer of the
Bond (the Bond Issuer) which in turn may be affected by the economic, financial and political
events in one or more jurisdictions.

Where the Securities provide for physical delivery of the affected Bond, the relevant | ssuer may
determine that the Bonds to be delivered are either (a) assets which for any reason (including,
without limitation, failure of the relevant clearance system or due to any law, regulation, court
order or market conditions or the non-receipt of any requisite consents with respect to the
delivery of assets which are loans) it is impossible or illegal to deliver on the specified
settlement date or (b) assets which the relevant Issuer and/or any affiliate has not received under
the terms of any transaction entered into by the relevant Issuer and/or such affiliate to hedge the
relevant Issuer's obligations in respect of the Securities. Any such determination may delay
settlement in respect of the Securities and/or cause the obligation to deliver the Bond to be
replaced by an obligation to pay a cash amount which, in either case, may affect the value of the
Securities and, in the case of payment of a cash amount, will affect the timing of the valuation
of such Securities and as a result, the amount of nominal payable on redemption. Prospective
investors should review the Terms and Conditions of the Securities and the applicable Final
Terms to ascertain whether and how such provisions should apply to the Securities.

The relevant Issuer's obligations in respect of BLSs are irrespective of the existence or amount
of the relevant Issuer's and/or any affiliates' credit exposure to a Bond or the Bond Issuer, and
the relevant |ssuer and/or any affiliate need not suffer any loss nor provide evidence of any loss
as aresult of the occurrence of a Bond Event.

Securityholders are exposed to credit risk on the Bonds

The holders of BLSs will be exposed to the credit of one or more Bonds, which exposure shall
be, unless otherwise stated in the applicable Final Terms, to the full extent of their investment in
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such Securities. Upon the occurrence of any specified Bond Event with respect to a Bond, the
Securityholders may suffer significant losses at a time when losses may be suffered by a direct
investor in the Bond. However, the holding of a Security is unlikely to lead to outcomes, which
exactly reflect the impact of investing in the Bond, and losses could be considerably greater
than would be suffered by a direct investor in the Bond and/or could arise for reasons unrel ated
to such Bond. Securityholders should also be aware that a Bond Event may occur even if the
obligations of the Bond Issuer are unenforceable or their performance is prohibited by any
applicable law or exchange controls.

Securityholders are exposed to the loss of their entire investment in the Securities

Where cash settlement applies, the occurrence of a Bond Event in relation to the relevant Bond
from time to time may result in a redemption of the Securities in a reduced nominal amount or
at zero (0) and, (if applicable) in a reduction of the amount on which interest is calculated.
Where physical settlement applies, the occurrence of a Bond Event may result in the
redemption of the Securities based on the valuation (or by delivery) of the Bond, which
obligations may have a market value which is substantially less than their per amount.

Investors in the Securities are accordingly exposed, as to both nominal and (if applicable)
interest, to the credit risk of the Bond and/or to any security created over the Bond. The
maximum loss to an investor in the Securities is 100 per cent. of their initial principal
investment, together with (if applicable) any interest amounts.

Credit risk may be increased where Bonds are issued by Bond Issuers concentrated in a
particular sector or region

Where the Securities are Basket BL Ss, the risk to investors in the Securities may be increased,
amongst other things, as aresult of the concentration of the Bond I ssuersin a particular industry
sector or geographic area, or the exposure of the Bond Issuers to similar financial or other risks
as other Bond Issuers.

BLSs may be redeemed early upon the occurrence of certain triggers

The Issuer may early redeem BLSs in whole, but not in part, a the Fair Market Value
Redemption Amount if 'Fair Market Value Trigger' is specified as being applicable in the
applicable Final Terms, and the Fair Market Value Redemption Amount of a BLS of the
relevant Series would be, assuming that such Series of BLSs would be redeemed in full on such
date at the applicable Fair Market Value Redemption Amount, less than the Fair Market Value
Trigger specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Issuer and Calculation Agent will act in their own interests

The relevant Issuer will exercise its rights under the terms of the Securities, in its own interests
and those of its affiliates, and not in the interests of investors in the Securities. The exercise of
such rights or the taking of such actions in such manner may result in an increased loss for
holders of the Securities.

The determination by the Calculation Agent of any amount or of any state of affairs,
circumstance, event or other matter, or the formation of any opinion or the exercise of any
discretion required or permitted to be determined, formed or exercised by the Calculation Agent
(including, without limitation, the right to designate a Bond Event) shall (in the absence of
manifest error) be final and binding on the Securityholders. In performing its duties pursuant to
the Securities and making any determinations expressed to be made by it, the Calculation Agent

116



(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)

Risk Factors

shall act in its sole and absolute discretion and is under no obligation to act in the interests of
the Securityholders, nor will it be liable to account for any profit or other benefit which may
accrueto it asaresult of such determinations.

The Hedge Amount will be determined by the Calculation Agent and may result in significant
losses for Securityholders

The Hedge Amount may comprise costs, expenses (including loss of funding), tax, and duties
incurred by the relevant Issuer in connection with the redemption of the Bond Linked Securities
and/or the termination, settlement or re-establishment of any Hedge Transaction, and may be
substantial. In particular, the Hedge Amount may reflect any increased cost of funding of the
relevant Issuer or its Affiliates — such costs may result in a material reduction in amounts
payable to investors, in particular where the credit risk of the relevant Issuer is correlated to the
credit risk of the Bond.

Actions and performance of Bond |ssuers may affect the value of the Securities

The actions and performance of Bond Issuers may adversely affect the value of the Securities
and such value may change over the life of the Securities.

Payments on the Securities may be deferred or suspended

In certain circumstances, for example where (i) a Bond Event has occurred and the related
Realisable Amount or Hedge Amount has not been determined as at the relevant date for
payment or (ii) where a potential failure to pay exists as at the scheduled redemption of the
Securities, payment of the redemption amount of the Securities and/or interest on the Securities
may be deferred for a material period in whole or part without compensation to the holders of
the Securities and interest (if applicable) will cease to accrue on the Interest Payment Date
immediately preceding the Event Determination Date. In no event shall interest accrue on any
period commencing after the Scheduled Redemption Date.

Use of Cash Settlement may adversely affect returns to Securityholders

If the Securities are cash settled, then, following the occurrence of a Bond Event, the
Calculation Agent will be required to seek quotations in respect of the Bonds (unless the Bond
has been redeemed or an Exchange Event has occurred). Quotations obtained will be "bid-side"
— that is, they will be reduced to take account of a bid-offer spread charged by the relevant
dealer. Such quotations may not be available, or the level of such quotations may be
substantially reduced as a result of illiquidity in the relevant markets or as a result of factors
other than the credit risk of the affected Bond Issuer (for example, liquidity constraints affecting
market dealers). Accordingly, any quotations so obtained may be significantly lower than the
value of the relevant obligation which would be determined by reference to (for example) the
present value of related cash flows. Quotations will be deemed to be zero (0) in the event that
no such quotations are available.

The relevant Issuer, Guarantor and/or Calculation Agent may conduct business with, and are
not obliged to disclose information on, Bonds or Bond Issuers

Any member of the Group may (i) deal in any Bond; (ii) accept deposits from, make loans or
otherwise extend credit to, and generally engage in any kind of commercia or investment
banking or other business with, any Bond Issuer, or its affiliates or any other person or entity
having obligations relating to any Bond Issuer or any Bond; and (iii) act with respect to such
business freely and without accountability to the Securityholder in the same manner as if the
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Securities did not exist, regardless of whether any such action might have an adverse effect on
the Bond, Bond Issuer or the Securities or on such Securityholder or otherwise (including,
without limitation, any action that might give rise to a Bond Event).

Any member of the Group may be, whether by virtue of the types of relationships described
above or otherwise, at any time, in possession of information in relation to any Bond or the
related Bond Issuer which is or may be material in the context of the Securities and which is or
may not be known to the general public or the Securityholder. The Securities do not create any
obligation on the part of any member of the Group to disclose to the Securityholder any such
relationship or information (whether or not confidential) and no member of the Group shall be
liable to the Securityholder by reason of such non-disclosure.

Therelevant Issuer is not obliged to suffer any loss as a result of a Bond Event

Where the Securities are Single Bond BLSs or Basket BLSs, the realisable amount will be
calculated for the purposes of the Securities irrespective of whether the relevant Issuer or its
affiliates has suffered an actual lossin relation to the Bond. The relevant Issuer is not obliged to
account for any recovery, which it may subsequently make in relation to such Bond.

The Securities do not represent an interest in obligations of Bonds

Save for Bond Linked Securities, which are also, Secured Securities and where the Bond is the
Collateral Asset, the Securities do not represent or convey any interest in the Bonds to the
Securityholder. The relevant Issuer is not an agent of the Securityholder for any purpose, and
the Securityholders will not have any voting or other rightsin relation to the Bond.

The value of the Securities may be adversely affected by illiquidity or cessation of indices

In determining the value of the Securities, dealers may take into account the level of a related
credit index in addition to or as an alternative to other sources of pricing data. If any relevant
index ceases to be liquid, or ceases to be published in its entirety, then the value of the
Securities may be adversely affected.

Historical performance may not predict future performance

Individual Bonds may not perform as indicated by the historical performance of similar bonds
and no assurance can be given with respect to the future performance of any Bonds. Historical
default statistics may not capture events that would constitute Bond Events for the purposes of
the Securities.

Limited provision of information about the Bonds

Investors should conduct their own investigation and analysis with respect to the
creditworthiness of Bonds and the likelihood of the occurrence of a Bond Event.

Bond Issuers may not be subject to regular reporting requirements under United Kingdom or
similar securities laws. Bond Issuers may report information in accordance with different
disclosure and accounting standards. Consequently, the information available for such Bonds
may be different from, and in some cases less than, the information available for entities that
are subject to the reporting requirements under securities laws which investors are familiar
with. None of the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor or the Calculation Agent or any of their
respective affiliates make any representation as to the accuracy or completeness of any
information available with respect to the Bonds or the Bond I ssuers.
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None of the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor or the Calculation Agent or any of their respective
affiliates will have any obligation to keep investors informed as to any matters with respect to
the Bonds or the Bond Issuers, including whether or not circumstances exist that give rise to the
possibility of the occurrence of a Bond Event.

(xvii) Cash settlement may be less advantageous than physical delivery of assets

Payments on the BLSs following the occurrence of an Event Determination Date may be in
cash and will reflect the value of the Bond at a given date. Such payments may be less than the
recovery which would ultimately be realised by a holder of the Bond, whether by means of
enforcement of rights following a default or receipt of distributions following an insolvency or
otherwise.

(xviii) Non-delivery of Bonds will not constitute an Event of Default

Where Physical Settlement is the applicable Settlement Method, if the relevant Issuer and/or
any of its affiliates have not received the Bonds and/or cash under the terms of a Hedge
Transaction, such event will not constitute an Event of Default for the purpose of the Securities.
In such circumstances settlement of the Securities, may be substantially delayed and/or may be
in cash (in whole or in part).

(0) Risksrelated to Disruption Events

Linked Interest Securities, Linked Redemption Securities, Bond Linked Securities and Credit Linked
Securities may be subject to risks related to additional disruption events, market disruption events,
disrupted days and other events that have a material effect on the Securities, if applicable (each as
defined in the relevant Asset Conditions, the Disruption Events).

The occurrence of any Disruption Event may result in the postponement of the relevant observation
date relating to any Underlying or affected component Underlying of a Basket, the postponement of
the relevant payment date for interest or redemption or the redemption of the Securities by the Issuer.
The amount to be paid following any postponement of the payment date will not be adjusted to take
into account any interest or other sum in respect of the postponement of the payment.

Investors should be aware that the Calculation Agent has a large amount of discretion upon the
occurrence of any Disruption Event. The Calculation Agent may make adjustments to the Conditions
as it considers appropriate and may determine the fair market value of the relevant Underlying or good
faith estimate of the level of the Index, as applicable, in accordance with the relevant Asset Conditions.

Any postponement of the observation date or payment date or any amendment to the Conditions may
have an adverse effect on the value of the Securities. The occurrences of any such event may also
adversely affect the investors' investment schedule, timetable or plans in relation to which the payment
dates of the Securities are connected.

Furthermore, following the occurrence of such a Disruption Event, the Issuer may (i) elect to notify the
Securityholders of an early redemption of the Securities or (ii) in respect of Linked Interest Securities
or Linked Redemption Securities, make such adjustments to the terms and conditions of the Securities
asit considers appropriate to reflect the consequences of the Disruption Event.

An investor in the Securities should ensure he fully understands the nature of the Disruption Events
and the possible consequences and fallbacks that could impact the Securities or any relevant
Underlying.
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Risksrelated to Alternative Currency Securities

Risksrelating to Alternative Currency Securities

If the Securities are Alternative Currency Securities, the occurrence of an Alternative Currency
Event may lead to postponement of payments under the Securities, payment in an alternative
currency or early redemption of the Securities.

Risksrelating to CNY Securities

(1)

(I

CNY is not freely convertible and there are significant restrictions on the remittance of
Renminbi into and outside the PRC which may adversely affect the liquidity of the
Securities denominated in Renminbi

CNY is not freely convertible at present. The PRC government continues to regulate
conversion between CNY and foreign currencies, including the Hong Kong Dollar,
despite the significant reduction over the years by the PRC government of its control
over trade transactions involving import and export of goods and services as well as
other frequent routine foreign exchange transactions known as current account items.
Whilst the People's Bank of China (PBOC) has established Renminbi clearing and
settlement mechanisms for participating banks in Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore,
Taiwan, London, Frankfurt, Seoul, Toronto, Sydney, Doha, Paris, Luxembourg, Kuala
Lumpur, Bangkok, Johannesburg, Buenos Aires, Lusaka, Budapest and Santiago (each, a
Renminbi Settlement Centre) through settlement agreements on the clearing of
Renminbi business (the Settlement Arrangements) with banks designated by the PBOC
for each Renminbi Settlement Centre (each, a Renminbi Clearing Bank), the current
size of Renminbi denominated financial assets outside the PRC is limited.

There are restrictions imposed by the PBOC on Renminbi Clearing Banks in respect of
cross-border Renminbi settlement, such as those relating to direct transactions with PRC
enterprises. Furthermore, Renminbi Clearing Banks do not have direct Renminbi
liquidity support from the PBOC. The Renminbi Clearing Banks only have access to
onshore liquidity support from the PBOC for the purpose of squaring open positions of
participating banks for limited types of transactions and are not obliged to sguare for
participating banks any open positions resulting from other foreign exchange
transactions or conversion services. In such cases, the Renminbi Clearing Banks will
need to source Renminbi from outside the PRC to square such open positions.

Although it is expected that the offshore Renminbi market will continue to grow in depth
and size, its growth is subject to many constraints as a result of PRC laws and
regulations on foreign exchange. New PRC regulations may be promulgated or the
Settlement Arrangements may be terminated or amended in the future which may have
the effect of restricting availability of Renminbi outside the PRC. The limited
availability of Renminbi outside the PRC may affect the liquidity of Securities
denominated in CNY. To the extent the Issuer is required to source Renminbi outside the
PRC to service Securities denominated in Renminbi, there is no assurance that the I ssuer
will be able to source such Renminbi on satisfactory terms, if at all.

CNY currency risk

All payments of CNY under the Securities to the Securityholders will be made solely by
transfer to a CNY bank account maintained in Hong Kong or a financial centre in which
a Renminbi Clearing Bank clears and settles Renminbi in accordance with the prevailing
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rules and regulations and in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Securities.
The relevant Issuer cannot be required to make payment by any other means (including
in any other currency or by transfer to a bank account in the PRC). CNY is not freely
convertible at present, and the conversion of CNY into other currencies through banksin
Hong Kong is subject to certain restrictions.

In addition, there can be no assurance that the accessto CNY for the purposes of making
payments under the Securities or generally may remain or will not become restricted. If
it becomes impossible to convert CNY from/to another freely convertible currency, or
transfer CNY between accounts in Hong Kong (or a financia centre in which a
Renminbi Clearing Bank clears and settles Renminbi), or the general CNY exchange
market becomes illiquid, any payment of CNY under the Securities may be delayed or
the relevant Issuer may make such payments in another currency selected by the relevant
Issuer using an exchange rate determined by the Calculation Agent, or the relevant Issuer
may redeem the Securities by making payment in another currency.

CNY exchangerate risk

The value of CNY against Hong Kong Dollar and other foreign currencies fluctuates and
is affected by changes in the PRC and international political and economic conditions
and by many other factors. The relevant Issuer will make all payments of CNY under the
Securities in CNY (subject to the second paragraph under the heading "CNY currency
risk" above). As aresult, the value of such payments of CNY (in Hong Kong Dollar or
other applicable foreign currencies) may vary with the prevailing exchange rates in the
marketplace. If the value of CNY depreciates against Hong Kong Dollar or other foreign
currencies, the value of an investor's investment in Hong Kong Dollar or other
applicable foreign currencies will decline.

CNY interest rate risk

Where applicable, the value of payments of CNY under the Securities may be
susceptible to interest rate fluctuations, including Chinese CNY Repo Rates and/or the
Shanghai Interbank Offered Rate (SHIBOR). Furthermore, due to the foreign exchange
control imposed by the applicable PRC laws and regulations and the prevailing market
conditions, the CNY interest rate in the markets outside the PRC may significantly
deviate from the CNY interest rate in the PRC.

Payments with respect to Securities denominated in Renminbi may be made only in the
manner designated in such Securities

Securityholders may be required to provide certification and other information
(including Renminbi account information) in order to be allowed to receive paymentsin
Renminbi in accordance with the Renminbi clearing and settlement system for
participating banks in Hong Kong. All payments to investors in respect of Securities
denominated in Renminbi will be made solely (i) for so long as Securities denominated
in Renminbi are represented by global securities or global registered securities held with
the common depositary or common safekeeper, as the case may be, for Clearsteam
Banking société anonyme and Euroclear Bank SA/NV or any alternative clearing
system, by transfer to a Renminbi bank account maintained in Hong Kong or (ii) for so
long as Securities denominated in Renminbi are in definitive form, by transfer to a
Renminbi bank account maintained in Hong Kong in accordance with prevailing rules
and regulations. Other than described in the terms and conditions of the Securities, the
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Issuer cannot be required to make payment by any other means (including in any other
currency or in bank notes, by cheque or draft or by transfer to a bank account in the
PRC).

Gains on the transfer of Securities denominated in Renminbi may become subject to
income taxes under PRC tax laws

Under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the PRC Individual Income Tax Law and
the relevant implementing rules as amended from time to time, any gain realised on the
sale, transfer, redemption or other disposal of Securities denominated in Renminbi by
Securityholders who are deemed to be non-PRC resident enterprise or individual
Securityholders may be subject to PRC enterprise income tax ("EIT") or PRC individual
income tax ("I T") if such gain is regarded as income derived from sources within the
PRC.

However, there is uncertainty as to whether gains realised from the sade, transfer,
redemption or other disposal of Securities denominated in Renminbi by a non-PRC
resident enterprise or individual Securityholders would be treated as income derived
from sources within the PRC and subject to the EIT or the I T. This will depend on how
the PRC tax authorities interpret, apply or enforce the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law,
the PRC Individual Income Tax law and the relevant implementing rules.

Securityholders should obtain their own professional advice on matters relating to
taxation.

Remittance of proceedsinto or outside of the PRC in Renminbi

In the event that the Issuer decides to remit some or all of the proceeds into the PRC in
Renminbi, its ability to do so will be subject to obtaining all necessary approvals from,
and registration with, the relevant PRC government authorities. However, there is no
assurance that the necessary approvals from, and registration with, the relevant PRC
government authorities will be obtained at all or, if obtained, they will not be revoked or
amended in the future.

There is no assurance that the PRC government will continue to liberalise control over
cross-border Renminbi remittances in the future, that any pilot schemes for Renminbi
cross-border liberalisation will not be discontinued or that new PRC regulations will not
be promulgated in the future which have the effect of restricting or eliminating the
remittance of Renminbi into or outside the PRC. In the event that the Issuer does remit
some or al of the proceeds into the PRC in Renminbi and the Issuer subsequently is not
able to repatriate funds outside the PRC in Renminbi, it will need to source Renminbi
outside the PRC to finance its obligations under Securities denominated in Renminbi,
and its ability to do so will be subject to the overall availability of Renminbi outside the
PRC.

Risksrelated to Payoff Features

General

The Securities may be subject to the application of a Payoff Feature. The application of a

Payoff Feature may mean that Securities are, in turn, subject to the application of Linked
Interest and/or Linked Redemption, as specified in the applicable Fina Terms. In these
circumstances, the risks referred to above under the heading "Risks related to the structure of a
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particular issue of Securities’ may be relevant to Securities, which are subject to a Payoff
Feature.

The Linked Interest Rate and/or Redemption Payoff determined under the Linked Interest or
Linked Redemption may be linked to the value of the Underlying(s) that have been selected
under the relevant Standard Interest Payoffs, Combination Interest Payoffs, Standard
Redemption Payoffs and/or Combination Redemption Payoffs. Negative performance of the
Underlying(s) will consequently affect the value of the Linked Interest Rate and/or Redemption
Payoff determined under the Linked Interest or Linked Redemption.

Additive Payoff Feature

Where Additive Payoff Feature is applicable, investors should ensure they carefully understand
the risks associated with each applicable payoff feature and the inter-relation of any such Payoff
Features.

Global Cap Payoff Feature

The amount payable on final redemption will be reduced by the Global Cap Amount. The
amount payable on each instalment redemption will be decreased by, on the first Instalment
Date, the Global Cap Amount and on each subsequent Instalment Date, the Global Cap Amount
minus the aggregate amount deducted on any previous Instalment Date, subject to a minimum
of zero (0).

Currency Performance Payoff Feature

The relevant Linked Interest Rate and/or Redemption Payoff, or part thereof, will be adjusted
by multiplying the relevant percentage by an amount equal to 1 (one) minus the performance of
the Reference Currency with respect to a Strike Level. There is no guarantee that any resultant
adjustment in the Linked Interest Rate or Redemption Payoff, as the case may be, will be
beneficial for Securityholders.

Bond Switch Option Payoff Feature

Securityholders holding 100% of the aggregate nominal amount of the Securities outstanding
may request may request to substitute a Bond by delivering a notice on or before a Bond Switch
Option Expiry Date. Following receipt of such request, the Issuer shall provide the relevant
Bond Switch Option Pricing, reflecting the cost or gain of effecting the switch of Bonds
requested by the Securityholders, the difference between the market value of the replaced Bond
and the replacing Bond and the resulting adjusted Linked Interest Rate applicable to the
Securities. The Securityholders have the ability to request to fix the Bond Switch Option
Pricing at a particular level; the Issuer has sole discretion to decline such request meaning the
Securityholders holding 100% of the aggregate nominal amount of the Securities outstanding
would not be able to fix the relevant Bond Switch Option Pricing. The Issuer may continually
decline to fix the relevant Bond Switch Option Pricing at the level requested by
Securityholders.

If the investor elects, and the Issuer agrees, to fix the Bond Switch Option Pricing at a particular
level, it isirrevocable upon the giving of the Bond Switch Option Exercise Notice and there is
no guarantee that the Bond Switch Option Pricing will be more beneficial compared to a Bond
Switch Option Pricing that may be achievable subsequently.
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Investor Interest Switch Payoff Feature and Investor Redemption Switch Payoff Feature

Securityholders holding 100% of the aggregate nominal amount of the Securities outstanding
may request or elect (as the case may be in accordance with the relevant applicable terms and
conditions) to change:

(8 thebasisonwhichinterest iscalculated from Linked Interest; to Linked Interest, and/or

(b) the basis on which the Final Redemption Amount or the Instalment Redemption
Amount, as the case may be, is calculated from Linked Redemption; to Linked
Redemptions,.

Such request (in respect of a change from Linked Interest; to Linked Interest,) or election is
irrevocable upon the giving of an Investor Interest Switch Notice or Investor Redemption
Switch Notice, as applicable. If the investor requests and the Issuer agrees (in respect of a
change from Linked Interest; to Linked Interest,), or the investor elects, to switch, there is no
guarantee that Linked Interest, or Linked Redemption,, as applicable, will remain the most
beneficial way of calculating the interest or the redemption for subsequent periods, as
applicable.

The change of the redemption basis may have adverse tax consequences for Securityholders
and Securityholders are advised to consult tax advisers before making an election.

Issuer Interest Switch Payoff Feature and Issuer Redemption Switch Payoff Feature
The relevant Issuer may elect to change:
@ the basis on which interest is calculated from Linked Interest; to Linked Interest, and/or

(b)  the basis on which the Final Redemption Amount or the Instalment Redemption
Amount, as the case may be, is calculated from Linked Redemption; to Linked
Redemption,.

Investors will have no control over whether or not this option is exercised by the relevant
Issuer. If the relevant Issuer elects to exercise such option this may negatively affect the Linked
Interest Rate and/or the Redemption Payoff, as applicable, and therefore the value of the
Securities.

The change of the redemption basis may have adverse tax consequences for Securityholders
and Securityholders are advised to consult tax advisers before investing in the Securities.

Knock-out Interest Switch Payoff Feature and Knock-out Redemption Switch Payoff Feature

In the event of a Knock-out Interest Switch Payoff Feature or Knock-out Redemption Switch
Payoff Feature being applicable, upon the occurrence of a Knock-out Interest Switch Event or a
Knock-out Redemption Switch Event:

(@  if the Knock-out Interest Switch Payoff Feature is applicable, the method of calculating
the Linked Interest Rate will automatically switch from Linked Interest; to Linked
Interest, and/or

(b) if the Knock-out Redemption Switch Payoff Feature is applicable, the method of
calculating the Redemption Payoff with respect to the Final Redemption Amount or the
Instalment Redemption Amount, as the case may be, will automatically switch from
Linked Redemption; to Linked Redemptions,.
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Investors will have no control over whether or not a switch will occur which is dependent on
the value of the relevant Underlying(s). The switch may or may not be beneficia for investors
and this feature may negatively impact the value of the Securities.

The change of the redemption basis may have adverse tax consequences for Securityholders
and Securityholders are advised to consult tax advisers before investing in the Securities.

Knock-out Basket Interest Switch Payoff Feature and Knock-out Basket Redemption Switch
Payoff Feature

In the event of a Knock-out Basket Interest Switch Payoff Feature or Knock-out Basket
Redemption Switch Payoff Feature being applicable, upon the occurrence of a Knock-out
Basket Interest Switch Event or a Knock-out Basket Redemption Switch Event:

(& If the Knock-out Basket Interest Switch Payoff Feature is applicable, the method of
calculating the Linked Interest Rate will automatically switch from Linked Interest; to
Linked Interest, and/or

(b) if the Knock-out Basket Redemption Switch Payoff Feature is applicable, the method of
calculating the Redemption Payoff with respect to the Final Redemption Amount or the
Instalment Redemption Amount, as the case may be, will automatically switch from
Linked Redemption; to Linked Redemptions,.

Investors will have no control over whether or not a switch will occur, which is dependent on
the value of the relevant Underlying(s). The switch may or may not be beneficia for investors
and this feature may negatively impact the value of the Securities.

The change of the redemption basis may have adverse tax consequences for Securityholders
and Securityholders are advised to consult tax advisers before investing in the Securities.

Target Interest Snitch Payoff Feature

The basis on which interest is calculated will switch automatically from Linked Interest; to
Linked Interest, if a Target Interest Switch Event occurs. Investors will have no control over
whether or not a switch will occur which depends on the amount of interest previously paid on
the Securities. Linked Interest, may be a less beneficial way of calculating the Linked Interest
Rate in subsequent Interest Accrual Periods and this may also negatively affect the value of the
Securities.

Shout Option Performance Lock-in Interest Payoff Feature and Shout Option Performance
Lock-in Redemption Payoff Feature

Securityholders holding 100% of the aggregate nominal amount of the Securities outstanding
may request to fix the Underlying Value of each relevant Underlying used to determine the
interest or the Final Redemption Amount or the Instalment Redemption Amount, as the case
may be:

(8 if the Shout Option Performance Lock-in Interest Payoff Feature applies to interest, for
the interest accrual period in progress; and/or

(b) if the Shout Option Performance Lock-in Redemption Payoff Feature applies to the
redemption amount, for the purposes of determining the Final Redemption Amount or
the relevant Instalment Redemption Amount, as the case may be.
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The Issuer has sole discretion to decline to give the relevant level meaning the Securityholders
holding 100% of the aggregate nominal amount of the Securities outstanding would not be able
to fix the relevant Underlying on the date they request. The Issuer may continually decline to
fix the relevant Underlying Value and so the Investor may never be able to exercise its option.

If the investor elects to fix the Underlying Value of each relevant Underlying it is irrevocable
upon the giving of the Shout Option Exercise Notice and there is no guarantee that the value
will be more beneficial compared to the values that may be achievable subsequently.

Chooser Decay Interest Switch Option Payoff Feature

Securityholders holding 100% of the aggregate nominal amount of the Securities outstanding
may elect to defer the calculation of an Interest Amount payable in respect of any Interest
Accrual Period in order that such amounts are calculated in accordance with the Linked Interest
Rate of any subsequent Interest Accrual Period. There is no guarantee that the Linked Interest
Rate applicable in any subsequent Interest Accrual Period will be more beneficial to investors
and this may also negatively affect the value of the Securities. In order to resume payment of
Interest Amounts before the last Interest Determination Date, 100% of the holders of the
outstanding Securities must agree.

Memory Option Interest Switch Payoff Feature

In the event that the Linked Interest Rate in any Interest Accrual Period is zero (0), where the
Linked Interest Rate in any subsequent Interest Accrual Period is greater than zero (0), such
Linked Interest Rate will be increased by a factor reflecting the number of previous consecutive
Interest Payment Dates to which no interest was paid. There is no guarantee that the relevant
Linked Interest Rate will reflect a market rate and the value of the Securities may substantially
decrease. Furthermore there is no guarantee that the Linked Interest Rate will be greater than
zero (0) in which case the I nterest Amounts payable under the Securities may be zero (0).

Flexi Option Interest Switch Payoff Feature

Securityholders holding 100% of the aggregate nominal amount of the Securities outstanding
may elect to switch the basis on which interest is calculated from Linked Interest; to Linked
Interest,. The investors may exercise the option the number of times as specified in the Final
Terms following which the Interest is equal to the Flexi Interest Switch Fixed Rate. The option
must be exercised on a specified number of Business Days prior to an Interest Determination
Date and there is no guarantee that the Linked Interest, will remain the most beneficial way of
calculating the interest for a given Interest Accrual Period. Furthermore there is no guarantee
that the Flexi Interest Switch Fixed Rate will reflect a market rate and the value of the
Securities may substantially decrease.

Pelican Option Interest Switch Payoff Feature

In the event that any amounts are credited to the notional Reserve created under the Pelican
Option Interest Switch Payoff Feature, there is no guarantee that the Interest Amounts payable
in subsequent Interest Accrual Periods will be less than the Cap. An investor may not therefore
receive al or part of any Reserve. The Reserve does not, and is not deemed to, accrue any
interest and investors will not be entitled to receive any amount notionally credited to the
Reserve after payment of interest calculated in accordance with the conditions in respect of the
final interest accrual period.

Dual Currency (Interest) Payoff Feature and Dual Currency (Redemption) Payoff Feature
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If the Dual Currency (Interest) Payoff Feature or Dual Currency (Redemption) Payoff Feature
applies, the interest amounts payable under the Securities and/or the amounts payable on
redemption may be paid in a currency that is different to the currency in which the Securities
are denominated. If more than one Interest Currency is specified in the applicable Final Terms
the relevant Issuer may, at its discretion, choose from any one of the currencies specified and
the investor will not know what currency interest amounts payable under the Securities will be
paid in prior to the relevant payment date. If more than one Redemption Currency is specified
in the applicable Final Terms in respect of a Redemption Date, Early Redemption Date or
Instalment Date, the relevant Issuer may, at its discretion, choose from any one of the currencies
specified and the investor will not know what currency the amount payable on such date will be
paid in prior to the relevant payment date. The relevant Dual Currency (Interest) Exchange Rate
or Dual Currency (Redemption) Exchange Rate, as the case may be, may be volatile and
investors may receive a lower interest amount or Redemption Payoff payable on redemption
than expected. Investors should also refer to the risks set out under "Exchange rate risks and
exchange controls' for ageneral discussion asto risksinvolved in conversion.

Credit Event Contingency Interest Snitch Payoff Feature

In the event that an Event Determination Date occurs the interest on the Securities will cease to
accrue from the date determined in accordance with the Conditions. This is outside of the
control of the investor, could happen at any time and therefore may negatively affect the value
of the Securities.

(xviii) Reset Option Interest Payoff Feature

(xix)

(xx)

If Reset Option Interest Payoff Feature applies, the Securityholders holding 100% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the Securities outstanding may request to change the basis on
which interest is calculated. Following receipt of such request, the Issuer will notify the
Securityholders holding 100% of the aggregate nominal amount of the Securities outstanding of
the manner in which it would propose to change the basis on which interest is calculated and
the Securityholders holding 100% of the aggregate nominal amount of the Securities
outstanding may agree with the Issuer in implementing such changes, or not. There is no
guarantee that any change in the basis on which interest is calculated will be beneficial for
Securityholders.

Reset Option Redemption Payoff Feature

If Reset Option Redemption Payoff Feature applies, the Securityholders holding 100% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the Securities outstanding may request to change the Final
Redemption Amount or the Instalment Redemption Amount, as the case may be. Following
receipt of such request, the Issuer will notify the Securityholders holding 100% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the Securities outstanding of the manner in which it would propose to
change the Final Redemption Amount or the Instalment Redemption Amount, as the case may
be, and the Securityholders holding 100% of the aggregate nominal amount of the Securities
outstanding may agree with the Issuer in implementing such changes, or not. There is no
guarantee that any change in the Final Redemption Amount or the Instaiment Redemption
Amount, as the case may be, will be beneficial for Securityholders.

Sngle Interest Payment Date Payoff Feature

The amount payable as interest may accrue throughout the life of the Securities based on
observations and determinations throughout the life of the Securities but will be paid asa single
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amount on the Single Interest Payment Date. Where Securities are redeemed prior to the Single
Interest Payment Date, there is no guarantee that the amount payable on such redemption date
will take into account (i) any accrued but unpaid interest, or (ii) the amount that would have
been payable asinterest if the Securities had not been redeemed early.

(n Risksrelated to Early Redemption Triggers
Issuer Call Early Redemption Trigger

The Issuer Call Early Redemption Trigger may limit the market value of Securities. On and prior to any
Early Redemption Date, the market value of those Securities will generally not rise substantially above
the price at which they can be redeemed.

The relevant Issuer may be expected to redeem Securities when its cost of borrowing is lower than the
interest rate on the Securities. At those times, an investor would generally not be able to reinvest the
redemption proceeds at an effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the Securities being
redeemed and may only be able to do so at a significantly lower rate. Potential investors should consider
reinvestment risk in light of other investments available at that time.

Knock-out Early Redemption Trigger

The Knock-out Early Redemption Trigger, which provides that the relevant Securities will automatically
be redeemed upon the occurrence of a Knock-out Trigger, may limit the market value of the Securities
depending on the likelihood of the occurrence of a Knock-out Trigger.

At the Early Redemption Date, an investor may not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds at an
effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the Securities being redeemed and may only be able
to do so at a significantly lower rate. Potential investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of
other investments available at that time.

Callable Knock-out Early Redemption Trigger

The Callable Knock-out Early Redemption Trigger, which provides that the relevant Issuer may elect to
redeem the relevant Securities upon the occurrence of a Callable Knock-out Trigger, the relevant Issuer
may limit the market value of the Securities depending on the likelihood of the occurrence of a Callable
Knock-out Trigger.

The relevant Issuer may be expected to redeem Securities when its cost of borrowing is lower than the
interest rate on the Securities. At those times, an investor generally would not be able to reinvest the
redemption proceeds at an effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the Securities being
redeemed and may only be able to do so at a significantly lower rate. Potential investors should consider
reinvestment risk in light of other investments available at that time.

Target Early Redemption Trigger

The Target Early Redemption Trigger may limit the market value of Securities. On and prior to the
Target Level being reached, the market value of those Securities generally will not rise substantially
above the price at which they can be redeemed.

At the Early Redemption Date, an investor may not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds at an
effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the Securities being redeemed and may only be able
to do so at a significantly lower rate. Potential investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of
other investments available at that time.
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Knock-out Multi Underlying Early Redemption Trigger

The Knock-out Early Multi Underlying Redemption Trigger, which provides that the relevant Securities
will automatically be redeemed upon the occurrence of a Knock-out Multi Underlying Trigger, may
limit the market value of the Securities depending on the likelihood of the occurrence of a Knock-out
Multi Underlying Trigger.

At the Early Redemption Date, an investor may not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds at an
effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the Securities being redeemed and may only be able
to do so at a significantly lower rate. Potential investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of
other investments available at that time.

(9 Risksrelated to Redemption M ethods
Sandard Redemption, Performance Redemption and Growth Redemption

Investors should be aware that the Early Redemption Amount, Instalment Redemption Amount or Final
Redemption Amount may be |ess than the nominal amount of the Securities.

The Redemption Method applicable to the Final Redemption Amount or the Instaiment Redemption
Amount, as applicable, may be different to the Redemption Method applicable to the Early Redemption
Amount. Where Performance Redemption or Growth Redemption applies, the Early Redemption
Amount, Instalment Redemption Amount or Final Redemption Amount, as applicable, will be calculated
by reference to a Redemption Payoff. Investors should have regard to the relevant risk factors, which
apply to the Redemption Payoff specified in the applicable Final Terms to be applicable for determining
the Early Redemption Amount, the Final Redemption Amount or the Instalment Redemption Amount, as
the case may be. The calculation of such Redemption Payoff may be linked to the value of one or more
Underlying(s) that have been selected under the relevant Redemption Payoff. The performance of the
Underlying(s) will consequently affect the Early Redemption Amount, Instalment Redemption Amount
or Final Redemption Amount an investor will receive.

Fair Market Value Redemption Amount

Where a Security is subject to early redemption, it may (where specified in the applicable Final Terms)
be redeemed at its Fair Market Value Redemption Amount, which is likely to be different from the
amount due on the scheduled redemption date. The Fair Market VValue Redemption Amount in respect of
a Security will be an amount equal to the fair market value of the Security (subject to a minimum of
zero) as at (or about) the date of early redemption, taking into account, without limitation, (i) the
deduction of the Hedge Amount (except for an early redemption following the occurrence of an
Additional Disruption Event and in respect of Italian Listed Certificates) and (ii) in the case of the Bond
Linked Securities, the value of the relevant Bond but disregarding (1) (in the case of Secured Securities)
any collateral which has been, or is required to be, delivered in connection with such Security and (2)
(only in case of a payment event of default under the Securities or an insolvency of the relevant |ssuer
and/or the Guarantor) the financial condition of the relevant I ssuer and/or the Guarantor.

In the case of Bond Linked Securities which are Secured Securities and where the Collateral Assets
consist in whole or in part of the Bond, and where the Fair Market Value Redemption Amount is being
determined following enforcement of the security created in relation to the Securities, the value of the
Bond shall be determined by reference to the value at which the Security Trustee, or the Disposal Agent
on its behalf, is able to liquidate or realise the Bond (after deducting any costs associated with the
relevant enforcement and liquidation and any related fees or taxes). In respect of Secured Securities and
following a Custodian Default, the value of the Bond (where Collateral Monitoring is not applicable) or
the Fair Market Value Redemption Amount (where Collateral Monitoring is applicable) shall be subject
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to a maximum of the value of the amounts actually recovered from the Custodian (or any agent, sub-
custodian or delegate thereof).

Hedge Amounts represent the losses or costs (expressed as a positive number) to the relevant Issuer or
any dffiliate thereof that are incurred or gains (expressed as a negative number) of the relevant Issuer or
any affiliate thereof that are realised in unwinding any hedging arrangements entered into in respect of
the relevant Securities. The determination of the Hedge Amounts shall disregard the financial condition
of the relevant I ssuer and/or the Guarantor only in case of a payment event of default under the Notes or
an insolvency of the relevant Issuer and/or the Guarantor.

Following the early redemption of the Securities, a Security holder may not be able to reinvest the
redemption proceeds at an equivalent rate of return to the Securities being redeemed and may only be
able to do so at a significantly lower rate or in worse investment conditions. Potential investors should
consider reinvestment risk in light of other investments available at that time.

(iii)  Redemption Unwind Costs

Redemption Unwind Costs or Payoff Feature Unwind Costs, if applicable, reflect an amount, equal to
such Security's pro rata portion of the value (determined in the currency in which the Securities are
denominated) of any losses, expenses and costs to the relevant Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates who
may have hedged the price risk of the Securities and any loss of tax relief or other tax consegquences of
unwinding or adjusting any underlying or related swap agreement or other hedging arrangements, all as
calculated by the Calculation Agent in its sole discretion. The investor has no way of knowing if the
Securities have been hedged, the terms of any such hedge and the consequences of when such hedge is
unwound or adjusted and so have no way of knowing what this amount will be and the effect on the
amount paid on redemption of the Securities.

4 RISKSRELATED TO SECURED SECURITIES
(@  Natureof security

The security granted by the Issuer or, where Third Party Security is applicable, by the relevant Third Party
Chargor, under a Pledge Agreement is a security interest over the Collateral Account in which the Collateral
Assets are held (although investors should note the remaining provisions of this section relating to Collateral
Assets which are held through a clearing system) and, prior to the occurrence of a Collateral Enforcement
event, does not extend to any interest or distributions paid on such Collateral Assets (to the extent such amounts
are not held in the relevant Collateral Account). The security granted by the Issuer under a Security Trust Deed
is a security interest over the Issuer's rights under the Charged Documents, to the extent those rights relate to
the relevant Series of Secured Securities.

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms, no security interest will be granted by the Issuer or,
where Third Party Security is applicable, by the relevant Third Party Chargor, over any of its rights under any
agreement under which it acquires any Collateral Assets (including, without limitation, any hedging
agreements) or its rights against the Custodian or any other Collateral Arrangement Party. This means that the
Security Trustee will not have the ability to compel the Issuer or, if applicable, any Third Party Chargor, to
enforce its rights (or to enforce such rights on behalf of the Issuer or Third Party Chargor) under any agreement
against a counterparty to such agreement.

(b)  Custody arrangementsand structure of the Collateral Accounts

The Custodian may, to the extent permitted in the Custodian Agreement, hold certain cash and/or securities sub-
accounts with other custodial entities (sub-custodians). Collateral Assets, which, pursuant to the terms of the
Secured Security Conditions and the Custodian Agreement, are to be held with the Custodian in a Collateral
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Account, may therefore in practice be held by the Custodian in sub-accounts with sub-custodians. Where the
Collateral Assets are held by a sub-custodian on behalf of the Custodian, they will be held pursuant to separate
agreements which may vary in relation to any particular sub-custodian and which may not be governed by
Luxembourg law. Security interests in respect of the Collateral Assets also may be created pursuant to separate
agreements, which may not be governed by L uxembourg law.

The Custodian shall act in good faith and use reasonable care in the selection and continued appointment of
sub-custodians, but shall otherwise have no responsibility with respect to the performance by such persons of
their duties or in the event of their insolvency or dissolution. Accordingly, Securityholders will be exposed to,
amongst other things, the risk of any potential operational disruption or any other adverse impact related to the
Custodian and any sub-custodian (including disruption caused by any insolvency proceedings, which may be
commenced in respect of the Custodian, and/or any such sub-custodians).

Investors should note that, pursuant to the Custodian Agreement and in respect of a Series of Secured
Securities, the Custodian is entitled to withhold cash standing to the credit of any cash Collatera Account
relating to that Series for the purposes of paying certain taxes which may be chargeable on payments from the
Custodian to the Issuersin relation to that Series. In the event that the relevant Issuer failed to meet any such
tax liability and the Custodian were to make a deduction from the Issuer's cash Collateral Account, the value of
the Collateral Assets available for distribution would be reduced.

(c)  Typeof collateralisation

The security provided for a Series of Secured Securities is limited to the Collateral Assets constituting the
Collateral Pool applicable to such Series. The amount of Collateral Assets constituting such Collateral Pool will
depend, amongst other things, on whether Collateral Monitoring is specified as being applicable in the
applicable Final Terms (and, if it is, aso on the Type of Collateralisation specified as being applicable in the
applicable Final Terms, on the Collateralisation Percentage specified in the applicable Final Terms, on whether
or not Collateral Valuation at Nominal Value is applicable or on whether or not a Haircut is specified in the
applicable Fina Terms). There is no guarantee that the Collateral Assets will be sufficient to ensure that,
following enforcement of a Pledge Agreement, the amounts available for distribution or the value of the
Collateral Assets available to be delivered by the Security Trustee will be sufficient to pay all amounts due to
Securityholders in respect of the relevant Series of Secured Securities (see "Shortfall on Realisation of
Collateral Assets and Limited Recourse of Securityholders'). In addition the claim of Securityholders may
differ from the value of the Collateral Assets (see Conditions 6.5 and 6.8 of the Secured Security Conditions).

(d)  Changeof law — Implementation of the Collateral Directive under L uxembourg L aw

The provisions relating to Secured Securities in the General Conditions of the Securities (including the Secured
Security Conditions), the Pledge Agreement and the other programme documentation are based on relevant law
in effect as at the date of this Base Prospectus. No assurance can be given as to the impact on Securityholders
of any possible judicial decision or change to such laws, or the official application or interpretation of such
laws or administrative practices after the date of this Base Prospectus. In particular, significant changes to the
Luxembourg act dated 5 August 2005 on financial collateral arrangements, as amended (the Collateral Act
2005) implementing Directive 2002/47/EC on financial collateral arrangements (the Collateral Directive) in
Luxembourg may have an adverse impact on the rights of the Securityholders. Neither the Issuers, the
Guarantor nor any other party makes any representation as to the interpretation of, or any amendments to, any
of the provisions of the Collateral Directive or itsimplementation in Luxembourg.

(e)  Potential lack of diversification of the Collateral Assets

Investors should note that, depending on the relevant Eligibility Criteria and Collateral Rules, the Collateral
Assets in a Collateral Pool on which a Series of Secured Securities are secured may be, unless otherwise
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specified in the relevant Eligibility Criteria and Collateral Rules, limited to one or a few assets or types of
assets.

Low diversification of Collateral Assetsin a Collateral Pool may increase the risk that the value of Collateral
Assets deliverable on final redemption (if physical settlement is applicable) and that the proceeds of realisation
of the Collateral Assets may be less than the sums due to the relevant Securityholders under the relevant
Secured Securities. If the Collateral Pool is comprised of a limited number of different types of assets, any
depreciation in the value of such assets and the realisation or delivery, as the case may be, of the Collateral
Assets in the corresponding Collateral Pool will have a proportionally larger impact on any shortfall as the
amount recovered in respect of the Collateral Assets on their sale will be dependent on the then current market
value of asmaller range of Collateral Assets.

None of the Issuer, any Third Party Chargor, the Guarantor, the Security Trustee, the Collateral Manager, the
Collateral Monitoring Agent or the Custodian is under any abligation to ensure that the relevant Eligibility
Criteriaor Collateral Rules provide for the diversification of Collateral Assetsin a Collateral Pool.

()] [lliquid Collateral Assets

Depending on the relevant Eligibility Criteria and Collateral Rules, certain of the Collateral Assets may not be
admitted to trading on any public market and may be illiquid and not easily realisable in certain market
circumstances. Where there is limited liquidity in the secondary market relating to Collateral Assets, on
enforcement the Security Trustee or the Disposal Agent on its behalf may not be able to readily sell such
Collateral Assetsto athird party or may only be able to sell such Collateral Assets at a discounted value. Where
the Security Trustee or the Disposal Agent on its behalf is unable to sell such Collateral Assets, the Security
Trustee will be entitled to deliver such Collateral Assets as if Physical Delivery of Collateral Assets on
Enforcement were applicable in relation thereto.

(g0 Correlation between the value of the Collateral Assets and the creditwor thiness of certain entities

Depending on the Eligibility Criteria and the Collateral Rules applicable for a Series of Secured Securities, the
Collateral Assets relating to such Series could comprise of (in whole or in part) assets whose value may be
positively or negatively correlated with the creditworthiness of the Issuer, any Third Party Chargor and the
Guarantor. In the event that there is a positive correlation between the value of any Collateral Assets and the
creditworthiness of the Issuer, any Third Party Chargor and the Guarantor, the value of these Collateral Assets
will vary in the same way as the creditworthiness of the Issuer, Third Party Chargor and the Guarantor.

Where the value of any Collateral Assetsis positively correlated with the creditworthiness of the Issuer, Third
Party Chargor and the Guarantor, for example where the Collateral Assets consist of securities (such as debt or
equities) issued by other financial institutions, a default by the Issuer and the Guarantor in relation to their
obligations under the Secured Securities may be associated with a fall in the value of the relevant Collateral
Assets.

(h)  Difference between the calculation of Secured Security Market Value and calculation of a Secured
Security'svaluefor other purposes

The Secured Security Market Value of a Secured Security is the market value of the relevant Secured Security
determined by the Security Valuation Agent on the basis of such valuation method as the Security Vauation
Agent may, acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner determine in its discretion and will
take into account the Issuer's and Guarantor's creditworthiness. There may be a difference between the Secured
Security Market Value of a Secured Security and the value of the Secured Security as determined for other
purposes, including, without limitation, any determination asto its Fair Market Value Redemption Amount.
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(i) Haircut applied to Collateral Assets

When determining the Collateral Value in respect of Collateral Assets in a Collateral Pool, the Collateral
Manager will, if so specified in the applicable Final Terms, apply the Haircut (being the percentage amount by
which the value of each type or class of Collateral Assets in a Collateral Pool is reduced) specified in the
applicable Final Terms. Although the level(s) of Haircut specified in the applicable Final Terms is intended to
reflect the risk of a depreciation in the value of Collateral Assets (in the period to which such Collateral Assets
may be realised) investors should note that the value of a Collateral Asset may change over time and the
Haircut applied to the Collateral Assets may become outdated and may not provide suitable protection against a
potential depreciation in value of the relevant Collateral Asset. No duty of care towards investorsisimplied or
accepted by the Issuer, any Third Party Chargor, the Guarantor, the Collateral Manager or the Collateral
Monitoring Agent in relation to the level(s) of Haircut to be applied to the Collateral Assets in a particular
Collateral Pool.

) Collateral Monitoring

Where Secured Securities are subject to Collateral Monitoring, on each Collateral Test Date, the Collateral
Monitoring Agent shall verify whether (i) the Collateral Rules relating to such Collateral Pool are satisfied and
(ii) the Collateral Valueis greater than or equal to the Required Collateral Value for such Collateral Poal, taking
into account any Haircut to be applied to the Collateral Assets.

Where it is not possible to provide such verification, the Issuer or the Third Party Chargor (or the Collateral
Manager on their behalf) may be required to deliver, or procure the delivery of, additional or replacement
Collateral Assetsto the Collateral Account such that after such adjustment of Collateral Assets the test referred
to above will be satisfied. Investors, nevertheless, will be exposed to a decline in the Collateral Value prior to
any such adjustment. Prior to such adjustment there is also a risk that the Collateral Assets may not meet the
Eligibility Criteria and/or that the Collateral Rules will not be satisfied.

Where Secured Securities are not subject to Collateral Monitoring, there will be no on-going monitoring of the
composition of the Collateral Pool and its compliance with the Collateral Rules (save where Collateral Assets
in the Collateral Pool are substituted in accordance with the Secured Security Conditions) and Securityholders
are therefore exposed to a decline in the value of the Collateral Assets, possibly to zero.

(k)  Frequency of Collateral Test Dateswhere Collateral Monitoring is applicable

In order to ensure that a Series of Secured Securities to which Collateral Monitoring appliesis collateralised in
accordance with its terms, the Collateral Value and the Required Collateral Value will be determined on the
Issue Date, on each periodic Collateral Test Date thereafter as specified in the applicable Final Terms and on
any additional date which is deemed to be a Collateral Test Date pursuant to the terms of the Secured Security
Conditions. The lower the frequency of the periodic Collateral Test Dates specified in the applicable Final
Terms and hence the greater the period of time in between each such periodic Collateral Test Date the more
likely it is that upon enforcement of the relevant Pledge Agreement, the proceeds of enforcement that a
Securityholder will receive or, where Physical Delivery of Collateral Assets on Enforcement is applicable, the
value of the Collateral Assets delivered, will be less than the amounts due to Securityholders in respect of the
relevant Series of Secured Securities.

In respect of Secured Securities in respect of which Collateral Monitoring is not applicable or where the Final
Terms may specify that there will be no periodic Collateral Test Dates, there will be no periodic adjustments to
the Collateral Assetsin the Collateral Pool during the life of the relevant Secured Securities other than on any
date which is deemed to be a Collateral Test Date pursuant to the terms of the Secured Security Conditions. In
this case, if the security created under the relevant Pledge Agreement is enforced, the of Collateral Assets
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available for distribution or delivery to Securityholders on enforcement, may be less than the amounts due to
Securityholders in respect of the relevant Series of Secured Securities.

() Substitution of Collateral Assets

If Collateral Substitution is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer or Third Party
Chargor (or the Collateral Manager on their behalf) may withdraw and/or replace Collateral Assets from any
Collateral Account provided that following such adjustment the applicable Collateral Test continues to be
satisfied. The Issuer or Third Party Chargor (or the Collateral Manager on their behalf) may give instructions
for the substitution of Collateral Assets any number of times over the term of the Secured Securities and is not
required to obtain the consent of the Collateral Monitoring Agent (where applicable in relation to a Series of
Secured Securities) or any other party prior to effecting the proposed substitution of Collateral Assets. Until any
further adjustments to the Collateral Assets have occurred, the value of Collateral Assets held in a Collateral
Account securing a Series of Secured Securities may be less than it would have been were it not for the
substitution of Collateral Assets.

(m) Early redemption or cancellation at the option of the I ssuer upon a Collateral Disruption Event

Secured Securities will be subject to Collateral Disruption Events (as defined in the Secured Security
Conditions) which may increase the possibility (in comparison with Securities, which are not secured) of the
Secured Securities being redeemed or cancelled early. Upon the occurrence of a Collateral Disruption Event,
the Issuer may, in its sole and absolute discretion, redeem or cancel, as applicable, al of the relevant Secured
Securities at their Early Redemption Amount following the occurrence of a Collateral Disruption Event.
Following the early redemption of the Secured Securities, a Securityholder may not be able to reinvest the
redemption proceeds at an equivalent rate of return to the Secured Securities being redeemed and may only be
ableto do so at asignificantly lower rate or in worse investment conditions. Potential investors should consider
reinvestment risk in light of other investments available at that time.

(n)  Secured Security Acceleration Event and enforcement of the security

Any holder of a Secured Security in respect of which a Secured Security Event of Default has occurred and is
continuing may, by giving written notice to the Issuer (and certain others), declare that the Securities of such
Series which that holder holds are immediately due and repayable at their Early Redemption Amount.
Following the giving of such notice, all the Secured Securities of the relevant Series will aso become
immediately due and repayable at their applicable Early Redemption Amount, without the need for any further
action by or on behalf of any other holder. Following the occurrence of a Secured Security Acceleration Event
and enforcement of the related security in accordance with the Secured Security Conditions, Securityholders
will be entitled to claim for any outstanding amounts due to them in accordance with the Secured Security
Conditions under the terms of, and subject to, the Guarantee.

The Security Trustee is only obliged to enforce a Pledge Agreement after having received a Collateral
Enforcement Notice from a Securityholder. A Securityholder is only entitled to send a Collateral Enforcement
Notice to the Security Trustee if neither the Issuer nor the Guarantor (pursuant to the terms of the Guarantee)
has paid all amounts due to such Securityholder within a period of 14 Business Days (or such other period as
may be specified in the Final Terms) following the occurrence of the relevant Secured Security Acceleration
Event.

The existence of such period means that there will be a delay between the occurrence of a Secured Security
Acceleration Event and the enforcement of the corresponding Pledge Agreement during which period there may
be a depreciation in the value of the relevant Collateral Assets, thus reducing the amount available to satisfy the
claims of Securityholders upon realisation of the Collateral Assets or the value of Collateral Assets available to
be delivered to the Securityhol ders.
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Where the Collateral Assets consist of debt securities, shares or other tradable securities, liquidation of all the
Collateral Assets simultaneously may increase the risk that the proceeds of realisation of the Collateral Assets
may be less than the sums due to the relevant Securityholders under the relevant Secured Securities because
liquidation of all the Collateral Assets in the Collateral Pool at the same time could, in particular market
circumstances, lead to areduction in the market value of some or all of the Collateral Assets.

In addition, following the realisation of the Collateral Assets, an investor may not be able to reinvest any
Collateral Enforcement Proceeds Share or, where applicable, any Collateral Assets that it receives at an
equivalent rate of return to the Secured Securities that have become immediately due and payable following the
occurrence of a Secured Security Acceleration Event and may only be able to do so at a significantly lower rate
or in worse investment conditions. Potential investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of other
investments available at that time.

(o) Entitlement of Securityholders on enforcement and subordination to payment of expenses and
other payments

Following the enforcement of a Pledge Agreement, the rights of Securityholders to be paid amounts from the
proceeds of such enforcement and the realisation of the related Collateral Assets or, where Physical Delivery of
Collateral Assets on Enforcement is applicable, to be delivered Collatera Assets, will be limited to the
applicable Early Redemption Amount.

The Early Redemption Amount in respect of a Secured Security will be equal to its Fair Market Value
Redemption Amount, which is likely to be different from the amount due on the scheduled redemption date.
The Fair Market Value Redemption Amount in respect of a Security will be for these purposes an amount equal
to the fair market value of the Security (subject to a minimum of zero) as at (or about) the date of early
redemption, taking into account, without limitation, (i) the deduction of the Hedge Amount (except for an early
redemption following the occurrence of an Additional Disruption Event and in respect of Italian Listed
Certificates) and (ii) in the case of the Bond Linked Securities, the value of the relevant Bond but disregarding
(1) the financial condition of the relevant Issuer and/or the Guarantor and (2) any collateral which has been, or
isrequired to be, delivered in connection with such Security.

In the case of Bond Linked Securities which are Secured Securities and where the Collateral Assets consist in
whole or in part of the Bond, and where the Fair Market Value Redemption Amount is being determined
following enforcement of the security created in relation to the Securities, the value of the Bond shall be
determined by reference to the value at which the Security Trustee, or the Disposal Agent on its behalf, is able
to liquidate or redlise the Bond (after deducting any costs associated with the relevant enforcement and
liquidation and any related fees or taxes). Following a Custodian Default, the value of the Bond (where
Collateral Monitoring is not applicable) or the Fair Market Value Redemption Amount (where Collateral
Monitoring is applicable) shall be subject to a maximum of the value of the amounts actually recovered from
the Custodian (or any agent, sub-custodian or delegate thereof).

Hedge Amounts represent the losses or costs (expressed as a positive number) to the relevant Issuer or any
affiliate thereof that are incurred or gains (expressed as a negative number) of the relevant Issuer or any affiliate
thereof that are realised in unwinding any hedging arrangements entered into in respect of the relevant
Securities.

Following the early redemption of the Secured Securities, a Securityholder may not be able to reinvest the
redemption proceeds at an equivalent rate of return to the Secured Securities being redeemed and may only be
ableto do so at asignificantly lower rate or in worse investment conditions. Potential investors should consider
reinvestment risk in light of other investments available at that time.
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A Securityholder's entitlement to the Early Redemption Amount in respect of any Secured Security in respect of
which a Secured Security Acceleration Event has occurred will be subordinated to and therefore rank behind
claims relating to any amounts payable to Secured Parties ranking prior to the Securityholders in accordance
with the Order of Priority specified in the applicable Final Terms and any rights of preference existing by
operation of law.

(p)  Shortfall on Realisation of Collateral Assetsand limited recour se of Securityholders

The security provided for a Series of Secured Securities is limited to the Collateral Assets constituting the
Collateral Pool applicable to such Series together with the Issuer's right, benefit, interest and title, present and
future, in, under and to the Charged Documents (to the extent they relate to such Series). The value realised for
the Collateral Assets in the relevant Collateral Pool or, where Physical Delivery of Collateral Assets on
Enforcement is applicable, the value of the Collateral Assets delivered, upon enforcement of the relevant
Pledge Agreement may be less than the amounts due to Securityholders in respect of the relevant Series of
Secured Securities and as a result, investors may lose a substantial portion of their investment. The level of risk
will particularly depend on whether Collateral Monitoring is applicable (and if it is, also on the Haircut value(s)
and the Collateral Rules, the Eligibility Criteria and on the collateralisation method (either MV
Collateralisation, NV Collateralisation, Max (MV, NV) Collateralisation or Min (MV, NV) Collateralisation) as
specified in the applicable Final Terms) and the relevant Collateral Rules and Eligibility Criteria.

Investors should also note that the Collateral Assets may suffer a fall in value between the time at which the
relevant Pledge Agreement becomes enforceable and the time at which the Collateral Assets are realised in full
or, where Physical Delivery of Collateral Assets on Enforcement is applicable, delivered. In extraordinary
circumstances, the Collateral Assets forming part of the Collateral Pool available at the time at which a Pledge
Agreement becomes enforceable could lose al or a substantial proportion of their value by the time of
realisation and distribution or delivery, as applicable.

If there is any shortfall in amounts due to a Securityholder in accordance with the Secured Security Conditions
then such Securityholder shall have no further claim against the Issuer (where such Issuer is Crédit Agricole
CIB FG or Crédit Agricole CIB FS), any Third Party Chargor or the Security Trustee in respect of such
amounts which remain unpaid following enforcement of the relevant Pledge Agreement (including, for the
avoidance of doubt, payments of nomina and/or interest in respect of the Securities). In such a scenario,
Securityholders will be able to claim under the terms of the Guarantee against the Guarantor for any unpaid
amounts and any such shortfall will therefore constitute an unsecured claim by such Securityholder against the
Guarantor. Investors should therefore be aware that if the value realised for the Collateral Assets or the value of
any Collateral Assets delivered islessthan the amounts due to them under their Securities, they will be exposed
to the creditworthiness of Crédit Agricole CIB for the remaining amount due to them.

(@ Physical Delivery of Collateral Assets on Enforcement

If Physical Delivery of Collateral Assets on Enforcement is specified in respect of a Series of Secured
Securities, upon enforcement of a Pledge Agreement, the Security Trustee will not sell, or cause to be sold, the
Collateral Assets (unless there is a Physical Delivery of Collateral Assets Disruption Event and other than in
order to pay any amounts payable to Secured Parties ranking prior to the holders of Securityholders in
accordance with the Order of Priority specified in the applicable Final Terms) but will procure delivery of the
Collateral Assets Entitlement to each Securityholder in the manner set out in the Secured Security Conditions.

If aPhysical Delivery of Collateral Assets Disruption Event occurs or exists on the relevant Collateral Delivery
Date, settlement will be postponed until the next Collateral Business Day on which there is no Physical
Delivery of Collateral Assets Disruption Event. If such Physical Delivery of Collateral Assets Disruption Event
continues for a continuous period of 20 Collateral Business Days (or such other period as specified in the Final
Terms) after the original Collateral Delivery Date, the Security Trustee or the Disposal Agent on its behalf will
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procure the sale of such Collateral Assetsin lieu of delivery of the relevant Collateral Assets Entitlement. The
amount received by a Securityholder following such sale of Collateral Assets may be lower than the amount,
which a Securityholder would have received if the relevant Collateral Assets had been délivered to it and the
Securityholder held the relevant Collateral Assets to the redemption date of such assets or sold such assets at a
different point in time.

N Risk of a delay in the realisation of the Collateral Assets in the event of the insolvency of any
relevant party

The insolvency of the Issuer will constitute a Secured Security Event of Default, which may trigger early
redemption of any Secured Securities issued by the Issuer. In these circumstances, or in the event of the
insolvency of any Third Party Chargor, the Guarantor or any Collateral Arrangement Party (for these purposes,
each arelevant party), the realisation of the Collateral Assets may be delayed either by the appointment of an
insolvency administrator or other insolvency official in relation to the relevant party or by measures ordered by
a competent court. Such delay could adversely affect the position of the Securityholders in the event of a
depreciation in the value of the Collateral Assets during such period.

In addition, in the case of an insolvency of a member of the Group, it is possible that the Issuer, the Guarantor
and the Collateral Arrangement Parties that are members of the Group may each be insolvent. Such
circumstances may lead to a delay in the administrative processes involved in the realisation of the Collateral
Assets. However, as the entities responsible for the enforcement of the Pledge Agreement and the realisation of
the Collateral Assets, namely the Custodian, the Disposal Agent and the Security Trustee are not part of the
Group, the impact of any insolvency of a member of the Group on such enforcement and realisation should be
less material than it would have been if the Custodian, the Disposal Agent and/or the Security Trustee were part
of the Group.

The Custodian, the Disposal Agent and the Security Trustee are (unless otherwise specified in the applicable
Fina Terms) part of the same group and in the event of the insolvency of one such entity it is possible that
another of those entities may also be insolvent. Such circumstances may lead to a delay in the realisation of the
Collateral Assets. The Custodian Agreement, Collateral Monitoring Agency Agreement, the Disposal Agency
Agreement and each Security Trust Deed will contain provisions permitting the replacement of the Custodian,
Collateral Monitoring Agent, Disposal Agent and Security Trustee, as applicable, in certain circumstances,
including following insolvency, as further provided in such agreements and the Secured Security Conditions.

(9 Potential conflicts of interest between Securityholders and the Collateral Manager and Security
Valuation Agent

As the Collateral Manager and Security Valuation Agent are affiliates of the Issuer or their relevant successor,
potential conflicts of interest may arise between the Collateral Manager, the Security Valuation Agent and the
holders of the Secured Securities, including with respect to the making of certain determinations and the
exercise of certain discretions (including as to the calculation of the Secured Security Market Vaue of the
Secured Securities, the Collateral Value and the Required Collateral Value). In addition, whilst the Collateral
Manager and the Security Valuation Agent are obliged to carry out their duties and functions in good faith and
using their reasonable judgment, neither the Collateral Manager nor the Security Valuation Agent acts or will
act as a fiduciary or as an advisor to the Securityholders in respect of their duties as Collateral Manager and
Security Valuation Agent, respectively.

Therisk to holders of Secured Securities in respect of which Collateral Monitoring is applicable of any conflict
of interest between Securityholders and the Collateral Manager is mitigated by the fact that any Collateral Test
Noticeis either reviewed, and the contents thereof verified by or otherwise agreed with, a Collateral Monitoring
Agent not belonging to the Group or else is subject to a predetermined Collateral Test Dispute Resolution
Procedure.
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® Security Trustee

The Security Trustee will enforce the security under the relevant Pledge Agreement upon the delivery of a
Collateral Enforcement Notice and either the Disposal Agent or the Security Trustee will (i) liquidate or realise
the Collateral Assets in the Collateral Pool which secures a Series of Secured Securities and subsequently
distribute the relevant Collateral Enforcement Proceeds Share (as defined in the Secured Security Conditions)
to the relevant Securityholders or (ii) where Physical Delivery of Collateral Assets on Enforcement is specified
as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, arrange for delivery of the relevant Collateral Assets Entitlement
(as defined in the Secured Security Conditions) to the relevant Securityholders, in each case in accordance with
the Order of Priority specified in the applicable Final Terms.

A failure by the Security Trustee or the Disposal Agent, as the case may be, to perform its obligations with
respect to the Collateral Assets or to perform its obligations in an efficient manner may adversely affect the
realisation of the Collateral Assets and the amount distributable or deliverable to Securityholders.

The Security Trustee may appoint an agent (the Disposal Agent) which, following receipt of instructions from
the Security Trustee, will liquidate or realise the Collateral Assets in the relevant Collateral Pool. The initial
Disposal Agent is Citibank N.A., London branch. A failure by the Disposal Agent to perform its obligations
with respect to the Collateral Assetswill adversely affect the realisation of the Collateral Assets and the amount
distributable to Securityholders.

(U Nofiduciary duties

In performing their duties under the Programme, none of the Collateral Manager, the Collateral Monitoring
Agent, the Security Vauation Agent, the Custodian or the Disposal Agent will act as a fiduciary or as an
advisor to the Securityholders in respect of their respective duties and do not act as a trustee for the
Securityholders.
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RETAIL CASCADES

Except in the circumstances described below, the Issuers have not authorised the making of any offer by any
offeror and the Issuers have not consented to the use of this Base Prospectus by any other person in connection
with any offer of the Securities in any jurisdiction. Any offer made without the consent of the Issuers is
unauthorised and none of the Issuers nor, for the avoidance of doubt, the Guarantor or any of the Dealers accepts
any responsibility or liability in relation to such offer or for the actions of the persons making any such
unauthorised offer.

If, in the context of a Non-exempt Offer (as such term is defined below), an investor is offered Securities by a
person which is not an Authorised Offeror, the investor should check with such person whether anyone is
responsible for this Base Prospectus for the purpose of the relevant Non-exempt Offer and, if so, who that person
is. If aninvestor isin any doubt about whether it can rely on this Base Prospectus and/or who is responsible for its
contents, the Investor should take legal advice.

In the context of any offer of Securities from time to time in Luxembourg, the United Kingdom, Belgium, France,
Germany, Italy, Portugal or Spain (the Public Offer Jurisdictions) that is not made within an exemption from the
requirement to publish a prospectus under the Prospectus Directive, as amended, (a Non-exempt Offer), the
Issuers consent to the use of this Base Prospectus as so supplemented in connection with a Non-exempt Offer of
any Securities during the offer period specified in the applicable Final Terms (the Offer Period) and in the Public
Offer Jurisdiction(s) specified in the applicable Final Terms by:

if Specific Consent is specified in the applicable Final Terms:

(@  any financia intermediary named therein, subject to the relevant conditions set out in such Final Terms;
and

(b) any financial intermediary appointed after the date of the applicable Fina Terms and whose name is
published on the website  (http://www.ca-cib.com/our-offers/rates-credit-and-cross-assets-
derivatives.htm) and identified as an Authorised Offeror in respect of the Non-exempt Offer, in each
case (@) or (b), an Authorised Offeror;

if General Consent is specified in the applicable Final Terms, any financial intermediary which is authorised to
make offers under Directive 2004/39/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council on markets in financial
instruments (as amended), including under any applicable implementing measure in each relevant jurisdiction
(MiFID) shall, for the duration of the relevant Offer Period, publish on its website that it is using this Base
Prospectus for such Non-exempt Offer in accordance with the consent of the relevant Issuer and that it accepts
the Authorised Offeror Terms set out below relating to the use of the consent and the other conditions attached
thereto.

Authorised Offeror Terms are that the relevant financial intermediary will, and agrees, represents, warrants
and undertakes for the benefit of the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor, as applicable, and the relevant Dealer that it
will, at all timesin connection with the relevant Non-exempt Offer of the Securities:

(i) act in accordance with, and be solely responsible for complying with, all applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidance of any applicable regulatory bodies (the Rules) from time to time including,
without limitation and in each case, Rules relating to both the appropriateness or suitability of any
investment in the Securities by any person and disclosure to any potential investor and will immediately
inform the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor, as applicable, and the Deadlers if at any time such financial
intermediary becomes aware or suspects that it is or may be in violation of any Rules and take all
appropriate steps to remedy such violation and comply with such Rulesin all aspects;
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comply with the restrictions set out under "Subscription and Sale" in this Base Prospectus which would
apply asif it were aDedler;

ensure that any fee or rebate (and any other commissions or benefits of any kind) received or paid by
that financial intermediary in relation to the offer or sale of the Securities does not violate the Rules and,
to the extent required by the Rules, isfully and clearly disclosed to investors or potentia investors;

hold all licences, consents, approvals and permissions required in connection with solicitation of interest
in, or offers or sales of, the Securities under the Rules;

comply with and takes appropriate steps in relation to applicable anti-money laundering, anti-bribery,
anti-corruption and "know your client" Rules (including taking appropriate steps, in compliance with
such Rules, to establish and document the identity of each potential investor prior to initial investment in
any Securities by the investor), and will not permit any application for the Securities in circumstances
where the financial intermediary has any suspicions as to the source of the application monies;

retain investor identification records for at least the minimum period required under applicable Rules,
and shall, if so requested, make such records available to the relevant Dealer(s), the Guarantor, as
applicable, and the relevant Issuers or directly to the appropriate authorities with jurisdiction over the
relevant Issuers, the Guarantor, as applicable, and/or the relevant Dealer(s) in order to enable the
relevant Issuers, the Guarantor, as applicable, and/or the relevant Dealer(s) to comply with anti-money
laundering, anti-bribery, anti-corruption and "know your client" rules applying to the Issuers and/or the
relevant Dealer(s);

ensure it does not give any information other than that contained in this Base Prospectus (as may be
amended or supplemented by the Issuers from time to time) or make any representation in connection
with the offering or sale of, or the solicitation of interest in, the Securities;

agree that any communication in which it attaches or otherwise includes any announcement published
by the Issuer at the end of the Offer Period will be consistent with the Base Prospectus, and (in any case)
must be fair, clear and not misleading and in compliance with the Rules and must state that such
Authorised Offeror has provided it independently from the Issuer and must expresdy confirm that the
Issuer has not accepted any responsibility for the content of any such communication;

ensure that no holder of Securities or potential Investor in Securities shall become an indirect or direct
client of the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor or the relevant Dealer for the purposes of any applicable
Rules from time to time, and to the extent that any client obligations are created by the relevant financial
intermediary under any applicable Rules, then such financia intermediary shall perform any such
obligations so arising;

will co-operate with the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor, as applicable, and the relevant Dedler in
providing any information (including without limitation documents and records maintained pursuant to
paragraph (vi) above) upon written request from the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor, as applicable, and/or
the relevant Dealer asis available to such financial intermediary or which is within its power and control
from time to time together with such further assistance as is reasonably requested by the Issuer, the
Guarantor, as applicable, and/or the relevant Dealer in connection with any request or investigation by
any regulator, any complaint received in relation to the Securities or which the relevant |ssuer,
Guarantor and/or the relevant Dealer may require to comply with its own legal, tax and regulatory
reguirements as soon as is reasonably practicable and, in any event, within any time frame set by any
regulator or regulatory process pursuant to which such information has been requested by the Issuer
and/or the relevant Dealer;
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(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

Retail Cascades

during the primary distribution period of the Securities: (a) not sell the Securities at any price other than
the Issue Price (unless otherwise agreed with the relevant Deadler); (b) not sell the Securities otherwise
than for settlement on the Issue Date (as specified in the applicable Final Terms); and (c) not appoint any
sub-distributors (unless otherwise agreed with the relevant Dealer);

make available to each potential investor in the Securities the Base Prospectus (as supplemented as at
the relevant time, if applicable), the applicable Fina Terms and any applicable information booklet
provided by the relevant Issuer for such purpose, and not convey or publish any information that is not
contained in or entirely consistent with the Base Prospectus;

if it conveys or publishes any communication (other than the Base Prospectus or any other materials
provided to such financia intermediary by or on behalf of the relevant Issuer for the purposes of the
relevant Non-exempt Offer) in connection with the relevant Non-exempt Offer, it will ensure that such
communication (a) is fair, clear and not misleading and complies with the Rules, (b) states that such
financial intermediary has provided such communication independently of the relevant Issuer, that such
financial intermediary is solely responsible for such communication and that neither the relevant Issuer,
the Guarantor, as applicable, nor the relevant Dealer accepts any responsibility for such communication
and (c) does not, without the prior written consent of the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor, as applicable, or
the relevant Dealer (as applicable), use the legal or publicity names of the relevant |ssuer, the Guarantor,
as applicable, or the relevant Dealer or any other name, brand or logo registered by an entity within their
respective groups or any material over which any such entity retains a proprietary interest, except to
describe the Issuer as issuer or the Guarantor as guarantor of the Securities on the basis set out in the
Base Prospectus,

agrees and undertakes to indemnify each of the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor, as applicable, and the
relevant Dealer (in each case on behalf of such entity and its respective directors, officers, employees,
agents, affiliates and controlling persons) against any losses, liabilities, costs, claims, charges, expenses,
actions or demands (including reasonable costs of investigation and any defence raised thereto and
counsel's fees and disbursements associated with any such investigation or defence) which any of them
may incur or which may be made against any of them arising out of or in relation to, or in connection
with, any breach of any of the foregoing agreements, representations, warranties or undertakings by such
financial intermediary, including (without limitation) any unauthorised action by such financia
intermediary or failure by such financial intermediary to observe any of the above restrictions or
requirements or the making by such financial intermediary of any unauthorised representation or the
giving or use by it of any information which has not been authorised for such purposes by the relevant
I ssuer, the Guarantor, as applicable, or the relevant Dedler;

agrees and accepts that:

(@  the contract between the relevant Issuer and the financial intermediary formed upon acceptance
by the financial intermediary of the relevant Issuer's offer to use the Prospectus with its consent
in connection with the relevant Non-exempt Offer (the Authorised Offeror Contract), and any
non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with the Authorised Offeror Contract,
shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, English law;

(b)  thecourts of England are to have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any disputes which may arise out
of or in connection with the Authorised Offeror Contract (including a dispute relating to any non-
contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with the Authorised Offeror Contract) and
accordingly submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English courts; and

(c)  the relevant Issuer and each relevant Deder will, pursuant to the Contracts (Rights of Third
Parties) Act 1999, be entitled to enforce those provisions of the Authorised Offeror Contract
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which are, or are expressed to be, for their benefit, including the agreements, representations,
warranties, undertakings and indemnity given by the financia intermediary pursuant to the
Authorised Offeror Terms;

(xvi) ensure that it does not, directly or indirectly, cause the relevant Issuers, the Guarantor, as applicable, or
the relevant Dealer(s) to breach any Rule or any requirement to obtain or make any filing, authorisation
or consent in any jurisdiction; and

(xvii) satisfy any further conditions specified in the applicable Final Terms,

in each case for so long as they are authorised to make such offers under MiFID (in each case any such financial
intermediary being an Authorised Offeror).

For the avoidance of doubt, none of the Dealers, the Guarantor or the Issuers shall have any obligation to ensure
that an Authorised Offeror complies with applicable laws and regulations and shall therefore have no liability in
this respect.

The Issuers accept responsibility, in the Public Offer Jurisdiction(s) specified in the Final Terms, for the content of
this Base Prospectus in relation to any person (an Investor) in such Public Offer Jurisdiction(s) to whom an offer
of any Securities is made by any Authorised Offeror and where the offer is made in compliance with all the
conditions attached to the giving of the consent, all as mentioned in this Base Prospectus and/or as specified in the
applicable Final Terms. However, neither the Issuers, the Guarantor nor any Dealer has any responsibility for any
of the actions of any Authorised Offeror, including compliance by an Authorised Offeror with applicable conduct
of business rules or other local regulatory requirements or other securities law requirements in relation to such
offer.

The consent referred to above relates to Offer Periods (if any) occurring within 12 months from the date of the
approval of this Base Prospectus by the CSSF.

In the event the applicable Final Terms designate Authorised Offeror(s) to whom the Issuers have given its
consent to use this Base Prospectus during an Offer Period, the I ssuers may also give consent to additional
financial intermediary(ies) so long as they are authorised to make such offers under the Markets in
Financial Instruments Directive (also an Authorised Offeror) after the date of the applicable Final Terms
and, if it does so, it will publish any new information in relation to such Authorised Offerors who are
unknown at the time of the approval of this Base Prospectus or the filing of the applicable Final Terms at
http://www.ca-cib.com/our -offer s/r ates-cr edit-and-cr oss-assets-der ivatives.htm.

If the Final Terms specify that any Authorised Offeror may use this Base Prospectus during the Offer
Period, any such Authorised Offeror is required, for the duration of the Offer Period, to publish on its
website that it is using this Base Prospectus for the relevant Non-exempt Offer with the consent of the
I ssuersand in accor dance with the conditions attached thereto.

Other than as set out above, neither the I ssuers, the Guarantor nor any of the Dealers has authorised the making of
any Non-exempt Offer by any person in any circumstances and such person is not permitted to use this Base
Prospectus in connection with its offer of any Securities. Any such offers are not made on behalf of the Issuers, the
Guarantor or by any of the Dealers or Authorised Offerors and none of the Issuers, the Guarantor or any of the
Dealers or Authorised Offerors has any responsibility or liability for the actions of any person making such offers.

An Investor intending to acquire or acquiring any Securities from an Authorised Offeror will do so, and offers and
sales of the Securities to an Investor by an Authorised Offeror will be made, in accordance with any terms and
other arrangements in place between such Authorised Offeror and such Investor including as to price alocations
and settlement arrangements (the Terms and Conditions of the Non-exempt Offer). The Issuers will not be a
party to any such arrangements with Investors (other than Dealers) in connection with the offer or sale of the
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Securities and, accordingly, this Base Prospectus and any Final Terms will not contain such information and an
investor must obtain such information from the Authorised Offeror. The Terms and Conditions of the Non-
exempt Offer shall be provided to Investors by that Authorised Offeror at the time of the Non-exempt Offer.
Neither the Issuers, the Guarantor nor any of the Dealers or other Authorised Offerors have any responsibility or

liability for such information.
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USER'S GUIDE

TOTHE

CREDIT AGRICOLE CORPORATE AND INVESTMENT BANK

and
CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

and
CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS

€50,000,000,000
Structured Debt I nstruments | ssuance Programme
unconditionally and irrevocably guar anteed by

CREDIT AGRICOLE CORPORATE AND INVESTMENT BANK

Capitalised terms used in this User's Guide are defined in General Condition 24 (Definitions) at the end of the
Terms and Conditions of the Securities section of the Base Prospectus or in the particular section where the
capitalised terms are first used herein. Definitions are designated by the capitalised term being in bold text.
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OVERVIEW OF THISUSER'S GUIDE

This User's Guide aims to:

Provide potential investors with an overview of the principal documentation relating to Securities issued pursuant
to the Programme. (Please refer to the section of this User's Guide entitled Documentation (see page 146).

Help potential investors understand how the Terms and Conditions of the Securities, that are set out in the Base
Prospectus and split into different sections, are structured. (Please refer to the section of this User's Guide entitled
Structure of the Terms and Conditions (see page 148).

Help potential investors identify and navigate the sections of the Terms and Conditions that may be relevant to a
particular Series of Securities and the circumstances in which a particular Series of Securities may be subject to

Early Redemption. (Please refer to the remaining sections of this User's Guide.)

IMPORTANT NOTICE

THIS USER'S GUIDE DOES NOT PURPORT TO BE A GUIDE TO THE TERMS OF EACH SERIES OF
SECURITIES OR A GUIDE ASTO ALL OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF ANY ONE SERIES OF
SECURITIES. THIS USER'S GUIDE IS QUALIFIED IN ITS ENTIRETY BY THE DETAILED CONTENTS
OF THE BASE PROSPECTUS (ASTHE SAME MAY BE SUPPLEMENTED FROM TIME TO TIME) AND, IN
RELATION TO ANY PARTICULAR SERIES OF SECURITIES, THE APPLICABLE TERMS AND
CONDITIONS (ASCOMPLETED BY THE APPLICABLE FINAL TERMS). AS SUCH, IT IS NOT A
SUBSTITUTE FOR READING THE BASE PROSPECTUS (AS THE SAME MAY BE SUPPLEMENTED
FROM TIME TO TIME) AND THE APPLICABLE FINAL TERMS, THAT PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS
SHOULD READ AND ENSURE THEY UNDERSTAND BEFORE MAKING ANY DECISION TO INVEST IN
SECURITIES.

THE CROSS-REFERENCES PROVIDED IN THIS USER'S GUIDE ARE ONLY AN INDICATION OF THE
MAIN SECTIONS OF THE BASE PROSPECTUS FOR THE SUBJECT MATTER BEING DESCRIBED. THIS
DOES NOT PRECLUDE OTHER SECTIONS OF THE BASE PROSPECTUS AND/OR THE FINAL TERMS
HAVING A BEARING ON THE RETURN DUE TO INVESTORS OR THEIR RIGHTS UNDER THE
SECURITIESAND THISUSER'S GUIDE SHOULD BE READ IN THISLIGHT.

SECURITIES CAN BE VOLATILE INSTRUMENTS. ACCORDINGLY, PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS

SHOULD ENSURE THAT THEY UNDERSTAND FULLY THE NATURE OF THE SECURITIES AND MUST
BE FULLY PREPARED TO SUSTAIN A TOTAL LOSSOF THEIR INVESTMENT IN THE SECURITIES.
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DOCUMENTATION

Various types of Securities may be issued under the Programme and these are described in more detail in the Base
Prospectus. Potential investors should read and ensure they understand the suite of documentation pursuant to
which different types of Securities will be offered pursuant to the Base Prospectus. A summary of the

documentation is set out bel ow.

The Base Prospectus

The Base Prospectus contains information regarding:

the form of the Securities,

the Terms and Conditions of the Securities
the Issuers and the Guarantor

the principa risks associated with an
investment in the Securities.

The Base Prospectus may be supplemented by the
Issuers. As such, potential investors should ensure that
when reviewing the Base Prospectus, they also review
each supplement (if any) to the Base Prospectus.
Potential investors should also be aware that some
information in the Base Prospectus is incorporated into
it by reference and therefore may need to be accessed

separately.

Final Terms

The Fina Terms set out information specific to a
particular Series of Securities and complete the
contractual terms and conditions for that Series of
Securities. In certain cases, summary information
relating to the Issuer and the Securities will be
appended to the Final Termsin what is referred to as an
"Issue Specific Summary". The form of Issue Specific
Summary is set out at page 14 of the Base Prospectus.

The Deed of Guarantee

Where Securities are issued by Crédit Agricole CIB
Finance (Guernsey) Limited or Crédit Agricole CIB
Financial Solutions, they will be guaranteed by Crédit
Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank pursuant to a
guarantee the form of which is set out at page 1260 of
the Base Prospectus.
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TheAgency Agreement

The Issuers have entered into an agency agreement
pursuant to which they have appointed CACEIS Bank
Luxembourg to act as their agent in performing certain
operational duties in connection with the Securities.
The Agency Agreement also includes the form of
certain notices that may be delivered either to or from
Securityholders in accordance with the Terms and
Conditions of a Series of Securities.

The Programme Agreement

The Issuers have entered into a programme agreement
pursuant to which they have agreed with the Dedlers
referred to in the Base Prospectus the terms on which
they will issue and subscribe for Securities,
respectively.

Deed of Covenant

The Issuers have entered into a Deed of Covenant
pursuant to which Securityholders will, subject to the
conditions thereof and the terms and conditions of the
Securities, be contractually entitled to take proceedings
against the Issuer in the event that the Securities have
become due and repayable but have not been repaid in
full and become void as a conseguence.




Documentation relating to Secured Securities

The Issuers have entered into the additional documents
pursuant to which Secured Securities can be issued
under the Programme. Further detail on these
documents is set out in the section below entitled

"Secured Securities'.
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STRUCTURE OF THE TERM SAND CONDITIONS

The diagram below illustrates the various sets of terms and conditions that may be relevant to Securities issued
under the Programme. The section of this User's Guide entitled Additional Terms and Conditions contains further
information on the different sets of optional terms and conditions referred to in the diagram.

Key

* Sections of the Terms and Conditions set out in a
box with a solid border will apply in respect of
each Series of Securities.

* Sections of the Terms and Conditions set out in a
box with a dotted border are optional and may or
may not be applicable to a particular Series of
Securities.

General Terms and Conditions
(including standard interest provisions)

Alternative Currency Conditions

|
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Product-specific additional Terms and
Conditions
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THE FINAL TERMS

A Final Terms document is prepared in connection with each Series of Securities for the purposes of setting out the
elections that complete the Terms and Conditions applicable to that Series of Securities and to provide certain
issue-specific and related information.

The Fina Terms is split into two parts (Part A and Part B). The diagram below summarises the broad function of
Part A and Part B of the Final Terms in respect of a Series of Securities and provides an overview of the different
sections of those two parts.

Part A Part B
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INTEREST

Interest on Securities may be determined by reference to a fixed rate or a floating rate or may be structured as a
zero coupon security, which effectively bears interest by being issued at a discount to its face value. For the
purposes of this User's Guide, Securities of thistype are referred to as Securities that bear General I nterest.

Securities may alternatively bear interest determined by reference to an Underlying Asset and/or by reference to a
formula. For the purposes of this User's Guide, Securities of this type are referred to as Securities that bear

Structured Interest.

The table below summarises the sections of the Terms and Conditions set out in the Base Prospectus that will be
relevant to holders of Securities bearing General Interest or Structured Interest.

Securitiesbearing General I nterest

Securities bearing Structured Interest

Fixed Rate Securities

Interest on Fixed Rate Securities is determined principaly by

reference to:

General Condition 4.1 (Interest on Fixed Rate
Securities)

+

The elections specified in paragraph 13 of the
applicable Final Terms

Floating Rate Securities

Interest on Floating Rate Securities is determined principally by

reference to:

Genera Condition 4.2 (Interest on Floating
Rate Securities)

+

The elections specified in paragraph 14 of the
applicable Final Terms

Zero Coupon Securities

Interest on Zero Coupon Securities is determined principally by

reference to:

Genera Condition 4.4 (Interest on Zero Coupon
Securities) and 4.7 (Accrual of Interest)

+

The election specified in paragraph 16 of the
applicable Final Terms

General Condition 4.3 (Interest on Linked
Interest Securities)

+

The elections specified in paragraph 15 of the
Final Terms.

Under standing how Structured Interest is determined

Structured Interest will be determined by reference to one or more
Underlying Assets.

Information relating to the Underlying Asset(s) will be specified in
paragraph 15 of the Final Terms. Paragraph 15 is split into various
sub-paragraphs that relate to different types of Underlying Assets.
The terms and conditions relating to Underlying Assets are set out
in separate chaptersin Annex 1 (the Asset Conditions).

The calculation used to determine the Structured Interest will be
either a Standard Interest Payoff or based on one or more
Standard Interest Payoffs and certain other factors (a
Combination I nterest Payoff).

The terms and conditions used to determine the various Standard
Interest Payoffs are set out in separate chaptersin Part A of Annex
5 (the Standard Interest Payoff Conditions).

The terms and conditions used to determine the various
Combination Interest Payoffs are set out in separate chapters in
Pat A of Annex 6 (the Combination Interest Payoff
Conditions).

Information relating to the Combination Interest Payoff (if any)
will be set out in Paragraph 15l of the applicable Final Terms.

Information relating to the Standard Interest Payoff(s) (if any) will
be set out in Paragraph 15J of the applicable Fina Terms.
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REDEMPTION

A Series of Securities may be redeemed on its scheduled redemption date or in scheduled instalments by repayment
of the nominal amount outstanding in respect of such Series of Securities (subject to certain adjustments, as set out
in the applicable Terms and Conditions). For the purposes of this User's Guide, Securities of this type are referred
to as Securities that are subject to General Redemption.

A Series of Securities may alternatively be redeemed on its scheduled redemption date or in scheduled instalments
by payment of an amount determined by reference to an Underlying Asset and/or a formula. For the purposes of
this User's Guide, Securities of thistype are referred to as Securities that are subject to Structured Redemption.

The table below summarises the sections of the Terms and Conditions set out in the Base Prospectus that will be
relevant to holders of Securities subject to General Redemption or Structured Redemption.

Securities  subject to General
Redemption

Securities subject to Structured Redemption

The amount payable on redemption is
determined principally by reference to:

General Condition 6.1 (Redemption by
Instalments and Final Redemption)

+

Redemption Method Condition 2 (Standard
Redemption) of Annex 9 (Redemption
Method Conditions)

+

The elections specified in Paragraph 19 of
the applicable Final Terms

The amount payable on redemption is determined principally by reference to:

General Condition 6.1 (Redemption by Instalments and Final Redemption)

+

Redemption Method Condition 3 (Performance Redemption) or Redemption
Method Condition 4 (Growth Redemption) of Annex 9 (Redemption Method
Conditions)

+

The elections specified in Paragraphs 19 and 23 of the applicable Fina Terms

Under standing how Structured Redemption isdeter mined

Structured Redemption amounts will be determined by reference to one or more
Underlying Assets.

Information relating the Underlying Asset(s) will be specified in paragraph 23 of
the Final Terms. Paragraph 23 is split into various sub-paragraphs that relate to
different types of Underlying Assets. The terms and conditions relating to
Underlying Assets are set out in separate chapters in Annex 1 (the Asset
Conditions).

The calculation used to determine a Structured Redemption amount will be either a
Standard Redemption Payoff or based on one or more Standard Redemption
Payoffs and certain other factors (a Combination Redemption Payoff).

The terms and conditions used to determine the various Standard Redemption
Payoffs are set out in separate chapters in Part B of Annex 5 (the Standard
Redemption Payoff Conditions).

The terms and conditions used to determine the various Combination Redemption
Payoffs are set out in separate chapters in Part B of Annex 6 (the Combination
Redemption Payoff Conditions).

Information relating to the Combination Redemption Payoff (if any) will be set out
in Paragraph 23l of the applicable Final Terms.

Information relating to the Standard Redemption Payoff(s) (if any) will be set out
in Paragraph 23J of the applicable Fina Terms.
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EARLY REDEMPTION

A Series of Securities may be redeemed before its scheduled redemption date on the occurrence of certain events
(for the purposes of this User's Guide, Early Redemption Events). The Early Redemption Events, some of which
are applicable in respect of all Series of Securities (Generally Applicable Early Redemption Events) and some
of which are applicable only in respect of certain Series of Securities (Optional Early Redemption Events), are
set out in the General Conditions and certain of the Additional Terms and Conditions.

The table below summarises which sections of the Terms and Conditions set out in the Base Prospectus will be
relevant to holders of Securities that may be redeemed before their scheduled maturity in addition to the sections of
the Terms and Conditions set out in the Base Prospectus relating to Events of Default, disruption and similar events
(asreferred to below).

Generally Applicable Early Redemption Optional Early Redemption Events

Events

Redemption for FATCA Withholding (General Redemption for tax reasons (General Condition
Condition 6.5) 6.3)

Regulatory Redemption or Compulsory Resales Special Tax Redemption (General Condition
(General Condition 6.6) 6.4)

Illegality and Force Majeure (General Condition
19)

Early Redemption Trigger Events (General
Condition 6.2)

Information and elections relating to any Early
Redemption Trigger Events relating to a Series
of Securities will be specified in paragraph 24
of the applicable Final Terms.

The terms and conditions that govern al of the
Early Redemption Trigger Events that may be
applicable to a Series of Securities are set out in
separate chapters in Annex 8 of the Additional
Terms and Conditions (the Early Redemption
Trigger Conditions).

Events of Default

In addition to any Early Redemption Events that apply in respect of a Series of Securities, a Securityholder shall be
entitled to declare any Securities held by it to be forthwith due and payable following the occurrence of an Event of
Default in respect of those Securities. The Events of Default that will apply in respect of a Series of Securities are
set out in General Condition 10.

Disruption and similar events

The Terms and Conditions of certain types of Securities (such as Securities that are linked to an Underlying Asset
and Credit Linked Securities and Bond Linked Securities) may provide for those Securities to be redeemed
following the occurrence of certain other events (such as "Market Disruption Events' and "Additional Disruption
Events'). The specific events that may trigger early redemption of Securities are set out in the applicable
Additional Terms and Conditions.
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SECURED SECURITIES

This section of the User's Guide provides additional information in respect of Securities that are secured by the
relevant Issuer (or an affiliate thereof) in favour of the relevant Securityholders. Securities of this type are referred
to in the Terms and Conditions as Secured Securities and will be secured in respect of a segregated pool of
Collateral Assets.

Investorsin Secured Securities should note that the Secured Conditions contain specific provisions relating to:
Collateral Monitoring and Adjustments to Collateral Assets (Secured Security Condition 4.4);

Substitutions of Collateral Assets (Secured Security Condition 4.5);

Third Party Chargor (Secured Security Condition 4.8); and

Acceleration, Enforcement and Realisation of Collateral Assets (Secured Security Condition 6).

Also, the Issuers have entered into the following additional documentation in relation to Secured Securities:

» An Additional Security Document means any additional security document which is
entered into by the Issuer andfor any Third Party Chargor in respect of a Series of
Secured Securities in order to create a security interest over the Collateral Account and/or
over the Collateral Assels therein.

o The Collateral Management Agreement is the Agreement between, infer alia, Credit
Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank as Collateral Manager and the Issuers.

*  The Collateral Monitoring Agency Agreement 15 the agreement between, inter alia, the
Collateral Monitoring Agent and the Issuers which includes the terms documented in
the related Collateral Momitoring lssue Specific Terms (which documents the
supplemental collateral monitoring services 1o be perfomed in respect of such Series by
the Collateral Monitoring Agent).

&  The Custodian Agreement 15 the agreement governed by Luxembourg law between,
inter alia. the Costodian and the lssuers.

* The Disposal Agency Agreement is the agreemenl between, inter alia, the Disposal Agent
and the Issuers, as amended, restated and/or supplemented from time 1o time.

* The Security Valuation Agency Agreement is the agreement between, infer alia, Crédit
Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank as Sccurity Valuation Agent and the Issuer,

s The Pledge Agreement is 2 pledge aereement governed by Luxembourg law between the
Issuer andfor the relevant Third Party Chargor (where Third Party Security is applicable),
the Custodian and the Security Trustee creating securily over Collaleral Assels contamed
in one or more Collateral Accounts in favour of the Security Trustee {as Pledgee) on
behalf of itsell and the relevant Securitvholders {which such security interest will be held
by the Security Trustee pursuant to the Security Trust Deed) and/or, if any Collateral
Asscts are not held in Luxemboeurg and/or require a different security interest, any
Additional Security Document.

e Securily Trust Deed is a securily trust deed governed by Englhish law and entered into by
the Security Trustee and the Issuer on the Issue Date specified i the applicable Final
Terms lor a Seres of Secured Securites

153



User's Guide

ADDITIONAL TERMSAND CONDITIONS

This section of the User's Guide provides a more detailed overview of the various parts of the Additional Terms and
Conditions that may or may not be applicable to a particular Series of Securities.

Additional Termsand Conditionsrelating to Underlying Assets

The Asset Conditions (which are set out in Annex 1 on pages 514-611 of the Base Prospectus) are set out in separate chapters, each
of which sets out additional terms and conditions for Securities linked to one of the following asset classes:

Commodities Indices
Chapter 1 (Chapter 2
(please see (please see
pages 515- pages 524-
523 of the 533 of the
Base Base
Prospectus)) Prospectus))

FX Rates '”2?“0”

(Chapter 3 I ndices
(Chapter 4

(please see |

pages 534- (please see

549 of the pages 550-
555 of the

Base Base

Prospectus)

Spectus) Prospectus))

Benchmar k ETE
Rates (Chapter 6
(Chapter 5 (please see
(p'eas:;ze pages 561-
Pages o50- 582 of the
560 of the Base
Base

Prospectus)
Prospectus)) s )

Shares Multi-Asset

Baskets
(Chapter 7

(Chapter 8
(please see

(please see
pages 583- o 605.
604 of the 611 of the
Base Base
Prospectus) Prospectus))

Additional Termsand Conditionsrelating to interest and/or redemption
Parts of some or all of the following Additional Terms and Conditions will be applicable where Securities bear structured interest
or will be subject to structured redemption.

The Standar d Payoff
Conditions (which are set
out on pages 707-999 of the
Base Prospectus) set out

additional terms and
conditions that may apply
to interest and/or
redemption paymentsin
respect of a Series of
Securities. The Standard
Payoff Conditions are split
into two Parts (Part A and
Part B) which relate to
interest and redemption
payoffs, respectively.

The Combination Payoff
Conditions (which are set
out on pages 1000-1109 of
the Base Prospectus) set out
additional terms and
conditions that may apply
to interest and/or
redemption paymentsin
respect of a Series of
Securities and operate in
conjunction with the
Standard Payoff
Conditions. The
Combination Payoff
Conditions are split into
two Parts (Part A and Part
B) which relate to interest
and redemption payoffs,
respectively. Within these
parts, separate payoffs are
documented in separate
chapters.

The Payoff Feature
Conditions (which are set
out on pages 1110-1176 of
the Base Prospectus) set out
additional terms and
conditions for Securities
which apply one or more
features (if any) for the
purposes of determining
interest and/or redemption
payments in respect of a
Series of Securities.

The Early Redemption
Trigger Conditions (which
are set out on pages 1177-
1197 of the Base

Prospectus) set out
additional terms and
conditions that may apply
to the early redemptionin
respect of a Series of
Securities.
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Additional Terms and Conditions

Some of the following Additional Terms and Conditions will be applicable to Credit Linked Securities, Bond Linked Securities

and/or Secured Securities.

The Credit Linked Conditions (which
are set out on pages 612-681 of the
Base Prospectus) set out additional
terms and conditions for Securities that
are Credit Linked Securities.
Investorsin Credit Linked Securities
should note that the Credit Linked
Conditions contain specific provisions
relating to:

redemption (including early

redemption) (Credit Linked

Condition 2);

interest (Credit Linked

Condition 3); and

physical settlement (Credit

Linked Condition 4).

The Bond Linked Conditions (which
are set out on pages 682-703 of the
Base Prospectus) set out additional
terms and conditions for Securities that
are Bond Linked Securities.
Investorsin Bond Linked Securities
should note that the Bond Linked
Conditions contain specific provisions
relating to:

redemption (including early

redemption) (Bond Linked

Condition 2);

interest (Bond Linked

Condition 3); and

physical settlement (Bond

Linked Condition 4).

The Secured Security Conditions
(which are set out on pages 1202-1228
of the Base Prospectus) set out
additional terms and conditions relating
to Securities that are Secured Securities.
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QUICK REFERENCE GUIDE TO STANDARD PAYOFFSAND
COMBINATION PAYOFFS

The table below lists each of the Standard Payoffs and Combination Payoffs that may apply to Securities issued
under the Programme and is intended to act as a quick reference guide to where the related Additional Terms and
Conditions can be found in the Base Prospectus.

Payoff Type of payoff Applicable Relevant Page Relevant
tointerest section of referencein || Section of
or the the Base the Final
redemption | Additional Prospectus Terms
Termsand
Conditions
Standard Fixed Interest Standard Payoff i Interest Annex 5, 711 Paragraph
Part A, 15J)(a)
Chapter 1
Standard Floating I nterest Standard Payoff f Interest Annex 5, 712 Paragraph
Part A, 15J(b)
Chapter 2
Standard Floater Interest Standard Payoff i Interest Annex 5, 713 Paragraph
Part A, 15J(c)
Chapter 3
Standard I nverse Floater Standard Payoff i Interest Annex 5, 717 Paragraph
Interest PartA, 15(d)
Chapter 4
Standard Alternative Standard Payoff | Interest Annex 5, 721 Paragraph
Basket Interest PartA, 15)(e)
Chapter 5
Standard Strangle Interest Standard Payoff i Interest Annex 5, 725 Paragraph
Part A, 15J(f)
Chapter 6
Standard Option Basket Standard Payoff f Interest Annex 5, 729 Paragraph
Interest Part A, 15J(9)
Chapter 7
Standard Maxi mum- Standard Payoff f Interest Annex 5, 733 Paragraph
Minimum I nterest Part A, 153(h)
Chapter 8
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Payoff Type of payoff Applicable Relevant Page Relevant
tointerest section of referencein §| Section of
or the the Base the Final
redemption §| Additional Prospectus Terms
Termsand
Conditions
Standard Participation Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 737 Paragraph
Interest Part A, 15X()
Chapter 9
Standard Lookback Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 741 Paragraph
Performance Basket PartA, 15J()
Interest Chapter 10
Standard Maximum- Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 745 Paragraph
Minimum Basket Interest PartA, 153(k)
Chapter 11
Standard Volbond Interest | Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 750 Paragraph
Part A, 15J()
Chapter 12
Standard Participation Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 755 Paragraph
Basket Interest PartA, 153(m)
Chapter 13
Standard Range Accrual Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 760 Paragraph
Interest Part A, 15J(n)
Chapter 14
Standard Resettable Range | Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 766 Paragraph
Accrual Interest Part A, 15J(0)
Chapter 15
Standard 3D Range Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 772 Paragraph
Accrual Interest PartA, 15J(p)
Chapter 16
Standard Fixed Digital Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 778 Paragraph
Basket Interest PartA, 15)(0)
Chapter 17
Standard Power Interest Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 782 Paragraph
Part A, 15J(r)
Chapter 18
Standard Dual Range Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 786 Paragraph
Accrual Interest PartA, 15)(s)
Chapter 19
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Payoff Type of payoff Applicable Relevant Page Relevant
tointerest section of referencein §| Section of
or the the Base the Final
redemption §| Additional Prospectus Terms
Termsand
Conditions
Standard Trend Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 793 Paragraph
Participation Interest PartA, 15J(t)
Chapter 20
Standard Trend Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 797 Paragraph
Participation Basket PartA, 153(u)
Interest Chapter 21
Standard Average Trend Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 802 Paragraph
Participation Basket Part A, 15J(v)
Interest Chapter 22
Standard Multi Fixed Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 807 Paragraph
Digital Interest Part A, 153(w)
Chapter 23
Standard Digital to Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 812 Paragraph
Participation Interest Part A, 15(x)
Chapter 24
Standard K nock-out Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 818 Paragraph
Range Accrual Interest Part A, 15J(y)
Chapter 25
Standard Product Basket Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 825 Paragraph
Interest Part A, 15J(2)
Chapter 26
Standard Multi Fixed Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 830 Paragraph
Basket Interest PartA, 15)(aa)
Chapb5ter 27
Standard Fixed Range Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 834 Paragraph
Accrual Interest PartA, 15)(bb)
Chapter 28
Standard ABF Interest Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 839 Paragraph
Part A, 15J(cc)
Chapter 29
Standard Worst of Interest | Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 845 Paragraph
15J(dd
Part A, (cd)
Chapter 30
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Payoff Type of payoff Applicable Relevant Page Relevant
tointerest section of referencein §| Section of
or the the Base the Final
redemption §| Additional Prospectus Terms
Termsand
Conditions
Standard Annualised Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 849 Paragraph
Performance I nterest PartA, 15)(ee)
Chapter 31
Standard Rainbow Standard Payoff Interest Annex 5, 853 Paragraph
Performance I nterest Part A, 15J(ff)
Chapter 32
Standard Fixed Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 858 Paragraph
Redemption Part B, 23J)(a)
Chapter 1
Standard Floater Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 859 Paragraph
Redemption Part B, 23J(b)
Chapter 2
Standard Inverse Floater Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 863 Paragraph
Redemption Part B, 23J(c)
Chapter 3
Standard Alternative Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 867 Paragraph
Basket Redemption Part B, 23J(d)
Chapter 4
Standard Strangle Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 871 Paragraph
Redemption Part B, 23J(e)
Chapter 5
Standard Option Basket Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 875 Paragraph
Redemption Part B, 23J(f)
Chapter 6
Standard Maximum- Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 879 Paragraph
Minimum Redemption Part B, 23J(0)
Chapter 7
Standard Participation Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 884 Paragraph
Redemption Part B, 23J(h)
Chapter 8
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Payoff Type of payoff Applicable Relevant Page Relevant
tointerest section of referencein §| Section of
or the the Base the Final
redemption §| Additional Prospectus Terms
Termsand
Conditions
Standard Lookback Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 888 Paragraph
Performance Basket Part B, 23J(i)
Redemption Chapter 9
Standard Maximum- Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 893 Paragraph
Minimum Basket Part B, 23J()
Redemption Chapter 10
Standard Volbond Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 898 Paragraph
Redemption Part B, 23J(k)
Chapter 11
Standard Participation Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 902 Paragraph
Basket Redemption Part B, 233(1)
Chapter 12
Standard Range Accrua Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 906 Paragraph
Redemption Part B, 23J(m)
Chapter 13
Standard Resettable Range | Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 913 Paragraph
Accrua Redemption Part B, 23J(n)
Chapter 14
Standard 3D Range Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 920 Paragraph
Accrua Redemption Part B, 23J(0)
Chapter 15
Standard Fixed Digital Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 927 Paragraph
Basket Redemption Part B, 23J(p)
Chapter 16
Standard Power Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 931 Paragraph
Redemption Part B, 23J()
Chapter 17
Standard Dual Range Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 934 Paragraph
Accrua Redemption Part B, 23J(n
Chapter 18
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Payoff Type of payoff Applicable Relevant Page Relevant
tointerest section of referencein §| Section of
or the the Base the Final
redemption §| Additional Prospectus Terms
Termsand
Conditions
Standard Trend Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 940 Paragraph
Participation Redemption Part B, 23J(s)
Chapter 19
Standard Trend Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 944 Paragraph
Participation Basket Part B, 23J(t)
Redemption Chapter 20
Standard Average Trend Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 948 Paragraph
Participation Basket Part B, 23J(u)
Redemption Chapter 21
Standard Multi Fixed Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 954 Paragraph
Digital Redemption Part B, 23J(v)
Chapter 22
Standard Digital to Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 959 Paragraph
Participation Redemption Part B, 23J(w)
Chapter 23
Standard Knock-out Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 965 Paragraph
Range Accrual Part B, 23J(x)
Redemption Chapter 24
Standard Product Basket Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 972 Paragraph
Redemption Part B, 23J(y)
Chapter 25
Standard Multi Fixed Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 977 Paragraph
Basket Redemption Part B, 23)(2)
Chapter 26
Standard Fixed Range Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 981 Paragraph
Accrua Redemption Part B, 23J)(aa)
Chapter 27
Standard ABF Redemption | Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 987 Paragraph
Part B, 23J(bb)
Chapter 28
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Payoff Type of payoff Applicable Relevant Page Relevant
tointerest section of referencein §| Section of
or the the Base the Final
redemption §| Additional Prospectus Terms
Termsand
Conditions
Standard Worst of Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 992 Paragraph
Redemption Part B, 23J(cc)
Chapter 29
Standard Rainbow Standard Payoff Redemption Annex 5, 996 Paragraph
Performance Redemption Part B, 23)(dd)
Chapter 30
Combination Addition Combination Interest Annex 6, 1002 Paragraph
Interest Payoff Part A 15I(a)
Chapter 1
Combination Combination Interest Annex 6, 1004 Paragraph
Capitalisation Interest Payoff Part A 15I(b)
Chapter 2
Combination Digital Combination Interest Annex 6, 1007 Paragraph
Interest Payoff Part A 15I(c)
Chapter 3
Combination Division Combination Interest Annex 6, 1011 Paragraph
Interest Payoff Part A 15I(d)
Chapter 4
Combination Combination Interest Annex 6, 1013 Paragraph
Multiplication Interest Payoff Part A 15I(e)
Chapter 5
Combination Ratchet Combination Interest Annex 6, 1015 Paragraph
Interest Payoff Part A 15I(f)
Chapter 6
Combination Range Combination Interest Annex 6, 1018 Paragraph
Interest Payoff Part A 15I(g)
Chapter 7
Combination Resettable Combination Interest Annex 6, 1022 Paragraph
Range Interest Payoff Part A 15I(h)
Chapter 8
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Payoff Type of payoff Applicable Relevant Page Relevant
tointerest section of referencein §| Section of
or the the Base the Final
redemption §| Additional Prospectus Terms
Termsand
Conditions
Combination Snowrange Combination Interest Annex 6, 1027 Paragraph
Interest Payoff Part A 151(i)
Chapter 9
Combination Subtract Combination Interest Annex 6, 1032 Paragraph
Interest Payoff Part A 151(j)
Chapter 10
Combination Maximum Combination Interest Annex 6, 1034 Paragraph
Interest Payoff Part A 151 (k)
Chapter 11
Combination Minimum Combination Interest Annex 6, 1036 Paragraph
Interest Payoff Part A 15I(1)
Chapter 12
Combination Digital Combination Interest Annex 6, 1038 Paragraph
Basket Interest Payoff Part A 15I(m)
Chapter 13
Combination Payoff- Combination Interest Annex 6, 1043 Paragraph
Linked Digital Interest Payoff Part A 15I(n)
Chapter 14
Combination Ladder Combination Interest Annex 6, 1045 Paragraph
Ratchet Interest Payoff PartA, 15l (o)
Chapter 15
Combination Rainbow Combination Interest Annex 6, 1048 Paragraph
Performance Interest Payoff PartA, 15l (p)
Chapter 16
Combination Addition Combination Redemption Annex 6, 1053 Paragraph
Redemption Payoff Part B 23I(a)
Chapter 1
Combination Combination Redemption Annex 6, 1055 Paragraph
Capitalisation Redemption Payoff Part B 231(b)
Chapter 2
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Payoff Type of payoff Applicable Relevant Page Relevant
tointerest section of referencein §| Section of
or the the Base the Final
redemption §| Additional Prospectus Terms
Termsand
Conditions
Combination Digital Combination Redemption Annex 6, 1058 Paragraph
Redemption Payoff Part B 23l(c)
Chapter 3
Combination Division Combination Redemption Annex 6, 1063 Paragraph
Redemption Payoff Part B 23I(d)
Chapter 4
Combination Combination Redemption Annex 6, 1065 Paragraph
Multiplication Redemption Payoff Part B 23l(e)
Chapter 5
Combination Ratchet Combination Redemption Annex 6, 1067 Paragraph
Redemption Payoff Part B 23I(f)
Chapter 6
Combination Range Combination Redemption Annex 6, 1070 Paragraph
Redemption Payoff Part B 231(g)
Chapter 7
Combination Resettable Combination Redemption Annex 6, 1075 Paragraph
Range Redemption Payoff Part B 231(h)
Chapter 8
Combination Snowrange Combination Redemption Annex 6, 1080 Paragraph
Redemption Payoff Part B 231(i)
Chapter 9
Combination Subtract Combination Redemption Annex 6, 1085 Paragraph
Redemption Payoff Part B 231(j)
Chapter 10
Combination Maximum Combination Redemption Annex 6, 1087 Paragraph
Redemption Payoff Part B 231(k)
Chapter 11
Combination Minimum Combination Redemption Annex 6, 1089 Paragraph
Redemption Payoff Part B 231()
Chapter 12
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Payoff Type of payoff Applicable Relevant Page Relevant
tointerest section of referencein §| Section of
or the the Base the Final
redemption §| Additional Prospectus Terms
Termsand
Conditions
Combination Digital Combination Redemption Annex 6, 1091 Paragraph
Basket Redemption Payoff Part B 23I(m)
Chapter 13
Combination Complex Combination Redemption Annex 6, 1097 Paragraph
Digital Basket Payoff Part B 23l (n)
Contingency Redemption Chapter 14
Combination Payoff- Combination Redemption Annex 6, 1103 Paragraph
Linked Digital Payoff Part B 23l(0)
Redemption Chapter 15
Combination Rainbow Combination Redemption Annex 6, 1105 Paragraph
Performance Redemption Payoff Part B 23I(p)
Chapter 16
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Documents Incorporated by Reference

DOCUMENTSINCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

This section incorporates selected publicly available information that should be read in conjunction with this Base
Prospectus.

The following documents, which have previously been published or are published simultaneously with this Base
Prospectus and filed with the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier are incorporated in, and form part
of, this Base Prospectus:

the English-language version of Crédit Agricole CIB's 2014 Document de Référence and 2015 Document de
Référence (the 2014 Registration Document and 2015 Registration Document respectively), including (on pages
211 to 314 and pages 203 to 283 respectively thereof) Crédit Agricole CIB's annual consolidated audited financial
statements for the financial years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015;

Crédit Agricole CIB FG's 2014 and 2015 Report and Financial Statements, including on pages 5 to 28 in respect of
2014 and 5 to 64 in respect of 2015 Crédit Agricole CIB FG's annual audited financia statements for the financial
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015 and the auditors reports thereon ;

Crédit Agricole CIB FS's 2014 and 2015 Report and Financial Statements, including on pages 2 to 55 in respect of
2014 and on 2 to 39 in respect of 2015 Crédit Agricole CIB FSs annua audited financial statements for the
financial years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015 and the auditors' report thereon ;

the section entitled "Terms and Conditions of the Notes" set out in the base prospectus relating to the Programme
dated 21 June 2013, as supplemented by the supplement thereto dated 19 September 2013;

the section entitled "Terms and Conditions of the Notes" set out in the base prospectus relating to the Programme
dated 25 June 2014, as supplemented by the supplement thereto dated 9 September 2014; and

the section entitled "Terms and Conditions of the Notes" set out in the base prospectus relating to the Programme
dated 6 July 2015, as supplemented by the supplement thereto dated 6 October 2015.

Following the publication of this Base Prospectus a supplement may be prepared by the Issuers and approved by
the CSSF in accordance with article 16 of the Prospectus Directive. Statements contained in any such supplement
(or contained in any document incorporated by reference therein) shall, to the extent applicable (whether expressly,
by implication or otherwise), be deemed to modify or supersede statements contained in this Base Prospectus or in
a document which is incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus. Any statement so modified or superseded
shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Base Prospectus.

Copies of documents incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus can be obtained from the registered office
of Crédit Agricole CIB and the specified office of the Principal Paying Agent for the time being. This Base
Prospectus and copies of the documents incorporated by reference are available on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange website (www.bourse.lu).

Any documents themselves incorporated by reference in the documents incorporated by reference in this Base
Prospectus shall not form part of this Base Prospectus. Where only certain sections of a document referred to above
are incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus, the parts of the document, which are not incorporated by
reference, are either not relevant to prospective investors in the Securities or covered elsewhere in this Base
Prospectus.

Each of the Issuers and the Guarantor will provide, without charge, to each person to whom a copy of this Base
Prospectus has been delivered, upon the request of such person, a copy of any or all of the documents deemed to be
incorporated herein by reference unless such documents have been modified or superseded as specified above.
Requests for such documents should be directed to the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor at its/their offices set out at

166



Documents Incorporated by Reference

the end of this Base Prospectus. In addition, such documents will be available free of charge from the specified
office of the Principal Paying Agent and, for Securities admitted to trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's
regulated market, from the specified office in Luxembourg of CACEIS Bank Luxembourg (the Luxembourg
Listing Agent).

Crédit Agricole CIB takes responsibility for any free trandations, which may be included in the 2014 Registration
Document or the 2015 Registration Document. Note that only the French versions of the 2014 Registration
Document and the 2015 Registration Document have been submitted to the Autorité des marchés financiers. Crédit
Agricole CIB FS takes responsibility for any free trandations, which may be included in the Crédit Agricole CIB
FS 2013 Report and Financial Statements or the Crédit Agricole CIB FS 2014 Report and Financial Statements.
Each of the Issuers and the Guarantor will in the event of there being any significant new factor, material mistake
or inaccuracy relating to information included in this Base Prospectus which is capable of affecting the assessment
of any Securities, prepare if appropriate a supplement to this Base Prospectus or publish a new Base Prospectus for
use in connection with any subsequent issue of Securities.
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Documents Incorporated by Reference

CROSS-REFERENCE LIST

This section provides a cross reference of where information may be found in other documents.

Crédit Agricole CIB

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE
STATUTORY AUDITORS
Statutory Auditors

Issuer's Audit Committee (including names of
committee members and a summary of the terms of
reference)

RISK FACTORS
INFORMATION ABOUT THE ISSUER
History and development of the relevant Issuer

Thelegal and commercial name of the relevant
| ssuer

The place of registration of the relevant | ssuer and
its registration number

The date of incorporation and the length of life of
the relevant I ssuer, except where indefinite

The domicile and legal form of the relevant | ssuer,
the legidation under which the relevant Issuer
operates, its country of incorporation, and the
address and tel ephone number of its registered
office (or principal place of businessif different
fromitsregistered office)

Recent Events
Investments

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Principal activities

Principal markets
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Page (of the 2015 Registration Document
unless otherwise stated)

Page 325

Page 326
Pages 62 to 63

Pages 136 to 164, 226 to 233, 306

Page 10
Page 204

Page 204

Page 318

Page 318

Pages 225 to 226 and 282

Pages 251 to 252 and 281 to 282

Pages 11 to 13

Pages 11 to 13



6.2

9.1

9.2
10.

111

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

If therelevant Issuer is part of agroup, abrief
description of the group and of the relevant Issuer's
position within the group

If the relevant I ssuer is dependent upon other
entities within the group, this must be clearly stated
together with an explanation of this dependence

RECENT TRENDS

ADMINISTRATIVE, MANAGEMENT, AND
SUPERVISORY BODIES

Names, business addresses and functionsin the
relevant Issuer of the following persons, and an
indication of the principal activities performed by
them outside the relevant I ssuer where these are
significant with respect to that Issuer

Conflicts of interests
MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

FINANCIAL INFORMATION CONCERNING
THE ISSUER'SASSETSAND LIABILITIES,
FINANCIAL POSITION AND PROFITSAND
LOSSES

Historical financial infor mation

@ the balance shest:

(b) the income statement:

(© the cash flow statement:

(d) the accounting policies and explanatory
notes:

(e Auditors report:
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Page (of the 2015 Registration Document
unless otherwise stated)

Pages2to 3

Page 204

Page 131

Pages 57 to 66

Pages 80 to 121

Page 90
Page 254

Pages 203 to 315

Page 211 to 353 (2014 Registration
Document)

Page 130
Page 135 (2014 Registration Document)
Page 205
Page 214 (2014 Registration Document)
Page 210
Page 219 (2014 Registration Document)
Page 211

Pages 220 to 312 (2014 Registration
Document)

Page 283
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Page (of the 2015 Registration Document
unless otherwise stated)

Pages 313 to 314 (2014 Registration

Document)
11.2  Financial statements Pages 204 to 283, 286 to 315
(8 Income statement Page 205

(b) Netincome and other comprehensiveincome  Page 206

(c) Assets Page 207
(d) Liabilities and shareholder's equity Page 207
(e) Changein shareholder's equity Pages 208 to 209
(f) Cash flow statement Page 210

11.3  Auditing of historical annual financial Pages 283
information

114  Datesof the most recent financial disclosures Page 203

11.6  Legal and arbitration proceedings Pages 160 to 161 and 318

11.7  Significant changein therelevant Issuer's Page 318
financial position

12. SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS Page 318

14. DOCUMENTSON DISPLAY Page 318
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Crédit Agricole CIB FG

Audited annual financial statements, related notes and audit
report for thefinancial year ended 31 December 2015

Independent auditor’s report

Statement of comprehensive income
Statement of financial position

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
Statement of cash flows

Notes to the annual accounts

Audited annual financial statements, related notes and audit
report for thefinancial year ended 31 December 2014

Independent auditor’s report

Statement of comprehensive income
Statement of financial position

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
Statement of cash flows

Notes to the annual accounts
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Report and Financial Statements

Pages 5 to 64

Page 5
Page 6
Page 7
Page 8
Page 9
Pages 10 to 64

Pages 5 to 28

Page 5
Page 6
Page 7
Page 8
Page 9
Pages 10 to 28



Crédit Agricole CIB FS

Documents Incorporated by Reference

Report and Financial Statements

Audited annual financial statements, related notes and audit Pages 2 to 39
report for thefinancial year ended 31 December 2015

Independent auditor’s report Pages 3
Balance sheet - Assets Page 4
Income statement Page 6

Cash flow statement Page 7

Notes to the annual accounts Pages 8 to 39
Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity Pages 11
Audited annual financial statements, related notes and audit Pages 2 to 55
report for thefinancial year ended 31 December 2014

Independent auditors report Page2to 3
Balance sheet — Liabilities and Shareholder’s equity Page 4
Income statement Page 5
Statement of changes in shareholders' equity Page 8

Cash flow statement Page 11
Notes to the annual accounts Page 6 to 55

The information incorporated by reference that is not included in the cross-reference list is considered as
additional information and isnot required by therelevant schedules of the Regulation (EC) No. 809/2004 (as
amended).
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Terms and Conditions of the Securitiesincluded in the 2015 Base Prospectus (as amended by the supplement

Documents Incorporated by Reference

thereto dated 6 October 2015)

Only the sections of the 2015 Base Prospectus related to the Terms and Conditions of the Securities and listed

below are incorporated by reference in the Base Prospectus.

The sections of the 2015 Base Prospectus, which are not incorporated by reference, are not relevant for the

investor or covered by other sections of the Base Prospectus.

General Conditions

Annex 1 —Asset Conditions

Annex 2 — Credit Linked Conditions

Annex 3 —Bond Linked Conditions

Annex 4 — Alternative Currency Conditions
Annex 5 — Standard Payoff Conditions

Annex 6 — Combination Payoff Conditions
Annex 7 — Payoff Feature Conditions

Annex 8 — Early Redemption Trigger Conditions
Annex 9 — Redemption Method Conditions

Annex 10 — Secured Note Conditions

Pages 410 to 469 of the Base Prospectus 2015
Pages 470 to 560 of the Base Prospectus 2015
Pages 561 to 630 of the Base Prospectus 2015
Pages 631 to 651 of the Base Prospectus 2015
Pages 652 to 654 of the Base Prospectus 2015
Pages 655 to 924 of the Base Prospectus 2015
Pages 925 to 1031 of the Base Prospectus 2015
Pages 1032 to 1098 of the Base Prospectus 2015
Pages 1099 to 1119 of the Base Prospectus 2015
Pages 1120 to 1123 of the Base Prospectus 2015

Pages 1124 to 1150 of the Base Prospectus 2015

Supplement dated 6 October 2015

Annex 7 — Payoff Feature Conditions Pages 1066-1067 of the Pages  9-10 of  the

Base Prospectus 2015  supplement dated 6 October
2015
Annex 7 — Payoff Feature Conditions Pages 1078-1079 of the Pages 10-11  of  the

Base Prospectus 2015  supplement dated 6 October

2015
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Terms and Conditions of the Securitiesincluded in the 2014 Base Prospectus (as amended by the supplement
thereto dated 9 September 2014)

Only the sections of the 2014 Base Prospectus related to the Terms and Conditions of the Securities and listed
below are incorporated by reference in the Base Prospectus.

The sections of the 2014 Base Prospectus, which are not incorporated by reference, are not relevant for the

investor or covered by other sections of the Base Prospectus.
General Conditions Pages 389 to 450 of the Base Prospectus 2014
Annex 1 — Asset Conditions Pages 451 to 496 of the Base Prospectus 2014
Annex 2 — Credit Linked Conditions Pages 497 to 630 of the Base Prospectus 2014
Annex 3 —Bond Linked Conditions Pages 631 to 651 of the Base Prospectus 2014
Annex 4 — Alternative Currency Conditions Pages 652 to 654 of the Base Prospectus 2014

Annex 5 — Standard Payoff Conditions Pages 655 to 978 of the Base Prospectus 2014

Annex 6 — Combination Payoff Conditions
Annex 7 — Payoff Feature Conditions

Annex 8 — Early Redemption Trigger Conditions

Pages 979 to 1062 of the Base Prospectus 2014
Pages 1063 to 1121 of the Base Prospectus 2014

Pages 1122 to 1142 of the Base Prospectus 2014

Annex 9 — Redemption Method Conditions Pages 1143 to 1146 of the Base Prospectus 2014

Annex 10 — Secured Note Conditions Pages 1147 to 1174 of the Base Prospectus 2014

Supplement dated 9 September 2014

General Conditions Page 420 of the Base

Prospectus 2014

Page 3 of the supplement
dated 9 September 2014

Annex 1 —Asset Conditions Pages 476 and 477 of
the Base Prospectus

2014

Page 2 of the supplement
dated 9 September 2014

Annex 6 — Combination Payoff Conditions Page 1026 of the Base

Prospectus 2014

Page 2 of the supplement
dated 9 September 2014
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Terms and Conditions of the Securitiesincluded in the 2013 Base Prospectus (as amended by the supplement
thereto dated 19 September 2013)

Only the sections of the 2013 Base Prospectus related to the Terms and Conditions of the Securities and listed
below are incorporated by reference in the Base Prospectus.

The sections of the 2013 Base Prospectus, which are not incorporated by reference, are not relevant for the
investor or covered by other sections of the Base Prospectus.

General Conditions Pages 384 to 442 of the Base Prospectus 2013
Annex 1 — Asset Conditions Pages 443 to 483 of the Base Prospectus 2013
Annex 2 — Credit Linked Conditions Pages 484 to 541 of the Base Prospectus 2013
Annex 3 — Alternative Currency Conditions Pages 542 to 544 of the Base Prospectus 2013
Annex 4 — Standard Payoff Conditions Pages 545 to 771 of the Base Prospectus 2013
Annex 5 — Combination Payoff Conditions Pages 772 to 831 of the Base Prospectus 2013
Annex 6 — Payoff Feature Conditions Pages 832 to 888 of the Base Prospectus 2013
Annex 7 — Early Redemption Trigger Conditions Pages 889 to 908 of the Base Prospectus 2013
Annex 8 — Redemption Method Conditions Pages 909 to 912 of the Base Prospectus 2013

Supplement dated 19 September 2013

Annex 7 — Early Redemption Trigger Conditions Page 894 of the Base  Pages 3 to 7 of the supplement
Prospectus 2013 dated 19 September 2013

Annex 7 — Early Redemption Trigger Conditions Page 897 of theBase  Page 8 of the supplement
Prospectus 2013 dated 19 September 2013

Annex 7 — Early Redemption Trigger Conditions Page 900 of the Base  Page 8 of the Supplement
Prospectus 2013 dated 19 September 2013

Any information incorporated by reference in the Base Prospectus will be deemed amended or replaced for the
purpose of this Base Prospectus to the extent such information is not consistent with a statement made in the Base
Prospectus or any supplement to the Base Prospectus.
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME

This section provides a general description of the Programme.

The following general description is qualified in its entirety by the remainder of this Base Prospectus and
congtitutes a general description of the Programme for the purposes of Article 22.5(3) of the Commission
Regulation (EC) No. 809/2004, as amended.

Securitiesthat may beissued under the Programme

The programme is a €50,000,000,000 Structured Debt Instruments Issuance Programme under which any |ssuer
may from time to time issue Notes or Certificates which may be Fixed Rate Securities, Floating Rate Securities,
Credit Linked Securities, Bond Linked Securities, Commodity Linked Securities, Index Linked Securities, Inflation
Linked Securities, FX Linked Securities, Rate Linked Securities, ETF Linked Securities, Share Linked Securities,
Multi-Asset Basket Linked Securities, Alternative Currency Securities, CNY Securities, Dual Currency Securities,
Zero Coupon Securities and Instalment Securities or any combination of the foregoing. Securities may be settled in
cash or (if specified in the applicable Final Terms and in the case of Credit Linked Securities, Bond Linked
Securities and Secured Securities) by physical delivery. Securities may not be settled by delivery of the Issuers
own equity securities or of the equity securities of any entity in the Issuers group and cannot be converted or
exchanged into shares or other equity securities within the meaning of Article 17(2) of Commission Regulation
(EC) No. 809/2004 of 29 April 2004. All Securities will be issued in accordance with and subject to all applicable
laws and regulations and denominated in any currency, subject as set out herein.

In each case, the applicable terms of any Securities will be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant
Dealer prior to the issue of the Securities and will be set out in the Terms and Conditions of the Securities endorsed
on, attached to, or incorporated by reference into, the Securities, as completed by the applicable Final Terms
attached to, or endorsed on, such Securities, as more fully described under “Form of the Securities” below.

Securities may also be Secured Securities. Each Series of Secured Securities will be secured by the relevant Issuer
or an affiliate thereof in favour of the relevant Securityholders in respect of a segregated pool of Collateral Assets.
Where Collateral Monitoring is specified as being applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the value of the
Collateral Assets relative to the value of the relevant Secured Securities will be monitored and, if required under
the applicable Terms and Conditions, the Collateral Assetsin the pool will be adjusted accordingly.

Non-exempt Offers of Securities

Securities issued under this programme may be offered in circumstances that do not fall within an exemption from
the requirement to publish a prospectus under the Prospectus Directive (a Non-exempt Offer). Private Placement
Securities may also be issued under this programme, in circumstances, which involve an offer to the public outside
the European Economic Area, or where Securities are of atype listed in Article 3.2 of the Prospectus Directive and
are not admitted to trading on a regulated market under Article 3.3 of the Prospectus Directive.
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FORM OF THE SECURITIES

This section provides information on the form of the Securities.

Each Tranche of Securities will be in either bearer form, with or without interest coupons attached, or registered
form, without interest coupons attached. Bearer Securities will be issued outside the United States in reliance on
Regulation S under the Securities Act (Regulation S) and Registered Securities will be issued both outside the
United States in reliance on the exemption from registration provided by Regulation S and within the United States
in reliance on Rule 144A or Section 4(2) of the Securities Act.

Bearer Securities

Each Tranche of Securities will be in bearer form (Bearer Securities) and will be initially issued in the form of a
temporary global security (a Temporary Bearer Global Security) or, if so specified in the applicable Final Terms,
a permanent globa security (a Permanent Bearer Global Security, and together with the Temporary Bearer
Global Security, the Bearer Global Securities) which, in either case, will:

if the Global Securities are intended to be issued in new global Note (NGN) form or new global Certificate
(NGC) form (NGN and NGC together defined as new globa Security (NGS)), as stated in the applicable Final
Terms, be delivered on or prior to the original issue date of the Tranche to a common safekeeper for Euroclear
Bank SA/NV (Euroclear) and Clearstream Banking, société anonyme (Clear stream, L uxembour g); and

if the Global Securities are not intended to be issued in NGS form, be delivered on or prior to the original issue
date of the Tranche to a common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg (in the case of
Securities cleared through Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg).

Whilst any Bearer Security is represented by a Temporary Bearer Globa Security, payments of nominal, interest
(if any) and any other amount payable in respect of the Securities due prior to the Exchange Date (as defined
below) will be made (against presentation of the Temporary Bearer Global Security if the Temporary Bearer Global
Security is not intended to be issued in NGS form) only to the extent that certification (in aform to be provided) to
the effect that the beneficial owners of interests in such Bearer Security are not U.S. persons or persons who have
purchased for resale to any U.S. person, as required by U.S. Treasury regulations, has been received by Euroclear
and/or Luxembourg and Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as applicable, has given a like certification
(based on the certifications it has received) to the Principal Paying Agent (in the case of Securities cleared through
Euroclear and/or Clearstream, L uxembourg).

On and after the date (the Exchange Date) which is expected to be 40 days after a Temporary Bearer Global
Security isissued, interests in such Temporary Bearer Global Security will be exchangeable (free of charge) upon a
request as described therein either for (i) interests in a Permanent Bearer Global Security of the same Series or (ii)
if so provided in the applicable Final Terms, for definitive Bearer Securities (Definitive Bearer Securities) of the
same Series with, where applicable, receipts, interest coupons and talons attached (as indicated in the applicable
Final Terms) and subject, in the case of Definitive Bearer Securities, to such notice period as is specified in the
applicable Final Terms), in each case against certification of beneficial ownership as described above unless such
certification has already been given, provided that purchasers in the United States and certain U.S. persons will not
be able to receive Definitive Bearer Securities. The holder of a Temporary Bearer Global Security will not be
entitled to collect any payment of interest, nominal or other amount due on or after the Exchange Date unless, upon
due certification, exchange of the Temporary Bearer Global Security for an interest in a Permanent Bearer Global
Security or for Definitive Bearer Securities isimproperly withheld or refused.

Payments of nominal, interest (if any) or any other amounts on a Permanent Bearer Global Security will be made
through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (against presentation or surrender (as the case may be) of the
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Permanent Bearer Global Security if the Permanent Bearer Global Security is not intended to be issued in NGS
form) without any requirement for certification.

The applicable Final Terms will specify that a Permanent Bearer Global Security will be exchangeable (free of
charge), in whole but not in part, for Definitive Bearer Securities with, where applicable, receipts, interest coupons
and talons attached only upon the occurrence of an Exchange Event. For these purposes, Exchange Event means
that (i) an Event of Default (as defined in General Condition 10 (Events of Default)) has occurred and is
continuing, (ii) the relevant Issuer has been notified that both Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg (in the case
of Securities cleared through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg) have been closed for business for a
continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holiday, statutory or otherwise) or have announced an
intention permanently to cease business or have in fact done so and, in any such case, no successor clearing system
isavailable or (iii) the relevant Issuer has or will become subject to adverse tax consequences which are as a result
of legidative changes in the domicile of the relevant Issuer and which would not be suffered were the Securities
represented by Securities in definitive form. The relevant Issuer will promptly give notice to Securityholders in
accordance with General Condition 14 (Notices) if an Exchange Event occurs. In the event of the occurrence of an
Exchange Event, Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (acting on the instructions of any holder of an interest
in such Permanent Bearer Global Security) may give notice to the Principal Paying Agent (in the case of Securities
cleared through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg) requesting exchange and, in the event of the
occurrence of an Exchange Event as described in (iii) above, the relevant Issuer may also give notice to the
Principal Paying Agent requesting exchange. Any such exchange shall occur not later than 45 days after the date of
receipt of the first relevant notice by the Principal Paying Agent.

The following legend will appear on all Bearer Securities, which have an original maturity of more than one year
and on all receipts and interest coupons relating to such Bearer Securities:

“ANY UNITED STATES PERSON WHO HOLDS THIS OBLIGATION WILL BE SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS
UNDER THE UNITED STATES INCOME TAX LAWS, INCLUDING THE LIMITATIONS PROVIDED IN
SECTIONS 165(j) AND 1287(a) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE, ASAMENDED.”

The sections referred to provide that United States holders, with certain exceptions, will not be entitled to deduct
any loss on Bearer Securities, receipts or interest coupons and will not be entitled to capital gains treatment of any
gain on any sale, disposition, redemption or payment of nominal in respect of such Securities, receipts or interest
coupons.

Securities, which are represented by a Permanent Bearer Global Security, will only be transferable in accordance
with the rules and procedures for the time being of Euroclear or Clearstream, L uxembourg, as the case may be.

Registered Securities

Securities in registered form (Registered Securities) and sold in reliance on Regulation S, which will be sold to
non-U.S. persons outside the United States, will initially be represented by a global security in registered form
(aRegulation S Global Security). Beneficial interests in a Regulation S Global Security may not be offered or
sold to, or for the account or benefit of, a U.S. person save as otherwise provided in General Condition 1.3
(Transfer) and may not be held otherwise than through Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg and such Regulation
S Global Security will bear alegend regarding such restrictions on transfer.

The Registered Securities of each Tranche issued by Crédit Agricole CIB may only be offered and sold in the
United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons in private transactions to “qualified institutional
buyers’ within the meaning of Rule 144A under the Securities Act (QIBS) or institutional “accredited investors’ as
defined in Rule 501(a)(1), (2), (3) or (7) under the Securities Act (1Al s). The Registered Securities of each Tranche
issued by Crédit Agricole CIB FG or Crédit Agricole CIB FS may only be offered and sold in the United States or

178



Form of the Securities

to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons in private transactions to QIBs or |Als who, in each case, are also
“qualified purchasers’ as defined in Section 2(a)(51) of the Investment Company Act and the rules thereunder
(QPs). The Registered Securities of each Tranche sold to QIBs or QIBs who are also QPs, as applicable, will be
represented by a global security in registered form (a Rule 144A Global Security and, together with a Regulation
S Global Security, the Registered Global Securities).

The Registered Securities of each Tranche sold to IAls will be represented by Registered Securities in definitive
form, registered in the name of the holder thereof (Definitive Registered Securities) only. Unless otherwise set
forth in the applicable Terms and Conditions or Final Terms, Definitive Registered Securities will be issued only in
Specified Denominations of U.S.$500,000 and integral multiples of U.S.$1,000 in excess thereof (or the
approximate equivalents in the applicable Specified Currency). Definitive Registered Securities will be subject to
the restrictions on transfer set forth therein and will bear the restrictive legend described under “ Subscription and
Sale’. Transfers of Definitive Registered Securities will be subject to receipt by the Registrar of a duly executed
Investment Letter from the transferee. Transferees acquiring the Securities in a transaction exempt from Securities
Act registration pursuant to Regulation S may take delivery of such Securities as an interest in a Regulation S
Global Security (if available).

Registered Global Securities will either (i) be deposited with a custodian (the Custodian) for, and registered in the
name of a nominee of, the Depository Trust Company (DT C) and in the case of a Regulation S Global Security, for
the accounts of Euroclear and Clearstream, L uxembourg (in the case of Securities cleared through Euroclear and/or
Clearstream, L uxembourg) or (ii) be deposited with a common depositary, or common safekeeper, as the case may
be for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, and registered in the name of a common nominee of, Euroclear
and Clearstream, Luxembourg or in the name of a nominee of the common safekeeper, as specified in the
applicable Final Terms. Persons holding beneficial interests in Registered Global Securities will be entitled or
required, as the case may be, under the circumstances described below, to receive physical delivery of Definitive
Securitiesin fully registered form.

The Rule 144A Global Securities and the Definitive Registered Securities will be subject to certain restrictions on
transfer set forth therein and will bear alegend regarding such restrictions.

Payments of nominal, interest and any other amount in respect of the Registered Global Securities will be made to
the person shown on the Register (as defined in General Condition 5.4 (Payments in respect of Registered
Securities)) as the registered holder of the Registered Global Securities. None of the Issuers, the Guarantor, any
Paying Agent or the Registrar will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to or
payments or deliveries made on account of beneficial ownership interestsin the Registered Global Securities or for
maintai ning, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interests.

Payments of nominal, interest or any other amount in respect of the Registered Securities in definitive form,
including, for the avoidance of doubt, Definitive Registered Securities, will be made to the persons shown on the
Register on the relevant Record Date (as defined in General Condition 5.4 (Payments in respect of Registered
Securities)) immediately preceding the due date for payment in the manner provided in that General Condition.

Interests in a Registered Global Security will be exchangeable (free of charge), in whole but not in part, for
definitive Registered Securities without receipts, interest coupons or talons attached only upon the occurrence of an
Exchange Event. For these purposes, Exchange Event means that (a) an Event of Default (as defined in General
Condition 10 (Events of Default)) has occurred and is continuing, (b) in the case of Securities registered in the
name of anominee for DTC, either DTC has notified the relevant Issuer that it is unwilling or unable to continue to
act as depository for the Securities and no alternative clearing system is available or DTC has ceased to constitute a
clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act, () in the case of Securities registered in the name of a nominee
for a common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg (in the case of Securities cleared through
Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg), the relevant Issuer has been notified that both Euroclear and
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Clearstream, Luxembourg have been closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason
of holiday, statutory or otherwise) or have announced an intention permanently to cease business or have in fact
done so and, in any such case, no successor clearing system is available or (d) the relevant Issuer has or will
become subject to adverse tax consequences which would not be suffered were the Securities represented by the
Registered Global Security in definitive form. The relevant Issuer will promptly give notice to Securityholders in
accordance with General Condition 14 (Notices) if an Exchange Event occurs. In the event of the occurrence of an
Exchange Event, DTC, Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg may give notice to the Registrar requesting
exchange and, in the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event as described in (d) above, the relevant |ssuer
may also give notice to the Registrar requesting exchange. Any such exchange shall occur not later than 10 days
after the date of receipt of the first relevant notice by the Registrar.

Transfer of Interests

Interests in a Registered Global Security may, subject to compliance with all applicable restrictions, be transferred
to a person who wishes to hold such interest in another Registered Global Security or in the form of a Definitive
Registered Security (if available) and Definitive Registered Securities may, subject to compliance with al
applicable restrictions, be transferred to a person who wishes to hold such Securities in the form of an interest in a
Registered Global Security (if available). No beneficial owner of an interest in a Registered Global Security will be
able to transfer such interest, except in accordance with the applicable procedures of DTC, Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg, in each case to the extent applicable. Registered Securities are also subject to the
restrictionson transfer set forth therein and will bear a legend regarding such restrictions, see “ Subscription
and Sale”.

Dematerialised Securities

If so specified in the applicable Final Terms and for the purpose of allowing clearing of Securities in alternative
clearing systems, any Series, other than series comprising Registered Securities to be sold to |Als, may, in full but
not in part, be issued in uncertificated and dematerialised book-entry form (Dematerialised Securities) in
accordance with all applicable laws of the relevant jurisdiction of such alternative clearing system and the rules and
regulations of such alternative clearing system.

Securities designated as “ Swedish Securities’” in the applicable Final Terms (Swedish Securities) will congtitute
Dematerialised Securities issued in uncertificated and dematerialised book-entry form in accordance with the
Swedish Financia Instruments Accounts Act (in Swedish: lag (1998:1479) om kontoforing av finansiella
instrument) and all other applicable Swedish laws, regulations and operating procedures applicable to and/or issued
by the Swedish central securities depository (in Swedish: central vardepappersforvarare) from time to time (the
Swedish CSD Rules) designated as the relevant clearing system for the Swedish Securities in the applicable Final
Terms (which is expected to be Euroclear Sweden AB) (the Swedish CSD). No Physical Globa or Definitive
Securities or certificates will be issued in respect of Swedish Securities other than as provided below and the
provisions relating to presentation, surrender or replacement of such physical bearer instruments shall not apply.
Payments of nominal, interest (if any) or any other amounts on any Swedish Security will be made through the
Swedish CSD in accordance with the Swedish CSD Rules.

Securities designated as “Norwegian Securities’ in the applicable Final Terms (Norwegian Securities) will be
issued in uncertificated and dematerialised book-entry form in accordance with the Norwegian Securities Register
Act (in Norwegian: lov om registrering av finansielle instrumenter av 5. juli 2002 nr. 64). The Norwegian
Securities shall be regarded as Securities represented by global securities for the purposes of the Terms and
Conditions of the Securities save to the extent the otherwise is specified in the Terms and Conditions of the
Securities or the relevant Terms and Conditions of the Securities are inconsistent with Norwegian laws, regulations
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and operating procedures applicable to and/or issued by the relevant Norwegian central securities depository (in
Norwegian: verdipapirregister) from time to time (the Norwegian CSD Rules) designated as relevant clearing
system for the Norwegian Securities in the applicable Final Terms (which is expected to be Verdipapirsentralen
ASA (VPS)) (the Norwegian CSD). No Physical Global or Definitive Securities or certificates will be issued in
respect of Norwegian Securities and the provisions relating to presentation, surrender or replacement of such bearer
instruments shall not apply.

Securities designated as “Finnish Securities’ in the applicable Final Terms (Finnish Securities) will constitute
Dematerialised Securities issued in uncertificated and dematerialised book-entry form in accordance with the
Finnish Act on the Book-Entry System and Clearing Operations (in Finnish: Laki arvo-osuusjérjestelmasta ja
selvitystoiminnasta (749/2012), the Finnish Act on Book-Entry Accounts (in Finnish: Laki arvo-osuustileista
827/1991, as amended) and all other applicable Finnish laws, regulations and operating procedures applicable to
and/or issued by the Finnish central securities depository from time to time (the Finnish CSD Rules) designated as
the relevant clearing system for the Finnish Securities in the applicable Final Terms (which is expected to be
Euroclear Finland Oy) (the Finnish CSD). No Physical Global or Definitive Securities or certificates will be issued
in respect of Finnish Securities. Payments or any other amounts on any Finnish Security will be made through the
Finnish CSD in accordance with the Finnish CSD Rules. The Finnish CSD will not have qualified intermediary
status.

Certificates designated as "Italian Certificates' in the applicable Final Terms will constitute Dematerialised
Certificates issued in registered, uncertificated and dematerialised book-entry form in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Italian law, including the Italian Financial Services Act, regulations and operating
procedures applicable to and/or issued by the relevant Italian central securities depository from time to time (the
Italian CSD Rules) and are freely transferable by way of book entries on the accounts registered on Monte Titoli
S.p.A. (the Italian CSD) or, with respect to Italian Certificates which are admitted to trading on the Electronic
Securitised Derivatives Market (SeDeX) of Borsa Italiana S.p.A. (the Italian Listed Certificates), on any other
central securities depository in accordance with the rules of Borsa Italiana S.p.A. applicable from time to time. No
physical global or definitive certificates will be issued in respect of Italian Certificates and the provisions relating
to presentation, surrender or replacement of such bearer instruments shall not apply.

When appropriate, the following legend will apply in respect of all Dematerialised Securities, which have an
original maturity of more than one year and on all payments relating to such Dematerialised Securities:

“ANY UNITED STATES PERSON WHO HOLDS THIS OBLIGATION WILL BE SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS
UNDER THE UNITED STATES INCOME TAX LAWS, INCLUDING THE LIMITATIONS PROVIDED IN
SECTIONS 165(j) AND 1287(a) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE, ASAMENDED.”

General

Pursuant to the Agency Agreement (as defined under “Terms and Conditions of the Securities’), the Principal
Paying Agent shall arrange that, where a further Tranche of Securities isissued which isintended to form a single
Series with an existing Tranche of Securities, the Securities of such further Tranche shall be assigned a Common
Code and ISIN and, where applicable, a CUSIP and CINS number which are different from the Common Code and
ISIN, CUSIP and CINS assigned to Securities of any other Tranche of the same Series until at least the expiry of
the distribution compliance period (as defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act) applicable to the Securities
of such Tranche.

For so long as any of the Securities is represented by a Global Security held on behalf of Euroclear and/or
Clearstream, Luxembourg each person (other than Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg) who is for the time
being shown in the records of Euroclear or of Clearstream, Luxembourg as the holder of a particular nominal
amount of such Securities (in which regard any certificate or other document issued by Euroclear or Clearstream,
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Luxembourg as to the nominal amount of such Securities standing to the account of any person shall be conclusive
and binding for all purposes save in the case of manifest error or proven error) shall be treated by the Issuers, the
Guarantor and their agents as the holder of such nominal amount of such Securities for al purposes other than with
respect to the payment of nominal or interest on such nominal amount of such Securities, for which purpose the
bearer of the relevant Bearer Global Security or the registered holder of the relevant Registered Global Security
shall be treated by the Issuers, the Guarantor and their agents as the holder of such nominal amount of such
Securities in accordance with and subject to the terms of the relevant Global Security and the expressions
Securityholder and holder of Securities and related expressions shall be construed accordingly.

So long as DTC or its nominee is the registered owner or holder of a Registered Global Security, DTC or such
nominee, as the case may be, will be considered the sole owner or holder of the Securities represented by such
Registered Global Security for all purposes under the Agency Agreement and such Securities except to the extent
that in accordance with DTC’s published rules and procedures any ownership rights may be exercised by its
participants or beneficial owners through participants.

Any reference herein to DTC and/or Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg shall, whenever the context so
permits, be deemed to include areference to any relevant clearing system specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Where General Condition 10 (Events of Default) applies to Securities, a Security may be accelerated by the holder
thereof in certain circumstances described in General Condition 10 (Events of Default). In such circumstances,
where any Security is still represented by a Global Security and the Global Security (or any part thereof) has
become due and repayable in accordance with the Terms and Conditions of such Securities and payment in full of
the amount due has not been made in accordance with the provisions of the Global Security then the Global
Security will become void at 8.00 p.m. (Paris time) on such day. At the same time, holders of interests in such
Global Security credited to their accounts with DTC and/or Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case
may be, will become entitled to proceed directly against the relevant I1ssuer on the basis of statements of account
provided by DTC and/or Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg on and subject to the terms of a deed of
covenant (the Deed of Covenant) dated 11 May 2016, executed by each of the Issuers. In addition, holders of
interests in such Global Security credited to their accounts with DTC may require DTC to deliver Definitive
Securities in registered form in exchange for their interest in such Global Security in accordance with DTC's
standard operating procedures.
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FORM OF THE FINAL TERMS

This section sets out a pro forma for the Final Terms.

Set out below is the form of Final Terms, which will be completed for each Tranche of Notes/Certificates (the
Securities), issued under the Programme.

[Date]
FINAL TERMS

I ssue of [Aggregate Nominal Amount of Tranche][Title of Securities]
under the €50,000,000,000
Structured Debt | nstruments | ssuance Programme

by
[CREDIT AGRICOLE CORPORATE AND INVESTMENT BANK]
[CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED]
[CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS]

[guaranteed by CREDIT AGRICOLE CORPORATE AND INVESTMENT BANK] (include where
the Issuer is Crédit Agricole CIB FG or Crédit Agricole FS)

PART A—CONTRACTUAL TERMS

[This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Securities described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the
Directive 2003/71/EC (and amendments thereto, including the Directive 2010/73/EU, to the extent implemented in
the Relevant Member State), including any relevant implementing measure in the Relevant Member State (the
Prospectus Directive) and must be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus dated 11 May 2016 [and the
supplement[s] dated [e] which [together] constitute[s] a base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus
Directive]. Full information on the Issuer[, the Guarantor] and the offer of the Securities is only available on the
basis of the combination of these Final Terms and the Base Prospectus. [A summary of the issue of the Securitiesis
annexed to these Final Terms at Annex [A].(Only required for Securities with a denomination of less than €100,000
(or its equivalent in any other currency))] The Base Prospectus is available for viewing [on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange website (www.bourse.lu)] [and] [during normal business hours at the registered office of Crédit Agricole
CIB (Jwww.ca-cib.com]) and the specified office of the Principal Paying Agent.]]

[Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Terms and Conditions set forth in
the Base Prospectus dated [6 July 2015, as supplemented by the supplement dated 6 October 2015] [25 June 2014,
as supplemented by the supplement dated 9 September 2014][21 June 2013, as supplemented by, the supplement
dated 19 September 2013] (the Terms and Conditions) which are incorporated by reference in the Base
Prospectus dated 11 May 2016 [and the supplement[s] to the Base Prospectus dated [#] 2016].]

[(Include whichever of the following apply or specify as “ Not Applicable” (N/A). Note that the numbering should
remain as set out below, even if “ Not Applicable” isindicated for individual paragraphs or sub-paragraphs. Italics
denote directions for completing the Final Terms.)]
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[(When adding information consideration should be given as to whether such terms or information constitute
“significant new factors’ and consequently trigger the need for a supplement to the Base Prospectus under Article
16 of the Prospectus Directive.)]

[(If the Securities have a maturity of less than one year from the date of their issue, then the minimum
denomination may need to be £100,000 or its equivalent in any other currency.)]

[(This Form of the Final Terms includes placeholders indicating that the 'Relevant Standard Interest Payoff'
'Relevant Standard Redemption Payoff' 'Combination I nterest Payoff' or 'Combination Redemption Payoff' will
be added when the Final Terms are completed for a Series of Securities. For these purposes:

Relevant Standard Interest Payoff' means any one of the following Standard Interest Payoffs as set out in Part A
of the Sandard Payoff Conditions:

Sandard Fixed Interest, Sandard Floating Interest, Standard Floater Interest, Standard Inverse Floater
Interest, Sandard Alternative Basket Interest, Standard Basket Interest, Standard Option Basket Interest,
Sandard Maximum-Minimum Interest, Standard Participation Interest, Standard Lookback Performance
Basket Interest, Standard Maximum-Minimum Basket Interest, Standard \olbond Interest, Standard
Participation Basket Interest, Sandard Range Accrual Interest, Sandard Resettable Range Accrual Interest,
Sandard 3D Range Accrual Interest, Standard Fixed Digital Basket Interest, Standard Power Interest,
Sandard Dual Range Accrual Interest, Sandard Trend Participation Interest, Sandard Trend Participation
Basket Interest, Sandard Average Trend Participation Basket Interest, Sandard Multi Fixed Digital Interest,
Sandard Digital to Participation Interest, Standard Knock-out Range Accrual Interest, Sandard Product
Basket Interest, Sandard Multi Fixed Basket Interest, Sandard Fixed Range Accrual Interest, Sandard ABF
Interest, Standard Worst of Interest, Standard Annualised Performance Interest or Standard Rainbow
Performance Interest;

Relevant Sandard Redemption Payoff means any one of the following Standard Redemption Payoffs as set out
in Part B of the Sandard Payoff Conditions:

Sandard Fixed Redemption, Standard Floater Redemption, Standard Inverse Floater Redemption, Standard
Alternative Basket Redemption, Standard Strangle Redemption, Standard Option Basket Redemption, Standard
Maxi mum-Minimum Redemption, Standard Participation Redemption, Standard Lookback Performance Basket
Redemption, Standard Maximum-Minimum Basket Redemption, Standard Volbond Redemption, Standard
Participation Basket Redemption, Standard Range Accrual Redemption, Standard Resettable Range Accrual
Redemption, Sandard 3D Range Accrual Redemption, Sandard Fixed Digital Basket Redemption, Standard
Power Redemption, Standard Dual Range Accrual Redemption, Standard Trend Participation Redemption,
Sandard Trend Participation Basket Redemption, Standard Average Trend Participation Basket Redemption,
Sandard Multi Fixed Digital Redemption, Standard Digital to Participation Redemption, Standard Knock-out
Range Accrual Redemption, Standard Product Basket Redemption, Standard Multi Fixed Basket Redemption,
Sandard Fixed Range Accrual Redemption, Standard ABF Redemption, Standard Worst of Redemption,
Sandard Annualised Performance Redemption or Standard Rainbow Performance Redemption;

Relevant Combination Interest Payoff means any one of the following Combination Interest Payoffs:

Combination Addition Interest, Combination Capitalisation Interest, Combination Digital Interest,
Combination Division Interest, Combination Multiplication Interest, Combination Ratchet Interest,
Combination Range Interest, Combination Resettable Range Interest, Combination Snowrange Interest,
Combination Subtract Interest, Combination Maximum Interest, Combination Minimum Interest, Combination
Digital Basket Interest, Combination Payoff-Linked Digital Interest, Combination Ladder Ratchet Interest or
Combination Rainbow Performance Interest; and
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Relevant Combination Redemption Payoff means any one of the following Combination Redemption Payoffs as
set out in Part B of the Combination Payoff Condition:

Combination Addition Redemption, Combination Capitalisation Redemption, Combination Digital Redemption,
Combination Divison Redemption, Combination Multiplication Redemption, Combination Ratchet
Redemption, Combination Range Redemption, Combination Resettable Range Redemption, Combination
Snowrange Redemption, Combination Subtract Redemption, Combination Maximum Redemption, Combination
Minimum Redemption, Combination Digital Basket Redemption, Combination Complex Digital Basket
Contingency Redemption, Combination Payoff-Linked Digital Redemption or Combination Rainbow
Performance Redemption]

1 @ Series Number: [e]
(b) Type of Securities: [Noteg][Certificates]
(© Tranche Number: [®][The Securities shall be

consolidated, form asingle series
and be interchangeable for trading
purposes with the I ssue of
[Aggregate Nominal Amount of
Tranche][Title of Securities] on
[(insert date/the Issue
Date/exchange of the Temporary
Global Bearer Security for
interestsin the Permanent Global
Bearer Security)]

Date on which the Securities become fungible: [Not Applicabl€][ The Securities
shall be consolidated, form a
single series and be
interchangeable for trading
purposes with the I ssue of
[Aggregate Nominal Amount of
Tranche][Title of Securities], the
terms and conditions of which are
set out in the Issuer's Base
Prospectus dated [6 July 2015][25
June 2014][21 June 2013] (as
supplemented by supplements
dated [6 Octaober 2015][9
September 2014][19 September
2013]).][The Securities will
become fungible with the
Securities referred to above on
[insert date][the | ssue Date][the
date of exchange of the
Temporary Bearer Global Security
for interestsin the Permanent
Bearer Global Security][whichis
expected to occur on or about
[insert date]]]
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Specified Currency:

Aggregate Nominal Amount:
@ Series:
(b) Tranche:

Issue Price:

(8 Specified Denominations:

186

Form of the Final Terms

[e]
(N.B. if Swedish Securities, only
SEK or EUR)

(o]

[®] [(Where Securities are
fungible with an existing tranche,
indicate the Aggregate Nominal
Amount for each tranche and the
aggregate amount in respect of
each Tranche for the Series
Aggregate Nominal Amount)].

[®] per cent. of the Aggregate
Nomina Amount [plus accrued
interest from [(insert date)]]

(In the case of fungible issues
only, if applicable)

[e]

[[®] and integral multiples of [e]
in excess thereof

up to and including [e].] [No
Securitiesin definitive form will
be issued with a denomination
above [e].]

(In the case of Registered
Securities, this means the
minimum integral amount in
which transfers can be made.)

(If an issue of Securitiesis (i)
NOT admitted to trading on an
European Economic Area
regulated market; and (ii) only
offered in the European Economic
Area in circumstances where a
prospectus is not required to be
published under the Prospectus
Directive the €1,000 minimum
denomination may not be
required.)

(Securitiesissued after the
implementation of the 2010 PD
Amending Directive in a Member
Sate must have a minimum
denomination of €100,000 (or
equivalent) in order to benefit



(b) Minimum Trading Size:

(c) Cadculation Amount:

(8 IssueDate:
(b) Trade Date(s):

() Interest Commencement Date:

Redemption Date;
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from the wholesale exemption set
out in article 3.2(d) of the
Prospectus Directive in that
Member State.)

[Applicable. The Minimum
Trading Size is [®] in aggregate
nominal amount][Not Applicable]
(Specify the relevant minimum
amount for the purposes of
General Condition 1.3 (Transfer).
Note that thiswill apply to
acquisition and trading of the
Securities.)

[e]

(If only one Specified
Denomination, insert the Specified
Denomination. If more than one
Foecified Denomination, insert the
highest common factor. N.B.:
There must be a common factor in
the case of two or more Specified
Denomination.)

[e]
[®] (Where multiple Trade Dates
are relevant, specify all Trade

Dates and distinguish as
necessary)

[Issue Date][®][Not Applicable]

(N.B. An Interest Commencement
Date will not be relevant for
certain Securities, for example
Zero Coupon Securities.)

[(Fixed Rate Securities) [(specify
date)]]

[(Floating Rate Securities, Linked
Interest Securities, Linked
Redemption Securities, Zero
Coupon Securities, Instalment
Securities (other than Credit
Linked Securities)) [Interest
Payment Date falling in or nearest
to [(specify month and year)]]

[(Credit Linked Securities:)
[(specify date)] (the Scheduled
Redemption Date), subject to the



(8 Renouncement Notice Cut-off Time:

(b) Expiry Date (Data di Scadenza):

(¢) Interest Record Date(s):

Type of [Notes][ Certificates]:

(8 Interest:
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provisions of Annex 2 (Credit
Linked Conditions) and paragraph
21]

(If Credit Linked Securities are
used in combination with another
type of Security, use the option
above for Credit Linked Security)

[(Bond Linked Securities:)
[(specify date)] (the Scheduled
Redemption Date), subject to the
provisions of Annex 3 (Bond
Linked Conditions) and paragraph
22]

(If Bond Linked Securities are
used in combination with another
type of Security, use the option
above for Bond Linked Security)

[e]
(Italian Listed Certificates only)

[e]
(Italian Listed Certificates only)

(o]
(Italian Listed Certificates only)

(Select each that applies)

[The Securities are Private
Placement Securities]

[Fixed Rate Security]
[Floating Rate Security]
[Zero Coupon Security]

[Linked Interest Security:
[Commodity Linked Interest
Security] [Index Linked Interest
Security] [Inflation Linked
Interest Security] [FX Linked
Interest Security] [Rate Linked
Interest Security] [ETF Interest
Linked Security] [Share Linked
Interest Security] [Multi-Asset
Basket Linked Interest Security]]

(Specify Multi-Asset Basket
Linked Instalment Security if
interest is linked to more than one
type of Underlying)

[(Further particulars specified



(b) Redemption:

[(c) Other:
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below in "PROVISIONS
RELATING TO INTEREST

(IF ANY) PAYABLE" [and in
"PAY OFF FEATURES (IF ANY)
RELATING TO INTEREST"])]

Relevant Redemption Method(s):

[For the purpose of determining
the Early Redemption Amount:

[Standard Redemption][Growth
Redemption][Performance
Redemption]]

[For the purpose of determining
the Final Redemption Amount:

[Standard Redemption][Growth
Redemption][Performance
Redemption]]

[Credit Linked Security]
[Bond Linked Security]
[Instalment Security]

[Linked Redemption Security:
[Commodity Linked Redemption
Security] [Index Linked
Redemption Security] [Inflation
Linked Redemption Security] [FX
Linked Redemption Security]
[Rate Linked Redemption
Security] [ETF Linked
Redemption Security] [Share
Linked Redemption Security]
[Multi-Asset Basket Linked
Redemption Security]]

(Specify Multi-Asset Basket
Linked Redemption Security if
redemption amount islinked to
more than one type of Underlying)

[(Further particulars specified
below in "PROVISIONS
RELATING TO REDEMPTION"
[and in "PAY OFF FEATURES (IF
ANY) RELATINGTO
REDEMPTION"])]

[[Swedish Securities|[Norwegian
Securities][Finnish Securities)
[Italian Certificates| (Further
particulars specified below in



9

10
11

12

[Date [Board] approval for issuance of Securities[and Guarantee]
obtained:

Method of distribution:
Asset Conditions:

- Commodity Linked Asset Conditions:

- Index Linked Asset Conditions:

- FX Linked Asset Conditions:

- Inflation Linked Asset Conditions:

- Rate Linked Asset Conditions:

- ETF Linked Asset Conditions:

- Share Linked Asset Conditions

- Multi-Asset Basket Linked Asset Conditions:

Alternative Currency Conditions:

(@ CNY Securities:
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"OPERATIONAL
INFORMATION")] [Alternative
Currency Securities (Further
particulars specified below in
"Alternative Currency
Conditions")]

[e] (N.B. Only relevant where
Board (or similar) authorisation is
required for the particular tranche
of Securities or related

Guarantee, any issues of
Securities by Crédit Agricole CIB
or Crédit Agricole CIB FS
congtituting obligations under
French law requires the prior
authorisation of the Board of
Directorsin accordance with
article L 228-40 of the French
Code de commerce.)

[Syndicated][Non-syndicated]

[Applicable in accordance with
Annex 1][Not Applicable]

[Applicable][Not Applicable]
[Applicable][Not Applicable]
[Applicable][Not Applicable]
[Applicable][Not Applicable]
[Applicable][Not Applicable]
[Applicable][Not Applicable]
[Applicable][Not Applicable]
[Applicable][Not Applicable]

[Applicable in accordance with
Annex 4][Not Applicable]

(If Not Applicable, delete the
remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

[Applicable][Not Applicable]

(Only applicableif it isan
Alternative Currency Security
denominated in CNY or if Dual
Currency (Interest) Payoff Feature
or Dual Currency (Redemption)
Payoff Feature is applicable and
the Interest Currency or



(b) CNY Settlement Centre(s):

(c) Scheduled Payment Currency Jurisdiction:

(d) Scheduled Payment Currency:

(e) Alternative Currency:

Form of the Final Terms
Redemption Currency is CNY)

[Hong Kong Special
Administrative
Region][Taiwan][Singapore][®]
(Only applicableif CNY
Securities)

[e][Hong Kong] (Only applicable
if "CNY" isthe Scheduled
Payment Currency)

[e]
[As per the Alternative Currency
Conditions (if U.S. dollar)][e]

(Only applicableif CNY
Securities)

(f) Cadculation Agent responsible for making calculation and [e]
determinations pursuant to Annex 4 (Alternative Currency

Conditions):

PROVISIONSRELATING TO INTEREST (IFANY) PAYABLE

13

Fixed Rate Security:

(8 Applicableto:

(b) Rate(s) of Interest:
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(Repeat rows (using the same variables only) as
necessary where a line itemis used multiple times)

[Applicable][Not Applicable][Applicable for the
purposes of Standard Fixed Interest]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

[(For Credit Linked Securities) [Applicable subject
to Annex 2 (Credit Linked Conditions) and
paragraph 21 of these Final Termg]]

[(If Dual Currency (Interest) Payoff Featureis
Applicable) [Applicable subject to Chapter 11 of
Annex 7 (Payoff Feature Conditions) and
paragraph 17 of these Final Termg]]

[(If Credit Event Contingency Interest Switch
Payoff Feature is Applicable) [Applicable subject
to Chapter 12 of Annex 7, Part A (Payoff Feature
Conditions) and paragraph 17 of these Final
Termg]]

[(For Bond Linked Securities) [Applicable subject
to Annex 3 (Bond Linked Conditions) and
paragraph 22 of these Final Termg]]

[All Interest Accrual Periods]

[The following Interest Accrual Periods: [e]]

[e] per cent. per annum [payable [annually][semi-
annually][quarterly] in arrears]



(¢) Interest Payment Date(s):

(d) Interest Period Dates:
(e) Fixed Coupon Amount(s):

(f) Broken Amount(s):

(g) Day Count Fraction:

(h) Interest Accrual Periods:

(i) Business Day Convention for the purposes
of adjustment of "Interest Accrua Periods' in
accordance with paragraph (h) above:

(1) Additional Business Centre(s):
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[Premium: [®] per cent. All references in the
Conditions to "Rate of Interest" shall be construed
asreferencesto "Premium"] (for Italian Listed
Certificates only)

[[®] in each year from and including [®] up to and
including the Redemption Date] [(each a"Premium
Payment Date") and all referencesin the Conditions
to "Interest Payment Date" shall be construed as
references to " Premium Payment Date"](for Italian
Listed Certificates only)

[®][Not Applicable]

[[®] per [Calculation] Amount][As determined by
the Calculation Agent in accordance with General
Condition 4.1 (Interest on Fixed Rate Securities)]

(Applicable to Securitiesin definitive formin
accordance with General Condition 4.1 (Interest on
Fixed Rate Securities))

[®] per Calculation Amount, payable on the

Interest Payment Date falling [in][on][e]
(Applicable to Securitiesin definitive form)

[1/1]
[Actual/Actual (ISDA) or Actual/Actual]

[Actual/Actua (ICMA)]

(N.B.: Actual/Actual (ICMA) is normally only
appropriate for Fixed Rate Securities denominated
in euros)

[Actual /365 (Fixed)]

[Actual/365 (Sterling)]
[Actual/360]

[30/360 or 360/360 or Bond Basis)|
[30E/360 or Eurobond Basis]
[30E/360 (1SDA)]

[Not Applicable]

Interest Accrual Periods will be

[adjusted] [unadjusted]

[Not Applicabl€][Floating Rate Convention]
[Following Business Day Convention] [Modified
Following Business Day Convention][Preceding
Business Day Convention]

[Not Applicable][®]

(Specify only if "Interest Accrual Periodswill be
adjusted” isindicated in paragraph (h) above)
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(k) Determination Date(s):

Floating Rate Security:

(8 Applicableto:

(b) Interest Payment Dates:

(¢) Interest Period Dates:
(d) Interest Determination Date(s):

(e) Business Day Convention for the purposes
of adjustment of "Interest Accrual Periods' in
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[[®] in each year][Not Applicable]

(Insert regular interest payment dates, ignoring
issue date or redemption datein the case of a long
or short first or last coupon)

(N.B.: Thiswill need to be amended in the case of
regular interest accrual periods which are not of
equal duration)

(N.B.: Only relevant where Day Count Fraction is
Actual/Actual (ICMA))

[Applicable][Not Applicable][Applicable for the
purposes of Standard Floating Interest]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

[(For Credit Linked Securities) [Applicable subject
to Annex 2 (Credit Linked Conditions) and
paragraph 21 of these Final Termg]]

[(If Dual Currency (Interest) Payoff Featureis
Applicable) [Applicable subject to Chapter 11 of
Annex 7 (Payoff Feature Conditions) and
paragraph 17 of these Final Termg]]

[(If Credit Event Contingency Interest Switch
Payoff Feature is Applicable) [Applicable subject
to Chapter 12 of Annex 7 (Payoff Feature
Conditions) and paragraph 17 of these Final
Termg]]

[(For Bond Linked Securities) [Applicable subject
to Annex 3 (Bond Linked Conditions) and
paragraph 22 of these Final Termg]]

[All Interest Accrual Periods]
[The following Interest Accrual Periods: [e]]

[[®] in each year up to and including the
Redemption Date] [@]

[®][Not Applicable]

[e]

(Often second London business day prior to the
start of each Interest Accrual Period if LIBOR
(other than Serling or euro LIBOR), first day of
each Interest Accrual Period if Sterling
LIBOR/second day on which the TARGET2 System
isopen prior to the start of each Interest Accrual
Period if EURIBOR or euro LIBOR)

[Not Applicabl€][Floating Rate
Convention][Following Business Day
Convention][Modified Following Business Day



accordance with sub-paragraph (n) below):

(f) Additional Business Centre(s):

(©))

(h)

(i)

()

(k)

()

(m)

Rate(s) of Interest:

Screen Rate Determination:

Reference Rate:

Relevant Screen Page:

Relevant Screen Page Time:

Relevant Inter-Bank Market:

Reference Banks:

ISDA Determination:

Floating Rate Option:
Designated Maturity:
Reset Date:

Margin(s):

Minimum Rate of Interest:

Maximum Rate of Interest:

Day Count Fraction:
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Convention][Preceding Business Day Convention]

[Not Applicable][®]

(Specify only if "Interest Accrual Periodswill be
adjusted” isindicated in paragraph (n) below)
Determined in accordance with [Screen Rate
Determination][ISDA Determination]
[Applicable][Not Applicable]

[e](insert relevant designated period)
[LIBOR][EURIBOR][SHIBOR]][®]

[e]
(In the case of EURIBOR, if not Reuters
EURIBORO1 ensure it is a page which shows a

compositerate, in the case of SHIBOR,
http:/Amawww.shibor.org)

(o]
[11.00 a.m. [(London time),(in the case of LIBOR)]
[(Brusselstime) (in the case of EURIBOR)]

[e]

[London inter-bank market (in the case of LIBOR)],
[EURO-zone inter-bank market (in the case of
EURIBOR)]

[Applicable][Not Applicable]

(In event that Principal Paying Agent is not obliged
to select Reference Banks, specify four relevant
Reference Banks)

[Applicable][Not Applicable]

[e]

(o]

[®][First day of the relevant Interest Accrual
Period][[®] US Government Securities Business
Day [falling in][[immediately
following][immediately preceding] the first day of]
the relevant Interest Accrua Period]

(Standard wording if Floating Rate Option is based
on LIBOR or EURIBOR)]

[[+/-][*] per cent. per annum([, applicable
[generally][for [e] Interest Accrual Periods]]]

[®] per cent. per annum [for [e] Interest Accrual
Periods]

[®] per cent. per annum [for [e] Interest Accrual
Periods]

[11]
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(n) Interest Accrual Periods:

(o) Determination Date(s):

(p) Additional Disruption Event:

Linked Interest Security:
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[Actual/Actual (ISDA) or Actual/Actual]
[Actual/Actua (ICMA)]
[Actual /365 (Fixed)]
[Actual/365 (Sterling)]
[Actual/360]
[30/360 or 360/360 or Bond Basis)|
[30E/360 or Eurobond Basis]
[30E/360 (I1SDA)]
[Not Applicable]
Interest Accrual Periods will be
[adj usted] [unadij usted]
(Specify which, if any, Interest Accrual Periods will

be subject to Linear Interpolation in accordance
with General Condition 4.11 (Interpolation))

[[®] in each year][Not Applicable]

(Insert regular interest payment dates, ignoring
issue date or redemption datein the case of a long
or short first or last coupon)

(N.B.: Thiswill need to be amended in the case of
regular interest accrual periods which are not of
equal duration)

(N.B.: Only relevant where Day Count Fraction is
Actual/Actual (ICMA))

[Applicable in accordance with General Condition
4.2(e)]

[Change of Law is not applicable]

[Hedging Disruption is not applicable]

[Increased Cost of Hedging is not applicable] (Note

that Increased Cost of Hedging will not be
applicableto Italian Listed Certificates)

[Applicable][Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

(If applicable, at least one of paragraphs 15A to
15G should be specified as Applicable)

[(For Credit Linked Securities) [Applicable subject
to Annex 2 (Credit Linked Conditions) and
paragraph 21 of these Final Termg]]

[(If Credit Event Contingency Interest Switch
Payoff Feature is Applicable) [Applicable subject
to Chapter 12 of Annex 7 (Payoff Feature
Conditions) and paragraph 17 of these Final



(& Applicableto:

(b) Interest Payment Date(s):

(c) Interest Period Dates:
(d) Interest Determination Date(s):

(e) Business Day Convention for the purposes
of adjustment of "Interest Accrua Periods' in
accordance sub-paragraph (h) below):

(f) Additional Business Centres:

(g) Day Count Fraction:

(h) Interest Accrual Periods:

(i) Determination Date(s):
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Termg]]

[(For Bond Linked Securities) [Applicable subject
to Annex 3 (Bond Linked Conditions) and
paragraph 22 of these Final Termg]]

[All Interest Accrual Periods]

[The following Interest Accrual Periods: [e]]

[[®] in each year from and including [®] up to and
including the Redemption Date][e®]

[e][Not Applicable]

[e]

(Often second London business day prior to the
start of each Interest Accrual Period if LIBOR
(other than Serling or euro LIBOR), first day of
each Interest Accrual Period if Sterling LIBOR/
second day on which the TARGET2 Systemis open
prior to the start of each Interest Accrual Period if
EURIBOR or euro LIBOR)

[Not Applicabl€][Floating Rate Convention]
[Following Business Day Convention] [Modified
Following Business Day Convention][Preceding
Business Day Convention]

[Not Applicable][®]

(Specify only if "Interest Accrual Periodswill be
adjusted” isindicated in paragraph (h) below)

[1/1]

[Actual/Actual (ISDA) or Actual/Actual]
[Actual/Actua (ICMA)]

[Actual /365 (Fixed)]

[Actual/365 (Sterling)]

[Actual/360]

[30/360 or 360/360 or Bond Basig|
[30E/360 or Eurobond Basis]

[30E/360 (I1SDA)]

[Not Applicable]

Interest Accrual Periods will be
[adjusted][unadjusted]

(Specify which, if any, Interest Accrual Periods will
be subject to Linear Interpolation in accordance
with General Condition 4.11 (Interpolation))

[[®] in each year][Not Applicable]

(Insert regular interest payment dates, ignoring
issue date or redemption datein the case of a long
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or short first or last coupon)

(N.B.: Thiswill need to be amended in the case of
regular interest accrual periods which are not of
equal duration)

(N.B.: Only relevant where Day Count Fraction is
Actual/Actual (ICMA))

(j) Calculation Agent responsible for calculating [e]
the Linked Interest Rate and the I nterest
Amount:

15A  Commodity Linked Interest Security: [Applicable in accordance with Annex 1, Chapter
1][Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining
subparagraphs of this paragraph)

(@ Single Underlying: [Applicable][Not Applicable]
(If not applicable, delete the remaining
subparagraphs of this subparagraph)

—  Applicable for the purposes of: [Standard Interest Payoff [e (Insert name of

Sandard Interest Payoff)]]
[Combination Interest Payoff [e (Insert name of
Combination Interest Payoff)]]
[Payoff Feature [® (Insert name of Payoff
Feature)]]
[Early Redemption Trigger [® (Insert name of
Redemption Trigger)]]

—  Commodity: [e]

—  Commodity Reference Price: [Commaodity Reference Dealers|[As per the
definition of Commodity Reference Price set out
Commodity Linked Asset Condition 2]

- Unit: [e]

—  Price Source: [e][Not Applicable]

—  Délivery Date: [[®] Nearby Month]][e][Not Applicable]

—  Exchange: [®][Not Applicable]

—  Futures Contract: [®][Not Applicable]

—  Price Materiality Percentage: [®][Not Applicable]

—  Reference Deders: [®][Not Applicable]

—  Specified Price: [high price] [low price] [average of high price and
low price]

[closing price] [opening price]
[bid price] [asked price] [average of bid price and
asked price] [settlement price]

[official settlement price] [officia price] [morning
fixing] [afternoon fixing] [fixing] [spot price]
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Underlying:

1

(Add rows
(number
ed
sequenti
ally) as
required

)

(b) [Basket][Multi-Asset Basket]:

—  Common Pricing:

~  [[Baskef][Multi-Asset Baskef]:

—  Applicable for the purposes of:

Commodity:

[e] (Listona
separate row each
commodity used as
an Underlying for
determination of
interest)

(Add rows as
required)

Un
it

[e]

Commodity

Reference Price:

[Commodity
Reference
Dealers|[As per
the definition of
Commodity
Reference Price
Set out
Commodity
Linked Asset
Condition 2]

(Add rows as
required)

Price Source:

[e]

(Add rows as
required)

Delivery Date:

[[¢] Nearby
Month]] [e]

(Add rows as
required)
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expressed in [@ (Specify the relevant currency)]

[Applicable][Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining
subparagraphs of this subparagraph)

[Applicable][Not Applicable]

[i] [(Please also refer to paragraph[s] [15B] [and]
[15C] [and] [15D] [and] [15E] [and] [15F] [and]
[15G] for details of other Multi-Asset Basket
Components)]]

[Standard Interest Payoff [e (Insert name of
Sandard Interest Payoff)]]

[Combination Interest Payoff [e (Insert name of
Combination Interest Payoff)]]

[Payoff Feature [® (Insert name of Payoff
Feature)]]

[Early Redemption Trigger [® (Insert name of
Redemption Trigger)]]

Exchange: Futures Price Reference Specified
Contract: Materiality Dedlers: Price:
Percentage:

[e] [e] [e] [e] [Not [high price]
Applicable] [low price]

[average of
high price
and low
price]
[closing
price]
[opening
price]
[bid price]
[asked
price]
[average of
bid price
and asked
price]
[settlement
price]
[official
settlement
price]
[official
price]
[morning
fixing]
[afternoon
fixing]
[fixing]
[spot price]
expressed
in[e
(Specify the
relevant
currency)]

(Add rows (Add rows (Add rows (Add rows (Add rows
asrequired) as asrequired) asrequired) asrequired)
required)
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— [[Basket][Multi-Asset Basket]: [j] [(Please aso refer to paragraph[s] [15B] [and] [15C] [and]
[15D] [and] [15E] [and] [15F] and] [15G] for details of other
Multi-Asset Basket Components)]]

— Applicable for the purposes of:  [Standard Interest Payoff [e (Insert name of Standard Interest
Payoff)]]

[Combination Interest Payoff [e (Insert name of Combination
Interest Payoff)]]

[Payoff Feature [ (Insert name of Payoff Feature)]]
[Early Redemption Trigger [® (Insert name of Redemption

Trigger)]]
Underlying: Commodity: Unit Commodit Price Delivery Date: Exchange: Futures Price Reference Specified Price:
: y Sourc Contract: Materiality Dedlers:
Reference e Percentage:
Price:

[1] [e] (Listona [e] [Commodi [e] [[®] Nearby [e] [e] [e] [e] [Not [high price] [low
separate row each ty Month]] [e] Applicable] price] [average of
commodity used as Reference high price and
an Underlying for Dealers][ low price]
determination of Asper the [closing price]
interest) definition [opening price]

?:fommodit [bin price] [asked
y price] [average of
bid price and
Rgfefence asked price]
Price set [settlement price]
out
Commodit [official
y Linked settlement price]
Asset [official price]
Condition [morning fixing]
2] [afternoon fixing]
[fixing] [spot
price] expressed
in [® (Specify the
relevant
currency)]
(Add rows (Add rows as (Ad (Add rows (Add (Add rows as (Add rows as (Add rows as (Add rows (Add rows (Add rows as
(number required) d as rows required) required) required) asrequired) asrequired) required)
ed row required) as
sequenti sas requir
ally) as req ed)

required uire
) d)

— [[Basket][Multi-Asset Basket]: [K] [(Please also refer to paragraph(s] [15B] [and] [15C] [and]
[15D] [and] [15E] [and] [15F] and] [15G] for details of other
Multi-Asset Basket Components)]]

— Applicable for the purposes of:  [Standard Interest Payoff [e (Insert name of Standard Interest
Payoff)]]

[Combination Interest Payoff [e (Insert name of Combination
Interest Payoff)]]

[Payoff Feature [ (Insert name of Payoff Feature)]]
[Early Redemption Trigger [® (Insert name of Redemption

Trigger)]]
Underlying: Commodity: Unit Commodity Price Delivery Date: Exchange: Futures Price Reference Specified
: Reference Source: Contract: Materiality Dedlers: Price:
Price: Percentage:

[1] [e] (Listona [e] [Commodit [e] [[®] Nearby [e] [e] [e] [e] [Not [high price]
Separate row y Reference Month]] [e] Applicable] [low price]
each Dealers][A [average of
commodity used sper the high price
asan definition and low

Underlying for of
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(Add rows
(numbered
sequentiall
y) as
required)

(©

(d)

()

(f)

9

(h)

determination Commodity
of interest) Reference
Price set
out
Commodity
Linked
Asset
Condition
2]
(Add rows as (Ad (Add rows (Add
required) d as rowsas
row required) required)
sas
req
uire
d)
Additional Disruption Event:

Market Disruption Event:

Maximum Days of Disruption:

Payment Extension Days:

Observation Date(s):

Correction of Commaodity Prices:

— Correction Cut-Off Date:

Form of the Final Terms

price]
[closing
price]
[opening
price]

[bid price]
[asked price]
[average of
bid price
and asked
price]
[settlement
price]
[official
settlement
price]
[official
price]
[morning
fixing]
[afternoon
fixing]
[fixing]
[spot price]
expressed in
[ (Specify
the relevant
currency)]

(Add rows as (Add rows as (Add (Add rows (Add rows as (Add rows
required) required) rowsas asrequired) required) asrequired)

required)

[Applicable in accordance with Commodity Linked Asset
Condition 3.5]

[Change of Law is not applicable]

[Hedging Disruption is not applicable]

[Increased Cost of Hedging is not applicable] (Note that

Increased Cost of Hedging will not be applicable to Italian
Listed Certificates)

[Price Source Disruption][Trading
Disruption][Disappearance of Commodity Reference
Price][Material Change in Formula][Material Changein
Content][Tax Disruption]

[e]
(If no Maximum Days of Disruption are stated, Maximum

Days of Disruption will be equal to five Commodity Business
Days)

[e] (If no Payment Extension Days are stated, Payment
Extension Days will be equal to two (2) Payment Business
Days)

[®] (Specify any business day convention applicable to the
Observation Date(s))

[Applicable][Not Applicable]

[®] Business Days prior to the relevant Interest Payment
Date
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15B Index Linked Interest Security:

@

(b)

Single Underlying:

— Applicable for the purposes of:

—  Index:

—  Proprietary Index:

—  Exchange:

—  Multiple Exchange:

—  Index Sponsor:

— Related Exchange:

—  Valuation Time:

—  Bloomberg Ticker:
[Basket][Multi-Asset Basket]:

~  [[Basket][Multi-Asset Basket]:

— Applicable for the purposes of:

201

Form of the Final Terms

[Applicable in accordance with Annex 1,
Chapter 2][Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining
subparagraphs of this paragraph)
[Applicable][Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining
subparagraphs of this subparagraph)
[Standard Interest Payoff [e (Insert name of
Sandard Interest Payoff)]]

[Combination Interest Payoff [e (Insert name of
Combination Interest Payoff)]]

[Payoff Feature [e (Insert name of Payoff
Feature)]]

[Early Redemption Trigger [® (Insert name of
Redemption Trigger)]]

[®][Not Applicable]

[e][Not Applicable]

[®][Not Applicable]
[Applicable][Not Applicable]
[e][Not Applicable]

[e][All Exchanges][Not Applicable]
[Closing][Intraday]

[®][Not Applicable]

[Applicable][Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining
subparagraphs of this subparagraph)

[i] [(Please aso refer to paragraph[s] [15A]
[and] [15C] [and] [15D] [and] [15E] [and] [15F]
and] [15G] for details of other Multi-Asset
Basket Components)]]

[Standard Interest Payoff [e (Insert name of
Sandard Interest Payoff)]]

[Combination Interest Payoff [e (Insert name of
Combination Interest Payoff)]]

[Payoff Feature [e (Insert name of Payoff
Feature)]]

[Early Redemption Trigger [® (Insert name of
Redemption Trigger)]]



Underlying:  Indices:

(1] [e]

(Add rows (Add
(numbered rows as
sequentially  require
) as d)
required)

Proprietary
Indices:

(Add rows
asrequired)

Exchange: Multiple
Exchange:

[e][Not [Applicab

Applicabl  l€e][Not

€] Applicabl
e

(Addrows (Add rows
as as
required) required)

—  [[Basket][Multi-Asset Basket]:

—  Applicable for the purposes of:

Underlying:  Indices:

(1] [e]

(Add rows (Add
(numbered rows as
sequentially  require
) as d)
required)

Proprietary
Indices:

(Add rows
asrequired)

Exchange: Multiple
Exchange:

[®][Not [Applicabl

Applicabl  €][Not

€] Applicabl
el

(Add rows  (Add rows
as as
required)  required)

~  [[Basket][Multi-Asset Basket]:
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Form of the Final Terms

Index Related Vduati Bloo
Sponsor: Exchange: on mber
Time: g
Tick
er
[®][Not [e][All [Closn [e][
Applicable Exchanges] ¢] Not
] [Not [Intrad  APPI
Applicable] ay] icabl
e

(Addrows (Addrows  (Add (Add

as asrequired) rows rows
required) as as
require requi
d) red)
[i] [(Please also refer to paragraph[s]
[15A] [and] [15C] [and] [15D] [and]
[15E] [and] [15F] and] [15G] for
details of other Multi-Asset Basket
Components)]]
[Standard Interest Payoff [e (Insert
name of Standard Interest Payoff)]]
[Combination Interest Payoff [e
(Insert name of Combination Interest
Payoff)]]
[Payoff Feature [® (Insert name of
Payoff Feature)]]
[Early Redemption Trigger [® (Insert
name of Redemption Trigger)]]
Index Sponsor: Relate Vauat Bloo
d ion mber
Excha Time g
nge: Tick
er:
[®][Not [e][A [Clos [e][
Applicable] Il ng] Not
Excha [Intra  App!
nges]  day] icabl
[Not €]
Appli
cable]
(Add rows as (Add  (Add  (Add
required) rows rows rows
as as as

requir requir  requi
ed) ed) red)

[K] [(Please also refer to paragraph[s]
[15A] [and] [15C] [and] [15D] [and]



—  Applicablefor the purposes of:

Underlying:  Indices: Proprietary

(1]

Indices:

[e] [e]

(Add rows (Add (Add rows
(numbered rows as as
sequentially  required)  required)

) as

required)

(c) Additional Disruption Event:

(d) Observation Date(s):

()

(f)

Maximum Days of Disruption:

Payment Extension Days:

Exchange:

[¢][Not
Applicable]

(Add rows
asrequired)
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Multiple
Exchange:

[Applicab
le][Not
Applicabl
el

(Add rows
as
required)

Form of the Final Terms

[15E] [and] [15F] and] [15G] for
details of other Multi-Asset Basket
Components)]]

[Standard Interest Payoff [e (Insert
name of Standard Interest Payoff)]]
[Combination Interest Payoff [
(Insert name of Combination Interest
Payoff)]]

[Payoff Feature [® (Insert name of
Payoff Feature)]]

[Early Redemption Trigger [® (Insert
name of Redemption Trigger)]]

Index Sponsor:  Relate Vauat Bloo

d ion mber
Excha Time g
nge: Tick
er:
[e][Not [e] [Clos  [e][
Applicable] [AIll ng] Not

Excha [intra  Appl
ngesl  day] icabl

[Not €]
Appli
cable]
(Add rows as (Add  (Add  (Add
required) rows  rows rows
as as as

requir requir  requi
o) e  red

[Applicable in accordance with Index
Linked Asset Condition 3.4]

[Change of Law is not applicable]
[Hedging Disruption is not
applicable]

[Increased Cost of Hedging is not
applicable] (Note that Increased Cost

of Hedging will not be applicable to
Italian Listed Certificates)

[®] (Specify any business day
convention applicable to the
Observation Date(s))

[8 Index Scheduled Trading
Days][[®] Index Scheduled Trading
Days|

[®] (If nothing is specified the default
istwo (2) Payment Business Days)



15C

FX Linked Interest Security:

(8 Single Underlying:

- Applicable for the purposes of:

- FX Rate:

- FX Price Source:
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Form of the Final Terms

[Applicable in accordance with
Annex 1, Chapter 3][Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the
remaining subparagraphs of this
paragraph)

[Applicable][Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the
remaining subparagraphs of this
subparagraph)

[Standard Interest Payoff [e (Insert
name of Standard Interest Payoff)]]

[Combination Interest Payoff [e
(Insert name of Combination Interest
Payoff)]]

[Payoff Feature [® (Insert name of
Payoff Feature)]]

[Early Redemption Trigger [® (Insert
name of Redemption Trigger)]]

[Cross Rate Methodology is not
applicable.

[e][Calculation Agent FX Rate
Determination][BRL/JPY
Rate][BRL/USD Rate]]

[Cross Rate Methodology and
[Multiplied][Divided] are applicable:
the Cross Currency is [e], the First
FX Element is [®] and the Second
FX Element is [e].

[e][Calculation Agent FX Rate
Determination]]

[Applicable: [@]][Not Applicable as
Calculation Agent FX Rate
Determination applies|[Not
Applicable as [BRL/IPY
Rate][BRL/USD Rate] applies]

[With respect to the First FX
Element:  [Applicable:  [®]][Not
Applicable as Calculation Agent FX
Rate Determination applies]

With respect to the Second FX
Element:  [Applicable:  [®]][Not
Applicable as Calculation Agent FX
Rate Determination applies]]



Basis of Determination:

BRL Valuation Date:

(Déelete if FX Rate is not BRL/JPY Rate or BRL/USD
Rate)

BRL/JPY Business Days:
(Deleteif FX Rate is not BRL/JPY Rate)

BRL/USD Business Days.
(Déleteif FX Rateis not BRL/USD Rate)

Reference Currency:
Base Currency:

Vauation Time:

Market Disruption Events:
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Form of the Final Terms

[Offer Price][Bid Price][Mid
Price][Not applicable as Calculation

Agent FX Rate Determination
applies]

[With respect to the First FX
Element: [Offer Price][Bid
Price][Mid Price][Not applicable as
Calculation Agent FX Rate

Determination applies|
With respect to the Second FX

Element: [Offer Price][Bid
Price][Mid Price][Not applicable as
Calculation Agent FX Rate

Determination applies]]

[[®] BRL/JPY Business Days prior to
the [Interest Payment Date] [e
specify other payment date)][[e]
BRL/USD Business Days prior to the
[Interest Payment Date] [® specify
other payment date)]][Not Specified]

[[®] is an additional financial centre
for the purposes of the definition of
"BRL/JPY Business Days'][Not
Applicable]

[[®] is an additional financial centre
for the purposes of the definition of
"BRL/USD Business Days'][Not
Applicable]

[e]

[e]

[Closing][®][Intraday]

[With respect to the First FX
Element: [Closing][ ®][Intraday]

With respect to the Second FX
Element: [Closing][ ®][Intraday]]
(Specify as per Asset Conditions)

(AIl Market Disruption Events listed
in Annex 1, Chapter 3 will be
applicable unless specified as not
applicable below)

[The following Market Disruption
Events are not applicable: (specify

which Market Disruption Events do
not apply) [Benchmark Obligation



Benchmark Obligation Default:

—  Benchmark Obligation(s):

Iliquidity:

—  Minimum Amount:

— llliquidity Valuation Date:

Price Materiality:

Price Materiality Percentage:
Primary Rate:
Secondary Rate:

Event Currency(ies) and Non Event Currency(ies):
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Form of the Final Terms

Default][Dual Exchange
Rate][ General
Inconvertibility][General Non-
Transferability][ Governmental
Authority
Default][Illiquidity][Materia Change
in
Circumstances][Nationalisation][Pric
e Materiality][Price Source
Disruption][Specific

Inconvertibility][ Specific Non-
Transferability]] [All applicable]

(Delete this row and remaining
subparagraph below if Benchmark
Obligation Default is not applicable)

[e(Insert  relevant  Benchmark
Obligation)]

(Delete this row and remaining
subparagraphs below if Illiquidity is
not applicable)

[®][Not specified]

(The Calculation Agent  will
determine the Minimum Amount on
the Illiquidity Valuation Date if it is
not specified)

[®][Not specified]

(If the Illiquidity Valuation Date is
not specified, the llliquidity Valuation
Date will be the relevant Observation
Date)

(Delete this row and remaining
subparagraphs below if Price
Materiality is not applicable)

[e]

[e]

[e]

Event  Currencly][ies] [ig][ar€]
[e(Insert relevant Event
Currency)][not specified].

Non Event Currenc[y][ies] [is][ar€]:
[e(Insert relevant Non Event
Currency(ies) for each Event

Currency)] in respect of [e(Insert
relevant Event Currency)]



- Successor Currency:

- JPY Price Source Disruption:

- JPY Relevant Page:

- JPY Fallback Pagel:

- JPY Fallback Page2:
(b) [Basket][Multi-Asset Basket]:

~  [[Basket][Multi-Asset Basket]:

- Applicable for the purposes of:

Underlying: FX Rate(s): FX Price Source: Basis of BRL Valuation BRL/JPY Reference Valuation
Determination: Date: Business Currency: Time:
Days:

[ [Cross Rate [Applicable: [Offer [[#] BRL/IPY [[#]is an [e] [Closing][e]
Methodology is not [e]][Not Price][Bid Business Days additional [Intraday]
applicable. Applicableas Price][Mid prior tothe financid
[¢][Calculation Calculation Price][Not [Interest f:‘"erf” [With
Agent FX Rate Agent FX Rate applicable as Payment Date] ofg;r?u poses respect to the
Determination] [BRL Determination Calculation [® specify other e First FX

definition of Element:
19PY applies][Not Agent FX Rate payment
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Form of the Final Terms

(If an Event Currency is not
specified, the Event Currency will be
the Reference Currency)

(Event Currency is an election for the
Market Disruption Events of General
Inconvertibility, = General Non-
Transferability, Material Change in
Circumstances, Nationalisation,
Foecific Inconvertibility and Specific
Non-Transferability. If all of these
Market Disruption Events are
specified as not applicable at
paragraph 19C above, delete row)

[Applicable][Not Applicable]

[Applicable][Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the
remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

[e]

[e]

[e]

[Applicable][Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the
remaining subparagraphs of this
subparagraph)

[i] [(Please also refer to paragraph[s]
[15A] [and] [15B] [and] [15D] [and]
[15E] [and] [15F] and] [15G] for

details of other Multi-Asset Basket
Components)]]

[Standard Interest Payoff [e (Insert
name of Standard Interest Payoff)]]
[Combination Interest Payoff [
(Insert name of Combination Interest
Payoff)]]

[Payoff Feature [® (Insert name of
Payoff Feature)]]

[Early Redemption Trigger [® (Insert
name of Redemption Trigger)]]

Market Disruption Events: Benchmark Minimum Amount:

Obligation(s):

[The following Market [e] [®][Not specified]
Disruption Events are not

applicable: [Benchmark

Obligation Default][Dual

Exchange Rate][General

Inconvertibility][General Non-

Transferability][Governmental



Rate][BRL/USD
Rate]]

[Cross Rate
Methodol ogy and
[Multiplied][Divided
] are applicable: the
Cross Currency is
[e]. the First FX
Element is [¢] and
the Second FX
Element is [e].

[e][Calculation

Agent FX Rate
Determination]]
(Add rows (Add rows as
(numbered required)
sequentialy)
as required)
Iliquidity Price Materiality:
Valuation
Date
[®][Not
specified]

Applicable as
[BRL/JPY
Rate][BRL/USD
Rate] applies]
[With respect to
theFirst FX
Element:
[Applicable:
[#]][Not
Applicable as
Calculation
Agent FX Rate
Determination
applies]

With respect to
the Second FX
Element:
[Applicable:
[#]][Not
Applicable as
Calculation
Agent FX Rate
Determination
applies]]

(Add rows as
required)

Price Materiaity
Percentage:

[e]

Determination
applies]

[With respect to
theFirst FX
Element: [Offer
Price][Bid
Price|[Mid
Price][Not
applicable as
Calculation
Agent FX Rate
Determination
applies]

With respect to
the Second FX
Element: [Offer
Price][Bid
Price][Mid
Price][Not
applicable as
Calculation
Agent FX Rate
Determination
applies]]

(Add rows as
required)

Primary Rate:

[e]

date)][[e]
BRL/USD
Business Days
prior to the
[Interest
Payment Date]
[® specify other
payment
date)]][Not
Specified]

(Add rows as
required)

Secondary Rate:

[e]

"BRL/JPY
Business
Days"][Not
Applicable]

(Add rows
as required)

Event
Currency(ies
) and Non
Event
Currency(ies
)

Event
Currencly][i
e [is][are]
[e(Insert
relevant
Event
Currency(ies
Mnot
specified].
Non Event
Currencly][i
e [is][are]:
[e(Insert
relevant Non
Event
Currency(ies
) for each
Event
Currency)]
in respect of
in respect of
[e(Insert
relevant
Event
Currency)
(If an Event
Currency is
not
specified, the
Event
Currency
will be the
Reference
Currency)

(Event
Currencyis
an election
for the
Market
Disruption
Events of
General
Inconvertibil

Transferabili
ty, Material
Changein
Circumstanc
€s,
Nationalisati
on, Specific
Inconvertibil
ity and
Specific
Non-
Transferabili
ty. If all of
these Market
Disruption
Eventsare
specified as
not
applicableat
paragraph
19C(g)
above, delete
colunn)

(Add rows as

required)

Successor
Currency:

[Applicable]

[Not
Applicable]
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[Closing][e]
[Intraday]

With respect
tothe
Second FX
Element:
[Closing][e]
[Intraday]]

(Specify as
per Asset
Conditions)

(Add rows as

required)

JPY Price
Source
Disruption:

[Applicable]
[Not
Applicable]

Authority
Default][Iliquidity][Material
Changein

Circumstances] [Nationalisation]
[Price Materiality][Price Source
Disruption][Specific
Inconvertibility][Specific Non-
Transferability]] [All
applicable]

(Add rows as required)

JPY Relevant Page:

[e]

Form of the Final Terms

(Add rows as (Add rows as required)
required)

JPY Fallback JPY Fallback Page2:
Pagel:

[e] [e]



(Add rows
asrequired)

(Add rows as
required)

Underlying: FX Rate(s):

1 [Cross Rate
Methodology is not
applicable.
[e][Calculation
Agent FX Rate
Determination][BRL
13PY
Rate][BRL/USD
Rate]]

[Cross Rate
Methodol ogy and
[Multiplied][Divided
] are applicable: the
Cross Currency is
[®], the First FX
Element is [e] and
the Second FX
Element is [o].
[®][Calculation
Agent FX Rate
Determination]]

(Add rows
(numbered
sequentialy)
as required)

(Add rows as
required)

Iliquidity
Valuaion
Date

Price Materiality:

[®][Not
specified]

(Add rows as
required)

(Add rowsas
required)

(Add rows as
required)

(Add rows
asrequired)

[[Basket][Multi-Asset Basket]:

Applicable for the purposes of:

FX Price Source:

[Applicable:
[#]][Not
Applicable as
Calculation
Agent FX Rate
Determination
applies][Not
Applicable as
[BRL/IPY
Rate][BRL/USD
Rate] applies]
[With respect to
theFirst FX
Element:
[Applicable:
[#]][Not
Applicable as
Calculation
Agent FX Rate
Determination
applies]

With respect to
the Second FX
Element:
[Applicable:
[®]][Not
Applicable as
Calculation
Agent FX Rate
Determination
applies]]

(Add rows as
required)

Price Materiaity
Percentage:

Basis of
Determination:

[Offer
Price][Bid
Price|[Mid
Price][Not
applicable as
Calculation
Agent FX Rate
Determination
applies]

[With respect to
theFirst FX
Element: [Offer
Price][Bid
Price|[Mid
Price][Not
applicable as
Calculation
Agent FX Rate
Determination
applies]

With respect to
the Second FX
Element: [Offer
Price][Bid
Price|[Mid
Price][Not
applicable as
Calculation
Agent FX Rate
Determination
applies]]

(Add rows as
required)

Primary Rate:

BRL Vauation
Date:

[[#] BRL/JPY
Business Days
prior tothe
[Interest
Payment Date]
[® specify other
payment
date)]([e]
BRL/USD
Business Days
prior to the
[Interest
Payment Date]
[® specify other
payment
date)]][Not
Specified]

(Add rows as
required)

Secondary Rate:

[e]

BRL/JPY
Business
Days:
[[®]is an
additional
financia
centre for
the purposes
of the
definition of
"BRL/JPY
Business
Days'][Not
Applicable]

(Add rows
as required)

Event
Currency(ies
) and Non
Event
Currency(ies
)

Event
Currencly][i
es] [is][are]
[e(Insert
relevant
Event
Currency(ies
Nnot
specified].
Non Event
Currencly][i
e [is][are]:
[e(Insert
relevant Non
Event
Currency(ies
) for each
Event

(Add rows as
required)

Reference
Currency:

[e]

(Add rows as
required)

Successor
Currency:

[Applicable]
[Not
Applicable]
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Form of the Final Terms

(Add rows as (Add rows as required) (Add rowsas (Add rows as required)
required) required)
[i] [(Please also refer to paragraph[s]
[15A] [and] [15B] [and] [15D] [and]
[15E] [and] [15F] and] [15G] for
details of other Multi-Asset Basket
Components)]]
[Standard Interest Payoff [e (Insert
name of Standard Interest Payoff)]]
[Combination Interest Payoff [
(Insert name of Combination Interest
Payoff)]]
[Payoff Feature [® (Insert name of
Payoff Feature)]]
[Early Redemption Trigger [® (Insert
name of Redemption Trigger)]]
Valuation Market Disruption Benchmark Obligation(s): Minimum
Time: Events: Amount:
[Closing][¢] [The following Market [o] [#][Not
[Intraclay) Disruption Events are specified]
not applicable:
[with [Benchmark Obligation
respect to the Default][Dual Exchange
First FX Rate][General
Element: Inconvertibility] [Genera
[Closing][e] 1 Non-
[Intraday] Transferability][Govern
menta Authority
With respect Default][Illiquidity][Mat
tothe erial Changein
Second FX Circumstances][National
Element: isation][Price
[Closing][e] Materiality][Price
[Intraday]] Source
Disruption][Specific
(Specify as Inconvertibility][Specifi
per Asset ¢ Non-Transferability]]
Conditions) [All applicable]
(Add rows as (Add rows as required) (Add rows as required) (Add rows 